
           
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.01, THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD A
MEETING AT THE GILA COUNTY COURTHOUSE, BOARD OF  SUPERVISORS’ HEARING ROOM, 1400
EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE OR MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY PARTICIPATE IN THE
MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV).  THE
MEETING IS ALSO TELEVISED TO THE GILA COUNTY COMPLEX, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS'
CONFERENCE ROOM, 610 E. HIGHWAY 260, PAYSON, ARIZONA.  

NOTE:  Per the most recent guidelines from the federal government that no more than 10
people should be gathered in a room at the same time, no citizens will be allowed in the
Board of Supervisors' hearing room at the Globe Courthouse or at the County Complex, Board
of Supervisors' conference room in Payson.

Citizens may watch the Board meeting live-streamed at:  
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCkCHWVqrI5AmJKbvYbO-k2A/live

Citizens may submit comments related to the May 5, 2020 Regular Meeting agenda by no
later than 5 p.m. on Monday, May 4, by emailing to the Clerk of the Board at
msheppard@gilacountyaz.gov or calling 928-402-8757.  Please include the meeting date and
agenda item number in the email.

THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, MAY 5, 2020 - 10:00 A.M.
             
1. CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE -

INVOCATION
 

 

2. PRESENTATIONS:  
 

A.   Presentation of information on the University of Arizona's
Cooperative Extension 4-H Program.  (Renee Carstens)

 

3. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve the appointment
of Mary Navarro as a Justice of the Peace Pro Tempore for
the Globe Justice Court with the term expiring December
31, 2020. (Jonathan Bearup)

 

B.   Information/Discussion/Action to consider waiving the
$300 application fee for Conditional Use Permit Application
No. P2004-024. (Scott Buzan)

 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCkCHWVqrI5AmJKbvYbO-k2A/live


C.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve Professional
Services Contract No. 121619-Third Party Medical Claims
Administrator for Sheriff's Office Detention with
CorrectCare-Integrated Health for a period of one year with
options to renew for up to three years at a cost of $14.00
per claim. (Mary Springer)

 

D.   Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the
advertisement of Request for Sealed Proposals No.
041520-Annual Newspaper Contract to solicit bids for an
annual contract for all advertising, publications, and
printing required to be done or made by all departments of
county government for the period July 1, 2020 through
June 30, 2021. (Mary Springer)

 

E.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No.
20-05-01 appointing Mary Jane Springer, Finance Director,
as the Chief Fiscal Officer for Gila County as required by
Arizona Revised Statutes § 41-1279.07(E). (James Menlove)

 

4. CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the
Consent Agenda will be removed from the Consent
Agenda and discussed and voted upon as a regular
agenda item upon the request of any member of the
Board of Supervisors.)

 

 

A.   Approval of revised Public Works Department Policy
“Commercial Driver License (CDL) Random Drug/Alcohol
Testing” to make changes and additions to the verbiage; to
change the format of the policy; and change the policy
number from DPW 09-05 to PWS-012.

 

B.   Approval of the Board of Supervisors' April 21, 2020
meeting minutes.

 

C.   Acknowledgment of the March 2020 monthly activity report
submitted by the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.

 



 

D.   Acknowledgment of the March 2020 monthly activity report
submitted by the Recorder's Office. 

 

E.   Acknowledgment of the March 2020 monthly activity report
submitted by the Globe Regional Constable's Office.

 

F.   Acknowledgment of the March 2020 monthly activity report
submitted by the Payson Regional Constable's Office.

 

G.   Acknowledgment of the March 2020 monthly activity report
submitted by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's
Office.

 

H.   Acknowledgment of the March 2020 monthly activity report
submitted by the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's
Office.

 

5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:   A call to the public is held for
public benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of
Supervisors on any issue within the jurisdiction of the
Board of Supervisors. Board members may not discuss
items that are not specifically identified on the agenda.
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute
§38-431.01(H), at the conclusion of an open call to the
public, individual members of the Board of Supervisors may
respond to criticism made by those who have addressed the
Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and
decision at a future date.

 

 

6. At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S.
§38-431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and
the County Manager may present a brief summary of
current events.  No action may be taken on information
presented.

 

 



IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928)
425-3231 AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL
7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO
(928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING
LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3).

THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE
MEETING.



   
ARF-5927     Presentation     2. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2020  
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the

Board
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
University of Arizona Cooperative Extension Programs

Background Information
The University of Arizona offers many services through its Cooperative
Extension offices.  The Cooperative Extension Service is in more than 100
colleges and universities that comprise the nation's Land-Grant University
System; it is in all 50 states and U.S. Trust Territories; Cooperative
Extension has an office in or near most of the nation's approximately
3,000 counties; and it has support from more than 600,000 volunteers
nationwide, impacting 6.5 million young people in 4-H.  In Gila County,
there is a Cooperative Extension office in Globe, Payson and San Carlos.

Cooperative Extension program areas include agriculture and range
management, animal science, natural resources, 4-H youth development,
family consumer health science, horticulture, and forest health.

Evaluation
For many years, the Gila County Board of Supervisors has budgeted
funds to assist the Gila County Cooperative Extension programs. 
Cooperative Extension faculty recently met with the County Manager and
Deputy County Manager and it was decided that the Board of Supervisors
and the public would benefit from a more in-depth presentation of the
Cooperative Extension program areas and needs on a quarterly basis.

Conclusion
This will be the second quarterly presentation of Gila County Cooperative
Extension programs.  Renee Carstens, 4-H Agent, will provide information
on the 4-H Program.

Recommendation
N/A



N/A

Suggested Motion
Presentation of information on the University of Arizona's Cooperative
Extension 4-H Program.  (Renee Carstens)

Attachments
4-H Presentation 5-5-20



Gila County 4-H 

Renee Carstens 

University of  Arizona

Assistant in Extension 



Renee Carstens
A little about me…

• Mom - Mackenzie and Kyle, and wife to Steve 

• Employed with Gila County University of  Arizona 
Cooperative Extension since Sept. 2016

• June 2018 – Present:  Assistant in Extension, 4-H Youth 
Development

• Previously 26 years as a teacher (pre-k through community 
college, including out of  school youth)



4-H Staff

• Jon Hatch

• AmeriCorps Members 



Gila County 4-H

• Currently in Gila County - 32 Project, Leaders Council and Community Clubs.  

Project clubs vary from traditional 4-H (livestock, archery, cooking, & sewing) 

to STEM, kayak, wood working, life skills, chess & emergency preparedness. 

• 192 Active Youth Members

• 37 Volunteer Adult Leaders



4-H Youth Development 

• Gila County 4-H provides opportunities to grow and learn leadership, 

responsibility, and citizenship while developing competent, caring and actively 

engaged youth.

• Ag Daze - Agriculture awareness program. Ag Daze Program at the H-4 

Ranch after 7 hours of  classroom lessons. 

• JOLT and 4-H Camp Leadership and traditional summer camps.



4-H Youth Development 

• AZ Summit Offered to high school students to provide an opportunity to 

explore the university campus and possible careers.

• Youniversity Expanding 4-H STEM opportunities and career exploration for 

middle and high school youth. 

• Walmart Foundation 4-H Healthy Habits Program offered to classes at 

Copper Rim Elementary and in San Carlos.  Forty-five youth completed six 

Choose Health: Food, Fun and Fitness (CHFFF) lessons.  



Grants, Donations, Gifts, and 

Fundraising 

Tractor Supply Paper Clover Campaign $1,476

• Scholarships to financially assist 4-H youth members to attend camp or leadership activities.

Valley of the Sun Freeport United Way $23,095

• 4-H Southern Gila County Programs 

United Fund of Globe-Miami $12,000

• 4-H Southern Gila County Programs 

ESIP Building Bridges Gila County $44,415

• Mentor program in Globe, Miami & San Carlos

ESIP Expanding 4-H STEM Opportunities & Career Exploration  $135,000 (multi-counties)

• EGO Robotics is a way to solve this practical problem by introducing 4-H members to marketable skills such as coding, design, programming, teamwork and 
innovation required at today’s employers and colleges. 

National 4-H Mentor Program $115,265.00 (Gila and Pima County)

• Afterschool Mentor Program serving youth 10 -14 years of age offering Learning opportunities one to two times a week in Miami and Payson.  

Old Fashion Fair Night (Gila County Fair) $6,001

• 4-H Youth Member Scholarships 



4-H During COVID-19

• Virtual Learning 

• Serving in the community (Social Distancing) 

• Time for projects 

Tonto Basin Marketplace

April 14 at 9:47 AM ·

Morning!

A big Thank You to the 4-H group who sent packets of 

goodies to everyone at the Marketplace! We appreciate 

you and you sure put smiles on our faces!

Thank You Again,

Shelley

https://www.facebook.com/tontobasinmarketplace/?__tn__=kC-R&eid=ARC9blneRbpJQtweQeSSY6JJ0LyqyIa0nahijf_cHXJDyNMrCTuXbVrXTAtQYwLqVjIxl_7pLcp1aaVq&hc_ref=ARRxCA_DI5Q_z8JPfI8Dp1NxUNn5NGb78xBZN74AvAVibc_e-lu3plh1EuL0-jAf7eE&fref=nf&__xts__%5B0%5D=68.ARCQCz7HPI_GnHV_dmXLi74JYSPLWPt5PM7a42ShsMZGXgE6MKpxi36URPLNo2Vx0ru6dmbjd2hWP0yTrbcAUcCzjBdRyDawEI8KEZi-DT8rTAOEcuaBKo8FLCrGp--pfYbli2JvPS2TAn98qZd4qnmOSnw487pIIDpg2e5bAjtvNH1cER-WViVlSJJvjL60kBF19hYylaDT0VKK0TW5m41N-2IdcAHZ_JqF2H63-m7u95n4NkAjDJEgUB7ZcOKaRDwe94eKAzTqK3Gc2INQ9u1tbIYX2WEWQlb0qM_cGg7g_O_pgH_KeHYoEnAg2xOOZpBIOwXeevLmI24vNgKG9Q
https://www.facebook.com/tontobasinmarketplace/posts/1286109528263552?__xts__%5B0%5D=68.ARCQCz7HPI_GnHV_dmXLi74JYSPLWPt5PM7a42ShsMZGXgE6MKpxi36URPLNo2Vx0ru6dmbjd2hWP0yTrbcAUcCzjBdRyDawEI8KEZi-DT8rTAOEcuaBKo8FLCrGp--pfYbli2JvPS2TAn98qZd4qnmOSnw487pIIDpg2e5bAjtvNH1cER-WViVlSJJvjL60kBF19hYylaDT0VKK0TW5m41N-2IdcAHZ_JqF2H63-m7u95n4NkAjDJEgUB7ZcOKaRDwe94eKAzTqK3Gc2INQ9u1tbIYX2WEWQlb0qM_cGg7g_O_pgH_KeHYoEnAg2xOOZpBIOwXeevLmI24vNgKG9Q&__tn__=-R


Future of  4-H in Gila County

• Expand school education & special 

interest clubs

• Youth engagement in county, regional, 

state and national programs

• Partnership with GUSD – stockyard 

• Meeting and program facilities 



   
ARF-6020   Regular Agenda Item     3. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2020  
Submitted For: Jonathan Bearup, Court Administrator 
Submitted By: Jonathan Bearup, Court Administrator
Department: Superior Court Division: Superior Court Administration

Information
Request/Subject
Appointment of a Justice of the Peace Pro Tempore for the Globe Regional
Justice Court.

Background Information
The Presiding Judge of the Superior Court in Gila County has requested
the appointment of the following individual to serve in the capacity of
Justice of the Peace Pro Tempore: Mary Navarro.

The Justice of the Peace Pro Tempore for the Globe Justice Court will
serve for a period of twelve (12) months, from June 1, 2020, to December
31, 2020, unless terminated earlier by order of the Presiding Judge,
pursuant to A.R.S. § 22-121 for the purpose of enhancing the Court's
ability to process cases.

Evaluation
Because of exigent circumstances requiring qualified judicial officers
when conflicts arise, or in the event a Justice of the Peace is absent or
unavailable, pursuant to A.R.S. § 22-121, the appointment of Ms. Navarro
is requested for a Justice of the Peace Pro Tempore for the Globe Justice
Court. Any Justice of the Peace Pro Tempore may serve from time to time
as requested and subject to the availability of funds of the respective
Justice Court. All terms shall expire on December 31, 2020, unless
terminated earlier by order of the Presiding Judge.

Conclusion
The Presiding Judge of the Superior Court in Gila County has requested
the appointment of Mary Navarro to serve as Justice of the Peace Pro
Tempore, pursuant to A.R.S. § 22-121, for the purposes of enhancing the
Court's ability to process cases.

Recommendation



Presiding Judge Timothy M. Wright recommends that the Gila County
Board of Supervisors approve the appointment of Mary Navarro as a
Justice of the Peace Pro Tempore for the Globe Justice Court with the
term concluding on December 31, 2020.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the appointment of Mary
Navarro as a Justice of the Peace Pro Tempore for the Globe Justice Court
with the term expiring December 31, 2020. (Jonathan Bearup)

Attachments
Memo to Board of Supervisors
Board of Supervisors Approval
Administrative Order Appointing Mary Navarro





APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENT OF  
JUSTICE OF THE PEACE PRO TEMPORE 

 
 
 

 The Presiding Judge of the Superior Court in Gila County has requested the 

reappointment of Mary Navarro as Justice of the Peace Pro Tempore of the Globe 

Regional Justice Court in Gila County for the term of June 1, 2020, through 

December 31, 2020, unless terminated earlier by Order of the Presiding Judge, 

pursuant to A.R.S. §22-121 for the purpose of enhancing the court’s ability to 

process cases. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, be it known that the Gila County Board of Supervisors 

approves such appointment.  

 
Dated   ________________________________________________  2020. 

 

 

 GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

 
 By:  _____________________________  
      Woody Cline, Chairman 
 





   

ARF-6030   Regular Agenda Item     3. B.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2020  

Submitted For: Scott Buzan, Community Development Director 
Submitted By: Scott Buzan, Community Development Director
Department: Community Development Division: Planning and Zoning

Information
Request/Subject
Request is to ask the Board to waive the $300 zoning application fee for
Conditional Use Permit Application No. P2004-024.

Background Information
As defined in the Gila County Zoning Ordinance, a Conditional Use Permit is a
permit issued in conjunction with the establishment of a conditional use set
forth by incorporation or reference all qualifying conditions governing the use of
the property.

On February 20, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved the Gila County
Planning and Zoning Fee schedule. The listed fee for a Conditional Use
Permit/Conditional Use Site Plan Review is $300.

On October 18, 2019, Community Development staff issued a building permit
in the Whispering Pines subdivision which is zoned R1L, for a two-story
single-family residence with 2,478 square feet habitable space and a 1,267
square foot attached garage.  

Staff missed during the submittal of the plans that the structure is actually
three stories and exceeded the maximum 30-foot building height measured from
the grade level to the mean height between the eaves and ridge for gable and hip
roofs per the Gila County Zoning Ordinance by 4 feet.

The Zoning Ordinance states that a Conditional Use Permit shall be required for
any building exceeding two stories or thirty feet above ground level in an R1L
zoning district.

Community Development received a complaint that the structure was too tall
for the area.  Upon investigation, staff discovered the errors.

The property owner, after being informed by staff, submitted a Conditional Use
Permit application.

The Conditional Use Permit application is scheduled to be heard by the



Planning and Zoning Commission on May 21, 2020, at 10:00 AM.

Evaluation
The property owner was issued a building permit for his single-family residence.

After the building permit was issued, Community Development Department
staff discovered that the structure exceeded the number of stories and allowable
building height.  Per the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance, a Conditional
Use Permit is required.  The property owner has been informed on this errorr
and he has submitted an application for a Conditional Use Permit which must
be approved by Planning and Zoning Commission and the Board of Supervisors.

The owner has commenced building and is currently at the framing stage of
construction.  Since the error was on the part of the Community Development
Department, staff does not believe the property owner should be made to pay
the $300 application fee.

Conclusion
Due to an oversight by Community Development Department staff, the property
owner was issued a building permit to modify the structure upon his property. 
Because the design of the residence exceeds the allowances of the Zoning
Ordinance, a Conditional Use Permit is required.

After paying $3,145 in building permit fees, the property owner was issued a
building permit and later site inspections were done.

After discovering the error, Community Development Department staff made
contact with the property owner who has agreed to cooperate even though he
feels that by the County issuing him a building permit he shouldn't have to do
anything.

Since staff did not inform the property owner at the time of plan submittal or
building permit issuance that the structure's design was a violation of the
Zoning Ordinance and a Conditional Use Permit with its $300 application fee
would be needed and because the owner is cooperating, waiving of the
application fee is warranted.

There is no provision in the current fee schedule for waiving of fees by staff or
management for fees approved by the Board.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board waive the $300 application fee for Conditional
Use Permit Application No. P2004-024.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to consider waiving the $300 application fee for



Information/Discussion/Action to consider waiving the $300 application fee for
Conditional Use Permit Application No. P2004-024. (Scott Buzan)

Attachments
CUP Application
Zoning Ordinance
Fee Schedule

















 
 
 

 
 

 

Zoning Ordinance for 
Unincorporated Areas 
of Gila County Arizona 

Last Revised on November 5, 2019 



 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

SECTION SUBSECTION TITLE PAGE 

101  PURPOSE, INTENT, RESPONSIBILITIES & PROCEDURES 3 
 101.1 PURPOSE AND INTENT 3 
 101.2 ADMINISTRATIVE RESPONSIBILITIES 3 
 A BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 3 
 B PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 4 
 C BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS 5 
 D ZONING INSPECTOR 5 
 E DESIGN REVIEW COMMITTEE 6 
 101.3 PROCEDURES 7 
 A ADMINISTRATIVE VARIANCE 7 
 B CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN 8 
 C CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 10 
 D USE PERMIT 13 
 E TEMPORARY USE PERMIT 14 
 F PRE-APPLICATION MEETING 16 
 G PUBLIC HEARINGS 16 
 H VARIANCE 17 

102  DEFINITIONS 19 
103  GENERAL STIPULATIONS AND PROVISIONS, ALL DISTRICTS 39 

 103.1 STRUCTURES & USES: COMPLIANCE TO DISTRICT REQUIREMENTS 39 
 103.2 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR LOTS 40 
 103.3 RESTRICTION ON REGULATIONS THROUGH ZONING 40 
 103.4 OFF-STREET PARKING 42 
 103.5 OFF-STREET LOADING SPACE AND ADA PARKING REQUIREMENTS 45 

  103.6 SIGNS. 46 
 103.7 AMATEUR RADIO ANTENNA (HAM RADIO) 48 
 103.8 COMMERCIAL COMMUNICATION TOWERS 48 
 103.9 SEXUALLY ORIENTED BUSINESS 49 
 103.10 PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 53 

104  ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONES (USE AND DENSITY DISTRICTS) 55 
 104.1 ZONING MAP 58 
 104.2 USE DISTRICTS (SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIIAL) 59 

  A R1 - RESIDENCE ONE DISTRICT 59 
  B R1L - RESIDENCE ONE DISTRICT LIMITED 63 
  C MHS - MOBILE HOME SUBDIVISION DISTRICT 64 
  D RR - RURAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT 66 
  E GR - GENERAL RURAL DISTRICT 69 
  F SR - SUBURBAN RANCH DISTRICT 71 
  G SFR - SINGLE FAMILY RURAL DISTRICT 73 
  104.3 MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 75 

 
 

 A R2 - RESIDENCE TWO DISTRICT (Multiple Dwelling Units Under 
  

75 
  B R3 - RESIDENCE THREE DISTRICT (Multiple Dwelling Units) 76 
  C R4 - RESIDENCE FOUR DISTRICT (Transitional Residential-

 
77 

  D TR - TRANSITIONAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT 79 
  104.4 COMMERCIAL DISTRICTS 82 

 A C1 - COMMERCIAL ONE DISTRICT (Neighborhood Convenience 
Di i ) 

82 
 B C2 - COMMERCIAL TWO DISTRICT (Intermediate Commercial) 85 

  C C3 – COMMERCIAL THREE DISTRICT (Central Business District) 88 
  104.5 INDUSTRIAL DISTRICTS 91 

 A M1 - INDUSTRIAL ONE DISTRICT (Light Industry) 91 
 B M2 - INDUSTRIAL TWO DISTRICT (Heavy Industrial) 92 



 
C M3 - INDUSTRIAL THREE DISTRICT (Unrestricted Industrial) 93 

104.6 USE DISTRICTS (OVERLAY) 94 
A PAD -  PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 94 
B PM - PERFORMANCE INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT 100 
C T - TRAILER DISTRICT 104 
D P1 - PARKING ONE DISTRICT 108 
E DESIGN REVIEW OVERLAY DISTRICT  109 

104.7 SPECIAL ZONING DISTRICT 115 
A GU - GENERAL UNCLASSIFIED DISTRICT 115 

104.8 DENSITY DISTRICTS 116 
A GENERAL REGULATIONS 116 
B DENSITY DISTRICT REQUIREMENTS 118 

105 AMENDMENT PROCEDURES 120 
105.1 AUTHORITY 120 
105.2 APPLICATION 120 
105.3 PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION ACTION 121 
105.4 BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ ACTION 122 

106 BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS 122 
106.1 BOARD STRUCTURE AND PROCEDURE 122 
106.2 POWERS AND DUTIES 122 
106.3 HEARING APPLICATIONS 123 
106.4 APPEALS 123 
106.5 HEARING AND RULINGS 123 

107 ENFORCEMENT 124 
107.1 Establishment of the Position of County Zoning Inspector 124 
107.2 VIOLATIONS 124 
107.3 LEGAL PROCEDURE (Procedure for Enforcement) 125 
107.4 INSPECTION (Authority for) 125 

108 BUILDING PERMITS 125 
109 REPEAL OF INCONSISTENT PROVISIONS 126 
110 SEVERABILITY 126 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



3 

 
 

 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE FOR UNINCORPORATED AREAS OF  
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
SECTION 101 
 
This Zoning Ordinance is adopted for the unincorporated areas of Gila County pursuant to the authority 
granted to Counties in Title 11, Title 41 and Title 48, of the Arizona Revised Statutes. 
 
SECTION 101.1 
PURPOSE AND INTENT 
 
In order to conserve and promote the public health, safety and general welfare by guiding and 
accomplishing a coordinated, adjusted and harmonious County development and future growth, there is 
hereby adopted, as part of a comprehensive long-term plan, an official zoning ordinance, together with 
zoning maps, rules and regulations for Gila County, Arizona shall hereafter be known collectively as the 
“GILA COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE FOR UNINCORPORATED AREAS OF GILA COUNTY, 
ARIZONA.” 
 
In the interpretation and application, the provisions of this Zoning Ordinance, unless otherwise provided, 
shall be held to be minimum requirements designed to lessen congestion in the neighborhood; to secure 
safety from fire, panic and other dangers; to provide adequate light and air; to prevent over-crowding of 
land; to avoid undue concentration of population in certain areas; to facilitate the adequate provision of 
transportation, water, sewerage, schools, parks, and other public requirements; and to maintain stable 
values of land and buildings. 
 
SECTION 101.2 
ADMINISTRATIVE RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
The purpose of this section is to set forth the powers, duties and organization of the offices responsible for 
the administration of this Zoning Ordinance. 

 
A. BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 
The Board of Supervisors shall have the following duties in the administration of the provisions 
of this Zoning Ordinance: 

 
1. Hear, review, and adopt amendments to the text of this Zoning Ordinance after a 

recommendation is provided by the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 

2. Hear, review, and adopt amendments to the zoning districts and the zoning map after a 
recommendation is provided by the Planning and Zoning Commission. 

 



4 

3. Hear, review, and consider appeals from decisions of the Planning and Zoning 
Commission or Zoning Inspector. 

 
4. Hear, review, and approve preliminary, final, and small subdivision plats after a 

recommendation is provided by the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 

5. Take other actions deemed necessary or desirable to implement the provisions of these 
regulations, the Land Use and Resource Policy Plan, and the Comprehensive Master 
Plan. 

 
B. PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

The Planning and Zoning Commission shall primarily serve as an advisory body to the Board of 
Supervisors to direct the growth and physical development of the private unincorporated areas of 
Gila County in a sound and orderly manner for the prosperity, health, safety, and welfare of the 
citizens. The membership and meetings shall be as provided in Title 11-802 of the Arizona 
Revised Statutes. 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission shall have the following duties in the administration of the 
provisions of this Zoning Ordinance: 
 

1. Hold public hearings when necessary and make recommendations to the Board of 
Supervisors on all matters concerning or related to the creation of zoning districts and 
boundaries, the appropriate regulations to be enforced therein, the amendment of this 
Zoning Ordinance, and any other matter within the scope of the zoning power.  
 

2. Hear, review, and make recommendations to the Board of Supervisors regarding 
applications for amendments to the Comprehensive Master Plan and other planning 
documents. 

 
3. Serve as an advisory body to the Board of Supervisors, and furnish to the Board of 

Supervisors, through its assistants, the facts concerning the adoption of any report or 
recommendation. 

 
4. Initiate, hear, and review amendments to the zoning map in accordance with the 

provision of this Zoning Ordinance. 
 

5. Initiate, hear and review amendments to the text of this Zoning Ordinance. 
 

6. Make investigations, maps, reports and recommendations in regard to the physical 
development of the unincorporated areas of Gila County. 

 
7. Hear, review and make recommendations to the Board of Supervisors regarding 

preliminary, small and final subdivision plats in accordance with rules and procedures of 
the subdivision regulations. 

 
8. Hear, review, determine compatibility requirements and make the decision regarding all 

Conditional Use Permit applications. 
 



5 

9. Hear, review and make recommendations to the Board of Supervisors regarding the Land 
Use Resource Policy Plan. 

 
C. BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
 

The Board of Adjustment shall be established to have meetings and make decisions as provided 
in Title 11-816 of the Arizona Revised Statutes and subsequent amendments to those statutes. 
 
The Board of Adjustment shall have the following duties in the administration of the provisions 
of this Zoning Ordinance: 
 

1. Interpret this Zoning Ordinance when the meaning of any word, phrase or section is in 
doubt; when there is a dispute between the appellant and enforcing officer; or when the 
location of a district boundary is in doubt.  

 
2. Hear and decide appeals in which it is alleged that there is an error in a requirement or 

decision made by the Zoning Inspector in the enforcement of this Zoning Ordinance. 
 
3. Hear and decide variances from the terms of this Zoning Ordinance because of special 

circumstances applicable to the property, including its size, shape, topography, location 
or surroundings where the strict application of the provisions of this Zoning Ordinance 
will deprive such property of privileges enjoyed by other property of the same 
classification in the same zoning district.   Any variance granted is subject to such 
conditions as will assure that the adjustment authorized shall not constitute a grant of 
special privileges inconsistent with the limitations upon other properties in the vicinity 
and zone in which property is located. 

 
4. Issue a refund, if needed, of all or portions of the application filing fee if a decision of the 

Zoning Inspector is deemed in error or a requirement is substantially modified. 
 
5. Designate conditions if needed that secure substantially the objectives of this Zoning 

Ordinance and require guarantees, if needed, in such a form as it deems proper to insure 
that such conditions are adhered.  Where any such conditions are violated or not adhered, 
the approval shall cease to exist and the Zoning Inspector shall act accordingly. 

 
The granting by the Board of Adjustment permission to proceed on a specific development 
scheme or of a permit for a construction variance shall be contingent upon permits being obtained 
and work commencing within six months and being diligently pursued.  Failure of such shall void 
the ruling unless a longer time has been granted by the Board. 

 
D. ZONING INSPECTOR 
 

For the purpose of implementing and enforcing this Zoning Ordinance within the zoned areas of 
unincorporated Gila County, the position of County Zoning Inspector is established.  The 
Director of the Gila County Community Development Division is designated as the Zoning 
Inspector.  The Zoning Inspector may designate a Deputy Zoning Inspector. 
 
The Zoning Inspector shall have the following duties in the administration of the provisions of 
this Zoning Ordinance: 

 



6 

1. Serve as the planning agency and administer all planning, zoning, lighting, subdivision 
and land use regulations as provided in this Zoning Ordinance. 
 

2. Interpret and administer the Comprehensive Master Plan and the related policies 
established by the Board of Supervisors. 
 

3. Establish forms and processes for the administration and review of map amendments, 
Conditional Use Permits, variances, minor land divisions, subdivision plats, text 
amendments and appeals. 
 

4. Conduct pre-application conferences prior to the submission of applications for map 
amendments, Conditional Use Permits, variances, subdivision plats, text amendments, 
and appeals. 

 
5. Review and consider requests for a Use Permit or an Administrative Variance. 

 
6. Accept, review, and make recommendations regarding map amendments, Conditional 

Use Permits, variances, subdivision plats, text amendments, and appeals.  
 

7. Provide assistance with the Land Use and Resource Policy Plan. 
 

8. Provide assistance to facilitate all public hearing requirements necessary under the 
provisions of these regulations. 

 
9. Provide assistance to the Board of Supervisors, the Planning and Zoning Commission, 

and the Board of Adjustment in the execution of their responsibilities under this Zoning 
Ordinance. 

 
E. DESIGN REVIEW COMMITTEE 

 
The Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. 08-12-01, which amended the Zoning 
Ordinance to add a section to the Zoning Ordinance which addresses regional design review 
guidelines. Those guidelines included the creation of a Design Review Committee, which is 
known as the Highway 60-70 Regional Design Review Committee (Committee).  The Committee 
shall serve as an advisory committee to the Planning and Zoning administrators (or equivalent) of 
the governmental agencies involved. 
 

1. Committee Membership: 
 

a. Each governmental agency will appoint three members to serve on the 
Committee.  At least one of the three members should be from property owners 
within the overlay district.  All members should be appointed to four-year terms.  
At the time of initial appointment, the Board of Supervisors shall appoint one 
member for two years, one member for three years, and one member for four 
years; thereafter, all appointments shall be for a four-year term of office. 
 

b. The Committee shall elect a Chairman and a Vice-Chairman to serve one-year 
terms to coordinate meetings and ensure that the Committee’s proceedings are in 
compliance with Arizona Open Meeting laws.  Their responsibilities shall 



7 

include preparation and publication of the notices of the meetings, meeting 
agenda, and the minutes of the meetings. 

 
c. Non-voting/advisory membership may be extended to a representative of other 

governmental agencies for the purpose of consultation at the discretion of the 
Committee, for example, the Arizona Department of Transportation. 

d. Upon receiving design packets from the property owners, the staff of the 
governmental agency having jurisdiction will transmit those packets to the 
Committee. 

 
e. The Committee shall meet within 15 days of receipt of a design packet and 

prepare a written recommendation to the staff of the governmental agency having 
jurisdiction.  If a written recommendation is not received within 30 days from the 
date of transmittal described above, the governmental agency having jurisdiction 
will assume the packet is approved with no recommendation from the 
Committee. 

 
SECTION 101.3 
APPLICATION PROCEDURES 
 
The purpose of this section is to provide for the orderly processing of land use and zoning applications 
according to the administrative offices and duties cited in Section 101 of this Zoning Ordinance. 
The development review procedures set forth in this section establish the standards for review and 
approval of all proposed development of unincorporated private properties in Gila County, except 
properties that have requested and remain unzoned and properties unzoned because of irregular mining 
claim uses. 

The Board of Supervisors, subject to a properly noticed public hearing, may adopt by resolution such fees 
and charges as it deems reasonable for the processing of applications for zoning, variances, and other 
procedures as herein provided. 
 

A. ADMINISTRATIVE VARIANCE 
 

1. When compliance with the minimum building setback regulations would cause extreme 
hardship due to conditions of extreme topography, unnecessary destruction of vegetation, 
close proximity to water ways, substandard size, or irregular shape and minimal impacts 
to adjoining property uses, the Zoning Inspector may grant a variance not to exceed fifty 
percent (50%) of the minimum required yard; however, under no circumstances shall 
there be a yard of less than three (3) feet. 
 

2. Application Requirements 
 

a. An application for an Administrative Variance shall be filed with the Gila County 
Community Development Division on forms provided for that purpose. 
 



8 

b. An application for an Administrative Variance shall only be initiated by a 
property owner, an agent authorized by the owner or a person having a written 
contractual interest in the affected property.  Proof of ownership of the subject 
property or a notarized ‘authorized agent’ form shall be required. 

 
c. A complete application form may require a site plan, depicting the special 

circumstance or location of the deviation from district standards.  
 

d. The application shall be accompanied by the payment of the appropriate non-
refundable fee per the schedule of such charges as adopted by the Board of 
Supervisors. 

 
3. Review 

 
The Zoning Inspector or his designated representative shall inspect the property to 
determine the circumstances and shall approve or deny the variance based on his findings 
and shall set forth his findings and recommendations on a form provided for that purpose. 
 

4. Decision 
 

a.  Notice of the decision of the Zoning Inspector or designee shall be sent by first 
class U.S. mail to applicant and real property owners as shown on the last 
assessment.  Notice shall also be sent by first class U.S. mail to real property 
owners of adjoining real properties to the addresses shown on the last 
assessment.  All notices may be sent to an authorized agent.  

 
5. Appeals 

 
Appeals of the decision of the Zoning Inspector may be made to the Board of Adjustment 
and must be filed in writing with the Community Development Division within fifteen 
(15) working days following the date of mailing of the notice of decision.  
The decision of the Zoning Inspector shall become effective at the expiration of the 
fifteen (15) calendar day appeal period, provided that no appeals have been filed. 

 
B. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN 

 
1. Purpose 

 
The purpose of the Citizen Participation Plan is to:  
 

a. Ensure that applicants pursue early and effective citizen participation in 
conjunction with their applications, giving them the opportunity to understand 
and try to mitigate any real or perceived impacts their application may have on 
the neighborhood and community. 

 
b. Ensure that the citizens and property owners of Gila County have an adequate 

opportunity to learn about applications that may affect them and to work with 
applicants to resolve concerns at an early stage of the process. 

 



9 

c. Facilitate ongoing communications between the applicant, interested citizens, 
property owners, Gila County staff and elected officials throughout the 
application review process. 

 
d. The Citizen Participation Plan is not intended to produce complete consensus on 

all applications, but to encourage applicants to be good neighbors and to allow 
for informed decision-making. 

 
2. Applicability 

 
The following applications shall require a Citizen Participation Plan:  

 
a. Applications to amend the zoning classifications and the zoning maps in the 

unincorporated private properties of Gila County. 
 
b. Applications for a Conditional Use Permit or a subdivision in the unincorporated 

private properties of Gila County. 
 

 Note: Applications for the subdivision process which have received an approved 
rezoning of the property within the past 12 months and prepared a Citizen 
Participation Plan and Citizen Participation Report, and the proposed subdivision 
is in substantial compliance with the site plan submitted for the rezoning process 
shall not be required to submit another plan. 

 
 Note: Applications for a Conditional Use Permit for single family residential 

developments shall not require a Citizen Participation Plan. 
 
c. Applications for a variance from the zoning regulations in the unincorporated 

private properties of Gila County. 
 

 Note: Applications for a variance on a single family residential property shall not 
require a Citizen Participation Plan. 

 
3. Notification Area 

 
The level of citizen interest and area of involvement will vary depending on the nature of 
the application and the location of the site. The neighboring properties for early 
notification are determined after consultation with the Community Development 
Division.  At a minimum, the neighboring properties shall include the following: 
 

a. Property owners within the 300’ radius of the subject site. 
 
b. The head of any homeowner's association or registered neighborhood within the 

300’ radius of the subject site.  
 

4. Staff Assistance  
 



10 

To assist citizens with the neighborhood maps and property owner information, after the 
pre-application meeting where the applicable review process and procedures are 
explained, Community Development Division staff will: 

 
a. Prepare a map of the subject site with the 300’ radius from the property 

boundaries that identifies the notification area and the neighboring properties. 
 
b. Prepare a list of the property owners, and their mailing addresses, that are part of 

the 300’ notification area. 
 

c.  Prepare an example ‘neighborhood’ meeting letter for the applicant. 
 

d.  Provide the map, list and example letter in 10 working days. 
 

5. Applicant’s Responsibilities 
 

a. The applicant shall invite and meet with his neighbors, being the property owners 
in the notification area, at a specific time and place, convenient for assembly and 
often the subject site, to discuss his proposed request.  

 
b. The applicant shall provide the Community Development Division with a copy 

of the neighborhood invitation letter, a ‘sign in’ list of attendees, all invitations 
returned by the U.S. Post Office, and a list of concerns that were expressed at the 
meeting or through mail or email.  
  

C. CONDITIONAL USES AND CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS 
 

As defined in the section of this Zoning Ordinance entitled “Definitions”, conditional uses are 
those uses, which although not specifically permitted in a given zoning district, would become 
harmonious or compatible with neighboring uses through the application and maintenance of 
qualifying conditions.  Conditional Use Permits shall be issued setting forth all qualifying 
conditions subject to the procedures for rezoning found in the section of this Zoning Ordinance 
entitled “Amendment Procedures.”  

 
1. Application Requirements 

 
a. The applicant shall submit a Conditional Use Permit application in the form of a 

narrative description of the proposed use on a form provided by the Community 
Development Division for that purpose and the application shall be accompanied 
by the appropriate non-refundable fee per the schedule of such charges as 
adopted by the Board of Supervisors. 

 
b. An application for a Conditional Use Permit shall be initiated only by a property 

owner, or an agent authorized by the property owner. Proof of ownership of the 
subject property or a notarized ‘authorized agent’ form shall be required. 

c. Accompanying the application, the applicant shall submit a reproducible site plan 
on sheets not to exceed 24" by 36,” at a scale not to exceed 100 feet per inch.  
The site plan shall contain, at a minimum, the following information: 



11 

i. The location and boundaries of the property. 
ii. Scale and north arrow. 

iii. The location of all existing and proposed improvements, provisions for 
onsite parking, internal or external access. 

iv. Such other information as the Zoning Inspector may deem necessary. 
 

2. Hearing 
 

Upon receipt of a completed application, site plan and the non-refundable application fee, 
a hearing on the application shall be scheduled before the Planning and Zoning 
Commission. 

 
3. Decision 

 
a. The Planning and Zoning Commission may deny the application, accept the 

recommendation of staff, modify the recommendation of staff, or send the 
application back to the staff for further study prior to a rehearing. 

 
b. A Conditional Use Permit (CUP) shall be issued by the Community 

Development Division setting forth all qualifying conditions, when the 
Planning and Zoning Commission approves a CUP application. 

 
4. Appeal 

 
Appeals of the decision and conditions of the Planning and Zoning Commission may be 
made to the Board of Supervisors and must be filed in writing with the Community 
Development Division within thirty (30) days following the date of the decision.  A non-
refundable application fee set by the Board of Supervisors is required. 

 
5. Special Uses – Medical Marijuana 

 
Medical Marijuana Dispensary/Cultivation and Medical Marijuana Dispensary Offsite 
Cultivation Location as defined in the section of this Zoning Ordinance entitled 
“Definitions,” subject to all rules adopted by the Arizona Department of Health Services 
and to the following conditions: 

 
a. Medical Marijuana Dispensaries or Medical Marijuana Offsite Cultivation 

Locations shall not be located within 35 miles of any other medical marijuana 
dispensary or medical marijuana offsite cultivation location. 
 

b. Medical Dispensaries and Medical Marijuana Offsite Cultivation Locations shall 
not be located within 1,500 feet of: 

i. A church; or, 
ii. A public or private elementary or secondary school; or, 
iii. A public or private day care center, preschool, nursery, kindergarten, or 

similar use; or, 
iv. A public park, playground, or public recreational facility; or, 
v. School bus stop, Library, Substance Abuse Treatment Facilities, 

vi. An adult oriented business. 
 



12 

c. Medical Marijuana Dispensaries shall be located within the M1 Zoning Districts. 
 
d. Drive-thru facilities shall not be permitted with any dispensary. 

 
e. Dispensaries shall not permit the consumption of marijuana in any form on the 

premises or parcel of land. 
 

f. Medical Marijuana Dispensaries with cultivation and off-site cultivation shall only 
be permitted in M1 Zoning Districts. 
 

g. For purposes of this Conditional Use Permit, the notification area for the 
application shall be 1,500 feet. 
 

h. For purposes of measuring separation distances required in this section, the 
measurements shall be taken in a straight line from the closest exterior walls of 
any affected structures without regard to intervening structures or objects or 
political boundaries. 
 

i. Medical Marijuana Dispensaries shall be open to the public only from 8:00 AM to 
5:00 PM daily, Monday through Friday. 
 

j. A Medical Marijuana Dispensary or a Medical Marijuana Offsite Cultivation 
Location facility lawfully operating is not rendered in violation of these 
provisions by the subsequent location of a church, public or private elementary or 
secondary school, a kindergarten or preschool or similar use, a park or 
playground, or an adult oriented business within 1,500 feet of the Medical 
Marijuana Dispensary or Medical Marijuana Offsite Cultivation Location. 
 

k. Applicant shall provide a copy of registration approved by Department of Health 
Services prior to opening for business. 
 

l. A Medical Marijuana Dispensary must be located in a site built structure and not a 
manufactured home or RV. 

m. A Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is valid for one year and then must be renewed. 
Any CUP may be revoked for failure to comply with all conditions. 
 

n. No person under 18 years of age is permitted within these facilities without an 
adult guardian with a registration card from the Department of Health Services. 
 

o. This provision shall not be construed as permitting any use or act which is 
otherwise prohibited or made punishable by law. 

 
p. Cultivation for a medical marijuana qualified patient and designated caregiver as 

defined in Section 102 of the Zoning Ordinance is subject to all rules adopted by 
the Arizona Department of Health Services and to the following conditions: 

i. For purposes of this Conditional Use Permit the notification area for the 
application shall be 1,500 feet. 

ii. A Conditional Use Permit is valid for one year and then must be 
renewed. 



13 

iii. Any Conditional Use Permit may be revoked for failure to comply with 
all conditions. 
 

iv. The Qualifying patient and designated caregiver cultivation location 
must be accessory to the primary use of residential, must not be 
detectable from the exterior of the property in which the cultivation takes 
place. 

v. Medical marijuana cultivation as an accessory use to the qualifying 
patient’s or caregiver primary residence shall only be permitted if the 
residence is located at least 25 miles distant from a Medical Marijuana 
Dispensary and in full compliance with regulations as established by the 
Department of Health Services for medical marijuana. 
 

D. USE PERMITS 

Use Permits are issued by the Zoning Inspector for the development or use of any property which 
is subject to a Use Permit.  Such permit shall set forth by incorporation or reference all 
stipulations and limitations of the use of said property, as well as the time period for which such 
permit shall be issued.  Use Permits are different from Conditional Use Permits (CUPs) because 
CUPs are for more intense uses that require public hearings.  

 
1. Application Requirements 

a. The applicant shall submit a Use Permit Application on a form provided for that 
purpose. 

 
b. Accompanying the application, the applicant shall provide a site plan setting 

forth the location of the proposed use. 
i. The site plan shall be prepared on 8.5” x 11” or 11” x 17” sheet or sheets 

not to exceed 24" X 36". 
ii. The plan shall be drawn to a scale not to exceed one hundred (100) feet 

per inch and shall set forth, at a minimum, the following information:  
a) The boundaries of the subject property.  
b) A legal description.  
c) The location of existing and proposed improvements.  
d) Such other information as the Zoning Inspector may deem necessary. 

iii. Upon submitting the application, the applicant shall pay the appropriate 
nonrefundable fee. 

 
2. Review 
 

a. Upon receipt of the application, site plan and fee, the Zoning Inspector or his 
designee shall:  

i. Set a date for an administrative hearing not later than twenty-one (21) 
days following receipt of same. 

ii. Notify all adjoining property owners of the purpose of the application 
and the date, time and location of the administrative hearing. 



14 

iii. Make a record of all testimony in favor or against the application at the 
administrative hearing. 

 
3. Decision 
 

The Zoning Inspector shall notify the applicant in writing no later than fifteen (15) 
working days after the administrative hearing of his decision to approve or deny the 
application, fully stating the reasons for denial or any stipulations or limitations regarding 
approval. 

 
4. Appeals 

The applicant may appeal the denial of an application or appeal the conditions required 
for the use by filing a form of appeal with the Board of Adjustment within fifteen (15) 
working days following the issuance or denial of a permit.    
 

E. TEMPORARY USE PERMITS 
 

1. The purpose of a Temporary Use Permit is to permit one-time or short time use of land 
for a special event or an interim use.  Application for a Temporary Use Permit shall be 
made on a form provided for such purpose by the Community Development Division and 
the appropriate non-refundable fee shall be paid.  An expiration date will be provided 
when each temporary use permit is issued. 
  

2. Temporary uses may be granted in all zoning districts subject to conditions, which shall 
consider the intent and purpose of the particular zoning district and minimize adverse 
impact on the neighborhood. 
 

3. All temporary uses shall be subject to a Temporary Use Permit that shall be issued by the 
Zoning Inspector or his designated representative subject to the provisions of this section.  
 

4. Application Requirements 
   

a. Application for a Temporary Use Permit shall include a written authorization of 
the owner of the property on which the temporary use is proposed and setting 
forth any specific conditions placed by the property owner on the proposed use, 
which conditions shall be incorporated into the Temporary Use Permit. 

 
b. The owner of the property on which the Temporary Use Permit is granted shall 

be a co-applicant for the permit, and shall be held responsible for the 
conformance of the use to the conditions set forth in the Temporary Use Permit 
and for the restoration of the property to its original condition following the 
termination of the use. 

 
c. If deemed necessary by the Zoning Inspector or the Planning and Zoning 

Commission due to the nature of the use, the applicant may be required to 
provide for private security, post bond or provide proof of insurance and shall 
indemnify Gila County against any claims arising from permitted uses. 

 



15 

d. Any Temporary Use Permit may be revoked without notice, if the Zoning 
Inspector determines that conditions have been violated or that the use is causing 
a nuisance. 

 
e. The Planning and Zoning Commission may extend the time limits or modify the 

limitations of Temporary Use Permits by conditional use in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 101 of this Zoning Ordinance entitled “Application 
Procedures,” subsection “Conditional Uses and Conditional Use Permits.” 

 
5. Performance Standards 

 
Approval of a Temporary Use Permit application shall require compliance with the 
following performance standards, along with any further conditions deemed necessary by 
the Zoning Inspector in order to reduce possible detrimental effects to surrounding 
properties and to protect the public health, safety and welfare: 

 
a. Noise shall not be generated by any use to the point of disturbing the peace, quiet 

and comfort of neighboring properties. 
 
b. Adequate on-site parking shall be provided. 

 
c. No permit shall be issued if the use at the proposed location is deemed to be 

potentially hazardous to the public.  No use shall be permitted in a public right-
of-way. 

 
d. Adequate sanitary facilities shall be provided for on-site; sanitary facilities shall 

conform to State and County Health Department requirements. 
 
e. Provision shall be made for the collection and disposal of all solid waste 

generated in conjunction with the proposed use. 
 
f. Lighting shall be limited to that necessary to conduct the proposed use safely and 

shall be shielded so that direct illumination shall be confined to the boundaries 
and site access. The operation of searchlights and similar lighting sources is 
prohibited. 

 
g. Any required County or State Health Department or Sheriff’s Office permits or 

licenses must be obtained. 
 

6. Uses Requiring a Temporary Use Permit 
 

a. Special events, having maximum duration of five days per event, including such 
activities as: 

i. Transient amusement activities (such as carnivals, circuses, outdoor 
concerts). 

ii. Tent revivals. 
iii. Outdoor flea markets. 
iv. Outdoor product shows. 
v. Christmas tree sales lots. 

vi. Contractor’s offices and storage yards on the site of active construction 
projects. 



16 

vii. Mobile/manufactured homes or recreational vehicles for security 
purposes on the site of an active construction project, but not for a total 
of more than six months in any twelve-month period. 

viii. Roadside sales stands and temporary food sales stands, but not for a total 
of more than six months within any twelve-month period. 

ix. Batch plants and crushing operations in conjunction with a specific 
construction project for a period not to exceed the duration of the project. 

x. Other uses of a temporary nature similar to the above. 
 

F. PRE-APPLICATION MEETING 
 

Prior to application for any variance, appeal, amendment, Conditional Use Permit, Temporary 
Use Permit, Development Plan, Comprehensive Master Plan amendment, or any other review or 
permit process, a pre-application meeting with the Community Development Division staff is 
strongly encouraged.  The review is free and often saves duplication of effort and avoids 
misunderstandings.   

 
1. The purpose of the pre-application review is: 

 
a. To familiarize the Community Development Division with the request. 

 
b. To determine application requirements and familiarize the applicant with the 

review process and procedures. 
 

c. To identify land use and development policies which may affect the outcome of 
the request. 

 
d. To permit a cursory technical review at a conceptual stage to identify conflicts in 

objectives and to identify potential solutions for those conflicts. 
 

e. To identify the requirements for citizen participation and familiarize the applicant 
with related issues. 

 
G. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

             
 

The Board of Supervisors, Planning and Zoning Commission, and Board of Adjustment shall 
hold public hearings as required by Arizona Revised Statutes and this Zoning Ordinance. 

 
1. Applicability 

 
The following applications shall require a public hearing:  

 
a. Applications to amend the Comprehensive Master Plan for the unincorporated 

private properties of Gila County. 
 



17 

b. Applications to amend the zoning classifications and the zoning maps in the 
unincorporated private properties of Gila County. 

 
c. Applications for a Conditional Use Permit in the unincorporated private 

properties of Gila County. 
 

d. Applications for a Variance from the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance in 
the unincorporated private properties of Gila County. 

 
2. Noticing 

 
a. A public hearing shall be held by the Board of Supervisors, Planning and Zoning 

Commission or Board of Adjustment within a reasonable time after filing of an 
application, after first causing notice to be given to parties of interest and the 
public, by posting the property of application, if a property is involved, and 
publishing once in a newspaper of general circulation in accordance with State 
law.   
 

b. It shall not be the responsibility of the Board of Supervisors or its agents to 
maintain the posting once erected. 

 
H. VARIANCE 
 

The purpose of the variance procedure is to provide a means whereby the literal terms of this 
Zoning Ordinance need not be applied, where there are practical difficulties or unnecessary 
hardships so that the spirit of this Zoning Ordinance shall be observed, public safety and welfare 
secured, and substantial justice done. 

 
1. Application Requirements 

 
a. An application for a variance shall be filed with the Community Development 

Division on forms provided. 
 

b. An application for a variance shall only be initiated by a property owner, an 
agent authorized by the owner.  Proof of ownership of the subject property and/or 
a notarized ‘authorized agent’ form shall be required. 

 
c. A complete application form may require a site plan depicting the special 

circumstance or location of the deviation from district standards, a detailed 
description of the request or the specific grounds for an appeal of a Community 
Development Division decision. 

 
d. A map of the subject property and surrounding properties within 300' of the 

subject property boundaries shall be required. (Staff will assist with maps and 
property information, when a pre-application meeting is requested.) 

 
e. Two (2) sets of the site plan (8.5" x 11" or 11"x 17") drawn to scale and 

accuracy, commensurate with its purpose, shall be required.  As a site plan is 
specific to a particular situation, the applicant shall confer with the Community 
Development Division to determine the information required. (i.e. locations of 



18 

structures and buildings, building floor plans, elevations, parking areas and 
accesses, trees and vegetation, signage, drainages, etc.) 

 
f. The application shall be accompanied by payment of the appropriate fee on the 

schedule of such charges as adopted by the Board of Supervisors.  When a 
variance request is for a deviation from district standards, fees are not refundable.  
When appeals are made of a Community Development Division decision, the 
Board of Adjustment shall have the discretion to refund all, a portion, or none of 
the application-filing fee. 

 
2. Review 

 
a. An application for a variance shall be submitted to the Zoning Inspector and shall 

be reviewed by the Board of Adjustments within 30 calendar days of receipt of a 
completed application as determined by the Zoning Inspector.   
 

b. The Zoning Inspector shall submit the application and a written report to the 
Board of Adjustment with a recommendation on whether the variance should or 
should not be granted or modified. 

 
3. Criteria for Granting a Variance 

 
A variance shall be granted under the following: 

 
a. Due to special circumstances applicable to the property, including its size, shape, 

topography, location, impact to adjoining property uses and destruction of 
vegetation, the strict application of these regulations will deprive such property 
of privileges enjoyed by other property of the same classification in the same 
zoning district. 
 

b. That a grant of a variance will be subject to conditions as will ensure that the 
adjustment authorized will not constitute a grant of special privileges inconsistent 
with the limitations upon other properties in the vicinity and zone in which such 
property is located. 

 
c. The special circumstances applicable to the property are not self-imposed by any 

person presently having an interest in the property. 
 

d. The variance will not allow the establishment of a use which: 
i. is not otherwise permitted in the zoning district;  

ii. would result in the extension of a non-conforming use; or  
iii. would change the zoning classification of any or all of the property. 

 
4. Decision 

 
The Board of Adjustment shall hold a public hearing, review the standards and the 
Zoning Inspector’s report, consider the testimony and other evidence presented at the 
hearing and grant a variance with specific conditions or deny the variance. 
 
 

 



19 

5. Appeal 
 

a. Appeals to an Adjustment Board may be taken by any person who feels that there 
is error or doubt in the interpretation of the Zoning Ordinance or that, due to 
unusual circumstances attaching to his property, an unnecessary hardship is being 
inflicted on him. 
 

b. The appeal shall state whether it is a plea for interpretation or for a variance, 
along with the grounds for the appeal.  

c. Any person aggrieved by a decision of the Board of Adjustment shall have the 
right, within thirty (30) days, to appeal to the Superior Court.  The appeal shall be 
based on the record before the Board of Adjustment. 

 
SECTION 102 
DEFINITIONS 
 
For the purpose of this Zoning Ordinance, certain terms and words are herein defined (words used in the 
present tense include the future; words in the singular number include the plural; and words in the plural 
include the singular); the word “shall” is mandatory and not permissive; the word “person” includes 
individuals, partnerships, corporations, clubs, or associations; the word “structure” includes the word 
“building.”  The following words or terms, when applied in this Zoning Ordinance, shall carry full force 
when used interchangeably: lot, plot, parcel, or premises; used, arranged, occupied or maintained; sold or 
dispensed; construct, reconstruct, erect, alter (structurally or otherwise), but not the term “maintain” or 
any other form thereof.  The following additional words and phrases shall for the purpose of this Zoning 
Ordinance have the following meanings: 
 
ABUT:    To physically touch or border upon, or to share a common property line. 
 
ACCESSORY BUILDING:    (See BUILDING, ACCESSORY) 
 
ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT (ADU):   An ADU is a small self-contained dwelling, typically with 
its own entrance, cooking, and bathing facilities, that shares the site of a larger, single-unit dwelling.  
ADUs may be attached, as in the case of a basement apartment, or detached, as in the case of a backyard 
cottage.  An ADU is not a separate property; it has the same owner as the primary dwelling.     
 
ACCESSORY USE OR STRUCTURE:   A use or structure that is clearly and customarily incidental 
and subordinate to the primary use or structure and is located on the same lot or may be under certain 
circumstances on an adjoining lot. 
 
ACRE:  An area of land forty-three thousand, five hundred sixty square feet (43,560) 
 
ACRE, NET:   An area comprising forty-three thousand, five hundred sixty (43,560) square feet of land 
excluding rights-of-way, roadway easements and ingress and egress easements. 
 
ADJACENT:   Nearby, but not necessarily touching. 
 
ADJOINING LOT OR LAND:   A lot or parcel of land which shares all or part of a common lot line 
with another lot or parcel of land. 
 



20 

AGRICULTURE:   Shall mean the tilling of the soil, raising of crops, horticulture, viticulture, 
silviculture, apiculture, aquaculture, small livestock raising, and/or pasture and range livestock 
production; including all uses incidental thereto, but not including commercial dairies, stockyards, 
feedlots, slaughterhouses, fertilizer yards, or plans for the reduction of animal matter or any other related 
industrial use which is similarly objectionable because of noise, odor, smoke, dust or fumes; nor 
including the concentrated single use operation of the raising of hogs, turkeys, chickens or fur bearing 
animals. 
 
ALLEY:   A public passageway, affording a secondary means of access to abutting property. 
 
ANIMAL UNITS:   An animal unit shall represent the unit of measurement utilized as the basis for 
determining the number of domestic farm animals permitted on non-agricultural parcels and shall consist 
of one large animal, or three medium animals, or ten small animals. 
ANTIQUE:   A product that is sold or exchanged because of value derived or because of oldness as 
respects the present age, and not simply because same is not a new product. 
 
APARTMENT:   An attached dwelling unit. 
 
APARTMENT HOUSE:   A building containing apartments. 
 
ARCHITECTURAL ELEMENTS: Elements indicative of local heritage; embellishments to windows, 
doors, etc. 
 
ARTIST:   One who practices an art in which imagination and taste presides over execution. This is not 
deemed to include the business of teaching the mechanics of the art. 
 
ATTACHED BUILDING:   (See BUILDING, ATTACHED) 
 
AUTOMOBILE SERVICE STATION:    A place of business having pumps and/or storage  
tanks from which fuel and/or lubricants are dispensed at retail directly into the motor vehicle. Service, 
inspection and minor repairs are considered accessory to the sale of such fuel and lubricants. 
 
BED AND BREAKFAST ESTABLISHMENT:   A type of home occupation involving a portion of a 
single family dwelling in which from one to five bedrooms are completely furnished guest rooms 
occupied on a nightly basis for compensation, and ordinarily involving the serving of a morning meal 
prepared on the premises. 
 
BERM:  An earthen mound designed to provide visual interest, screen undesirable views and/or decrease 
noise. 
 
BILLBOARDS:  See Signs, Off-Site 
 
BOARD:   The Gila County Board of Supervisors. 
 
BOARDING HOUSE:   A limited commercial activity in which up to five rooms in a dwelling are 
occupied as completely furnished guest rooms occupied on a weekly or monthly basis for compensation, 
and in which food prepared on the premises may be served to the occupants in a common dining room. 
 
BUFFER:  Thought of as a “transitional space,” a buffer consists of horizontal space (land) and vertical 
elements (plants, berms, fences or walls).  Its purpose is to physically separate and visually screen 
adjacent land uses that are not fully compatible. 



21 

 
BUILDING:   A structure having a roof supported by columns or walls. 
 
BUILDING, ACCESSORY:   A subordinate building, either attached or detached from the main 
building, containing an accessory use. 
 
BUILDING AREA:   The total areas, taken on a horizontal plane at the mean grade level, of the 
principal buildings and all accessory buildings exclusive of uncovered porches, terraces and steps. 
 
BUILDING, ATTACHED: A building which has at least a part of a wall in common with another 
building, or which is connected to another building by a roof which exceeds 6 feet between opposite open 
ends. 
 
BUILDING, CLOSED: A building completely enclosed by a roof, walls and doors. 
 
BUILDING, COMMUNITY: A public or quasi-public building used for community activities of an 
educational, recreational, or public service nature. 
BUILDING, DETACHED:   A building which is separated from another building or buildings on the 
same lot.   Buildings connected only with a roof not more than 6 feet wide between opposite open ends 
shall be deemed detached. 
 
BUILDING HEIGHTS:   The vertical distance measured from the grade level to the highest level of the 
roof surface of flat roofs, to the deck line of mansard roofs, or to the mean height between eaves and ridge 
for gable or gambrel or hip roofs.  Except where specifically provided in this Zoning Ordinance, building 
height does not apply to portions of buildings extending above the general roof line and comprising an 
aggregate area not greater than twenty five percent (25%) of the total roof area, or to structures other than 
buildings. 

 
 
BUILDING, MAIN:   A building or buildings in which is conducted the principal use of the lot on which 
it is situated.  In any residential district, any dwelling shall be deemed to be the main building of the lot 
on which the same is situated. 
 
BUILDING, PUBLIC: (See PUBLIC BUILDING OR USE) 
 
BUILDING SCALE:  The relationship between the mass of a building and its surrounding, including the 
width of the street, open space, and mass of surrounding buildings. Mass is determined by the three-
dimensional bulk of a structure; height, width and depth. 
 
CAMPING TRAILER:  (See RECREATIONAL VEHICLE) 
 
CARPORT: An open porch used solely for the parking of motor vehicles and containing no enclosing 
walls, screen, lattice or other material other than the wall or walls of the building to which it is attached, 
or other than a storage room. 
 



22 

COLOR BOARD: The Historic Colors of America color chart put out by Spectra-Tone Paint. 
 
COMMERCIAL ACRE:  Thirty-Six Thousand (36,000) square feet of land area, exclusive of streets 
and alleys and other non-developable square footage. 
 
COMMISSION:   Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 
COMMON OPEN SPACE:   Squares, greens neighborhood parks, public parks, and linear 
environmental corridors owned and maintained by the County. 
 
COMMUNITY BUILDING:  (See BUILDING, COMMUNITY) 
 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIVISION:  This is the duly authorized division of Gila County 
government that is responsible for adherence to all rules and regulations of this Zoning Ordinance. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE MASTER PLAN:   A plan adopted by the County Board of Supervisors by 
Resolution No. 03-11-02 providing a program to guide the orderly growth of the County. 
 
CONDITIONAL USE:   A use which, although not specifically permitted in a given zoning district, 
would become harmonious or compatible with neighboring uses through the application and maintenance 
of qualifying conditions. 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT:   A permit issued in conjunction with the establishment of a 
Conditional Use setting forth by incorporation or reference all qualifying conditions governing the use of 
the property. 
 
CONDOMINIUM:  Real estate, portions of which are designated for separate ownership and the 
remainder of which is designated for common ownership solely by the owners of the separate portions.  
Real estate is not a condominium unless the undivided interests in the common elements are vested in the 
unit owners. 
 
CONFORM TO (COMPLY WITH) ZONING REGULATIONS:   Means conformance with all 
applicable requirements of the Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, minimum lot size, lot 
configuration such as lot width and lot depth, setbacks, distances between buildings, performance 
standards and property development standards. 
 
CONGREGATE RESIDENCE:   Any building or portion thereof which contains facilities for living, 
sleeping and sanitation, and may include facilities for eating and cooking, for occupancy by other than a 
family.   A congregate residence may be a shelter, convent, monastery, dormitory, fraternity or sorority 
house, but does not include jails, hospitals, nursing homes, hotels, or boarding houses. 
 
CONTIGUOUS:   In actual contact. 
 
COTTAGE INDUSTRY:   A limited manufacturing activity carried on by the occupant of a dwelling as 
a secondary use in connection with which there is no outdoor display of stock-in-trade or unenclosed 
storage of raw materials or products; not more than three non-residents of the premises may be employed; 
may be conducted within the main dwelling or an accessory building, provided that not more than fifty 
percent of the combined floor area may be devoted to the cottage industry; adequate on-site parking will 
be provided for all permitted activities, but there shall be no more than five parking spaces; the permitted 
use will not generate vibration, smoke, dust, glare, heat, excessive noise or electrical interference with the 
reception of radio and television reception. 
 



23 

COURT: Any space other than a yard on the same lot with a building or group of buildings and which is 
unobstructed and open to the sky from above the floor level of any room having a window or door 
opening on such court.   The width of a court shall be its least horizontal dimension. 
 
CUSTOM:   Pertaining to work, service or assembly done to order for individual customers for their own 
use or convenience. 
 
DAY NURSERY:  (See SCHOOL, NURSERY) 
 
DETACHED BUILDING:  (See BUILDING, DETACHED) 
 
DISTRICT:   Refers to zoning district (either Use District or Density District). 
 
DOMESTIC FARM ANIMALS:   Animals, other than household pets, that are kept and maintained for 
commercial production and sale and/or family food production, education or recreation.  Domestic farm 
animals are identified by the following categories: A- Large Animals include horses, donkeys, mules, 
cattle and other bovine animals.   B - Medium Animals include sheep and goats. C- Small Animals 
include rabbits, chinchillas, chickens, turkeys, ducks, geese and pigeons. 
 
DRIVE-IN RESTAURANT:   Any establishment where food or beverages are dispensed for 
consumption on the premises, but not within a closed building. 
 
DRIVE-IN THEATER:   An open-air theater where the performance is viewed by all or part of   
the audience from motor vehicles. 
 
DWELLING:  A building containing one or more dwelling units  
 
DWELLING, CONVENTIONAL:   Shall mean a dwelling constructed on the site by craftsmen 
utilizing basic materials delivered to the site.  Said building shall consist of footings and foundations 
poured in place and solidly attached to the walls, which shall be constructed in place.  Roofing materials, 
interior and exterior finishes shall be applied on the site. 
 
DWELLING, MOBILE/MANUFACTURED HOME:   A structure, transportable in one or more 
sections, which is at least 8 feet wide and 32 feet in length, which is built on a permanent chassis and 
designed to be used as a dwelling unit, with or without a permanent foundation, when connected to the 
required utilities. 
 
DWELLING, MODULAR:   A dwelling unit delivered to the site in one or more factory-assembled 
modules consisting of multiple building systems.  Modules shall be such that they may not be towed on 
their own chassis.  Modular dwelling unit shall be permanently affixed to a permanent foundation system. 
 
DWELLING, MULTIPLE:   A building containing two or more dwelling units. 
 
DWELLING, PRECUT:   A dwelling unit delivered to the site as individually sized building 
components with little, if any, factory assembly of building subsystems.  The parts and components of 
said precut building shall be assembled on the site and permanently affixed to a permanent foundation 
system. 
 
DWELLING, PREFABRICATED:   A dwelling unit delivered to the site in a combination of sized 
individual building components and partially assembled building modules comprising primarily a portion 



24 

of a single building system (i.e., floor, wall).   Such dwelling shall be capable of site assembly by 
relatively unskilled crews and shall be permanently affixed to a permanent foundation system. 
 
DWELLING UNIT:   Any building or portion thereof containing one or more habitable rooms, 
designed, occupied, or intended for occupancy as separate living quarters with cooking, sleeping, and 
sanitary facilities provided within the dwelling unit for the exclusive use of a single household. 
 
DWELLING UNIT, PERMANENT:   A dwelling unit of any type occupied, or suitable for occupation, 
for a period exceeding one hundred eighty (180) days. 
 
ERECT:   The incorporation of materials into a building or structure. 
 
FAÇADE:   The front of a building or any side facing a public way or area. 
 

                                 
FAMILY:   An individual or two or more persons related by blood, marriage or adoption, or a group not 
to exceed six unrelated persons living together as a single housekeeping unit. 
 
FIRE AND/OR EXPLOSION HAZARD:  Any structure, material or use operated or maintained in a 
manner likely to result in a sudden or immediate fire and/or explosion as determined by the Fire Marshal 
having jurisdiction. 
 
FREIGHT STATION:   A facility for loading, unloading and warehousing of freight. 
FREIGHT TERMINAL:  A facility for loading and unloading of freight for current distribution and not 
warehousing. 
 
FULLY SHIELDED FIXTURE: Means a light fixture or luminous tube constructed and mounted such 
that all light rays emitted by the fixture or tube, either directly from the lamp, tube, or a diffusing element, 
or indirectly by reflection or refraction from any part of the luminaire, are projected below a horizontal 
plane running through the lowest point on the fixture where light is emitted. 
 

A practical working way to determine if a fixture or tube is fully shielded:  if the lamp or tube, 
any reflective surface, or lens cover (clear or prismatic) is visible when viewed from above or 
directly from the side, from any angle around the fixture or tube, the fixture or tube is not fully 
shielded. 

 
Examples of fixtures that are fully shielded (Note:  To be fully shielded these fixtures must be 
closed on top and mounted such that the bottom opening is horizontal): 

 



25 

 
 

Examples of fixtures that are NOT fully shielded: 
 

 
 

*Note:  Even though the lamp in these fixtures is shielded from direct view when viewed from the 
side or above, reflective surfaces and/or lens covers are directly visible from the side. 
 
*Note for luminous (neon) tubes:  When such lighting is installed under or behind a roof overhang, 
if the roof-line or eave is not horizontal the tubing may be visible from above when viewed from 
the side and therefore be unshielded. 
 

GARAGE, PRIVATE:   An accessory building occupied primarily by the passenger motor vehicle of the 
family’s resident on the same lot.  This may include one commercial vehicle under five-ton capacity.  
Non-commercial vehicles of persons not resident on the lot may occupy up to one-half the capacity of 
such garage. 
 
GARAGE, PUBLIC:   Any building, other than that herein defined as a private garage, used for the 
storage or care of motor vehicles, or where any such vehicles are equipped for operation, repaired, or kept 
for remuneration, hire or sale. 
 
GOVERNMENT AGENCY:  The City of Globe, Town of Miami and/or Gila County Government that 
has jurisdiction over the area of concern. 
 
GRAZING:   The feeding of livestock on open range or fenced pasture for commercial purposes, and 
uses customarily incidental thereto, including facilities for the temporary assemblage of livestock prior to 
shipping, but not including commercial dairies, slaughterhouses, feedlots, fertilizer yards, bone yards or 
plants for the reduction of animal matter. 
 



26 

GROUND COVER:  Vegetative groundcovers that serve to keep soil from eroding or moving as a result 
of natural forces. 
 
GUEST HOUSE:   A detached or semi-detached secondary conventional dwelling unit having not more 
than 800 square feet of gross floor area and containing not more than two habitable rooms along with 
sanitary facilities and an optional kitchenette, occupied by relatives, servants or the non-paying guests of 
the occupant of the main dwelling. 
 
GUEST ROOM:   A room having no cooking facilities intended for occupancy by one or more persons 
not members of the family. 
 
HABITABLE ROOM:   A room within a structure for eating or sleeping.  Bathrooms, toilet 
compartments, closets, halls, storage and utility spaces are not considered habitable rooms. 

HARDSCAPE:    Hardscape, or "hardscaping" refers to inanimate elements of landscaping. Anything 
used in landscaping that is not part of the living component of the landscape (i.e. plants) can be 
considered a hardscape element (i.e. water fountains, stone walls, concrete or brick patios, tile paths, 
wooden decks and wooden arbors).  

                       

HEIGHT OF BUILDING: (See BUILDING HEIGHT) 
 
HELP-SELF LAUNDRY: (See LAUNDRY, SELF-HELP) 
 
HOME OCCUPATION:   A limited commercial activity carried on by the occupant of a dwelling as a 
secondary use, including professional and semi-professional offices, when conducted and entered from 
within the dwelling, in connection with which there is no outdoor display of stock-in-trade; not more than 
one non-resident of the premises is employed; not more than one-fourth of the floor area of one story of 
the main  dwelling or a detached home workshop not more than two hundred (200) square feet in area is 
to be used for such home occupation; and provided the residential character of the main dwelling is not 
changed by said use; and, said use does not cause any sustained or unpleasant or unusual noises or 
vibrations or noxious fumes or odors, or cause any parking or traffic congestion in the immediate 
neighborhood. 
HOSPITAL:   A place for the treatment or care of human ailments; and, unless otherwise specified, the 
term shall include sanitarium, preventorium, clinic, maternity home, rest home, and convalescent home.  
 
HOTEL:   A building other than a boarding house as defined herein, which building contains more than 
five guest rooms, and where entrance to the sleeping rooms or apartments is from a common entrance or 
lobby.      
 
HOTEL, APARTMENT:  (See APARTMENT HOTEL) 



27 

 
HOUSEHOLD:   See “Family”. 
 
HOUSEHOLD PETS:   Small domestic animals such as dogs, cats and certain birds, reptiles, fish, 
rodents and furbearing animals, but not including swine of any breed, which may, under normal 
circumstances, be kept within the confines of a dwelling unit, either caged or uncaged, and which are not 
kept, bred, raised or exchanged for commercial purposes.   
 
INDIVIDUAL:   Shall mean any private individual, tenant, lessee, owner, or any commercial entity 
including but not limited to companies, partnerships, joint ventures or corporations. 
 
INORGANIC GROUNDCOVERS:  River rock, artificial turf, artificial plant material, gravel, concrete, 
asphalt paving or other similar non-living material. 
 
INSPECTOR:   Zoning Inspector or any of his Deputy Zoning Inspectors. 
 
INTERIOR LOT:  (See LOT, INTERIOR) 
 
JUNK:   Any scrap, waste, reclaimable material, or debris, whether or not stored or used in conjunction 
with dismantling, processing, salvage, storage, baling, disposal, or other use or disposition, including but 
not limited to inoperable and unregistered motor vehicles, tires, vehicle parts, equipment, paper, rags, 
metal, glass, building materials, household appliances, brush, wood and lumber. 
 
JUNK YARD:   The use, either commercially or otherwise, of a lot, parcel, or portions thereof, for the 
storage, collection, processing, purchase, sale or abandonment of waste paper, rags, scrap metal, or other 
scrap or discarded goods, materials or machinery, or two or more unregistered, inoperable motor vehicles, 
or other type of junk. 
 
KENNEL, COMMERCIAL:   Any kennel maintained for the purpose of boarding, raising or training 
dogs or cats over the age of four months for a fee or for exchange or sale. 
 
KENNEL, NON-COMMERCIAL:   Any property where five or more dogs and/or cats over the age of 
four months are kept or maintained for use and enjoyment of the occupant for non-commercial purposes. 
 
KEY LOT:  (See LOT, KEY) 
 
KINDERGARTEN:   Same as Nursery School, except when operated in conjunction with a school of 
general instruction and having accredited instruction. 
 
LANDSCAPING:  The combination of landscape elements in a designed, specific application that meets 
the purposes of this Zoning Ordinance.  Landscape elements may include vegetation, such as trees, cacti, 
shrubs and groundcovers and other elements such as walls, earth berms, planters, and other architectural 
or structural elements. 
 
LAUNDRY, SELF-HELP:   A building in which domestic type washing machines and/or dryers are 
provided on a rental basis for use by individuals doing their own laundry. 
 
LAWN:  An area of grass maintained for decorative or recreational use. 

 
LIVESTOCK:   All animals otherwise classified as Domestic Farm Animals, but also including swine. 
 



28 

LIVING UNIT:  (See DWELLING UNIT)   
 
LOT:   A parcel of land, or two or more parcels to be used as a unit, and having its principal frontage on a 
dedicated street or street easement. Where a half-street has been dedicated from such parcel, such shall be 
qualification for street frontage. 
 
LOT, CORNER:   A lot abutting on two or more intersecting or intercepting streets, where the angle of 
intersection does not exceed one hundred thirty-five (135) degrees.  A corner lot shall be considered to be 
in that block in which the lot fronts. 
 
LOT DEPTH:   The shortest distance between the mid-point of each the front and rear line. 
 
LOT, INTERIOR:   Lots having no sides abutting on a street. 
 

 
 
LOT, KEY: An interior lot having one side (at least) contiguous to the rear line of a corner lot. 
 
LOT LINE, FRONT:   That part abutting a street.  The front line of a corner lot shall be the shorter of 
the two street lines as originally platted or, if such are equal, the most obvious front by reason of usage by 
adjacent lots.  The front line of a through lot shall be that line which is obviously the front by reason of 
usage by adjacent lots.  Such a lot exceeding one hundred eighty-eight (188) feet in depth may be 
considered as having two front lines. 
 
LOT LINE, REAR:   That lot line opposite the front line.  Where the side lines of the lot meet in a point, 
the rear line shall be considered parallel to the front line of a tangent of the mid-point of a curved front 
line and lying ten (10) feet within the lot. 
 
LOT LINE, SIDE:   Those property lines connecting the front and rear property lines. 
 
LOT, THROUGH:   A lot in which the front and rear lines abut on a street. 

LOW PROFILE SIGN:  A sign that does not exceed a height of five feet from finished grade. 

MAIN BUILDING:  (See BUILDING, MAIN) 
 
MAINTAIN:   The replacing of a part or parts of a building which have been made unusable by ordinary 
wear or tear or by the weather. 

MARQUEE SIGN:  A permanent or portable illuminated freestanding sign that employees flashing or 
moving elements.   

 



29 

MEDICAL MARIJUANA DESIGNATED CAREGIVER CULTIVATION LOCATION:  An 
enclosed, locked facility such as a closet, room, greenhouse or other building that complies with all 
Department of Health Services regulations for the cultivation of medical marijuana. The establishment of 
a cultivation location by a designated caregiver must be in compliance with all regulations adopted by the 
Arizona Department of Health Services and State Statutes applicable to the use of medical marijuana. 
 
MEDICAL MARIJUANA DISPENSARY:  An entity defined in A.R.S. §36-2801(11) that acquires, 
possesses, cultivates, manufactures, delivers, transfers, transports, supplies, sells or dispenses marijuana 
or related supplies and educational materials. Must be authorized by Department of Health Services. 

 
MEDICAL DISPENSARY OFFSITE CULTIVATION LOCATION:  The additional location where 
marijuana is cultivated by a Medical Marijuana Dispensary as referenced in A.R.S. §36-2804(B) (1) (b) 
(ii). Must be in compliance with all Department of Health Services regulations for medical marijuana 
cultivation. 
 
MEDICAL MARIJUANA INFUSION (OR MANUFACTURING) FACILITY: A facility that 
incorporates medical marijuana (cannabis) by the means of cooking, blending, or incorporation into 
consumable/edible goods.  

 
MEDICAL MARIJUANA QUALIFYING PATIENT CULTIVATION LOCATION:  An enclosed, 
locked facility such as a closet, room, greenhouse or other building with a Conditional Use Permit issued 
by Gila County where a patient who is qualified to cultivate marijuana pursuant to A.R.S. §36-2801 
cultivates marijuana. The establishment of a cultivation location by a qualified patient must be in 
compliance with all regulations adopted by the Arizona Department of Health Services and State Statutes 
applicable to the use of medical marijuana. 
 
MOBILE/MANUFACTURED HOME:  (See DWELLING, MOBILE/MANUFACTURED HOME) 
 
MOBILE/MANUFACTURED HOME DEVELOPMENT:   Any lot, tract, or parcel of land used or 
offered for use in whole or in part, with or without charge, for the parking of more than two 
mobile/manufactured homes, travel trailers, or recreation vehicles. 
 
MOBILE/MANUFACTURED HOME PARK: A site with required improvements and utilities for the 
long-term parking of mobile/manufactured homes, which may include services and facilities for the 
residents. 
 
MODULAR HOME:  (See DWELLING, MODULAR) 
 
MOTEL:   A building or group of buildings containing guest rooms or apartments, each of which 
maintains a separate outside entrance, used primarily for the accommodation of automobile travelers, and 
providing automobile parking space on the premises. 
 
MOTOR HOME: (See RECREATIONAL VEHICLE) 
 
MULTIPLE DWELLING:  (See DWELLING, MULTIPLE) 
 
NATURAL BUFFER: A buffer that is composed of undisturbed areas in which disturbance is prohibited 
except to enhance small areas by planting the same plant material and density as undisturbed areas 
endemic to the site area. 

NATURAL OPEN SPACE:  Undisturbed, native vegetation. 



30 

NEWSPAPER OF GENERAL CIRCULATION:   Shall be deemed to mean a daily newspaper, if one 
is published in the County Seat; if no daily newspaper is published, a weekly newspaper may be used. 
 
NUISANCE:   Any act, action, or condition relating to the use of property which endangers the health, 
safety or property of others, or which interferes with the enjoyment or use of property. 
 
NURSERY SCHOOL:  (See SCHOOL, NURSERY) 
 
OPEN PORCH: (See PORCH, OPEN) 

OVERHEAD PROTECTION STRUCTURE: Overhead protection structures are devices installed on a 
building façade or freestanding devices intended to provide shade and protection to pedestrian areas and 
display windows.  These may include porches, colonnades, trellises, pergolas, canopies, awnings and 
recessed doorways. 

PORCH, OPEN:   A porch in which any portion extending into a front or side yard shall have no 
enclosure by walls, screens, lattice or other material higher than fifty-four (54) inches above the natural 
grade line adjacent thereto, which porch is to be used solely for ingress and egress, and not for occupancy 
as a sleeping porch or wash room. 
 
PRE-FABRICATED HOME: (See DWELLING, PRE-FABRICATED) 
 
PRIVATE GARAGE: (See GARAGE, PRIVATE) 
 
PRIVATE USE: (See USE, PRIVATE) 
 
PROFESSIONAL USE: (See USE, PROFESSIONAL) 
 
PUBLIC GARAGE: (See GARAGE, PUBLIC) 
 
RECREATIONAL VEHICLE:   
 

1. A vehicular type unit which is a portable camping trailer mounted on wheels and constructed with 
collapsible partial sidewalls which fold for towing by another vehicle and unfold for camping; or 
a motor home designed to provide temporary living quarters for recreational, camping or travel 
use and built on or permanently attached to a self-propelled motor vehicle chassis cab or van that 
is an integral part of the completed vehicle. 
 

2. A park trailer (park model) built on a single chassis, mounted on wheels and designed to be 
connected to utilities necessary for operation of installed fixtures and appliances and has a gross 
trailer area of not less than three hundred twenty square feet and not more than four hundred 
square feet when it is set up, except that it does not include fifth wheel trailers. 

 
3. A travel trailer mounted on wheels, designed to provide temporary living quarters for 

recreational, camping or travel use, of a size or weight that may or may not require special 
highway movement permits when towed by a motorized vehicle and has a trailer area of less than 
three hundred twenty square feet.  This subdivision includes fifth wheel trailers.  

 
4. If a unit requires a size or weight permit, it shall be manufactured to the standards for park trailers 

in A 199.5 of the American National Standards Institute Ordinance. A portable truck camper 
constructed to provide temporary living quarters for recreational, travel or camping use and 



31 

consisting of a roof, floor and sides designed to be loaded onto and unloaded from the bed of a 
pickup truck. 

 
RECREATIONAL VEHICLE PARK:   A plot of ground upon which two or more spaces with the 
required utilities and improvements are located and maintained for occupancy by recreational vehicles as 
temporary living quarters for recreational and vacation purposes. 
RESIDENTIAL USE:  (See USE, RESIDENTIAL) 
 
RESTAURANT:   An establishment other than a boarding house, where meals which are prepared 
therein may be procured by the public. 
 
REST HOME:    Same as Hospital. 
 
SCHOOL:   A place of general instruction having accredited instruction acceptable to the educational 
authorities. 
 
SCHOOL, NURSERY:   An institution for the day time care of children of pre-school age.  Even though 
some instruction may be offered in connection with such care, the institution shall not be considered a 
“school” within the meaning of this Zoning Ordinance. 
 
SCREENING ELEMENT:  Any landscaping or structure used to conceal or reduce the negative visual 
and/or audio impacts of certain land uses or activities from streets or adjacent development.  The height of 
a screening device is measured from the highest finished grade abutting the element to be screened. 
 
SELF-HELP LAUNDRY:  (See LAUNDRY, SELF-HELP) 
 
SEXUALLY ORIENTED BUSINESS DEFINITIONS: 
 
For the purpose of this section, the following definitions apply unless the context clearly indicates 
otherwise. 

 
1. Adult Arcade means any place to which the public is permitted or invited and in which coin-

operated or slug-operated or electronically, electrically or mechanically controlled still or motion 
picture machines, projectors or other image producing devices are regularly maintained to show 
images that are characterized by the depiction or description of specific sexual activities or 
specific anatomical areas to persons in booths or viewing rooms. 

 
2. Adult Bookstore or Adult Video Store or Adult Novelty Store means a commercial 

establishment that offers for sale or rent or for any form of consideration any one or more of the 
following: 

 
a. Books, magazines, periodicals or other printed matter, or photographs, films, motion 

pictures, videocassettes, compact discs, video reproductions or slides or other visual 
representations that depict or describe specific sexual activities or specific anatomical 
areas; or 
 

b. instruments, devices or paraphernalia that are designed for use in connection with 
specific sexual activities. 

 
3. Adult Cabaret includes any nightclub, bar, restaurant or other similar commercial establishment, 

whether or not alcoholic beverages are served, that features: 



32 

 
a. Persons who appear in a state of nudity or who are seminude. 

 
b. Live performances that are characterized by the exposure of specific anatomical areas or 

specific sexual activities. 
 

c. Films, motion pictures, videocassettes, slides or other photographic reproductions that are 
characterized by the depiction or description of specific sexual activities or specific 
anatomical areas. 

 
NOTE:  Nothing in the definition of Adult Cabaret shall be construed to apply to the 
presentation, showing, or performance of any play, drama, or ballet in any theater, concert 
hall, fine arts academy, school, institution of higher education, or other similar establishment 
as a form of expression of opinion or communication of ideas or information, as 
differentiated from the promotion or exploitation of nudity for the purpose of advancing the 
economic welfare of a commercial or business enterprise. 

 
4. Adult Live Entertainment Establishment means an establishment that features: 
 

a. Persons who appear in a state of nudity or semi-nudity; or 
 

b. live performances that are characterized by the exposure of specific anatomical areas or 
specific sexual activities. 

 
5. Adult Motel means a hotel, motel or similar commercial establishment that: 

 
a. Offers accommodations to the public for any form of consideration; provides patrons 

with closed-circuit television transmissions, films, motion pictures, video cassettes, 
slides, or other photographic reproductions that are characterized by the depiction or 
description of specified sexual activities or specified anatomical areas; and advertises the 
availability of this adult type of photographic reproductions; or 
 

b. offers a sleeping room for rent for a period of time that is less than ten hours; or 
 

c. allows a tenant or occupant of a sleeping room to sub rent the room for a period of time 
that is less than ten hours. 

 
6. Adult Motion Picture Theater means a commercial establishment in which for any form of 

consideration films, computer simulations, motion pictures, videocassettes, slides or other similar 
photographic reproductions that are characterized by the depiction or description of specific 
sexual activities or specific anatomical areas are regularly shown. 

 
NOTE: Nothing in the definition of Adult Motion Picture Theater shall be construed to 
apply to the presentation, showing or performance of any play, drama or ballet in any 
theater, concert hall, fine arts academy, school, institution of higher learning or other 
similar establishment as a form of expression of opinion or communication of ideas or 
information, as differentiated from the promotion or exploitation of nudity for the 
purposes of advancing the economic welfare of a commercial or business enterprise. 

 
7. Adult Service means dancing, serving food or beverages, modeling, posing, wrestling, singing, 

reading, talking, listening or other performances or activities conducted for any consideration in a 



33 

Sexually Oriented Business by a person who is nude or seminude during all or part of the time 
that the person is providing the service. 

 
8. Adult Service Provider or Erotic Entertainer means any person who provides an adult service. 
 
9. Adult Theater means a theater, concert hall, auditorium or similar commercial establishment that 

regularly features persons who appear in a state of nudity or semi-nudity who engage in live 
performances that are characterized by the exposure of specific anatomical areas or specific 
sexual activities. 

 
10. Adult Video Facility means a commercial establishment where, for any consideration, films, 

motion pictures, video cassette projections, slides or other visual media characterized by 
depiction of specific sexual activities or specific anatomical areas are shown in the regular course 
of business as a principal business purpose of the establishment.  Adult Video Facility does not 
include a theater where all viewing occurs in a common area with seating for fifty (50) or more 
persons.  This definition does include Adult Arcades. 

 
11. Discernibly Turgid State means the state of being visibly swollen, bloated, inflated or distended. 

 
12. Dual Purpose Business means a commercial establishment that devotes at least ten percent 

(10%) of its interior sales or display space to the sale or rental, for any form of consideration, of 
any one or more of the following: 

 
a. Books, magazines, periodicals, or other printed matter, or photographs, films, motion 

pictures, video cassettes, compact discs, digital video discs, slides, or other visual 
representations which are characterized by their emphasis upon the exhibition or 
description of specified sexual activities or specific anatomical areas; or 
 

b. instruments, devices, or paraphernalia which are designed for use or marketed primarily 
for stimulation of human genital organs or for sadomasochistic use or abuse of 
themselves or others; and which does not meet the definition of Adult Bookstore, Adult 
Novelty Store or Adult Video Store set forth above.  Floor space shall be measured by 
dividing the floor space where patrons or customers of the establishment are permitted 
where the primary sales or displays are of materials described above by the total floor 
space where patrons or customers of the establishment are permitted regardless of the 
materials. 

 
13. Employee means a person who works or performs any service on the premises of a sexually 

oriented business on a full-time, part-time or contract basis, whether or not the person is 
denominated an Employee, independent contractor, agent, or otherwise, and whether or not the 
person is paid a salary, wage or other compensation by the operator of the business.  This does 
not include a person exclusively on the premises for repair or maintenance of the premises or 
equipment on the premises, or for the delivery of goods to the premises, nor an attorney, 
accountant or other person whose primary function is to provide professional advice and 
assistance to the licensee. 

 
14. Enterprise means a corporation, association, labor union or other legal entity, as provided in 

A.R.S. 13-105. 
 



34 

15. Escort means a person who for consideration agrees or offers to act as a companion, guide or 
date for another person or who agrees or offers to privately model lingerie or to privately perform 
a striptease for another person. 

 
16. Escort Agency means a person or business association that furnishes, offers to furnish or 

advertises the furnishing of escorts as one of its primary business purposes for any fee, tip or 
other consideration. 

 
17. Establish or Establishment means and includes any of the following: 
 

a. The opening or commencement of any sexually oriented business as a new business; or 
 

b. the conversion of an existing business, whether or not a sexually oriented business, to any 
sexually oriented business; or 

 
c. the addition of any sexually oriented business to any other existing sexually oriented 

business. 
 
18. Exotic Dance Service means any business or person who provides Exotic Dancers to perform at 

a private residence, business, or other location (other than an Adult Cabaret). 
19. Exotic Dancer means a male or female dancer that performs seminude or nude for compensation. 
 
20. Explicit Sexual Material means any drawing, photograph, film negative, motion picture, figure, 

object, novelty device, recording, transcription or any book, leaflet, pamphlet, magazine, booklet 
or other item, the cover or contents of which depicts human genitalia or depicts or verbally 
describes nudity, sexual activity, sexual conduct, sexual excitement or sadomasochistic abuse in a 
way which is harmful to minors.  Explicit sexual material does not include any depiction or 
description which, taken in context, possesses serious educational value for minors or which 
possesses serious literary, artistic, political or scientific value. 

 
21. Licensee means a person in whose name a license to operate a sexually oriented business has 

been issued, as well as the individual or individuals listed as an applicant on the application for a 
sexually oriented business license.  In case of an employee, it shall mean the person in whose 
name the sexually oriented business employee license has been issued. 

 
22. Massage Establishment means an establishment in which a person, firm, association or 

corporation engages in or permits massage activities, including any method of pressure on, 
friction against, stroking, kneading, rubbing, tapping, pounding, vibrating or stimulating of 
external soft parts of the body with the hands or with the aid of any mechanical apparatus or 
electrical apparatus or appliance.  This paragraph does not apply to: 

 
a. Persons authorized by the laws of this state to practice medicine, osteopathy, chiropractic, 

podiatry, or naturopathy; 
b. registered nurses, licensed practical nurses or technicians when acting under the 

supervision of a licensed physician or osteopath; 
 

c. persons employed or acting as trainers for any bona fide amateur, semi-professional or 
athlete or athletic team; or 

 
d. persons authorized by the laws of this state as barbers or cosmetologists, provided their 

activity is limited to the head, face, or neck. 



35 

23. Nude Model Studio means a place where a person who appears seminude, in a state of nudity, or 
who displays specific anatomical areas and is provided to be observed, sketched, drawn, painted, 
sculptured, photographed, or similarly depicted by other persons who pay money or any form of 
consideration.  Nude Model Studio shall not include a proprietary school licensed by the State of 
Arizona or a college, junior college or university supported entirely or in part by public taxation; 
a private college or university which maintains and operates educational programs in which 
credits are transferable to a college, junior college, or university supported entirely or partly by 
taxation; or in a structure: 

 
a. That has no sign visible from the exterior of the structure and no other advertising that 

indicates a nude or seminude person is available for viewing; and 
 

b. where in order to participate in a class a student must enroll at least three days in advance 
of the class; and 

 
c. where no more than one nude or seminude model is on the premises at any one time. 

 
24. Nude, Nudity or State of Nudity means any of the following: 
 

a. The appearance of a human anus, genitals or female breast below a point immediately 
above the top of the areola; or 
 

b. a state of dress that fails to opaquely cover a human anus, genitals or female breast below 
a point immediately above the top of the areola or the showing of the covered male 
genitals in a discernibly turgid state. 

 
25. Operate or Cause to Operate means to cause to function or to put or keep in a state of doing 

business.  Operator means any persons on the premises of a sexually oriented business who is 
authorized to exercise operational control of the business or who causes to function or who puts 
or keeps in operation the business.  A person may be found to be operating or causing to be 
operated a sexually oriented business whether or not that person is an owner, part owner, or 
licensee of the business. 

 
26. Patron means a person invited or permitted to enter and remain upon the premises of a sexually 

oriented business, whether or not for consideration. 
 
27. Person means an individual, firm, organization, business trust, limited liability company, joint 

venture company, proprietorship, partnership, corporation, association, or other legal entity. 
 
28. Public Display means the placing of material on or in a billboard, viewing screen, theater 

marquee, newsstand, display rack, vending machine, window, showcase, display case or similar 
place so that material within the definition of Explicit Sexual Material is easily visible or readily 
accessible from a public thoroughfare, from the property of others, or in any place where minors 
are invited as part of the general public. 

 
29. Regularly Features or Regularly Shown means a consistent or substantial course of conduct, 

such that the films or performances exhibited constitute a substantial portion of the films or 
performances offered as a part of the ongoing business. 

 
30. Seminude or Semi-Nudity or In a Seminude State means a state of dress in which opaque 

clothing covers no more than the genitals, pubic region and female breast below a point 



36 

immediately above the top of the areola, as well as portions of the body that are covered by 
supporting straps or devices. 

 
31. Sexual Encounter Center means a business or commercial enterprise that, as one of its principal 

business purposes, offers for any form of consideration the following: 
 

a. Physical contact in the form of wrestling or tumbling between persons of the opposite 
sex; or 
 

b. activities between male and female persons and/or persons of the same sex when one or 
more of the persons is in a state of nudity or is seminude. 

 
32. Sexually Oriented Business means an Adult Arcade, Adult Bookstore, Adult Video Store, Adult 

Novelty Store, Adult Cabaret, Adult Live Entertainment Establishment, Adult Motel, Adult 
Motion Picture Theater, Adult Theater, Adult Video Facility, Dual Purpose Business, Escort 
Agency, Exotic Dance Service, Massage Establishment that offers or provides Adult Service, 
Nude Model Studio, Sexual Encounter Center or any business or facility that offers or provides an 
Adult Service. 

 
NOTE: A commercial establishment may have other business purposes that do not meet the 
definition of a Sexually Oriented Business, but such other business purposes will not serve to 
exempt such commercial establishment from being categorized as a Sexually Oriented Business 
so long as one of its principal business purposes qualifies as such. 

 
33. Specific Anatomical Areas means any of the following: 
 

a. A human anus, genitals, pubic region or a female breast below a point immediately above 
the top of the areola that is less than completely and opaquely covered. 

 
b. Male genitals in a discernibly turgid state, even if completely and opaquely covered. 

 
34. Specific Sexual Activities means and includes any of the following: 
 

a. Fondling or other erotic touching of the human genitals, pubic region, buttocks, anus or 
female breast. 

 
b. Sex acts, normal or perverted, actual or simulated, including acts of human masturbation, 

sexual intercourse, oral copulation or sodomy. 
 

c. Urinary or excretory functions as part of or in connection with any of the activities set 
forth in (a) or (b) above. 

 
35. Video includes image reproduction and display by videotape or any other medium, such as digital 

video disk or compact disk that produces moving or still images on a screen, wall, or other similar 
display. 

 
36. Viewing Room means the room, booth, or area where a patron of sexually oriented business 

would ordinarily be positioned while watching a film, videocassette, or other video or visual 
production or reproduction. 

 



37 

SIGN:    A display for the purpose of making anything known and visible beyond the boundaries of the 
property on which same is located. 
 
SIGN, OFF-SITE:  A sign advertising a business, place, activity, goods, services or products on a 
different property than where the sign is located. 
 
SIGN, ON-SITE:  A sign advertising a business, place, activity, goods, services or products on the same 
property which the sign is located. 
 
SLEEPING ROOM:   A room other than a guest room, in which cooking facilities are provided. 
 
STORY:   That portion of a building included between the surface of any floor and the surface of the next 
floor above it, or, if there is no floor above it, then the space between the floor and the ceiling next above 
it.  A basement, the ceiling of which is less than 4'6" above the grade level shall not be considered a floor.  
A mezzanine floor shall be considered a story if it exceeds an area of forty percent (40%) of the area of 
the floor next below it. 
 
STREET:   A public passageway which affords a principal means of access to abutting property. 
 
STRUCTURE:   Anything built or installed by arranging parts together, such as buildings, tanks, fences, 
signs, pools, towers, etc. 
 
TIME SHARE PROJECT:   A project in which a purchaser receives the right in perpetuity, for life or 
for a term of years to the recurrent, exclusive use of occupancy of a lot, parcel, unit or segment of real 
property, annually or on some other periodic basis, for a period to time that has been or will be allotted 
from the use or occupancy periods into which the project has been divided. 
 
TOURIST COURT: (See MOTEL) 
 
TOWNHOUSE DEVELOPMENT: A subdivision consisting of single dwellings constructed as part of 
a series of dwellings, all of which are either attached to the adjacent dwelling or dwellings by party walls 
or are located immediately adjacent thereto with no visible separation between walls or roofs. 
 
TRADITIONAL NEIGHBORHOOD:    A compact, mixed use neighborhood where residential, 
commercial, office and civic buildings are within close proximity to each other. 
 
TRAILER: A structure standing on wheels, towed or hauled by another vehicle and used for short-term 
human occupancy, carrying materials, goods or objects, or as a temporary office. 
 
TRAILER PARK: (See MOBILE/MANUFACTURED HOME DEVELOPMENT, 
MOBILE/MANUFACTURED HOME PARK, RECREATIONAL VEHICLE PARK) 
 
TRAVEL TRAILER: (See RECREATIONAL VEHICLE) 
 
USE:   The purpose for which a building or lot is arranged, designed, occupied or maintained. 
 
USE, ACCESSORY:   A use incidental to the principal use on the same lot. 
 
USE, NONCONFORMING:   A use or activity which was lawful prior to adoption, revision or 
amendment of the Zoning Ordinance, but which fails, by reason of such adoption, revision or amendment, 
to conform to the present requirements of the zoning district. 



38 

USE PERMIT:   Shall be a permit issued by the Zoning Inspector for the development or use of any 
property which is subject to a Use Permit.  Such permit shall set forth by incorporation or reference all 
stipulations and limitations of the use of said property, as well as the time period for which such permit 
shall be issued.  (THIS IS NOT A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT) 
 
USE, PERMITTED:   A use in a district which is allowed therein by reason of being listed among the 
“Permitted Uses” in the district. 
 
USE, PRIVATE:   A use restricted to the occupants of a lot or building, together with their guests, where 
compensation is not received, and where no commercial activity is associated with the same. 
 
USE, PROFESSIONAL:   The rendering of services of a professional nature by: (1) members of the 
professions licensed by competent authority; (2) teachers in a school of general instruction; (3) artists 
practicing the fine arts; (4) consultants recognized by organizations of licensed professions. 
 
USE, PUBLIC:   A use which is open to all, generally not for compensation, and which is not  
restricted to those dwellings on the same lot with the public use or public building. 
 
USE, RESIDENTIAL:   Shall be deemed to include single and multiple dwellings, hotels, motels and 
trailer parks. 
 
UTILITY EQUIPMENT:  Hardscape devices which are installed vertically into/onto the property and 
visible from the corridor for the purpose of power transmission, lighting, or communication. 
 
WILD OR EXOTIC ANIMALS:   Animals other than Household Pets or Domestic Farm Animals not 
commonly domesticated and normally requiring confinement or special handling to avoid injury to human 
beings. 
 
WRECKING YARD:  (See JUNK YARD) 

XERISCAPE:   A water-efficient landscaping technique, utilizing unthirsty native or drought tolerant 
exotic plants. 

YARD:   An area of uniform width behind which the exterior walls of any main building must be 
established.  Such yard is measured as the minimum horizontal distance from a lot line or an existing or 
projected right-of-way line.   A yard shall be unobstructed by structures, except where otherwise 
permitted under the terms of this Zoning Ordinance. 
 
YARD, FRONT:   A yard abutting the front lot line. 
 
YARD, REAR:   A yard abutting the rear lot line. 
 
YARD, SIDE: A yard abutting that portion of a side lot line lying between the front and rear yards. 
 
ZONING DISTRICT:   A zoned area in which the same zoning regulations apply throughout. 
 
ZONING INSPECTOR:  For all applications of this Zoning Ordinance, the Community Development 
Division Director of Gila County is the duly appointed Zoning Inspector. 
 
ZONING REGULATIONS:   Shall mean the Planning and Zoning Regulations, Gila County, Arizona. 
 



39 

SECTION 103 
GENERAL STIPULATIONS & PROVISIONS – ALL DISTRICTS  
 
The following stipulations and provisions shall apply to all districts unless supplanted and/or 
supplemented by differing stipulations and provisions established in any particular district. 
 
SECTION 103.1 
STRUCTURES AND USES 
COMPLIANCE TO DISTRICT REQUIREMENTS 
  

A. No building or other structure shall be erected, altered, or moved, nor shall any land or building 
be used, designed or intended to be used for any purpose or in any manner other than is included 
among the uses hereinafter listed as permitted in the district in which such structure or land is 
located, except that any structure may be removed from any property. 

 
B. No building or other structure shall be erected or added to, so as to exceed in height the limit 

hereinafter designated for the district in which the building or other structure is located, whether 
such height be designated in stories, number of feet, or otherwise. 

 
C. No building or other structure shall be erected or added to in such a manner as to encroach upon 

or reduce any open space, lot area, or parking area as is hereinafter designated for the district in 
which such building or structure is located.  A building or structure may only encroach into a yard 
setback requirement subject to approval of a variance or administrative variance according to the 
provisions of section 101.3H and Section 101.3A respectively.  No yard or other space on one lot 
shall be considered as providing a yard or open space for a structure on any other lot. 

 
D. No building or structure shall be erected, constructed, reconstructed, altered, maintained or used 

in such a manner that the life, health, property or safety of the public or its occupants are 
endangered.  This includes, but is not limited to, a building or structure or portion thereof: 

 
1. In which the means of exit does not provide safe and adequate means of egress in case of fire 

or panic; 
 

2. In such a condition that it is likely to partially or completely collapse; 
 

3. That is manifestly unsafe for the purpose for which it is being used; 
 

4. That is used or intended for use as a dwelling and is determined by a County building official 
or Health Official to be unfit for human habitation or in such a condition that it is likely to 
cause sickness or disease. 
 

5. That is an otherwise habitable structure that is unsecured; 
 

6. That is determined by the Fire Marshall to be a fire hazard. 
 

E. No property or use of a property shall be operated or maintained in such a manner as to be a fire 
and/or explosion hazard; no property or use of a property shall be allowed to emit fumes or the 
storage of toxic waste unless approved by the state; neither shall there be emitted into the 
atmosphere smoke, soot, dust, radiation, odor, or the creation of noise, vibration, heat, or glare to 
such an extent as to constitute a nuisance; no property or use of a property shall be operated or 



40 

maintained for the outside storage of  junk or in such a manner as to be deemed a junk yard, 
unless permitted within a specific zoning district. 
 

F. Accessory uses and structures for residential property 
 

1. Setbacks for an exempt structure shall be the same as those established for non-exempt 
structures except that the applicant can apply for an Administrative Variance to reduce 
the setback to no less than three feet from a side or rear property line. 

 
2. No accessory structure shall encroach into the required front yard except that an applicant 

can apply for an Administrative Variance to reduce the required front yard as specified in 
the zoning district in which a property is located.  The amount an accessory structure can 
encroach into the front yard shall be dependent upon conditions specific to a property as 
listed in section 101.3A.1-Administrative Variance. 

 
3. Accessory uses may be established without the principle or primary use through the use 

permit process where it can be clearly established that the use will not be a nuisance to 
surrounding neighbors or negatively impact the neighborhood. 
 

4. Accessory structures may be established without the principal or primary structure 
through the administrative variance process where it can be clearly established that the 
structure will not be a nuisance to surrounding neighbors or negatively impact the 
neighborhood. 

 
G. No structure shall be removed from any property without a demolition permit that considers life 

safety issues for hazardous materials such as asbestos and lead paint. 
 
SECTION 103.2 
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR LOTS 
 
No lot shall hereafter be created, whether by minor land division, record of survey, small subdivision or 
subdivision, that contains less than the minimum number of square feet or minimum lot dimensions 
established for the zoning district or density district in which it is located. 
 
SECTION 103.3 
RESTRICTION ON REGULATING THROUGH ZONING 
 

A. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS ZONING ORDINANCE SHALL:  
1. Affect existing uses of property or the rights to its continuing use, or the reasonable repair 

or alteration thereof, for the purpose for which it was used at the time the Zoning 
Ordinance affecting the property takes effect. 
 

2. Prevent, restrict, or otherwise regulate the use or occupation of land or improvements for 
railroad, mining, metallurgical, grazing or general agricultural purposes, if the tract 
concerned is five (5) or more contiguous commercial acres.  General agricultural 
purposes do not include the cultivation of cannabis or marijuana.  Land shall be 
classified as being used for grazing purposes if 50% or more of the income from the 
land is derived from the use or rental of the land for grazing purposes. Land shall be 
classified as being used for general agricultural purposes if 50% or more of the income 
from the land is derived from the use or rental of the land for the production of 
agricultural products.  



41 

 
3. A non-conforming business use within a district may expand, if such expansion does not 

exceed one hundred percent of the area of the business at the time of ordinance adoption. 
 
4. A 12-month discontinuance of the operation of a non-conforming use shall be 

deemed as an expiration of non-conforming status. Any further use shall be in 
conformity with the provisions of the district in which same is located. 

 
a. Discontinuance of a nonconforming use may be evidenced by removal of 

equipment, materials, improvements or other indications that such 
nonconforming use is no longer being made of that property, and/or by a lack of 
use of the nonconforming use of the subject property for the 12 month period, 
whether or not any intention to abandon such use is present any and all future 
uses shall conform to this Zoning Ordinance. 
 

b. If a nonconforming use or structure is damaged or destroyed by fire, earthquake, 
flood, explosion, natural disaster, or act of public enemy, the nonconformance 
may be reconstructed and used as before if done within 12 months of the event 
date. 

 
 

B.  BUSINESS USES, STRUCTURES AND BUILDINGS NOT CURRENTLY 
CONFORMING WITH ZONING REGULATIONS (NONCONFORMING) 

 
1.  EXPANSION: 

a. A nonconforming business use within a zoning district may expand, if such 
expansion does not exceed one hundred percent (100%) of the area of the 
original business.   

 
2.  DISCONTINUANCE: 

a. A consecutive 540-day (approximately 18 months) discontinuance of the 
operation of a nonconforming business use shall be deemed as an expiration of 
nonconforming status. Any further use shall be in conformity with the provisions 
of the zoning district in which same is located. 
 

b. Discontinuance of a nonconforming business use as determined by the Zoning 
Inspector or designee may be evidenced by removal of equipment, materials, 
improvements or other indications that such nonconforming use has been 
discontinued for a period of time equal to or exceeding 540 days (approximately 
18 months) whether or not any intention to abandon such use is present.  Any and 
all future uses shall conform to this Zoning Ordinance. 

 
3.  RECONSTRUCTION:   

a. If a nonconforming use, structure or building is damaged or destroyed by fire, 
earthquake, flood, explosion, natural disaster, or act of public enemy, the 
nonconformance may be reconstructed and used as before if done within 360 
days (approximately twelve months) of the event date. 

 
4.  CHANGE OF USE:   



42 

a. A nonconforming business use may not be changed to another business use 
unless the use is in conformance with the zoning district in which same is 
located.  

 
 
SECTION 103.4 
OFF-STREET PARKING 
 

A. In order to help alleviate congestion on public streets, the following vehicular parking 
requirements shall apply, and no building permit shall be issued for use permitted other than in 
conformity with the following requirements. 
 

1. Where parking spaces are referred to, such space shall represent an area of not less than 
nine (9) feet by twenty (20) feet, exclusive of driveways required to make such space 
accessible from public streets or alleys.   

  
2. Where parking requirements are referenced to floor areas, such shall be construed to 

mean the gross building floor area used by, or to serve, people in connection with such 
use, but shall not include floor areas used for vehicular parking and incidental storage or 
other accessory space.  

  
3. Where parking spaces are referenced to seats, each eighteen (18) inches of pew width 

may be considered as one seat. 
   

4. If such required parking is located other than on the lot upon which use it serves, or 
adjacent property permitting such parking requirements, once approved and/or provided, 
must be continuously maintained in the manner provided by this Zoning Ordinance, 
together with any additional parking facilities necessitated by expansion of floor areas 
and/or uses.   

 
5. In the case of mixed uses, the total parking requirements shall be the sum of the 

requirements of the various uses computed separately. 
 

B. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR OFF-STREET PARKING USES ARE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. For the purpose of converting parking spaces into the required or permitted parking area, 
plans must be submitted to show how the required or permitted parking spaces shall be 
arranged in the area supplied for that purpose and to indicate sufficient space for turning 
maneuvers, as well as adequate ingress and egress to the parking area, before a permit is 
granted. 

 
2. In any district other than in R1, R1L, SFR, RR, SR, or GR, where such space is required, 

the area of such space shall be surfaced with asphaltic surfacing, concrete, or other 
paving material acceptable to the Community Development Division, to prevent dust and 
erosion. 
 

3. The parking of two or more commercial vehicles of more than one-ton capacity on any 
lot in any residential district shall be considered a commercial use and is prohibited. 

 



43 

4. “Floor areas” shall mean the gross floor area and/or the open land area used for service to 
the public as customers, patrons, clients, or patients, including areas occupied by fixtures 
and equipment used for display or sale of merchandise.  It shall not mean floors or parts 
of floors used principally for non-public purposes, such as storage, automobile parking, 
incidental repair, processing or packaging of merchandise, show windows, or for offices 
incidental to the management or maintenance of stores or buildings, or for restrooms or 
powder rooms. 

 
5. In any case, in a Commercial C1 or less restricted district, where a lot used for 

automobile parking space adjoins a residential district, there shall be a solid wall of 
masonry not more than six nor less than four feet in height along the lot line of such lot, 
which lot line forms the boundary of said residential district; except where such wall 
adjoins the front yard of the adjoining residential lot, said wall shall be three feet in 
height. The lot owner or occupant of the C1 or less restricted district shall maintain said 
wall in a neat and orderly condition. As appropriate, on a case by case basis, an 
alternative selection of landscape delineation may be utilized to meet these needs as 
approved by the Zoning Inspector. 

 
6. Any lights used to illuminate parking space in a commercial district shall be so arranged 

as to reflect the light away from the adjoining rights of way. 
 

7. Except where a wall is required, a minimum six-inch high curb or bumper guard shall be 
constructed so that no part of a vehicle shall extend over or beyond any property line. 
 

8. Whenever a building permit has been granted and the plans so approved for off-street 
parking, the subsequent use of such property shall be deemed to be conditional upon the 
unqualified continuance and availability of the parking provisions contained in such 
plans.  Any use of such property in violation hereof shall be deemed in violation of this 
Zoning Ordinance.  Should the owner or occupant of any building to whom a building 
permit has been granted containing off-street parking requirements so change the use to 
which such building is put as to increase off-street parking as required under this Zoning 
Ordinance, it shall be unlawful and a violation of this chapter to begin or maintain such 
altered use prior to compliance with increased off-street parking provisions of this 
section. 

9. No addition or enlargement of an existing building or use shall be permitted unless 
parking requirements of this Zoning Ordinance are met for the entire building or use.  

 
10. In the case of mixed use, the total requirements for off-street parking space shall be the 

sum of the requirements of the various uses computed separately as specified in this 
section, and the off-street parking spaces for one use shall not be considered as providing 
the required off-street parking for any other use. 

 
11. All parking areas, except in an R1, R1L, SFR, RR, SR, or GR District, shall be entered 

and exited in a forward motion of the vehicle. Sufficient space for maneuverability in 
compliance with this section shall be included in plans submitted pursuant to Section 
103.4(A)(1) above.  

 
12. There shall be no commercial parking lots in an R1, R2, R3, R4, R1L, SFR, RR, SR, GR 

and/or MHS District, except for a walled or fenced and landscaped RV and boat storage 
area for the private use of the residents of the same subdivision.   

 



44 

13. Handicapped parking shall be provided in accordance with the Arizona Revised Statutes. 
 
14. In any computations of fractions of parking space requirements, the total number of 

spaces required shall be rounded to the next highest whole number. 
 
PARKING REQUIREMENTS 
 

Automobile parking space shall be provided according to the following schedule and subject to 
the following conditions in any district in which any of the following uses shall be established. 
Where off-street parking requirements are specified in the regulations of any of the various 
zoning districts, those requirements shall apply therein. 
 

1. Single-family dwellings and two-family dwelling (duplexes) shall have two off-street 
parking spaces for each dwelling unit, which space shall be provided on the lot upon 
which such dwelling unit is located. 
 

2. “Multi-unit dwellings” include triplexes, fourplexes, boarding houses, apartments, and all 
similar structures devoted to habitation.  The following requirements shall apply for said 
dwellings:   
 

a. One and one-half parking spaces for each studio, efficiency, or one bedroom unit;  
 

b. one and three-fourths parking spaces for each unit containing two bedrooms;  
 

c. two parking spaces for each unit containing three or more bedrooms; and 
 

d. For each development containing more than five units, one parking space in 
addition to the above requirements shall be provided for each ten units or major 
fraction thereof for visitor parking.  All parking spaces shall be provided on the 
lot upon which the units are located. 

 
3. Places of public assembly, including private clubs, lodges, and fraternal buildings not 

providing overnight accommodations, assembly halls, skating rinks, dance halls, bowling 
alleys, theaters, amusement parks, race tracks, funeral homes, must have at least one off-
street parking space for each five (5) seats provided for patron use and/or at least one off-
street parking space for each seventy-five (75) square feet of floor areas used for public 
assembly but not containing fixed seats. 

 
4. Churches and related buildings:  At least one off-street parking space for each five (5) 

seats or ninety inches of pew space, or, if fixed seats are not provided, then one off-street 
parking space shall be provided for each thirty (30) square feet of floor area in the main 
assembly area. Accessory buildings in the church complex shall provide parking spaces 
in accordance with the following:  Classrooms, whether used for school or church 
activities, shall have one parking space for each four hundred (400) square feet of gross 
floor area. Other buildings shall have one parking space for each four hundred (400) 
square feet of gross floor area. All such parking will be located on the same lot as the 
building or on a contiguous lot. 
 

5. Restaurants, bars, taverns, nightclubs, and all other similar dining and/or drinking 
establishments shall have off-street parking space of at least one space for each fifty (50)  



45 

square feet of floor area and one parking space for each two hundred (200) square feet of 
outdoor patio area (exclusive of kitchen, restrooms, storage, etc.).   Such parking shall be 
located on the same lot or contiguous lots. 
 

6. Hotels, motels, guest lodges, fraternities and sororities shall have one off-street parking 
space for each two beds. 
 

7. Hospitals shall have parking space for each three patient beds, plus at least one off-street 
parking space for each resident doctor, plus at least one additional off-street parking 
space for each three employees including nurses not domiciled on the property. 

 
8. Doctors’ offices, dentists’ offices, medical clinics, and medical centers shall have one 

parking space for each one hundred fifty (150) square feet of gross floor area between 
exterior walls, plus one parking space for each employee, and such parking shall be 
located on the same lot or on contiguous lots with said uses. 
 

9. Nursing or convalescent home health care facilities, including specialized care facilities 
and minimal care facilities, shall have one parking space for each two beds. 
 

10. Office buildings, retail establishments, commercial buildings, and any commercial 
establishment not specified herein shall have one off-street parking space for each three 
hundred (300) square feet of gross floor area. 
 

11. Wholesale, manufacturing, and industrial plants, including warehouses and storage 
buildings and yards, public utility buildings, contractor equipment and storage yards, 
business service establishments such as blueprinting, printing and engraving, soft drink 
bottling establishments, fabricating plants, and all other structures devoted to similar 
mercantile or industrial pursuits, shall have at least one off-street parking space for each 
three employees and an additional one parking space for each one thousand (1,000) 
square feet of gross floor area. 
 

12. Schools shall have at least one off-street parking space for each three employees, 
including administrators, teachers, and building maintenance personnel, and at least one 
off-street parking space for each ten high school, college or university students, 
predicated upon the designed capacity of the physical plant.  Such parking shall be 
located on the same lot or on contiguous lots with said uses. 
 

SECTION 103.5 
OFF-STREET LOADING SPACE AND ADA (AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT) PARKING 
REQUIREMENTS 
 

A. OFF-STREET LOADING SPACE 
 

In order to avoid undue interference with the public use of streets, alleys, and sidewalks, on-the-
property berths are required for the standing, loading, and unloading of vehicles.  Such berths 
shall not be less than ten (10) feet in width and thirty (30) feet in length, exclusive of access aisles 
and maneuvering space.  Any building exceeding a gross floor area of twenty-five thousand 
(25,000 square feet), except residences and apartments, shall provide one such berth plus an 
additional berth for each additional eighty thousand (80,000) square feet of gross floor area. 

 
B. HANDICAPPED REQUIREMENTS 



46 

 
All off-street parking areas, except for single family residential, shall include spaces reserved for 
use by persons with disabilities. Spaces shall be provided in proportion to the total number of 
spaces required. The ADA standards will be used in determining compliance. 

 
Total Parking Required on Lot 

 
 

 
Required Number of Accessible 

Parking Spaces 
 

1 to 25 
 
 

 
1 

 
26 to 50 

 
 

 
2 

 
51 to 75 

 
 

 
3 

 
76 and over 

 
 

 
+1 space / 50 spaces 

 
Each accessible parking space shall have on its right side, an adjacent access aisle not less than 
five feet in width, except that two accessible spaces may share a single access aisle. Every access 
aisle shall lead directly to a curbed ramp and accessible route of travel to the principle building or 
buildings on the site.   

 
SECTION 103.6 
SIGNS 
 

A. TEMPORARY ADVERTISING SIGNS 
 

1. Temporary single-faced or V-shaped signs advertising sale of lots from a recorded 
subdivision which have been approved by the proper authorities are permitted in any 
district, subject to the following provisions and stipulations, when located in any 
Residential, C1, or PM District: 

a. Must be removed after twelve (12) months or thirty (30) days after completion of 
such sales, whichever time is shorter, unless such time is extended by the Board 
of Adjustment. 

b. Must be on or at the property being subdivided. 
 

c. Shall not be closer than thirty (30) feet to a residential zoned property adjacent to 
such subdivision and provided further that when such sign is placed within one 
hundred (100) feet of a residence adjacent to said subdivision [or if a residence is 
later placed on such adjacent property within one hundred (100) feet of such 
existing sign], then the sign must be located (or relocated) to the setback required 
for such and the sign face made parallel to the street. 

 
d. No such sign exceeding thirty-six (36) square feet of panel area shall be located 

closer than three hundred (300) feet to any other such sign in the same 
subdivision. 

. 
e. Shall not exceed the height allowed for signs in the district where located. 
 
f. Shall not be audible or animated, including banners, pennants or devices set in 

motion by movement of air. 



47 

 
g. May be lighted by indirect illumination as provided herein. 

 
B. OFF-STREET SIGNS 

 
Signs, other than traffic safety signage, will not be allowed in any existing or projected street 
right-of-way or street easement.  Any portion of a sign located other than in a street right-of-way 
or street easement shall be subject to the following provisions and stipulations: 
 

1. Shall exercise installation and operational precautions necessary to assure adequate traffic 
safety and so as not to interfere with the efficiency of traffic control devices.  
 

2. Any such sign placed in any unoccupied portion of the triangular area on a corner lot 
formed by measuring thirty-three (33) feet along both street lines or street easement lines, 
as the case may be, from their intersection shall have a minimum bottom height of eight 
(8) feet above the ground level directly below such sign. 
 

3. Shall have no supports or guys in any portion of a street or street easement, or alley 
occupied by roadway, curb, or sidewalk. 
 

4. Shall not exceed a height of twenty (20) feet above the ground grade level at the point of 
erection. 

 
C. LIGHTING, ANIMATION, NOISE 

 
Except where specifically designated to the contrary under a particular use district, no 
sign shall be illuminated, animated, or audible, including banners, pennants or devices 
set in motion by movement of air.   Where lighting is permitted, the same shall be  
indirect illumination and the following provisions and stipulations shall prevail: 
 

1. Shall not be intermittent, flashing or scintillating. 

2. All sources of light shall be set in hood type reflectors with sides extended beyond the 
light source, so that no direct light is visible to the side. 

3. All light beams shall be trained directly on the copy space. 
 

4. No light bulb or tube exceeding one hundred (100) watts is permitted, nor shall the 
combined illumination from all sources exceed 1.5 watts for each square foot of copy 
space. 

 
5. Such illumination shall be controlled by automatic switch timed to turn off no later than 

11:00 PM. 
 

D. NON-CONFORMING SIGNS 
 
Non-conforming signs shall be subject to the following regulations: 
 

1. Subject to the remainder of this section, non-conforming signs that were lawful when 
established may be continued. 
 



48 

2. No sign may be enlarged or altered in such a manner as to increase the 
extent of the nonconformity nor may illumination be added to any 
nonconforming sign. 
 

3. A nonconforming sign may not be moved or replaced except to bring 
the sign into complete conformity with this Zoning Ordinance. 
 

4. The message of a nonconforming sign may be changed so long as this 
does not create any new nonconformity (for example - creating an on-
site sign which is not in conformance with on-site sign regulations). 

 
5. Routine maintenance and repairs may be done so long as the cost of 

such work does not exceed 50 % of the value of such sign within any 
12-month period. 
 

SECTION 103.7 
AMATEUR RADIO ANTENNA (HAM RADIO) 
 

A. Amateur radio antenna intended for non-commercial purposes are permitted in all Residential 
Districts, provided: 

 
1. Such structures shall not be located in any required setback or in front of the front line of 

the dwelling or principal building; 
 
2. such structures shall not exceed a height of 75’;  

 
3. not more than one such structure per lot or parcel is allowed;  

 
4. no antenna shall be located closer than its height to any adjacent property or public right-

of-way or any unrelated structures unless accompanied by structurally engineered plans 
that eliminate the need for a fall zone. 

 
 
 
 
 

SECTION 103.8 
COMMERCIAL COMMUNICATION TOWERS 
 

A. Commercial towers are permitted in all zoning districts with a Conditional 
Use Permit unless the use is currently allowed in that particular zoning 
district. 

 
B. In all zoning districts, communications towers shall be subject to the 

following stipulations: 
 

1. All communications towers must be structurally engineered. 
 

2. No cellular tower shall be located closer than its height to any adjacent property, public 
right of way or any unrelated structure unless accompanied by structurally engineered 
plans that eliminate the need for a fall zone. 



49 

 
SECTION 103.9 
SEXUALLY ORIENTED BUSINESSES 
 

A.  FINDINGS; PURPOSE  
 

1. Based on evidence of the adverse secondary effects of adult uses presented in reports 
made available to the Board of Supervisors as set forth in Resolution  #04-03-07 enacting 
this section, and on findings, interpretations, and narrowing constructions incorporated in 
the cases described in said Resolution, the Board of Supervisors has made specific 
findings concerning the adverse secondary effects of sexually oriented businesses and the 
need for additional requirements for the operation of such businesses 

2. It is the purpose of this section of the Zoning Ordinance to provide for the orderly 
regulation of sexually oriented businesses by establishing certain minimum standards in 
order to protect the health, safety, and general welfare of the citizens of Gila County, and 
to establish reasonable and uniform regulations to prevent the deleterious secondary 
effects of sexually oriented businesses within the County.  The provisions of this section 
of the Zoning Ordinance have neither the purpose nor effect of imposing a limitation or 
restriction on the content of any communicative materials, including sexually oriented 
materials.  Similarly, it is not the intent nor effect of this section of the Zoning Ordinance 
to restrict or deny access by adults to sexually oriented materials protected by the First 
Amendment to the United States Constitution or the corresponding provisions of the 
Arizona Constitution, or to deny access by the distributors and exhibitors of sexually 
oriented entertainment to their intended market.  Neither is it the intent nor effect of this 
section of the Zoning Ordinance to condone or legitimize the distribution of obscene 
material. 

 
B.  STIPULATIONS AND PROVISIONS 

 
1. Classifications: Sexually Oriented Businesses shall be classified as follows: 

 
a. Adult Arcade 

 
b. Adult Bookstore, Adult Video Store, or Adult Novelty Store 

 
c. Adult Cabaret 

 
d. Adult Live Entertainment Establishment 

 
e. Adult Motel 

 
f. Adult Motion Picture Theater 

 
g. Adult Theater 

 
h. Adult Video Facility 

 
i. Dual Purpose Business 



50 

 
j. Escort Agency 

 
k. Exotic Dance Service 

 
l. Massage Establishment that offers or provides Adult Service 

 
m. Nude Model Studio 

 
n. Sexual Encounter Center 

 
o. Any business, facility or person that offers or provides Adult Service. 

 
2. Enclosure 

A sexually oriented business shall be operated solely and totally within an enclosed 
building or structure in a manner that does not allow any activities occurring within that 
enclosure to be viewed from outside that enclosure. 
 

3. Number of Sexually Oriented Businesses 

There shall be no more than one sexually oriented business and no more than one 
classification of sexually oriented business per lot, parcel or tract or building. 
 

4. Location 

A sexually oriented business shall only be allowed in the C-3 (Commercial Three) 
District. 
 

5. Spacing 
 
A sexually oriented business shall not be located or operated within 2640 feet (½ mile) of 
the following: 
 

a. Another sexually oriented business;  
 

b. a building that contains another sexually oriented business;  
 

c. any daycare center, preschool, kindergarten, elementary or secondary school 
whether public, private or parochial;  

 
d. a public or private park or playground;  

 
e. a church, synagogue, temple, seminary, convent, or monastery; 

 
f. any residential zoning district, a single or multiple family dwelling or any 

established residential area whether zoned residentially or not;  
 

g. a museum, art gallery, library or community building whether public or private;  



51 

 
h. any family-oriented business including but not limited to restaurants, amusement 

parks, recreational facilities, movie theaters, semipublic and public pools, roller 
or ice skating rinks, batting cages, go-kart tracks, miniature golf courses, sports 
courts or fields, or any facility, commercial establishment, store, or business, 
whether public or private, that provides entertainment or services to persons 
under 18 years of age. 

 
6. Method of Measurement 

The distance requirement set by this section of the Zoning Ordinance shall be measured 
in a straight line without regard for intervening structures or objects, from the lot line of 
the property occupied by the sexually oriented business to the lot line of the property of 
the business or facility being measured to.  In the case of residential zoning districts, the 
measurement shall be taken from the lot line of the property occupied by the sexually 
oriented business to the closest boundary line of that district.  In the case of established 
residential areas, the measurement shall be taken from the lot line of the property 
occupied by the sexually oriented business to the closest property line of the property 
upon which a residence (single or multiple family dwelling) or residential accessory 
structure sits. 

 
7. Hours of Operation 

A sexually oriented business shall not be open or remain open for business at any time 
between the hours of 10:00 p.m. to 10:00 a.m. on Monday through Saturday and must 
remain closed on Sundays.  However, a sexually oriented business which has obtained a 
license from the State of Arizona to sell alcoholic beverages may remain open to sell 
alcoholic beverages under the terms of that license but may not operate any sexually 
oriented business during the times prohibited. 
 

8. Signage 

It is prohibited for explicit sexual material to be put on public display for the purpose of 
advertising, describing or to assist in locating a sexually oriented business.   
 

9. Pre-existing and Nonconforming Sexually Oriented Businesses 
 

a. The provisions of this section of the Zoning Ordinance shall apply to the 
activities of all sexually oriented businesses and sexually oriented business 
employees described herein, whether such businesses or activities were 
established or commenced before, on, or after the effective date of this section of 
the Zoning Ordinance subject to the protection provided by Arizona State 
Statutes and the Constitution of the State of Arizona. 
 

b. On the effective date of this section of the Zoning Ordinance, any person or 
entity holding a Certificate of Occupancy to lawfully operate a sexually oriented 
business shall be permitted to continue to operate as a legal nonconforming use; 
provided, however, that the use remains restricted to the same classification, 



52 

location and area (square footage) it occupied prior to that effective date.  Should 
such business cease to operate or be discontinued for any period of time, it shall 
not thereafter be reestablished without being in full compliance with all 
provisions of this section of the Zoning Ordinance and other applicable codes and 
ordinances subject to the protection provided by Arizona State Statutes and the 
Constitution of the State of Arizona.  The terms “cease to operate” or 
“discontinued for any period of time” shall mean the voluntary or intentional 
termination, cessation or discontinuance of the business by the owner or other 
party in interest or an involuntary termination of the business resulting from a 
violation of any applicable rule, regulation, ordinance, statute or law.  The holder 
of the certificate of occupancy or operator of the business shall be responsible for 
providing documentation, acceptable to the Zoning Inspector, that a 
nonconforming sexually oriented business has not ceased to operate or been 
discontinued.  A nonconforming sexually oriented business shall not be enlarged, 
increased or altered.  Any change in use shall require full compliance with all 
provisions of this Zoning Ordinance and any other applicable codes subject to the 
protection provided by Arizona State Statutes and the Constitution of the State of 
Arizona. 

 
c. A sexually oriented business lawfully operating with a Certificate of Occupancy 

describing the sexually oriented business use as a conforming use is not rendered 
a nonconforming use by the subsequent location, of one or more of the business 
or uses listed under Section 103.9 (B)(5)(a-h) within 2,640 feet. 

 
10. Certificate of Occupancy  
 

A Certificate of Occupancy is required to legally operate a business in Gila County.  Any 
change made or added to an existing business must be reflected in that Certificate of 
Occupancy.  Sexually oriented businesses are recognized as a separate and distinct 
business use and that use must be reflected in the Certificate of Occupancy.  A Certificate 
of Occupancy is required whether the sexually oriented business is a legal nonconforming 
use or a conforming use.  Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, the owner or 
applicant shall be required to file a Development Plan as required by this Zoning 
Ordinance. 

 
11. Inspection 
 

a. Sexually oriented businesses and sexually oriented business employees shall 
permit officers or agents of Gila County to inspect the business premises for the 
purpose of ensuring compliance with the specific regulations of this section of 
the Zoning Ordinance, during those times when the sexually oriented business is 
occupied by patrons or is open for business.  This section of the Zoning 
Ordinance shall be narrowly construed by the County to authorize reasonable 
inspections of the licensed premises pursuant to this section, but not to authorize 
a harassing or excessive pattern of inspections. 
 



53 

b. The provisions of this section do not apply to areas of an adult motel which are 
currently being rented by a customer for use as a permanent or temporary 
habitation. 

 
12. Severability 

Any County ordinance containing any provision in conflict with any provision of this 
section of the Zoning Ordinance is hereby repealed.  Each section, subsection and 
provision of this section of the Zoning Ordinance is hereby declared to be an independent 
division and subdivision and, notwithstanding any other evidence of legislative intent, it 
is hereby declared to be the controlling legislative intent that if any provision of this 
section of the Zoning Ordinance, or the application thereof to any person or circumstance 
is held to be invalid, the remaining sections or provisions and the application of such 
sections and provisions to any person or circumstances other than those to which it is 
held invalid, shall not be affected thereby, and it is hereby declared that such sections and 
provisions are severable and would have been passed independently of such section or 
provision so known to be invalid. 

 
13. Penalties and Enforcement 
 

a. A person who knowingly violates, disobeys, omits, neglects, or refuses to comply 
with or resists the enforcement of any of the provisions of this section of the 
Zoning Ordinance or any part thereof is guilty of a Class 2 Misdemeanor.  Each 
day the violation is committed, or permitted to continue, shall constitute a 
separate offense and shall be treated as such. 
 

b. The County Attorney is hereby authorized to institute civil proceedings necessary 
for the enforcement of this Section (103.9) to prosecute, restrain, or correct 
violations hereof.  Such proceedings including injunction, shall be brought in the 
name of the County, provided, however, that nothing in this section of the Zoning 
Ordinance and no action taken hereunder, shall be held to exclude such criminal 
proceedings as may be authorized by other provisions of this Zoning Ordinance, 
or any of the laws or ordinances in force in the County or State, or to exempt 
anyone violating this code or any part of the said laws from any penalty which 
may be incurred. 

 
SECTION 103.10 
PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 

A. PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 

Application for a permit for construction or site work related to multi-family, commercial, 
industrial, professional or mixed use shall be subject to prior approval by the Zoning Inspector or 
his designate of a Property Development Plan. 

 
B. APPLICATION 

 
Application for approval of a Property Development Plan shall be made on a form provided for 
such purpose by the Community Development Division and, in addition to the appropriate fee, 



54 

shall be accompanied by maps, drawings and such other materials necessary to show the 
following: 
 

1. The location and proposed use of all structures and site improvements drawn to scale on a 
site plan. 

 
2. On-site parking arrangements, including loading areas and handicap parking spaces. 
 
3. All related signage. 
 
4. The type and location of landscaping to be used. 
 
5. The proposed off-site circulation pattern and related improvements including right-of-way 

dedications, street improvements, traffic control measures, location and design of 
driveways acceleration and/or deceleration lanes.  

 
6. Such additional information as the Zoning Inspector may deem necessary to evaluate the 

impact of the proposed development on surrounding uses. 
 

C. REVIEW 
 

1. The Zoning Inspector or his designated representative shall review the Property 
Development Plan to ensure compliance with regulations of this Zoning Ordinance.  
These may include: the land use, density, yard setbacks, building separation, structure 
heights, outdoor lighting, parking, signage, vehicular access, utilities and easements. 
 

2. The applicant shall provide evidence of an approved means of sanitary disposal as 
permitted by Gila County Wastewater Department and meeting the Arizona Department 
of Environmental Quality requirements. 
 

3. The applicant shall provide evidence of an approved review by the Floodplain 
Department and meeting Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) requirements 
for the proposed location of the improvements. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



55 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

D. DECISION  
 
The Zoning Inspector or his designated representative shall: determine that the Property 
Development Plan is approved, request the applicant to comply with specific development 
requirements or deny the Property Development Plan, if the use is prohibited, causes a nuisance 
or cannot demonstrate compliance.  

 
E. APPEALS 

Appeals of the decision of the Zoning Inspector may be made to the Board of Adjustment and 
must be filed in writing with the Community Development Division and be accompanied with the 
applicable, nonrefundable fee.  
 

SECTION 104 
ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONES (USE AND DENSITY DISTRICTS) 

 
In conformity with the intent and purpose of this Zoning Ordinance, “Use” and “Density” districts are 
hereby adopted in order to classify, regulate, restrict and separate uses of land and structures, lot 
dimensions and areas, yard widths and depths, percent of lot coverage and open spaces, lot area required 
for dwelling units and other structures, spacing of buildings, and the height and bulk of structures.  
 
The following general regulations apply to all Single-Family Districts except where noted otherwise:   
 

A. INTENT AND PURPOSE  
 

 To promote the development of areas primarily of single family dwellings, intending that all other 
uses be installed, operated and maintained in a manner so as to either complement, or at least be 
of a minimum disruption to such single family uses.  Any use not in accordance with the Intent 
and Purpose, District Stipulations and Provisions, and Permitted Uses as set forth in this section 
shall be deemed a nuisance.  

 
B. DISTRICT STIPULATIONS AND PROVISIONS  
 

1. Livestock  
 

The keeping of domestic livestock shall be permitted with the following stipulations: 
 

a. Buildings for the housing of livestock shall be confined to the rear one-half of the 
property and shall be located no closer than thirty (30) feet from a front or side 
street property line or thirty (30) feet from a rear or interior property line. 
 

b. It shall be the responsibility of the livestock owner to ensure that all livestock is 
kept confined within the property boundaries. 

 



56 

c. The keeping of dangerous wild, exotic or non-domestic animals shall be 
prohibited. 

 
d. All domestic animals shall be kept and maintained in such a manner as to 

conform with all applicable State and County health requirements and to cause a 
minimum of disruption to neighboring property owners in terms of noise, odor, 
and insect and vermin infestation. 

 
2. Accessory Dwelling Units 
                                                            

a. There are three (3) different categories or types of Accessory Dwelling Units: 
i. Attached Unit 
ii. Detached Unit 
iii. Interior Unit 

 
b. Regulations for accessory dwelling units 

i. In all single family residential districts, one accessory dwelling unit shall 
be permitted by right on an individual lot. 

ii. The accessory dwelling unit shall not occupy more floor area than the 
primary dwelling unit 

iii. Minimum lot area for an ADU shall be 5,000 square feet. 
iv. The primary use must already be established prior to permitting an 

accessory dwelling unit. 
v. No more than one entrance per story shall be located in each building 

façade that faces a street; 
vi. The property owner must reside in the primary or accessory unit. 
vii. The Planning & Zoning Commission may grant, through a conditional 

use permit, approval to locate an accessory dwelling unit that does not 
meet one or more of the conditions of this section. The applicant must 
demonstrate that the application complies with the general purposes and 
intent of this chapter with no adverse effects to the character of the single 
family residential district. 

viii. A deck or balcony is permitted as a portion of any story of the accessory 
building; provided: 

a) The deck or balcony is oriented so as to not face a principal 
building on an adjoining property in a single family residential 
district. 

ix. The accessory building shall conform to all applicable setback and lot 
occupancy regulations; 

x. The closest façade of a detached accessory building shall be separated 
from the closest façade of the principal building by a distance of ten (10) 
feet minimum unless attached to the principal building; 

 
c. Development Standards 

i. Height. The maximum height for a detached ADU is 30 feet. 
ii. Building coverage. The building coverage shall not exceed the maximum 

percentage allowed in the zoning district. 
iii. Parking. Adequate must be provided that is off-street.  
iv. Must have adequate facilities for the discharge of wastewater. 

 
d. Design Standards 



57 

i. Location of entrances. Only one main entrance may be located on the 
street-facing facade of the house, unless the house contained additional 
entrances before the ADU was created. An exception to this regulation is 
an entrance that does not have access from the ground, such as an 
entrance from a balcony or deck. 

ii. Exterior design details. Exterior finish materials, roof pitch, trim, eaves, 
window orientation and dimension must be the same or visually match 
those of the primary dwelling unit. 

 
C. USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO A USE PERMIT          

 
1. Bed and breakfast establishments, subject to the following conditions: 

 
a. Applicants for a use permit shall be the property owner. 
b. No more than three (3) bedrooms shall be designated and/or used as guest rooms. 

 
c. The maximum duration of stay of any one guest shall be ten (10) days. 

 
d. Guests must enter through the main entrance to the dwelling to get to their rooms 

with no separate entrance allowed. 
 

e. All parking must be accommodated on the site. 
 

f. All meals or snacks provided to guests shall be served in a common dining area. 
 

g. Any applicable State and County Health Department regulations must be 
complied with, and all required permits must be obtained and remain valid so 
long as the use is in operation. 

 
h. The Use Permit shall be issued for periods of two years.  Prior to the expiration 

date of the permit, the Zoning Inspector or his designate shall review the 
establishment for compliance with the terms of the permit.  Full compliance shall 
result in an automatic two-ear extension; violations shall result in suspension or 
revocation. 

 
2. Public utility facilities (but not business offices, repair facilities or storage and equipment 

yards) subject to the following conditions: 
 

a. Water Storage Tanks 
i. Shall be no taller than sixteen (16) feet. 
ii. Shall be painted in neutral “earth tone” shades of green or brown and 

landscaped to minimize adverse visual impact to surrounding properties. 
iii. All exposed valves and piping shall be vandal proofed and screened or 

painted to match tanks. 
 

b. Water Wells 
i. Shall be enclosed in well houses constructed of durable materials 

finished in neutral “earth tones” and landscaped to minimize any adverse 
visual impact to surrounding properties. 

ii. Shall be made secure and vandal proofed. 



58 

 
c. Electrical and Natural Gas Facilities  

i. Shall be screened by an opaque fence or wall finished in neutral “earth 
tones” and landscaped to minimize any adverse visual impact to 
surrounding properties. 

ii. Shall be made secure and vandal proofed. 
 

3.  Home Occupations. 
 

D. USES SUBJECT TO A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT  
 

1. Bed and breakfast establishments are subject to the same conditions as those under which 
a Use Permit may be granted, with the following exceptions: 

 
a. Up to five bedrooms may be designated and/or occupied as guest rooms. 

 
b. Guest rooms may be located in buildings on the same property other than the 

main dwelling, provided, however, that these rooms shall contain no facilities for 
the storage or preparation of food. 

 
c. Guest rooms may be accessed by entrances other than the main entrance to the 

dwelling. 
 
2. Temporary Uses  

 
Subject to requirements outlined in the “Temporary Use Permits” section of this Zoning 
Ordinance. 

 
 
 
 
 
SECTION 104.1 
ZONING MAP 
 
The locations and boundaries of the various “Use” and “Density” districts are established as they are 
shown on the map entitled “Zoning Map for Unincorporated Areas of Gila County, Arizona” dated 
September 8, 1959, signed by the Chairman of the Board of Supervisors and the County Clerk, which 
map, along with any amendments thereto, becomes an official record and becomes part of this Zoning 
Ordinance as if the matters and information set forth by said map were fully described herein. 
 

A. Where uncertainty exists as to the boundaries of any of the districts shown on said map, the 
following rules shall apply: If lack of dimensions causes uncertainty, then such boundary shall be 
determined by use of the scale of the map, except that where such scaling or marked dimensions 
bring the district boundary within 25 feet of a street, lot line, or some other fixed boundary line, 
then the district shall be extended or reduced, as the case may be, to match such boundary line.  If 
further uncertainty exists, then the Board of Adjustment shall determine the location. 
 



59 

B. Where a public street, alley, railroad, or other right-of-way is officially abandoned, the 
regulations applicable to abutting property shall apply to such abandoned right-of-way, except 
where such was a boundary of districts, such districts shall be extended to the centerline thereof. 

SECTION 104.2 
USE DISTRICTS (GENERAL SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL) 
 
The uses that are permitted in each of the various “Use” districts and the regulations are established in this 
section. The express enumeration and authorization herein of a particular class of structure or use in a 
designated district shall be deemed a prohibition in all other districts where such are not specifically 
designated as allowable.  A use that is not permitted in a particular district shall not be considered an 
accessory use in that district. The determination of whether or not a use is specifically permitted, 
permitted with conditions or not permitted shall be determined by the Zoning Inspector. Uses that the 
Zoning Inspector determines are not permitted or uses that the Zoning Inspector determines are permitted 
but with conditions that are questioned, may be appealed to the Board of Adjustment. 
 

A. R1 – RESIDENCE ONE DISTRICT (SINGLE DWELLING UNITS)  
 

1. Intent and Purpose:   To promote the development of areas primarily of single family 
dwellings, intending that all other uses be installed, operated and maintained in a manner 
so as to either complement, or at least be of a minimum disruption to such single family 
uses.  Any use not in accordance with the Intent and Purpose, District Stipulations and 
Provisions, and Permitted Uses as set forth in this section shall be deemed a nuisance. 

 
2. District Stipulations and Provisions:  Supplemental to and/or supplanting the section of 

this Zoning Ordinance entitled “General Stipulations & Provisions-All Districts” as 
follows: 

 
a. The permitted uses shall be installed, operated and maintained in a manner 

commensurate with quiet family living, and all lighting shall be of a minimum 
necessary to serve the purpose for which it is intended. 
 

b. If no density is established on any particular lot or parcel of land, then all 
provisions of the D10 District shall prevail. 

 
c. No use shall be operated in such a manner as to cause a fire or explosion hazard; 

no use shall be allowed that will emit toxic fumes or generate toxic waste; neither 
shall there be emitted into the atmosphere smoke, soot, dust, radiation, odor, 
noise, vibration, heat, or glare to such an extent as to constitute a nuisance. 

 
d. Signage: 

i. General: 
a) Signage shall be the minimum necessary to identify the 

permitted use. 
b) No sign shall be installed in such a manner as to interfere with 

the view of a motorist or pedestrian entering a street from an 
alley, private drive or intersection. 



60 

c) Signs may be indirectly illuminated only to such an extent as 
may be necessary for a motorist to identify the use or occupant 
from a street adjacent to the subject property. 

ii. On-Site Signs: 
a) Shall be limited to one (1) single or double-faced sign for each 

permitted use located on the property for the purpose of 
identifying the occupants or uses, along with a reasonable 
amount of directional signs. 

b) Shall be limited to two (2) square feet of panel area for 
residential and directional signs and six (6) square feet for non-
residential permitted uses. 

c) Shall be limited to a height of six (6) feet from the top of the sign 
to ground level. 

iii. Political signs shall be removed within fourteen (14) days following any 
general or special election. 

iv. Real Estate Sales: 
a) Shall be limited to a maximum panel area of four (4) square feet, 

except that larger temporary advertising panels pertaining to 
subdivisions may be displayed as provided under Section 103.8. 

b) Shall be limited to one sign for each 200 feet of street frontage. 
v. Subdivision Entrance: 

a) Limited to not more than two (2) signs at the major entrance to 
the subdivision. 

b) Shall have a maximum panel area of twenty (20) square feet per 
sign. 

c) Design, colors, materials, height and location shall be subject to 
the approval of the Zoning Inspector. 

e. A Conditional Use Permit shall be required for any building exceeding two (2) 
stories or thirty (30) feet above ground level. 
 

 
3. Permitted Uses: 

a. One single family residence on any lot or parcel containing the minimum square 
footage and dimensions prescribed by the existing density district. 
 

b. Up to four (4) additional single-family residences on a single lot or parcel, 
subject to the following conditions: 

i. Each residence must occupy an area which is the greater of either 10,000 
square feet or the minimum square footage and dimensions of the 
existing density district and must be able to conform to the required 
setbacks if the property should be divided. 

ii. Access is provided to each additional residence by a dedicated public 
street or by a private ingress-egress easement having a minimum width 
of twenty (20) feet which does not encroach into the minimum required 
setbacks for the existing density district. 



61 

 
c. Temporary offices, construction sheds, storage yards, work yards, and 

appurtenant signs, incidental to an approved subdivision development or 
construction project, for a period not to exceed twelve (12) months unless 
otherwise authorized by the Board of Adjustment. 

 
d. Group homes for the disabled as defined in the Fair Housing Act Amendments of 

1988.  
 

e. Fences and free-standing walls with a maximum height of six (6) feet above the 
ground; provided, however, that no fence or free-standing walls shall be 
constructed in such a way as to create a hazard to safety by restricting the view of 
a driver entering a street from a private drive or alley or approaching the 
intersection of two streets. 

 
f. The non-commercial unenclosed storage of unlicensed; inoperable motor 

vehicles, parts, building materials and other materials necessary for the operation 
and maintenance of the household under the following conditions: 

i. The storage area shall not exceed 200 square feet for up to one acre of 
gross lot area.  Thereafter, an additional 100 square feet of storage space 
shall be allowed for each additional acre of land, up to a maximum of 
2,000 square feet. 

ii. Storage shall be confined to the rear one-half of the property and shall 
not encroach into any required setback. 

iii. A wall or non-transparent fence not exceeding six feet in height may be 
required to minimize adverse visual impact. 

g. Home gardens and flower propagation with the limited sale, as a home 
occupation, of products raised on the premises. 

 
h. Other uses customarily accessory and incidental to the principle use and located 

on the same parcel therewith. 
4. Uses Permitted Subject to a Use Permit: 
 

a. Bed and breakfast establishments, subject to the following conditions: 
i. Applicants for a use permit shall be the property owner. 

ii. No more than three (3) bedrooms shall be designated and/or used as 
guest rooms. 

iii. The maximum duration of stay of any one guest shall be ten (10) days. 
iv. Guests must enter through the main entrance to the dwelling to get to 

their rooms with no separate entrance allowed. 
v. All parking must be accommodated on the site. 

vi. All meals or snacks provided to guests shall be served in a common 
dining area. 

vii. Any applicable State and County Health Department regulations must be 
complied with, and all required permits must be obtained and remain 
valid so long as the use is in operation. 



62 

viii. The Use Permit shall be issued for periods of two years.  Prior to the 
expiration date of the permit, the Zoning Inspector or his designate, shall 
review the establishment for compliance with the terms of the permit.  
Full compliance shall result in an automatic two year extension; 
violations shall result in suspension or revocation. 

 
b. The keeping of individual animals not classified as household pets or domestic 

farm-type animals. 
 
c. Non-commercial kennels. 

 
d. Public utility facilities (but not business offices, repair facilities or storage and 

equipment yards) subject to the following conditions: 
i. Water Storage Tanks: 

a) Shall be no taller than sixteen (16) feet. 
b) Shall be painted in neutral “earth tone” shades of green or brown 

and landscaped to minimize adverse visual impact to 
surrounding properties. 

c) All exposed valves and piping shall be vandal proofed and 
screened or painted to match tanks. 

ii. Water Wells 
a) Shall be enclosed in well houses constructed of durable materials 

finished in neutral “earth tones” and landscaped to minimize any 
adverse visual impact to surrounding properties. 

b) Shall be made secure and vandal proofed 
iii. Electrical and Natural Gas Facilities  

a) Shall be screened by an opaque fence or wall finished in neutral 
“earth tones” and landscaped to minimize any adverse visual 
impact to surrounding properties. 

b) Shall be made secure and vandal proofed. 
 

e. Home Occupations 
5. Uses Subject to a Conditional Use Permit:  

 
a. Bed and breakfast establishments subject to the same conditions as those under 

which a Use Permit may be granted, with the following exceptions: 
i. Up to five bedrooms may be designated and/or occupied as guest rooms. 

ii. Guest rooms may be located in buildings on the same property other than 
the main dwelling, provided, however, that these rooms shall contain no 
facilities for the storage or preparation of food. 

iii. Guest rooms may be accessed by entrances other than the main entrance 
to the dwelling. 

 
b. Golf courses, but no commercial driving ranges or miniature golf courses. 
c. Churches, convents and parish houses. 

 



63 

d. Public schools and private and parochial schools providing a curriculum of 
general instruction comparable to public schools, together with fields, 
playgrounds and other related uses on the same parcel. 

 
e. Institutions of higher education. 

 
f. Nursery schools and day care centers. 

 
g. Recreational facilities such as country clubs, swimming and tennis clubs with 

incidental limited commercial activities commonly associated with and directly 
related to the primary use. 

 
h. Libraries, museums and other publicly owned and operated buildings 

 
 

i. Public parks and recreational facilities which may include eating and 
confectionery facilities and other accessory uses commonly associated with and 
directly related to the primary use, provided, however, that eating and 
confectionery facilities are located no closer than 300 feet from any adjacent 
residential property. 

 
j. Cottage industries. 

 
k. Other uses which can become harmonious or compatible with neighboring uses 

through the application and maintenance of qualifying conditions. 
 

6. Temporary Uses: (Subject to the requirements outlined in the “Temporary Use Permits” 
section of this Zoning Ordinance.) 
 

B. R1L – RESIDENCE ONE DISTRICT LIMITED (SINGLE DWELLING UNITS, RESTRICTED 
CONSTRUCTION) 

 
1. Intent and Purpose:  To promote the development of areas primarily of site-built single 

family detached dwellings, intending that all other uses be installed, operated and 
maintained in a manner so as to complement and cause a minimum disruption to such 
single family uses.   Any use not in accordance with the intent and purpose, district 
stipulations and provisions and permitted uses as set forth in this section shall be deemed 
a nuisance 
 

2. District Stipulations and Provisions: 
 

a. No mobile/manufactured home or recreational vehicle may be occupied as a 
permanent or temporary dwelling unit in the Residence One Limited zone. 
 

b. All other stipulations and provisions shall be the same as those set forth in the                                
Residence One zone. 

 
3. Permitted Uses: 



64 

 
a. One conventional, modular, precut or prefabricated single-family dwelling on 

any lot or parcel containing the minimum square footage and dimensions 
prescribed by the existing density district. 

 
b. Up to four additional conventional, modular, precut or prefabricated single-

family dwellings, subject to the provisions of the Residence One District. 
 

c. All other uses permitted in the Residence One District. 
 

4. Uses Subject to a Use Permit:  Shall be the same as the provisions in the Residence One 
zone. 
 

5. Uses Subject to a Conditional Use Permit:  Shall be the same as the provisions of the              
Residence One District. 
 

6. Temporary Uses: (Subject to the requirements outlined in the “Temporary Use Permits” 
section of this Zoning Ordinance.) 
 

C. MHS – MOBILE/MANUFACTURED HOME SUBDIVISION DISTRICT  
 

1. Purpose and Intent:  This District provides for the exclusive placement and occupancy of 
mobile/manufactured homes for residential purposes on individually owned lots.  The 
District standards promote developments of single-family residential character oriented 
toward permanent occupancy of medium density, five and one-half (5.5) units per acre or 
less. 

 
2. Approvals:  No building, structure or mobile/manufactured home shall be placed upon 

land in the MHS District until approval of a subdivision plat has been obtained and until a 
building permit has been issued. 

 
3. Use Regulations: 
 

a. Permitted Uses -  
i. Mobile/manufactured homes. 

ii. Private accessory buildings and uses, including home occupations, 
storage areas, swimming pool, and other similar accessory uses on 
individual lots 

iii. Fences and free-standing walls with a maximum height of six feet above 
ground level; provided, however, that no fence or free-standing wall shall 
be constructed in such a way as to create a hazard to safety by restricting 
the view of a driver entering a street from a private drive or alley or 
approaching an intersection of two streets. 

b. Uses Subject to Special Permit & Site Plan Approval -     
The Planning and Zoning Commission may permit the following uses within the 
MHS District or at the time of subdivision plat approval for a planned 
development: 



65 

i. Communal recreation building, laundry facilities, swimming pool, 
playground and other common area uses for the exclusive benefit of 
subdivision residents. 

ii. Golf courses, except miniature courses or practice driving tees operated 
for commercial purposes. 

iii. Parks, playgrounds, and community-owned buildings. 
iv. Temporary buildings used for the sale of lots. 

 
4. Property Development Standards:  The following property development standards shall 

apply to all land and structures in the MHS District: 
 

a. Lot Areas - (1) Minimum area for a mobile/manufactured home lot:  Six 
thousand (6,000) square feet. 

b. Lot Dimensions - (1) Minimum width:  Sixty (60) feet. 
c. Density and Intensity - There shall be not more than one (1) 

mobile/manufactured home per lot. 
d. Maximum Height - One story or fourteen (14) feet. 
e. Setback Requirements -  

i. Minimum distance from any portion of the mobile/manufactured home 
and its accessory structures to the following lines shall be as specified  

a) Front - Ten (10) feet. 
b) Side - Eight (8) feet, with the following exception: five (5) feet 

to any canopy that is open on three sides, provided, however, 
that no mobile/manufactured home may be placed closer than 
sixteen (16) feet from any other mobile/manufactured home 
within the subdivision. 

c) Rear - Ten (10) feet. 
d) Exterior boundary of subdivision - Twenty (20) feet. 

ii. Design and Development Standards: 
a) The minimum distance between main buildings or 

mobile/manufactured homes on adjacent lots is thirty (30) feet. 
b) The minimum distance between a detached accessory building 

and the main building or mobile/manufactured home is ten (10) 
feet. 

c) All utility lines shall be placed underground within the 
mobile/manufactured home subdivision.  Each 
mobile/manufactured home lot shall be provided with all 
utilities. 

d) The front yard of each lot and the street side of any lot shall be 
landscaped and maintained adjacent to all streets. 

e) Exterior boundaries of the subdivision abutting a public street 
shall be provided with an opaque wall or fence having a height 
of six (6) feet and designed to create an attractive border.  In 
addition, a setback of at least ten (10) feet in depth shall be 
appropriately designed and maintained as landscaped open space 
between any perimeter street and the required wall. 



66 

f) Exterior boundaries of the subdivision which do not abut a 
public street shall be bounded by a six (6) foot high solid wall or 
fence. 

g) Trees shall be planted as follows:  a minimum average of two (2) 
trees per lot, with a minimum trunk caliper of three-quarters 
(3/4) inch.  A minimum fifty percent (50%) of the 
aforementioned tree requirement shall be planted in front yards 
and/or in landscaped areas adjacent to a dedicated public street. 
 

5. Parking and Loading Requirements: 
 

a. Mobile/manufactured home subdivisions shall have vehicular access from a 
major street or highway. 

 
b. All lots within any mobile/manufactured home subdivision shall have frontage on 

a dedicated public street of at least thirty-two (32) feet in width. 
 

c. A minimum of two (2) parking spaces, each being not less than eight (8) feet by 
twenty (20) feet, exclusive of driveways, shall be provided on each 
mobile/manufactured home lot, and one (1) additional parking space for each five 
(5) mobile/manufactured homes shall be provided as guest parking. 

 
d. Parking for other than residential uses permitted within the MHS District shall 

conform with the provisions of sections of this Zoning Ordinance entitled “Off-
“Street Parking” and “Off-Street Loading Space and ADA (Americans with 
Disabilities Act) Parking Requirements” or the stipulations of the Planning and 
Zoning Commission at the time of plat approval. 

 
6. Signs:   
 

The provisions for the “R1 District” of this Zoning Ordinance which specifically 
addresses signs shall apply. 
 
 

 
D. RR – RURAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT 

 
1. Intent and Purpose: 
 

a. To provide a zone classification for those unincorporated areas of the County not 
committed to any specific urban use. 

 
b. To preserve and promote the beneficial aspects of rural living by reserving areas 

of the County for low-density residential uses with related agricultural and 
commercial pursuits. 

 



67 

2. District Stipulations and Provisions:  Supplemental to and/or supplanting the section of 
this Zoning Ordinance entitled “General Stipulations & Provisions-All Districts” as 
follows: 

 
a. There shall be a lot area of not less than one acre. 
b. Required front and street side yard setbacks shall not be used for the parking or 

storage of inoperable motor vehicles.  Neither shall operable or inoperable 
vehicles or vehicle accessories be parked in such a manner as to restrict the 
vision of persons entering a street or highway from a private drive, side street, or 
alley. 

 
c. Up to ten percent (10%) of the area of any lot or parcel may be used for the non-

commercial, unenclosed storage of items necessary for the operation and 
maintenance of the household and permitted activities, provided, however, that 
such unenclosed storage shall be maintained in a neat and orderly manner, and 
provided further that such storage area shall be located no closer than twenty-five 
(25) feet from the nearest property line.  The provisions of this paragraph shall 
not be construed so as to restrict the storage of firewood for use by the occupants 
of the premises. 

 
d. Where public or semi-public uses are established adjacent to residential uses, an 

opaque wall or fence six (6) feet in height may be required to be erected and 
maintained between such uses.  Such wall or fence, however, may not exceed 
three (3) feet in height within fifteen (15) feet of the intersection of a private 
drive and a street, easement, or right-of-way. 
 

e. No use shall be operated in such a manner as to create an explosion or fire 
hazard; nor shall there be emitted into the atmosphere smoke, soot, dust, 
radiation, odor, noise, vibration, heat, glare, or toxic fumes to such an extent as to 
constitute a nuisance to adjoining property holders. 
 

f. Signs: The following signs shall be permitted in the Rural Residential zone: 
i. Residential Uses:  One nameplate, not exceeding three (3) square feet in 

area, indicating name of occupant.  The sign may be indirectly lighted. 
ii. Agricultural, Public, Semi-Public and Other Permitted Uses: One 

appurtenant sign, unlighted or indirectly lighted, not exceeding sixteen 
(16) square feet in face area, or one unlighted or indirectly lighted free-
standing sign, single or double-faced, not exceeding eight (8) square feet 
per face. 

iii. Special Uses: Signs identifying special uses shall be as authorized by the 
use permit required for the establishment of special uses. 

 
g. Setback requirements shall conform to those required under D8 Density District. 

 



68 

h. Building Height: A Conditional Use Permit shall be required for any building 
exceeding two (2) stories or thirty (30) feet in height. 

   
3. Permitted Uses:  
 

a. One dwelling unit per acre up to a maximum of three dwelling units per 
individually owned parcel. 

 
b. All types of horticulture.  The sale of horticultural products raised on the 

premises shall be permitted. 
 

c. Household pets. 
 

d. Aviaries and apiaries, provided they are located no closer than thirty (30) feet 
from the nearest property line. 

e. The following occupations, when conducted within a residence or enclosed 
structure by the property holder and up to two employees not members of the 
household: 

i. Beauty and barber shops. 
ii. Handicraft manufacture and sales. 

iii. Fine arts studios, galleries, and schools. 
iv. Sewing and tailoring. 
v. Small appliance and small engine repair. 

vi. Key making and saw sharpening. 
vii. Bed and breakfast establishments. 

viii. Gunsmithing. 
ix. Real estate brokerage offices. 
x. General and specialty contracting offices. 

xi. Antique stores. 
xii. Florist shops. 

xiii. Professional offices. 
xiv. Other occupations which require no special signage or parking 

provisions, and which may be operated in such a manner as to create a 
minimum disruption to the neighborhood in terms of noise, atmospheric 
emissions, and traffic. 

 
4. Other Permitted Uses Subject to a Use Permit: 

 
a. Riding academies or riding clubs. 
 
b. The keeping or raising of animals for commercial purposes, including 

commercial stables. 
 

c. The keeping of poultry or rabbits for commercial purposes. 



69 

 
d. The keeping of wild, exotic or non-domesticated animals. 

 
e. Dairies. 

 
f. Feed stores. 

 
g. Animal hospitals and veterinary clinics. 

 
h. Planing mills and custom furniture and cabinetry manufacturing operations. 

 
i. Commercial kennels. 

 
j. Day nurseries and nursery schools. 

 
k. Recreational facilities such as rodeo and roping arenas, tennis, swim and health 

clubs, and incidental limited commercial uses which are commonly associated 
and directly related to the primary use. 

l. Mineral extraction operations. 
 

m. Borrow pits. 
 

n. Firewood storage and sales yards. 
 

o. Mobile/manufactured home developments when the RR District is combined 
with a “T” District, subject to site plan review and approval. 

 
p. Other occupations which require no special signage or parking provisions, but 

which may be operated in such a manner as to create a limited disruption to the 
neighborhood in terms of noise, atmospheric emissions, and traffic. 

 
E. GR – GENERAL RURAL DISTRICT 

 
1. Intent and Purpose:   

 
a. To provide a land use category for those unincorporated areas of Gila County not 

specifically designated in any other zone classification. 
 

b. To allow for a minimum regulation in the rural and sparsely populated areas of 
the County while still providing protection against uncontrolled urbanization or 
industrialization and fulfilling the statutory responsibility to conserve and 
promote the public health, safety, convenience and general welfare and plan and 
provide for the future growth and improvement of Gila County. 

 



70 

2. District Stipulations and Provisions:  Supplemental to and/or supplanting the section of 
this Zoning Ordinance entitled “General Stipulations & Provisions-All Districts” as 
follows:  

 
a. There shall be a lot area of not less than three acres. 
 
b. No use shall be operated in such a manner as to create a hazard to life or 

property, nor shall there be emitted into the atmosphere smoke, soot, dust, 
radiation, odor, noise, vibration, heat, glare, or toxic fumes to such an extent as to 
constitute a nuisance to the adjoining property holders. 

 
c. Signs: Sign provisions shall be the same as those set forth in the “RR District” as 

outlined in this Zoning Ordinance. The following signs shall be permitted in the 
General Rural Residential zone: 

i. Residential Uses: One name plate, not exceeding three (3) square feet in 
area, indicating name of occupant.  The sign may be indirectly lighted. 

ii. Agricultural, Public, Semi-Public and Other Permitted Uses: One 
appurtenant sign, unlighted or indirectly lighted, not exceeding sixteen 
(16) square feet in face area, or one unlighted or indirectly lighted free-
standing sign, single or double-faced, not exceeding eight (8) square feet 
per face. 

iii. Special Uses:  Signs identifying special uses shall be as authorized by the 
use permit required for the establishment of special uses. 
 

d. Setback Requirements/Space Between Buildings/Building Height: 
i. No structure may be erected closer than ten (10) feet from a property line 

abutting a public street, private street, or non-exclusive ingress-egress 
easement. 

ii. No structure may be erected closer than five (5) feet from any property 
line not abutting a public street, private street, or non-exclusive ingress-
egress easement. 

iii. No structure may be erected closer than six (6) feet from any other 
structure unless those structures are joined by a common breezeway. 

iv. A Conditional Use Permit shall be required for any building exceeding 
two (2) stories or thirty (30) feet in height. 

 
3. Permitted Uses: 
 

a. All uses permitted in the RR District with the limitation that there shall be no 
more than three individual housing units on any one lot or parcel.  
 

b. The following additional uses: 
i. Riding academies or riding clubs. 

ii. The keeping or raising of animals, other than hogs, for commercial 
purposes, including commercial stables. 



71 

iii. The keeping of poultry or rabbits for commercial purposes. 
iv. Dairies. 
v. Feed stores. 

vi. Animal hospitals and veterinary clinics. 
vii. Custom furniture and cabinetry manufacturing operations. 

viii. Recreational facilities such as rodeo and roping arenas, tennis, swim and 
health clubs, and incidental limited commercial uses which are 
commonly associated and directly related to the primary use. 

ix. Firewood storage and sales yards. 
 
4. Other Permitted Uses Subject to a Use Permit:   
 

a. The keeping of wild, exotic or non-domesticated animals. 
 
b. Planing mills. 

 
c. Building, plumbing and electrical supply stores. 

 
d. Commercial kennels. 
e. Day nurseries and nursery schools. 

 
f. Mineral extraction operations. 

 
g. Sand and gravel extraction and classification operations. 

 
h. Borrow pits. 

 
i. Mobile/ manufactured home developments when the General Rural District is 

combined with a “T” District, subject to site plan review and approval. 
 

j. Other occupations and uses which may require special signage or parking 
provisions, but which may be operated in such a manner as to cause a minimum 
disruption to the neighborhood in terms of noise, visual impact, atmospheric 
emissions, and traffic. 

 
F. SR -- SUBURBAN RANCH DISTRICT 

 
1. Intent and Purpose: To preserve and promote the beneficial aspects of rural living by 

providing a zone classification for low density single family residential development on 
large tracts with related low intensity agricultural uses and minimal commercial activity. 

 
2. District Stipulations and Provisions:  Supplemental to and/or supplanting the section of 

this Zoning Ordinance entitled “General Stipulations & Provisions-All Districts” as 
follows: 



72 

 
a. There shall be a lot area of not less than one acre. 

 
b. The permitted uses shall be operated in a manner commensurate with the intent 

and purpose of this section, and all lighting shall be of the minimum necessary to 
serve the purpose for which it was intended. 

 
c. No use shall be operated, nor material stored in such a manner as to constitute a 

fire or explosion hazard or to cause to be emitted into the atmosphere smoke, 
soot, dust, radiation, odor, noise, vibration, heat, glare, or toxic fumes to such an 
extent as to constitute a nuisance or cause pollution of the groundwater. 
 

d. Required front and street side yard setbacks shall not be used for the repair or 
storage of inoperable motor vehicles, nor shall operable or inoperable vehicles be 
parked or stored in such a manner as to restrict the view of motorists entering a 
street from an alley, side street or driveway; nor shall there be permitted the 
repair or storage of more than one unregistered, inoperable motor vehicle within 
the property boundaries. 
 

e. Up to ten (10) percent of the lot area may be used for the unenclosed storage of 
items necessary for the operation and maintenance of the household or other 
permitted activities provided, however, that such storage shall be confined to the 
rear one-half of the property and that such storage be maintained in a neat and 
orderly manner.  Such storage shall be maintained a minimum of twenty-five 
(25) feet from the nearest property line provided, however, that this distance may 
be waived if the adjacent property is shielded by an opaque fence or wall a 
minimum of six (6) feet in height.  Nothing in this section shall be construed to 
restrict the storage of firewood for use by the occupants of the premises. 

 
f. Where public or semi-public uses are established adjacent to residential uses, an 

opaque wall or fence up to six (6) feet in height may be required to be erected. 
 

g. Signs: See the provisions of R1 (Residence One District). 
 

h. Construction: Shall be limited to conventional, prefabricated, or precut type with 
the following exceptions: Mobile/manufactured or modular homes exceeding 
seven hundred twenty (720) square feet of living space, affixed to permanent 
foundation and for which an Affidavit of Affixture has been issued by the office 
of the Gila County Assessor. 
 

i. Setbacks: Fifty (50) feet front and street side yards; twenty (20) feet rear and 
interior side yards. 

 



73 

j. No structure may be erected closer than six (6) feet from any other structure 
unless joined by a breezeway. 
 

k. A Conditional Use Permit shall be required for any building exceeding two (2) 
stories or thirty (30) feet in height. 

 
3. Permitted Uses: 

 
a. One main residence. 

 
b. Aviaries and apiaries provided such are confined to the rear one-half of the 

property and are located no closer than thirty (30) feet from the nearest property 
line.  
 

c. The following home occupations when conducted within the residence or other 
fully enclosed structures: 

i. Sales of handicrafts produced on the premises. 
ii. Fine arts studios. 

iii. Sewing and tailoring. 
iv. Small appliance repair. 
v. Key making and saw sharpening. 

vi. Gunsmithing. 
vii. General and specialty contracting offices, but not equipment storage 

yards. 
viii. Bed and breakfast, limited to maximum of two (2) guest rooms within 

the main residence. 
ix. Other occupations which require no special signage and parking 

provisions, and which may be operated in such a manner as to create a 
minimum disruption to the neighborhood in terms of noise, atmospheric 
emissions, environmental damage, and traffic. 

x. The occasional sale of surplus firewood, dairy products, honey, eggs, 
baked goods, individual animals, and produce. 
 

G. SFR – SINGLE FAMILY RURAL DISTRICT 
 

1. Intent and Purpose: To preserve and promote the beneficial aspects of rural living by 
providing a zone classification for single family residential development. 
 

2. District Stipulations and Provisions:  Supplemental to and/or supplanting the section of 
this Zoning Ordinance entitled “General Stipulations & Provisions-All Districts” as 
follows: 
 

a. Any future division of land must comply with the density district requirements. 
 



74 

b. The permitted uses shall be installed, operated and maintained in a manner 
commensurate with quiet family living and the intent and purpose of this section. 
All lighting shall be of a minimum necessary to serve the purpose for which it 
was intended. 
 

c. No use shall be operated, nor material stored in such a manner as to constitute a 
fire or explosion hazard or to cause to be emitted into the atmosphere smoke, 
soot, dust, radiation, odor, noise, vibration, heat, glare, or toxic fumes to such an 
extent as to constitute a nuisance or cause pollution of the groundwater. 

d. Required front and street side-yard setbacks shall not be used for the parking or 
storage of inoperable motor vehicles, nor shall operable or inoperable vehicles be 
parked or stored in such a manner as to restrict the view of motorists entering a 
street from a side street or driveway; nor shall there be permitted the parking or 
storage of more than one unregistered, inoperable motor vehicle within the 
property boundaries. 
 

e. No use shall allow the unenclosed storage of materials in such a manner or to 
such an extent as to constitute a Junk Yard as defined in Section 102 of this 
Zoning Ordinance. 
 

f. There shall be no more than one (1) travel trailer or recreational vehicle stored on 
the same lot.  Recreational vehicles shall not be used as permanent dwellings. 
 

g. Construction of Dwelling: Shall be limited to conventional, prefabricated or 
precut type exceeding seven hundred twenty (720) square feet, with the following 
exceptions: Mobile/manufactured or modular homes manufactured and 
maintained in accordance with current HUD specifications, exceeding seven 
hundred twenty (720) square feet of living space, affixed to a permanent 
foundation or set on permanent piers, and for which an Affidavit of Affixture has 
been issued by the Office of the Gila County Assessor.  Such 
mobile/manufactured or modular homes that are on piers shall be skirted. 
 

h. A Conditional Use Permit shall be required for any building exceeding two (2) 
stories or thirty (30) feet in height. 
 

i. All provisions of the section of this Zoning Ordinance entitled “Density Districts-
General Regulations” shall apply. 

 
3. Permitted Uses: 

 
a. One single family dwelling on any lot or parcel of land. 

 
b. Aviaries shall be permitted; however, they must be located no closer than seven 

(7) feet from the property line. 



75 

 
c. Up to five percent (5%) of the lot area may be used for the non-commercial 

unenclosed storage of materials or items necessary for the operation and 
maintenance of the household provided; however, that such storage shall be 
confined to the rear half of the property and be maintained in a neat and orderly 
manner.  Such storage shall be maintained a minimum of seven (7) feet from the 
nearest property line; however, this distance may be waived if the adjacent 
property is shielded by an opaque fence or wall a minimum of six (6) feet in 
height.  Nothing in this section shall be construed to restrict the storage of 
firewood for use by the occupants of the household. 
 

d. Signs: As provided in the section of this Zoning Ordinance entitled “R1 - 
Residence One District.” 
 

e. Allowed are fences and free-standing walls with a maximum height of six (6) 
feet above ground level provided; however, that no fence or free-standing wall 
shall be constructed in such a way as to create a hazard to safety by restricting the 
view of drivers entering a street from a private drive or alley or approaching an 
intersection of two streets. 

4. Other permitted uses are those customarily accessory and incidental to the principal use 
and located on the same lot. 

 
SECTION 104.3 
USE DISTRICTS (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL) 

 
A. R2 – RESIDENCE TWO DISTRICT (MULTIPLE DWELLING UNITS UNDER ONE ROOF) 

 
1. Intent and Purpose:   To promote the development of residential areas containing, as a 

general rule, a heavier concentration of people than the R1 District, but still maintaining 
the other desirable living features thereof. 
 

2. District Stipulations and Provisions:  Supplemental to and/or supplanting the section of 
this Zoning Ordinance entitled “General Stipulations & Provisions-All Districts” as 
follows:  
 

a. The permitted uses shall be installed, operated and maintained in a manner 
commensurate with quiet family living, and all lighting shall be of a minimum 
necessary to serve the purpose for which it is intended. 
 

b. A Conditional Use Permit shall be required for any building exceeding two 
stories or thirty (30) feet in height. 

 
3. Permitted Uses:     

 



76 

a. All uses permitted in R1 District. 
 

b. Multiple living units, apartment houses and apartment hotels, provided all such 
living units permitted on any particular lot or parcel of land must be confined in 
one building. 
 

c. Structures containing five or more living units shall be permitted subject to a Use                          
Permit. 
 

4. Density and Intensity of Use: 
 

a. Use density shall be limited to seven dwelling units per gross acre. 
 

b. Where multifamily dwellings are confined to single lots, there shall be a lot area 
of no less than six thousand (6,000) square feet. 

c. There shall be a minimum lot area of two thousand (2,000) square feet per                           
dwelling unit. 
 

d. Lot coverage shall not exceed fifty percent (50%). 
 

e. Minimum lot width shall be sixty (60) feet. 
f. Front, rear and side yard setbacks shall conform to those applicable in the R1 

District. 
 

g. There shall be a minimum distance between buildings of ten (10) feet. 
 

B. R3 – RESIDENCE THREE DISTRICT (MULTIPLE DWELLING UNITS) 
 

1. Intent and Purpose:  To promote the development of residential areas containing as a 
general rule heavier concentration of people than the R1 District, but still maintaining the 
other desirable living features thereof other than the establishment of additional building 
necessitated by installation of multiple living units on lots and parcels of land. 
 

2. District Stipulations and Provisions:  Supplemental to and/or supplanting the section of 
this Zoning Ordinance entitled “General Stipulations & Provisions-All Districts” as 
follows: 
 

a. The permitted uses shall be installed, operated, and maintained in a manner           
commensurate with quiet family living, and all lighting shall be of a minimum      
necessary to serve the purpose for which it is intended. 
 

b. A Conditional Use Permit shall be required for buildings exceeding three (3) 
stories or thirty-six (36) feet in height. 

 
3. Permitted Uses: 



77 

 
a. All uses permitted in R2 Districts, except that all living units permitted on any      

particular lot or parcel of land need not be confined under one common roof. 
 

b. Structures containing five or more living units shall be permitted subject to a Use 
Permit. 

4. Density and Intensity of Use: 
 

a. Use density shall be limited to ten (10) dwelling units per gross acre. 
 

b. Where multi-family dwelling units are confined to a single lot, there shall be a lot 
area of no less than six thousand (6,000) square feet. 
 

c. There shall be a minimum lot area of one thousand (1,000) square feet per 
dwelling unit. 
 

d. Lot coverage shall not exceed fifty percent (50%). 
e. Minimum lot width shall be sixty (60) feet. 

 
f. Front, rear and side yard setbacks shall conform to those applicable in the R1 

District. 
 

C. R4 – RESIDENCE FOUR DISTRICT (TRANSITIONAL RESIDENTIAL-COMMERCIAL) 
 

1. Intent and Purpose:  Adaptable as a buffer between higher residential districts and the 
lower use districts.  While this District permits a mixture of uses, the residential features 
should be reasonably protected, particularly those in adjacent higher residential districts. 
 

2. District Stipulations and Provisions:  Supplemental to and/or supplanting the section of 
this Zoning Ordinance entitled “General Stipulations & Provisions-All Districts” as 
follows: 
 

a. The permitted uses shall be installed, operated, and maintained in a manner 
commensurate with quiet family living, and all lighting shall be of a minimum                               
necessary to serve the purpose for which it is intended. 
 

b. A Conditional Use Permit shall be required for buildings exceeding three (3) 
stories or thirty-six (36) feet in height. 

 
3. Permitted Uses: 

 
a. All uses permitted in R3 District, except that unless specifically provided herein                            

to the contrary, the following is waived: 
i. Requirement for use permit, except where such use is adjacent to a 

higher class residential district. 



78 

ii. Home occupations permitted sign in conformity to sign allowed for other                                       
uses in the District. 

b. Fraternity and sorority houses. 
 

c. Orphanages and homes for aged. 
 

d. Rooming and boarding houses. 
 

e. Hotels, motels and guest lodges. 
 

f. Hospitals or sanitariums for the treatment of human ailments, nursing or                                        
convalescent homes.  Any building so used shall be not less than fifty (50) feet                               
from any adjoining property.  These uses shall be subject to a use permit. 
 

g. Nursery schools subject to a use permit. 
 

h. Private clubs and lodges, provided the chief activity is not a service                      
customarily carried on as a business.  A dining room and/or bar may be operated                            
incidental thereto for the benefit only of the members and their guests, and                                    
provided no sign shall be displayed in connection with such accessory use, 
except the name thereof. 
 

i. Mobile/Manufactured Home Developments when the R4 District is combined 
with a “T” District, subject to a site plan review and approval by the Zoning 
Inspector, and/or Planning and Zoning Commission and the issuance of a use 
permit.  Non-compliance with the use permit and site plan will be cause for 
revocation of the Use Permit. 
 

j. Revival tents and buildings. 
 

k. Radio and transmitter stations and tower for automatic transmitting, wherein only                          
maintenance personnel are employed, and provided further that no tower shall be 
located closer than its height to any adjacent property or public right-of-way. 
 

l. Offices wherein professional, administrative, clerical and/or sales services only                             
are rendered, subject to a use permit. 
 

m. The following uses when conducted within a residence by the occupant thereof, 
and allowing two employees, not members of the household: 

i. Beauty and barber and massage. 
ii. Hand binding and tooling. 

iii. Photographic and art. 
iv. Teaching of individual or class instruction of the fine arts. 
v. Tailoring, including hand cleaning and spotting only. 

vi. Cleaner pick-up. 
vii. Clock, radio, television, precision and musical instruments; optical. 

 
n. Signs: The following supplements sign permission from R3 District 

i. On Site Signs:  Single or double-faced signs identifying the use and/or                                            
occupants thereof. 



79 

a) Limited to a total aggregate panel area for such signs of one 
hundred twenty (120) square feet, except that same may be 
increased up to two hundred (200) square feet at the rate of one 
square foot of panel area for each lineal foot of lot width in 
excess of one hundred (100) feet.   No one panel area shall 
exceed sixty (60) square feet. 

b) Signs exceeding six (6) square feet of panel area limited to an 
eight (8) foot minimum bottom height and a twelve (12) foot 
maximum top height. 

c) Placing of such signs other than flush to or forward of the front 
of the main building shall require the securing of a Use Permit. 

ii. Structures containing five or more living units shall be permitted subject 
to a Use Permit. 

 
4. Density and Intensity of Use: 

 
a. Use density shall be limited to twenty (20) dwelling units per gross acre. 
 
b. Where multifamily dwellings are confined to single lots, there shall be a lot area 

of no less than six thousand (6,000) square feet. 
 
c. There shall be a minimum lot area of eight hundred (800) square feet per 

dwelling unit. 
 
d. Lot coverage shall not exceed fifty percent (50%). 
 
e. Minimum lot width shall be sixty (60) feet. 
 
f. Front, rear and side yard setbacks shall conform to those applicable in the R1 

District. 
 
g. There shall be a minimum space between buildings of ten (10) feet for buildings 

up to two stories in height and an additional ten (10) feet for each additional 
story. 

 
D. TRANSITIONAL RESIDENTIAL (TR) 

 
1. Intent and Purpose:  

 
a. To provide a degree of flexibility in land use in transitional areas where a mixture 

of residential and light commercial uses will be beneficial. 
 
b. To allow for certain mixed-use developments subject to an approved site plan, 

provided such developments shall be in harmony with, and will result in a 
minimum disruption to, surrounding uses. 

 



80 

c. To create transitional zones to serve as buffers between residential districts and 
commercial or industrial districts. 

 
2. District Stipulations: Shall conform to the stipulations of the Residence One District, 

with the following exceptions or additional provisions: 
 

a. Retail, service and professional uses established within this District shall be 
limited to those primarily concerned with serving the incidental daily needs of 
adjacent residential uses. 
 

b. Non-residential uses shall be conducted within a completely enclosed building. 
c. No use shall be conducted in such a manner as to constitute an explosion or fire 

hazard, nor shall there be emitted into the atmosphere smoke, radiation, odor, 
dust, noise, vibration, heat, glare, or toxic fumes to such an extent as to constitute 
a nuisance. 
 

d. No commercial activity shall be permitted between the hours of 11:00 P.M. and 
6:00 A.M. 
 

e. Outdoor lighting for non-residential uses shall be hooded or shielded so as to 
deflect light away from adjacent residential area. 

f. No outdoor area lighting shall be permitted between the hours of 11:00 P.M. and 
6:00 A.M. except for a minimum necessary to provide for security and public 
safety. 
 

g. Signage: 
i. The provisions of the Residence Four District shall apply to signs 

identifying non-single family residential uses.  
ii. No illuminated signs identifying non-residential uses shall be permitted 

between the hours or 11:00 P.M. and 6 A.M. 
iii. Additional or modified signage subject to an approved Development 

Plan. 
 

3. Development Plan: Application for a change to the TR zoning classification or for a 
permit for construction or site work related to multi-family, commercial, professional or 
mixed use shall be subject to the approval by the Zoning Inspector or Board of 
Supervisors, as appropriate, of a Development Plan.  
 

a. Application for approval of a Development Plan shall be made on a form 
provided for such purpose by the Community Development Division and shall be 
accompanied by maps, drawings and such other materials necessary to show the 
following: 

i. A site plan, drawn to scale, showing the location and proposed use of all 
site improvements. 



81 

ii. On-site parking arrangements, including loading areas. 
iii. Signage provisions for all proposed uses. 
iv. The location and treatment of landscaped areas. 
v. The purposed off-site circulation pattern including, as appropriate, right-

of-way dedications, street improvements, traffic control measures, 
location and design of driveway openings, acceleration/deceleration 
lanes. 

vi. Such additional information as the Zoning Inspector may deem necessary 
to evaluate the impact of the proposed development on surrounding uses. 
 

4. Permitted Uses: 
 

a. All uses permitted in the Residence Three District subject to the provisions of the 
section of this Zoning Ordinance entitled “Use Districts (Multi-Family 
Residential”, subsection “Density and Intensity of Use.”  

 
b. Mobile/Manufactured Home Developments when the TR District is combined 

with the T District. 
 
c. Administrative, professional and executive offices. 
 
d. Financial institutions. 
 
e. Medical, dental and related health services for humans, along with the sale of 

articles clearly incidental to the services. 
 
f. Public utility service offices. 
 
g. General retail business establishments engaged in selling goods and services to 

the public provided that the gross floor area of such establishments shall not 
exceed 2,500 square feet. 

h. Specialty bakeries, confectionery and specialty food establishments with limited 
on-site food consumption. 

 
i. Arts and crafts galleries and sales. 
 
j. Bed and breakfast establishments under the provisions of the section of this 

Zoning Ordinance entitled “Use Districts (General Single Family Residential)”, 
subsection “R1-Residence One District (Single Dwelling Units)”, sub-sub section 
“Uses Subject to a Conditional Use Permit”, but not subject to a Conditional Use 
Permit. 

 
k. Home occupations and cottage industries. 
 



82 

l. Churches, convents and parish houses. 
 
m. Private and semi-public golf courses when developed in conjunction with an 

approved residential development. 
 

5. Uses Subject to a Use Permit: Shall be the same as the provisions of the Residence One 
District. 
 

6. Uses Subject to a Conditional Use Permit: Shall be the same as the provisions of the 
Residence One District. 
 

7. Temporary Uses:  Subject to the provisions of the section of this Zoning Ordinance 
entitled “General Stipulations & Provisions-All Districts,” subsection “Temporary Uses.” 

 
SECTION 104.4 
USE DISTRICTS (COMMERCIAL) 
 

A. C1 - COMMERCIAL ONE DISTRICT (NEIGHBORHOOD CONVENIENCE DISTRICT) 
 

1. Intent and Purpose:   To accommodate only those small-scale retail and service 
establishments which are directly concerned with serving the incidental daily 
convenience needs of immediately adjacent residential area.  The size of any C1 area 
should be limited to that area necessary to serve a given neighborhood and should be 
developed contiguously.  All neighborhood commercial areas should be located and 
developed in a manner to complement and be compatible with the residential character of 
the neighborhood. 

 
2. District Stipulations and Provisions:  Supplemental to and/or supplanting the section of 

this Zoning Ordinance entitled “General Stipulations & Provisions-All Districts” as 
follows: 

 
a. A shopping center or contiguous commercial area developed under the provisions 

of this section shall be limited to a maximum site area (gross land area) of four 
(4) acres and maximum gross floor area of thirty thousand (30,000) square feet. 

 
b. All operations and storage shall be conducted within a completely enclosed 

building or within an area enclosed by an opaque wall or fence six (6) feet high, 
or by an approved landscaping screen. 

 
c. There shall be a six (6) foot high opaque wall, fence, or approved landscape 

screen along rear and/or side property lines adjacent to any residential district. 
 
d. All outdoor lighting shall be hooded or shielded so as to deflect light away from 

adjacent residential districts. 
 
e. No use shall be conducted in such a manner as to constitute an explosion or fire 

hazard, nor shall there be emitted into the atmosphere smoke, dust, radiation, 
odor, noise, vibration, heat, glare, or toxic fumes to such an extent as to 
constitute a nuisance. 



83 

 
f. Sales of junk as defined in the section of this Zoning Ordinance entitled 

“Definitions” shall be prohibited within the boundaries of this District. 
 
g. No commercial activity shall be permitted between the hours of 11:00PM and              

6:00AM, except for a minimum necessary to provide for security and public                 
safety. 

 
h. No outdoor area lighting or illuminated signs shall be permitted between the                                 

hours of 11:00PM and 6:00AM, except for a minimum necessary to provide for                            
security and public safety. 

 
i. The sale of intoxicating beverages shall be restricted to that for off-site 

consumption only. 
 
3. Permitted Uses: 
 

a. Retail establishments selling a line of convenience goods similar to that of 
supermarkets, but more limited in scale. 

 
b. Service establishments classified by S.I.C. two-digit code numbers as follows: 

 
72 Personal Services (Beauty & Barber Shops; Laundromats, etc)  
73 Business Services (Janitorial and Secretarial Services, Pest Control etc.) 
76  Miscellaneous Repair Services 
80 Health Services 
81 Legal Services 
82 Educational Services 
84  Museums, Art Galleries, Botanical & Zoological Gardens 
89. Miscellaneous Services (Tax Services and Similar) 

 
c. Insurance agencies and real estate sales and brokerage offices. 

 
4. Uses Subject to a Use Permit: 
 

a. Banks, credit unions and personal finance companies. 
b. Gasoline service stations, subject to the following: 

i. Facilities for tire changing and repair, polishing, greasing, washing and 
minor repair and servicing of motor vehicles shall be entirely within an 
enclosed building. 

 
c. Structures shall be of a design that is appropriate to the area in which they are 

constructed. 
i. Such other limitations as the Zoning Inspector may deem appropriate to 

insure harmony with the surrounding neighborhood. 
 



84 

d. Retail trade establishments classified by S.I.C. two-digit code numbers as 
follows: 

 
52 Building Materials 
56 Apparel and Accessory Stores 
57 Furniture, Home Furnishings and Equipment Stores 
58 Eating and Drinking Places 

 
e. Service establishments classified by S.I.C. two-digit code numbers as follows: 

 
78 Motion Pictures 
79 Amusement and Recreation Services, except Motion Pictures 
83 Social Services 
86 Memberships Organizations (Churches, Lodges, and similar) 

 
5. Signs: (See the section of this Zoning Ordinance entitled “General Stipulations & 

Provisions-All Districts”). The following supplements sign permission from R4 District: 
 

a. On Site Signs: (Single or double-faced signs identifying the use and/or occupants 
thereof): 

i. Limited to a total aggregate panel area for all such signs of 200 sq. ft. 
except that same may be increased at the rate of one square foot of panel 
area for each lineal foot of lot width in excess of 50 feet, and provided 
that directional signs not exceeding 6 square feet of panel area shall not 
be counted against aggregate panel area.  No one panel area to exceed 
100 square feet. 

ii. Limited to 20 ft. maximum height and any sign portion extending into 
any required yard or parking area limited to a minimum 10 ft. bottom 
height and provided further that any directional sign shall be limited to a 
6-foot maximum height. 

iii. May be illuminated except that any direct illumination must be located 
flush to or forward of the front of the main building and is limited to a 
maximum transformer capacity of a constant 30 MA. 

iv. No sign other than a flush sign, all parts of which are on the front of the 
main building, shall be closer than 25 feet to a residential district. 

 
6. Yards Required (Except as required under the section of this Zoning Ordinance entitled 

“General Stipulations & Provisions-All Districts” as follows: 
 

a. Front: A minimum of twenty (20) feet from any street. 
 

b. Side: None; provided, however, that no building shall be closer than twenty (20) 
feet to any residential district or any side street or intervening alley.  

 
c. Rear: A minimum of twenty (20) feet. 



85 

7. Parking:   Subject to the provisions of the section of this Zoning Ordinance entitled 
“General Stipulations & Provisions-All Districts,” subsection “Off-Street Parking.” 

 
8. Building Height:   No building shall exceed a height of two stories or thirty (30) feet. 
 
9. Building Density:   The total gross area of all buildings shall not exceed fifty percent 

(50%) of the total area of the lot. 
 

B. C2 – COMMERCIAL TWO DISTRICT (INTERMEDIATE COMMERCIAL) 
 

1. Intent and Purpose: To permit most types of commercial activities oriented to a larger 
segment of population than the average neighborhood.  This District is designed for 
cluster application along major streets or highways.  Although uses within this District 
should be operated in such a manner as to be compatible with surrounding residential 
uses, this District is not intended for mixed residential and commercial uses. 

 
2. District Stipulations and Provisions:  Supplemental to and/or supplanting the section of 

this Zoning Ordinance entitled “General Stipulations & Provisions-All Districts” as 
follows: 

 
a. Shopping center development within this District shall be limited to 150,000 

square feet of gross leasable area on sites no larger than twenty-five (25) gross 
acres. 

 
b. All operations and storage shall be conducted within a completely enclosed 

building or within an area contained by an opaque six (6) foot high wall, fence, 
or approved landscape screen. 

 
c. There shall be a six (6) foot high opaque wall, fence, or approved landscape 

screen on rear and side property lines adjacent to any residential district. 
 
d. All outdoor lighting shall be hooded or shielded so as to deflect light away from 

adjacent residential districts. 
 
e. No use shall be conducted in such a manner as to constitute an explosion or fire 

hazard, nor shall there be emitted into the atmosphere smoke, dust, radiation, 
odor, noise, vibration, heat, glare, or toxic fumes to such an extent as to 
constitute a nuisance. 

 
f. Sales of junk as outlined in the section of this Zoning Ordinance entitled 

“Definitions” shall be prohibited within the boundaries of this District. 
 
3. Permitted Uses:   

 



86 

a. All uses allowed in the C1 District. 
 
b. Retail sales of apparel and accessories; shoes; dry goods; foods; drugs and 

pharmaceutical; flowers and gardening supplies; hobby and craft supplies; 
jewelry; package liquor; music, records and related products; books, magazines, 
stationery and related products; paints, wallpaper and glass; sporting goods; toys; 
variety store goods; similar convenience goods which can be displayed and sold 
in accordance with the District stipulations. 

 
c. Office building uses related to any of the following: Government; executive; 

administrative; professional; accounting; estate; research; design and sales; 
banking, savings and loan, stock brokerage and related financial services. 

 
d. Health services such as hospital, clinics, medical and dental offices, veterinary 

clinics, nursing homes, and homes for the aged. 
 
e. Establishments serving food or beverages, indoors or out-of-doors, including 

entertainment and dancing, but excluding drive-in and carry-out services (see 4b, 
below). 

 
f. Repair and construction service establishments having enclosed workshop 

combined with retail outlet or office, such as heating and plumbing, equipment, 
electrical fixtures and service, air conditioning, custom upholstering and furniture 
repair, auto body, tire retreading, tool sharpening, sign painting, auto, boat and 
truck parts, and similar activities no more objectionable in character. 

 
g. Commercial recreation enterprises such as golf driving ranges, miniature golf, 

bowling alleys. 
 
h. Signs:  (See the section of this Zoning Ordinance entitled “General Stipulations 

& Provisions-All Districts,” subsection “Signs.”  The following supplements sign 
permission from C1 District: 

 
i. On Site Signs: Single or double-faced signs identifying the use and/or 

occupants thereof: 
a) Limited to a total aggregate panel area for all such signs of three 

hundred (300) square feet, except that same may be increased at 
the rate of one (1) square foot of panel area for each lineal foot 
of lot width in excess of fifty (50) feet, and provided that 
directional signs not exceeding six (6) square feet of panel area 
shall not be counted against aggregate panel area.  No one panel 
area shall exceed one hundred (100) square feet. 



87 

b) Limited to twenty (20) feet maximum height, and any sign 
portion extending into any required yard or parking area limited 
to a minimum ten (10) feet bottom height. 

c) May be illuminated, except any direct illumination is limited to a 
maximum transformer capacity of thirty (30) MA. 

d) No sign other than a flush sign, all parts of which are on the front 
of the main building, shall be closer than twenty-five (25) feet to 
a residential district. 

ii. Deleted on February 5, 1998. 
 

4. Uses Subject to Use Permits:   
 
a. Indoor or outdoor sales or rental of new and used autos, trucks, boats, mobile/ 

manufactured homes, trailers, agricultural implements, lumber, lawn furniture, 
nursery stock and home gardening supplies and equipment; provided that no 
sales, rentals or displays are performed in the required front setback. 

 
b. Drive-in establishments, including eating and drinking places and car washes; 

provided that all structures are architecturally compatible with the area in which 
they are constructed. 

 
c. Hotels and motels, subject to the following: 

i. All direct vehicular access shall be from an abutting arterial street or 
highway. 

ii. Paved areas shall be reduced to the smallest area commensurate with 
efficient operation and function of the site.  All unpaved areas shall be 
maintained in lawns, landscaping, or recreational areas. 

 
d. Gasoline service station, subject to the following: 

i. Facilities for tire changing and repair, polishing, greasing, washing and 
minor repair and servicing of motor vehicles shall be entirely within an 
enclosed building.  

ii. All structures shall be of unique design that is appropriate to the area in 
which they are constructed. 

iii. Paved areas shall be reduced to the smallest area commensurate with 
efficient operation and function of the site.  All unpaved areas shall be 
maintained in lawns and landscaping.  The frontage to any street shall be 
landscaped to a minimum depth of fifteen (15) feet from the right-of-way 
line.  Drives of maximum width of thirty-three (33) feet may penetrate 
frontage landscaping. 

iv. Minimum lot size is twenty-two thousand five hundred (22,500) square 
feet, and minimum frontage is two hundred (200) feet. 



88 

v. All sources of artificial light shall be concealed from view, except for 
free standing standards, which shall have translucent covers so as to 
diffuse the light and eliminate glare. 

 
e. Drive-in theaters, provided that: 

i. The screen surface is not visible from the street. 
ii. All direct vehicle access is from an abutting arterial street or highway. 

 
5. Yards Required (Except as required under the section of this Zoning Ordinance entitled 

“General Stipulations & Provisions-All Districts.”  Same as C1 District. 
 

6. Building Height: A Conditional Use Permit shall be required for any building exceeding 
three (3) stories or thirty-six (36) feet in height.  Further, no building exceeding two (2) 
stories or thirty (30) feet in height shall be permitted within three hundred (300) feet of 
any residential district. 

 
7. Building Density: The total of all buildings shall not exceed an area greater than fifty 

percent (50%) of the total lot area. 
 

C. C3 – COMMERCIAL THREE DISTRICT (CENTRAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT)  
 
1. Intent and Purpose: To provide a district wherein a full range of sales, services, and office 

uses are permitted, and wherein the density of traffic and building area are not 
conducive to residential development. 

 
2. District Stipulations and Provisions:  Supplemental to and/or supplanting the section of 

this Zoning Ordinance entitled “General Stipulations & Provisions-All Districts” as 
follows: 

a. There shall be a six (6) foot high opaque wall, fence, or approved landscape 
screen adjacent to any residential district. 

 
b. All outdoor lighting shall be hooded or shielded so as to deflect light away from 

any residential district or public right-or-way within two hundred (200) feet of 
said lighting. 

 
c. No use shall be operated in such a manner as to be an explosion or fire hazard, 

nor shall there be emitted into the atmosphere any smoke, soot, dust, radiation, 
odor, noise, vibration, heat, glare, or toxic fumes to such an extent as to 
constitute a nuisance. 

 
d. Sales of junk as outlined in the section of this Zoning Ordinance entitled 

“Definitions” shall not be conducted within three hundred (300) feet of any 
residential district; further, such sales shall be conducted within a fully enclosed 
building or within an area shielded by a six (6) foot high opaque wall, fence, or 
approved landscape screen. 



89 

 
3. Permitted Uses: 
 

a. All uses allowed within the C2 District, with the exception that the following 
requirements shall be waived: 

i. Requirement for a use permit. 
 
b. Multiple family dwellings or efficiency apartments provided that such are located 

above the first floor of commercial buildings. 
 
c. Wholesaling, warehousing, and enclosed storage of food, household goods, and 

equipment; refrigerated warehousing; food lockers, general storage. 
d. Commercial parking lots and garages. 
 
e. Restaurants, nightclubs, and related activities, with on-site consumption of 

alcoholic beverages. 
 
f. Body and fender work within a fully enclosed building, and related storage of 

vehicles and parts within a yard enclosed by a six (6) foot high opaque wall or 
fence or approved landscape screen. 

g. Sexually oriented business, Subject to the provisions of Section 103.11. 
 
4. On-Site Signs: Requirements shall be the same as those set forth in the “C2 District.”  

[See “Off-Site Signs (Billboards)” requirements-below.]  
5. Uses Permitted Subject to a Conditional Use Permit: 
 

a. Facilities for the dismantling of automobiles and sale of used auto parts, with the 
further stipulation that such activity shall not be permitted within three hundred 
(300) feet of any residential district. 

 
b. Sales of liquid petroleum gas, with the further provision that no above-ground 

storage tank in excess of one hundred (100) gallon capacity may be located 
within  three hundred (300) feet of any residential district, hospital, school, or 
public facility. 

 
c. Off-Site Signs (Billboards):  Single or double-faced off-site signs may be 

permitted on a lot subject to the following conditions and restrictions: 
i. Off-site signs shall be located only along arterial roads that are 

designated as State highways. 
ii. Off-site signs shall not be located within 200 feet of a residential zone. 

iii. No such sign shall be located in any block in which the front third of any 
of the lots used for residential purposes comprise 50% or more of the 
block frontage. 



90 

iv. Off-site signs shall not be located within 1500 feet of another off-site 
sign. 

v. Off-site signs shall not be located within 50 feet of any on-site 
freestanding sign located along the same side of the street.  A site plan 
shall be required noting the proposed signs relation to existing signage 
and to insure the proposed sign will not impede the visibility of existing 
signage. 

vi. Off-site signs shall not be located on a designated scenic route. 
vii. Off-site signs shall not encroach upon or overhang any public right-of-

way or adjacent property.  In addition, off-site signs shall be setback a 
minimum of three feet from any structure or building on the same parcel 
and a minimum of three feet from any adjacent property line.  Refer to 
Construction Standards Matrix for Off-Site Signs for additional 
information. 

viii. Off-site signs shall comply with Gila County’s Dark Sky Ordinance and 
all applicable Building Codes and Regulations in place at the time of 
permit issuance. 

ix. Approval from the Arizona Department of Transportation shall be 
received prior to the issuance of any Gila County sign or building 
permits. 

x. It shall be the policy of Gila County to disallow rezoning of a property 
solely for the purpose of installing off-site signage. 

xi. In addition to the provisions of Section 103.8 – Signs, all off-site signs 
shall conform to the Construction Standards Matrix for Off-Site Signs. 

 

 Construction Standards Matrix for Off-Site Signs (Billboards): 
 

 
Highway Speed Limit 

 
Maximum Height 

 
Maximum Panel Area 

 
R.O.W. Setbacks 

 
0 to 35 MPH 

 
20 feet 

 
72 sq. feet 

 
10 feet 

 
 36 to 55 MPH 

 
 22 feet 

 
 144 sq. feet 

 
 10 feet 

 
 56 to 75 MPH 

 
 24 feet 

 
 301 sq. feet 

 
 10 feet 

 
 76 MPH and up 

 
To be determined in 
the future if / as 
necessary 

 
 

 
 

  
d. Other uses compatible with the intent and purpose of the District but not 

specifically enumerated herein. 
i. Yard Required: There shall be no minimum yard requirement, with the 

exception that no structure except a required fence or wall may be closer 
than twenty (20) feet from any residential district. 

ii. Building Height: Buildings exceeding three stories or forty (40) feet in 
height shall be subject to a Conditional Use Permit.  Further, no building 



91 

exceeding two stories or thirty (30) feet in height shall be permitted 
within three hundred (300) feet of any residential district. 

iii. Building Density: There shall be no restriction on building density, 
provided, however, that all parking requirements for the permitted uses 
are met. 

 
SECTION 104.5 
USE DISTRICTS (INDUSTRIAL) 
 

A. M1 – INDUSTRIAL ONE DISTRICT (LIGHT INDUSTRY) 
 

1. Intent and Purpose: To provide the type of industrial uses which, while not necessarily 
attractive in operational appearance, such use is conducted in a manner so as not to cause 
inconvenience to neighboring properties. 
 

2. District Stipulations and Provisions:  Supplemental to and/or supplanting the section of 
this Zoning Ordinance entitled “General Stipulations & Provisions-All Districts” as 
follows: 
 

a. No use shall be operated in such a manner as to be an explosion or fire hazard; 
nor shall there be emitted into the atmosphere any smoke, soot, dust, radiation, 
odor, noise, vibration, heat, glare, or toxic fumes to such an extent as to 
constitute a nuisance. 

 
b. Residential uses, other than one dwelling unit for occupancy by caretaker and 

family, are discouraged and shall be permitted under a use permit only where it is 
shown that such permission will not cause a shortage of land for future industrial 
development. 

 
3. Permitted Uses: 

 
a. All uses permitted in C3 District, except residential, and except that, unless 

specifically provided herein to the contrary, the following limitations are waived: 
i. Use permits. 

ii. Maximum area to be occupied by any use. 
iii. Confining any use to closed buildings. 

 
b. All industrial uses wherein the operation of such complies with the “Intent and 

Purpose” and “Stipulation” of this District and do not impose hazard to health or 
property in the neighborhood. 

i. Where uncertainty exists as to compliance with the “Intent and Purpose” 
and “Stipulations,” the Board of Adjustment shall determine. 

 
c. Fences or free-standing walls. 

 



92 

d. Medical Marijuana Dispensaries, and/or Medical Marijuana Dispensary Offsite 
Cultivation Locations are subject to securing a Conditional Use Permit and the 
related provisions of the section in this Zoning Ordinance entitled “Application 
Procedures,” subsection “Conditional Uses and Conditional Use Permits.” 
 

e. Medical Marijuana Infusion (or Manufacturing) Facility Subject to the following: 
i. Applicant shall provide: 

a) Name(s) and location(s) of the offsite dispensary; 
b) a copy of the operating procedures adopted in compliance with 

A.R.S. §36-2804(B)(1)(c); and  
c) a survey sealed by a registrant of the State of Arizona showing 

the location of the nearest medical marijuana dispensary or 
cultivation location if within 1,500 feet. 

ii. The facility shall not be located within 1,500 feet of the same type of use. 
This distance shall be measured from the exterior walls of the building or 
portion thereof in which the businesses are conducted or proposed to be 
conducted. 

iii. The facility shall not be located within 1,500 feet of a residentially zoned 
property. This distance shall be measured in a straight line from the 
exterior walls of the building or portion thereof in which the businesses 
are conducted or proposed to be conducted to the zoning boundary line 
of the residentially zoned property. 

iv. The facility shall not be located within 1,500 feet of a preschool, 
kindergarten, elementary, secondary or high school, place of worship, 
public park, or public community center.  

v. This distance shall be measured in a straight line from the exterior walls 
of the building or portion thereof in which the business is conducted or 
proposed to be conducted to the property line of the protected use. 

vi. Medical Marijuana Infusion may be a part of a dispensary or cultivation 
location for a dispensary 

vii. There shall be no emission of dust, fumes, vapors, or odors into the 
environment from the facility. 

 
4. Signs:   Requirements shall be the same as set forth in the C3 District. 

 
5. Yard and Height Requirements (except as required under the section of this Zoning 

Ordinance entitled “General Stipulations & Provisions-All Districts:”  None, except 
installations storing and/or dispensing inflammable fuels shall maintain such setbacks as 
required in the C3 District. 

 
B. M2 – INDUSTRIAL TWO DISTRICT (HEAVY INDUSTRIAL) 

 
1. Intent and Purpose: To provide all types of commercial and industrial uses except that 

controls may be imposed to minimize air pollution, radiation, and/or explosion dangers. 



93 

 
2. District Stipulations and Provisions:  Supplemental to and/or supplanting the section of 

this Zoning Ordinance entitled “General Stipulations & Provisions-All Districts” as 
follows: 
 

a. Residential uses, other than one dwelling unit for occupancy by caretaker and 
family, are prohibited. 

 
3. Permitted Uses: 

 
a. All uses permitted in the M1 District. 

 
b. All commercial or industrial uses and accessory uses, except that the Zoning 

Inspector must deny permission where a proposed use will cause to be exhausted 
or emitted into the air pollutants such as smoke, soot, dust, gases or toxic fumes, 
or where there is latent radiation or explosion danger within or without the 
District. 

i. In the event the Zoning Inspector denies a use for the reasons stated, an 
application may be filed to the Planning and Zoning Commission for a 
Conditional Use Permit.  Each use requested shall be considered on its 
merits as to how the area shall be affected and, if granted, such 
stipulations may be invoked so as to maintain consideration for the 
promotion and protection of public health, peace, safety, comfort, 
convenience and general welfare. 

a) Such application must be heard by the Commission within thirty 
(30) days following such application, but after first receiving a 
report and recommendation from the Building Inspector and 
Health Officer. 

b) The procedure of application, notice and schedule of fees shall 
be the same as that required for hearings on rezoning 
applications by the Board and Commission. The notice postings 
may designate the hearing date for the Commission. 

c) Any person aggrieved in any manner by any such Conditional 
Use Permit may, within thirty (30) days, appeal to the Board of 
Supervisors. 

 
4. Yard and Height Requirements (except as required under the section of this Zoning 

Ordinance entitled “General Stipulations & Provisions-All Districts”):  None, except that 
installations storing and/or dispensing inflammable fuels shall maintain such setbacks as 
required in the C3 District. 

 
C. M3 – INDUSTRIAL THREE DISTRICT (UNRESTRICTED INDUSTRIAL) 

 
1. Intent and Purpose: To provide all types of commercial or industrial uses without 

restrictions.  



94 

 
2. District Stipulations and Provisions:  Supplemental to and/or supplanting the section of 

this Zoning Ordinance entitled “General Stipulations & Provisions-All Districts.”  
Residential uses, other than one dwelling unit for occupancy by caretaker and family, are 
prohibited. 

3. Permitted Uses: All commercial or industrial uses and accessory uses. 
 

4. Yard and Height Requirements (except as required under the section of this Zoning 
Ordinance entitled “General Stipulations & Provisions-All Districts”):  None. 

 
SECTION 104.6  
USE DISTRICTS (OVERLAY) 
 
The following are “performance” type districts, and do not maintain any positions with respect to the 
other use districts. 

A. PAD – PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT  
 

1. Definition:  The PAD District is an alternative to conventional land use regulations, 
substituting procedural protections for the requirements in the Zoning Ordinance. The 
PAD District is an overlay district that shall be used only in conjunction with other 
zoning districts described in this Zoning Ordinance, but which will allow flexibility in the 
requirements of the underlying zone and shall require approval by the Board of 
Supervisors of a specific plan of development. 

 
2. Intent and Purpose:  Gila County recognizes that in certain instances the objectives of the 

Zoning Ordinance may be best achieved by development of planned areas which may not 
conform in all respects to the underlying zoning district.  Gila County further has 
determined that in the best interests of the health, welfare and safety of the citizens of 
Gila County, specific planned communities can provide better alternatives for some land 
development than the conventional zoning districts.  The purpose of the PAD District is 
to encourage imaginative and innovative planning of neighborhoods, particularly with 
respect to diversification in the use of the land and flexibility in site design with respect 
to various features, including but not limited to, spacing, heights, density, open space, 
circulation, preservation of natural features, and innovation in residential development 
that results in the availability of a variety of housing opportunities, both in terms of 
afford-ability and lifestyle to all citizens and guests of Gila County; and to ensure the 
establishment of developments consistent with the goals and objectives of the Board of 
Supervisors of Gila County.  All townhouse, condominium, and time-shares, together 
with resort, recreational and commercial activities directly related thereto shall only be in 
a Planned Area Development District.   

 
3. Location:   A PAD may be established in any zoning district upon a finding that such a 

development would comply with the intent of this section of the Zoning Ordinance and 
that the PAD substantially complies with any previously approved area plans, by virtue of 
its unique character, topography or other features.  If a proposed project requires 
rezoning, a request may be considered by the Planning and Zoning Commission 
simultaneously with its consideration of the development plan 

 
4. Application Requirements:   Each application for approval of a PAD District shall be 

filed in accordance with the provisions of Section 105 of this Zoning Ordinance.  In 
addition to the filing fee established for amendments, an additional fee of $500.00 shall 



95 

be paid by the applicant for processing the PAD request.  The application shall be 
accompanied by such information and representations required by this Zoning Ordinance 
or deemed necessary by the Zoning Inspector which together shall comprise the 
application package.   

 
5. Development Plan:  The rezoning application shall be accompanied by a Development 

Plan which shall consist of: 
 

a. The proposed development shall be drawn at sufficient scale so as to not exceed a 
print size greater than 24” x 36.”  Lettering shall be of sufficient size to be 
reasonably legible when reduced to an 8 ½” x 11” clear print. 

 
b. Title of the project, such as “Planned Area Development for_________” in bold 

faced letters. 
  
c. Name of the landowner, developer, applicant and the firm or person who 

prepared the plan. 
 
d. North arrow, scale (written and graphic), and dates of plan preparation and 

subsequent revision dates. 
 
e. Inset vicinity map showing the relationship of the proposed project to existing 

area developments and surrounding zoning districts. 
 
f. Legal description of the entire property. 
 
g. Delineate and dimension by bearing and distance the exact boundaries of the 

proposed development. 
h. Show existing perimeter streets, including center lines, names, dimensions of 

existing dedications and proposed dedications. 
 
i. Show the general locations and scheme of proposed interior streets with proposed 

rights-of-way or easements.  All points of ingress and egress to the site must be 
shown. 

 
j. Indicate the general location of proposed residential areas and types of housing 

proposed for each area.  Show and label areas of open space, public areas, 
drainage areas and any proposed facilities such as golf courses, parks, recreation 
center, sewage treatment facilities. 

 
k. Indicate who will own, control and maintain landscaping, open areas, streets, 

recreation facilities, refuse disposal and private utility systems. 
 
l. Show typical lots for each dwelling type, including typical lots in cul-de-sacs, on 

corners and in any unusual location.  Show the arrangement of units which will 
be clustered, if applicable.  These typical lots should show the building envelope, 



96 

the proposed minimum setbacks, the minimum lot dimensions and individual 
walls and fences. 

 
m. Indicate the location and width of any existing roadway or utility easements on 

the property. 
 
n. Show existing contours; contour interval to vary according to grades as follows:  

grades up to 5%, 2’; over 5% to 10%, 5’; over 10%, 10’. 
o. Indicate the general direction of storm water runoff.  Identify by note or notes the 

existing drainage pattern and the proposed drainage plans for handling onsite and 
offsite storm water runoff.  A preliminary drainage report will be required at the 
time of filing the tentative/preliminary plat. 

 
p. Indicate the locations, type, height and material of proposed perimeter fences 

and/or walls.  All proposed signs should also be located, identified and 
dimensioned. 

 
q. Note the general location and type of existing and proposed landscaping on the 

site. 
 
r. Show phase lines, if applicable. 

 
 

 
6. Development Plan Data: 

 
a. Land Use Table or Tables to include the following: 

i. Total gross acreage of site. 
ii. Total area of the streets, public and private. 

iii. Total area of public open space, if applicable. 
iv. Total area of open space which is designed for the exclusive use of the 

residents of the PAD area who receive an undivided ownership of such 
areas. 

v. Maximum allowable density permitted under base zoning district. 
vi. Total number of each dwelling type and the total number of all dwelling 

units. 
vii. Average lot area per dwelling unit. 

viii. The overall density proposed.                       
 
b. A table which compares the requirements of the existing zoning, the 

requirements of the base zoning requested, and the variations proposed under the 
PAD.  The table should include lot area per dwelling unit, setbacks, maximum lot 
width, maximum building height, number of stories and parking requirements.  A 
Conditional Use Permit shall be required for buildings exceeding three (3) stories 
or thirty-six (36) feet in height. 



97 

 
c. A table which lists the type and source of proposed utilities and services which 

include sewer, water, electric, telephone, police, fire, schools and solid waste 
disposal 

 
d. A table which shows the proposed rights-of-way or easements and pavement 

widths for each type of street proposed for the planned area and perimeter. 
 
7. Narrative Report:  The following information shall be included in a supporting narrative 

report: 
 

a. Title Page:  The title page should clearly indicate “Planned Area Development 
for________,” the name of the applicant and date. 

b. Purpose of Request: The first section of the report should explain why the project 
is being proposed, and why the site has been selected. 

 
c. Description of Proposals:  The character and type of development shall be 

thoroughly explained.  All of the proposed non-residential buildings and 
structures and their intended uses should be described.     

 
d. Relation to Surrounding Properties:  Surrounding land use and zoning should be 

described.  The impact of the proposal on surrounding properties in each 
direction should be discussed.  The impacts on schools should be explained.  

 
e. Location and Accessibility:  The means of access, distance from major streets 

and surrounding road conditions should be described.  Any proposed interior 
streets, drives or parking areas and proposed improvements should also be 
described. 

 
f. Timing of Development:  A section of the report should contain a schedule of 

development phasing.  
g. Public Utilities and Services:  Letters of serviceability from all public and private 

utilities and services shall be submitted with the report.  Additionally, any 
correspondence involving transportation issues shall be included.  

 
h. Maintenance of Streets and Common Areas:  The provisions for the maintenance 

of the private streets, common areas and public and private landscaped areas 
should be discussed. 

8. Waiver of Specific Submissions:   Any information required under the section of this 
Zoning Ordinance entitled “Establishment of Zones (Use and Density Districts),” 
subsection “Use Districts (Overlay),” sub-sub section PAD-Planned Area Development – 
Development Plan” may be waived by the Zoning Inspector on the basis that the 
information is not necessary to a review of the proposed PAD.  Such waiver shall be in 



98 

writing, shall specify the reasons for such waiver and shall be included in the materials 
submitted to the Planning and Zoning Commission.   

 
9. Public Hearings:  After proper application has been made for a PAD, the Planning and 

Zoning Commission and Board of Supervisors shall hold public hearings as provided in 
the section of this Zoning Ordinance entitled “Amendment Procedures.” 

 
a. The Planning and Zoning Commission and Board of Supervisors may approve 

the plan as submitted, may require the applicant to modify, alter, adjust or 
amend the plan in such manner and to such extent as it may deem appropriate to 
the public interest, or disapprove the plan.   

 
b. The Planning and Zoning Commission and Board of Supervisors may approve a 

plan even though the use of buildings and land, the location and height of 
buildings to be erected in the area, the nature of ownership, and the yards and 
open spaces contemplated by the plan do not conform in all respects to the 
regulations of the zoning district in which it is located or the plan does not 
conform in other particulars. 

 
10. Findings Required:  Before approval of an application for a PAD District, the Planning 

and Zoning Commission and the Board of Supervisors shall find that the development 
conforms to the following general criteria: 

 
a. That the location, design and size are such that the development can be well 

integrated with the surroundings; is planned and developed with the intention to 
harmonize with any existing or proposed development in the adjacent 
neighborhood; or in the case of a departure of character from surrounding uses, 
that the location and design will adequately reduce the impact of the development 
so that the project will not be detrimental to the adjacent property. 

 
b. That the streets and thoroughfares proposed are suitable and adequate to serve the 

proposed uses and the anticipated traffic which will be generated thereby and that 
proper provision for the maintenance of the streets has been provided. 

 
c. That the value of the use of the property adjacent to the area included in the plan 

will not be adversely affected to a significant extent and to this end, the Planning 
and Zoning Commission and Board of Supervisors may require, in the absence of 
an appropriate physical barrier, the uses of least intensity be arranged along the 
boundaries of the project.  As further protection to adjacent properties, the 
Planning and Zoning Commission and Board of Supervisors may impose either 
or both of the following requirements: 

i. Structures located on the perimeter of the planned development be set 
back a distance sufficient to protect the privacy and amenity of adjacent 
existing uses. 

ii. Structures located on the perimeter of the planned development be 
permanently screened in a manner sufficient to protect the privacy and 
amenity of the adjacent existing uses. 



99 

 
d. That suitable retention and drainage areas have been provided to protect the 

property and adjoining properties from hazards resulting from water falling on or 
flowing across the site, and that proper provision for maintenance of such 
retention and drainage areas has   been provided. 

 
e. That the location, design, size and uses are such that the residents or 

establishments to be accommodated will be adequately served by existing or 
planned public facilities and services.  

 
f. That the location, design, size and uses are such that traffic generated by the 

development can be accommodated safely.  
 
g. That adequate and visible refuse disposal has been provided for or exists for the 

development. 
 
11. Implementation of Plan:   
 

a. Once a plan has been approved, it can be amended, changed or modified only 
through the procedure prescribed herein for the initial application for approval.  
The Board of Adjustment may not grant any variances for an approved PAD.  

 
b. A development schedule for residential uses shall be submitted as part of the 

project plan and the construction of provision of all the common open spaces and 
public and recreational facilities which are shown on the Development Plan must 
proceed at the same rate as the construction of dwelling units.  If it is determined 
that the rate of dwelling unit construction is greater than the rate at which 
common open areas and public and recreational facilities are being constructed or 
provided, the developer will be notified that no building permits for dwelling unit 
construction will be issued until the rate of construction conforms with the 
development schedule.  

 
c. The development schedule shall provide for stage construction of the 

Development Plan.  Building permits will not be issued for any stage of the plan 
unless the common open space allocated to that stage by the development 
schedule has been conveyed to the appropriate parties. 

 
12. Minimum Planned Area Development Requirements and Limits: 

 
The following requirements and limits are mandatory for all Planned Area Developments 
and may not be waived or modified without amendment of this section by the Board of 
Supervisors. 
 



100 

a. No residential PAD, or the residential portion of any PAD including commercial, 
shall have less than fifteen (15%) percent of its gross total area allocated to open 
space or other common areas or facilities.  Streets, sidewalks and entry areas 
shall not be included in the fifteen percent.   

 
b. PADs that include manufactured home lots shall have an under-lying zone of 

MHS-Mobile/Manufactured Home Subdivision District. 
 
c. Any private streets approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission and the 

Board of Supervisors as part of a PAD shall meet the minimum requirements as 
established by Gila County Engineering Services. 

 
B. PM – PERFORMANCE INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT 

 
1. Intent and Purpose:  To promote the development and operation of certain uses, such as, 

but not limited to, laboratories, light manufacturing and assembly, in such a restricted and 
limited manner that, because of the limitations on type of structures and uses, control on 
height and density, prohibitions against open land facilities, omission of such nuisances 
as fumes, odors, noise, glare and vibration, prohibition of general retail sales and services 
or other uses that cater to the general public, and the landscaping requirements, so as to 
protect and foster residential desirability adjacent to such industries. 
 

2. District Stipulations and Provisions:  Supplemental to and/or supplanting the section of 
this Zoning Ordinance entitled “General Stipulations & Provisions-All Districts” as 
follows: 

a. Residential uses, other than one dwelling unit for occupancy by caretaker and 
family, are prohibited.   
 

b. General retail sales and service or other uses that cater to the general public are 
prohibited.  
 

c. All uses except parking, loading and unloading, as provided herein, shall be 
confined to within closed buildings. 
 

d. Space for automobile parking area shall be initially provided and kept available 
on the premises at the rate of two square feet of land area for each square foot of 
floor area.  As the development of facilities progresses, there shall be installed 
and maintained no less than one parking space for each two employees.  All 
ground area used for parking, loading, unloading, and vehicular movements shall 
be surfaced and maintained with dust-free surfacing, preferably hard surface. 

 
e. All development on any one parcel in the District must progress in accordance 

with general layout, architectural, and landscape plans for such parcel, all to be 
approved by the building inspector; the Board of Adjustment may modify the 



101 

Building Inspector’s requirements, provided such modifications do not defeat the 
intent and purpose of the District. 
 

f. All outdoor lighting shall be hooded or shielded so as to deflect the light away 
from residential districts.  Such lighting shall be the minimum required to 
illuminate the area needed to be lighted. 
 

g. No use shall be operated in such a manner as to be an explosion or fire hazard; 
nor shall there be emitted into the atmosphere any smoke, soot, dust, radiation, 
odor, noise, vibration, heat, glare, or toxic fumes to such an extent as to 
constitute the slightest nuisance. 
 

h. The first fifty (50) feet of depth adjacent to any street or street easement must be 
used for landscaping purposes, and may not contain any other uses or structure, 
except for driveways, signs and lighting, as permitted in this District. 

 
3. Permitted Uses: (provided such uses meet the intent and purpose of the District): 

 
a. Manufacturing, machining, processing, assembly, compounding, fabrication, 

mixing, baking, equipping, printing and publishing, cooking, glazing, weaving, 
knitting, and sewing. 

b. Research and testing laboratories. 
 

c. Warehouses. 
 

d. Motion picture production, radio and television studios. 
 

e. In-plant restaurants as an appurtenant use and including roof or landscaped patio 
dining facilities. 
 

f. Facilities incidental to a construction project, including storage, all located on the 
project site for a period not to exceed twelve (12) months. 
 

g. Churches or similar places of worship.  Open land recreation facilities in 
connection with such project may be permitted subject to a use permit. 
 

h. Accredited schools, colleges, universities, including dormitories, athletic fields, 
playgrounds and swimming pools on the same parcel of land.  Private school 
playgrounds, athletic fields and swimming pools are subject to securing a use 
permit. 
 

i. Public utility facilities, when necessary for serving the surrounding territory (but 
not storage yards). 



102 

j. Regulation type golf courses, but not miniature, pitch and putt courses, nor 
commercial driving ranges, and subject to securing a use permit. 
 

k. Offices wherein professional, administrative, clerical or sales (other than to the 
general public) are rendered, including management and /or realty offices 
appurtenant to an industrial subdivision and located therein. 
 

l. Publicly owned or operated buildings or properties.  
 

m. Publicly owned or operated parks and playgrounds, and other recreational uses, 
including eating and drinking sales and service establishments (which may be 
operated on a concession basis) accessory to the use of such public facility; 
provided, however, that such shall be located no closer than three hundred (300) 
feet to any adjacent property. 
 

n. Private parking space as provided for the District. 
 

o. Railroad, mining, metallurgical, or general agricultural uses on five or more 
contiguous commercial acres under one ownership.  Such uses are exempt from 
any restrictive provisions of this section. 
 

p. Customary accessory uses and buildings, including private parks and swimming 
pools, provided such are incidental to the principal use. 
 

q. Fences or free-standing walls (not to exceed eight (8) feet in height), provided 
same are not located closer than fifty (50) feet to any street or street easement 
line, except that when same are adjacent to a residential district, the height shall 
conform to the maximum height requirements for such residential property. 
 

r. Signs: As follows, which may be lighted by indirect illumination: 
i. Signs appurtenant to or identifying a permitted use of the property upon 

which displayed and subject to the following additional provisions and 
stipulations: 

a) Limited to a total overall sign area of two hundred (200) square 
feet, in addition to one name plate and necessary informational 
or directional signs; provided, however, that each such name 
plate or other accessory sign shall not exceed an area of six (6) 
square feet.  The name plate may be located at or within four (4) 
feet of a street line, provided same is unlighted and does not 
exceed a height of seven (7) feet. 

b) Any flush sign may have an area not to exceed one hundred 
sixty-eight (168) square feet.  Signs pertaining to the name of the 
operating company will not be limited in size, provided such 
signs are incorporated into the architectural design as an integral 



103 

part of the building, and shall have a minimum setback of one 
hundred fifty (150) ft. from any dedicated street or residential 
district, and shall not exceed a height of forty (40) feet above 
ground grade, and shall be subject to approval of the Zoning 
Inspector. 

c) Any free-standing or extended sign may have a sign panel area 
not to exceed eighty-four (84) square feet. 

ii. Temporary advertising signs pertaining to the sale or lease of land or 
buildings upon which property same are displayed and subject to the 
following additional provisions and stipulations: 

a) Limited to one single or double-faced or V-shaped sign for each 
300 lineal feet or fraction thereof of frontage on all street sides 
for each lot or establishment, provided no two signs on the same 
property are closer than one hundred (100) feet to each other nor 
closer than one hundred (100) feet to any residential property 
line. 

b) If the portion of the property being advertised is unimproved, 
such sign not exceeding sixty (60) square feet of panel area and 
seven (7) feet in height may be displayed up to the street line, 
provided same be no closer than one hundred (100) feet to any 
building.  Such signs, when located within one hundred (100) 
feet to developed land, must parallel the street. 

c) If the portion of the property being advertised is improved, such 
signs shall be regulated by the provisions and stipulations of 
signs appurtenant to the use of the property, except that no panel 
area may exceed eighty-four (84) feet. 

 
4. Lot Area and Dimensions:   

 
a. No lot shall hereafter be subdivided to provide less than seventy two thousand 

(72,000) square feet (commercial two acres) of area, a width of one hundred 
(100) feet, nor a depth of three hundred (300) feet, and provided further that no 
lot shall exceed a depth of six hundred fifty (650) feet, unless it can be shown 
that deeper lots will not block a future street pattern. 

 
5. Yards Required: There shall be a yard measuring from any street or street easement of 

not less than fifty (50) feet 
 

a. There shall be a side yard of not less than twenty-five (25) feet from any 
common property line or alley, except that such side yard shall measure not less 
than fifty (50) feet from any residential district boundary. 
 

b. There shall be a rear yard adjacent to any residential district of not less than fifty (50) feet 
to the residential side line and twenty-five (25) feet to the residential rear line or the rear 
alley centerline of what would be the centerline if a full alley existed. 



104 

 
6. Height Limits:  

 
a. No structure shall exceed a height of thirty (30) feet plus one (1) foot for each 

additional ten (10) feet such structure is located beyond setback lines, provided 
such height does not exceed forty (40) feet, except that towers, poles and water 
tanks necessary to serve the lot and/or the area may exceed the height limitations 
when the location of such exceeds a setback from any property line of twice its 
height. 

 
7. Building Density: The total area of all buildings shall not exceed thirty percent (30%) of 

the total area of the lot. 
 

8. Space and Between Buildings: No building shall be closer to any other building than 
thirty (30) feet, except when such are attached by a common wall so as to be treated as 
one building. 

 
 

C. T – TRAILER DISTRICT                                                  
 

1. Intent and Purpose: To be combined with certain other use and density districts for the 
purpose of permitting Mobile/Manufactured Home Developments.  Procedure for 
inclusion of the “T” District shall be the same as the provided for a change of zoning. 
 

2. District Stipulations and Provisions:  Supplemental to and/or supplanting the section of 
this Zoning Ordinance entitled “General Stipulations & Provision-All Districts.”  All 
provisions of the use and density district with which this District is combined shall 
maintain, except as enumerated to the contrary under this section. 
 

3. Permitted Uses: 
 

a. All uses permitted by the use district with which this district is combined. 
 

b. Mobile/Manufactured Home Developments, subject to the approval of a site plan. 
i. Site plans and an application on a form supplied by the Community 

Development Division shall be submitted for review and approval.  The 
Community Development Division shall refer the site plan to the County 
Engineering and Health Departments and any other affected department 
or agencies to check its compliance with pertinent County and State 
standards and regulations.  Subsequent to review, the Zoning Inspector or 
his/her designee shall (1) approve the site plan as submitted, (2) approve 
the site plan with modifications, or (3) disapprove the site plan.  The 
Zoning Inspector shall notify the applicant of the Commission’s decision.  
If the application is disapproved, the Zoning Inspector shall notify the 



105 

applicant of the reasons for disapproval and may state the modifications 
necessary for approval of the site plan. 

ii. An approved site plan shall be binding upon the applicants and their 
successors or assignees. Placement and/or erection of all structures 
within a Mobile/ Manufactured Home Development shall require the 
issuance of a building permit to be issued in accordance with the 
regulations of the Community Development Division.  No building 
permit shall be issued for any building or structure not in accord with the 
site plan, except that temporary construction facilities shall be permitted 
for the purpose of developing the project.  Individual installation permits 
shall be required for placement of mobile/manufactured homes within 
approved spaces.  The construction, location, use or operation of all land 
and structures within the site shall conform to all conditions and 
limitations set forth in the site plan.  No structure, use or other element of 
an approved site plan shall be eliminated, altered, or provided in another 
manner unless an amendment is approved in accord with paragraph “vi” 
of this section.   
 

iii. In addition to the special requirements of this section, the Zoning 
Inspector may impose on a site plan such additional requirements as are 
necessary to safeguard the public welfare, safety and health.  The Zoning 
Inspector may require the applicant to submit a revised plan 
incorporating the imposed requirements and modifications.  When a site 
plan is submitted conforming to the stipulations of the Commission, one 
copy of the approved site plan shall be filed in the office of the 
Community Development Division and one copy sent to the applicant. 

iv. An approved site plan may be revoked if construction of the 
Mobile/Manufactured Home Development is not begun within twelve 
(12) months of site plan approval. The Zoning Inspector may approve a 
twelve (12) month extension if warranted. 

v. Failure to comply with the standards and guidelines for development and 
maintenance of Mobile/Manufactured Home Developments shall be 
considered by the Zoning Inspector as grounds for revocation of site plan 
approval.  Such approval may be revoked by the subject to appeal as 
provided in paragraph “vii” below. 

vi. Amendments: The holder of an approved site plan may request 
modification of the site plan or the conditions of approval by submitting 
an amended site plan which shall be filed and processed in the same 
manner as an original application. 

vii. Appeals:  A decision of the Zoning Inspector may be appealed to the 
Planning and Zoning Commission within fifteen (15) calendar days of 
the Zoning Inspector’s decision.   



106 

a) Appeals shall be in writing on a form provided by the 
Community Development Division and shall include only those 
items not agreed upon.  

b) An appeal will be heard at the next regular meeting of the 
Planning and Zoning Commission. 

c) Any decision of the Planning and Zoning Commission shall be 
final unless a person aggrieved thereby, within seven calendar 
days after the decision of the Planning and Zoning Commission, 
appeals to the Board of Supervisors by filing a written notice of 
appeal with the Community Development Division.   

1) Within thirty calendar days after service of a notice of 
appeal, the Community Development Division shall 
transmit to the Board of Supervisors a transcript with 
exhibits of the Planning and Zoning Commission’s 
hearing.  The Supervisors may require or permit 
corrections or additions to the transcript or exhibits. 

2) The Board of Supervisors shall review the transcript and 
exhibits, if any, and may, at their discretion, affirm the 
decision of the Planning and Zoning Commission 
remand the matter for further proceedings before the 
Planning and Zoning Commission, or reverse or modify 
the Planning and Zoning Commission’s decision.  

3) Any person aggrieved by a conclusive decision of the 
Planning and Zoning Commission or the Board of 
Supervisors shall have a right of appeal to a court of 
competent jurisdiction.       

4) Neither the Zoning Inspector nor the Board of 
Adjustment shall have authority to modify the terms of 
this Section. 

 
4. Minimum Standards for Development and maintenance of Mobile/Manufactured Home 

Developments Other than Subdivisions: 
 

a. Minimum dimensions and areas for mobile/manufactured home spaces shall be 
as follows: 
 

i. Single-wide Mobile/Manufactured Homes: Minimum space area shall be 
three thousand four hundred (3,400) square feet; minimum width shall be 
forty (40) feet and minimum depth shall be eighty-five (85) feet. 

ii. Double-wide Mobile/Manufactured Spaces: Minimum space area shall 
be four thousand six hundred seventy-five (4,675) square feet; minimum 
width shall be fifty-five (55) feet and minimum depth shall be eighty-five 
(85) feet. 



107 

iii. Recreational Vehicle Spaces: Minimum space area shall be one thousand 
five hundred (1,500) square feet; minimum width shall be twenty-five 
(25) feet and minimum depth shall be sixty (60) feet. 

iv. A recreational vehicle may be located on a mobile/manufactured home 
space, provided all requirements of this Section are met and only one 
unit is placed on one space. 
 

b. Minimum setback dimensions for mobile/manufactured homes and recreational 
vehicles (hereinafter referred to as “mobile units”) shall be deemed the shortest 
of horizontal dimensions measured from the nearest portion of the endwall or 
sidewall of the mobile unit or from the patio cover, carport, cabana, ramada, or 
similar appurtenance, and shall be as follows: 

i. Minimum setback from any interior street or rear, front, or non-main 
entry space line shall be five (5) feet. 

ii. An uncovered main entry side of a mobile unit shall be a minimum of 
fifteen (15) feet from the adjacent space line. 

iii. Where parking space is provided within the mobile unit space, a 
minimum of sixteen (16) feet width shall be provided between the space 
line and the nearest side or end wall of the mobile unit. 

iv. No mobile unit or accessory building may be placed closer than ten (10) 
feet from any exterior development boundary. 

v. Minimum distance between mobile units within the same Development 
shall be ten (10) feet. 
 
 
 
 

5. General: 
 

a. All streets within a Mobile/Manufactured Home Development shall be private 
and shall be maintained by the owner. 
 

b. Parking spaces within the boundaries of the development shall be provided at a 
rate of two per unit. 
 

c. The Mobile/Manufactured Home Development shall be screened from adjoining 
parcels by an opaque wall or fence not less than four (4) feet no more than six (6) 
feet in height. 
 

d. No accessory building may be placed within the required front side or street 
setback. 
 

e. No mobile unit space, parking space, drive, street, or common area may be used 
for the dismantling and/or storage of inoperable motor vehicles. 



108 

 
f. Adequate common trash collection stations shall be provided at a rate of not less 

than one station per ten (10) spaces.  Such stations shall be screened from view of 
adjacent spaces and constructed in such a manner as to prevent the spreading of 
trash due to wind or animals. 
 

g. Development shall be maintained in a clean, safe and sanitary manner.  No 
refuse, debris, trash, or uncontrolled vegetation shall be allowed to accumulate to 
such an extent as to constitute a nuisance or potential threat to the lives, health, or 
property of the development residents or surrounding property owners. 

 
D. P1—PARKING ONE DISTRICT 

 
1. Intent and Purpose: To serve one purpose only -- that of providing vehicular parking 

space either by preserving existing parking areas by zoning them to P1 or establishing 
similar zoning on areas to be used for providing parking requirements of this Zoning 
Ordinance. 

 
2. District Stipulations and Provisions:  Supplemental to and/or supplanting the section of 

this Zoning Ordinance entitled “General Stipulations & Provisions-All Districts” as 
follows:   

 
a. All requirements under the section of this Zoning Ordinance entitled “General 

Stipulations & Provisions-All Districts,” subsection “Off-Street Parking” shall be 
adhered to when applicable and provided further that other stipulations and 
provisions may be imposed at the time of such zoning for the protection of 
adjacent properties or in the interest of public welfare. 
 

3. Permitted Uses: 
 

a. Open land parking area providing spaces to satisfy all or a portion of the off-
street parking requirements of a permitted use or uses. 

i. Installation, operation and maintenance of such lots shall adhere to all 
provisions established elsewhere in this Zoning Ordinance for such 
required parking. 

ii. Such use is contingent upon first obtaining approval from the Traffic 
Engineer or other designated official as to ingress and egress and traffic 
circulation patterns. 

 
b. Signs (See the section of this Zoning Ordinance entitled “General Stipulations & 

Provisions-All Districts,” subsection “Signs”: Appurtenant use signs same as 
permitted under the R4 District. 

 



109 

c. Other uses customarily accessory and incidental to the parking use provided 
same is located on the same lot or on the lot containing the principal use for 
which the parking is being provided. 

 
E. REGIONAL DESIGN REVIEW PROGRAM GUIDELINES 

1. Purpose and Intent  
 

The purpose of the design review program is to preserve and enhance the beauty and 
uniqueness of the region, facilitate incorporation of the region’s culture and natural 
resources into property, increase the value of the property, pedestrian friendly planning, 
and to contribute to the further enhancement of the economic base of our area through 
increased awareness and appeal of the properties adjacent to the U.S. Highway 60-70 
corridor benefiting all property owners, residents, and visitors to the region.  

 
2. Applicability 

 
These guidelines, upon adoption by each respective government jurisdiction through 
ordinance, shall be applicable to all developable properties that front on the U.S. 
Highway 60/70 corridor from the west end of Miami to the east end of Globe.  The 
Program’s guidelines will also apply to all currently developed properties on that same 
corridor that undertake property and/or structure redevelopment involving modification 
of 50% or more of their present property or structure to include modification to design, 
layout, signage, or exterior appearance for which a building permit is required. 
 

3. Exemptions 
 

a. The guidelines of this Design Review Program shall not apply to the following 
activities: 

i. Maintenance of the exterior of existing structures such as repainting, re-
roofing, residing, where similar materials and colors, are used. 

ii. Interior remodeling. 
iii. Existing nonconforming aspects of a building or site not addressed in an 

application for a design review permit. 
iv. Short-term/temporary preventative maintenance as a result of an 

emergency situation. i.e., fire, flood, natural disaster. 
 

4. Application Procedures 
 

a. An application for a design review requires submission of nine (9) design packets 
for review by the government agency with jurisdiction over the property and the 
Regional Design Review Committee.   



110 

i. Each packet must contain: 
ii. Site Plan that provides the following: 

a) Pedestrian & vehicular circulation. 
b) Building floor plans showing orientation of windows & doors on 

the exterior walls of the proposed structure. 
c) Location and description of exterior signage. 
d) Landscape plan, including plants type and placement, and 

hardscape details. 
e) Exterior Lighting; location, type, and orientation. 
f) Fences and walls, (material and surface textures). 

iii. Building Elevations which provide the following: 
a) Façade Treatment. 
b) Architectural Design. 
c) Building Height. 
d) Building Materials. 
e) Design Detail for windows and doors. 

 
5. Review Procedures 

 
Upon submittal of a completed application, the Design Review Committee shall review 
and prepare a written recommendation to the governmental agency having jurisdiction 
over the subject property regarding the following elements to which the Design Review 
Program’s guidelines apply:  

 
a. Site Layout.  

i. Orientation and location of buildings, hardscape, natural features and 
landscaped areas in relation to physical characteristics of the site, 
neighborhood character, and the appearance and harmony of adjacent 
buildings. For the purpose of these guidelines a property not immediately 
adjacent to the corridor shall be considered as adjacent to the corridor if 
the property adjacent to the corridor is undeveloped. 

ii. The appearance and safety of the proposed pedestrian system. 
iii. Landscaping: 

a) The location, height and species of hedges, trees, and xeriscaping 
to ensure harmony with the ambiance of the area and the intent 
of these guidelines. 

b) The planting of groundcover to prevent dust and erosion. 
c) The preservation of existing healthy tree 

 
 
 
iv. Hardscaping: the location, height and material of walls, fences, and other 

artificial embellishments to ensure harmony with the ambience of the 
area and the intent of these guidelines 

v. Outdoor Signage:  The number, location color, size, lighting, and 
landscaping of outdoor advertising devices as they relate to pedestrian 
and vehicular traffic, their appearance and harmony with the existing 
adjacent structures, and the intent of these guidelines. 



111 

b. Architectural Character 
i. The consistency of the applications of the proposed design with approved 

design guidelines. 
ii. The compatibility of the character of the proposed design with adjacent 

structures and the intent of these regulations. 
iii. Preservation of historical structures (if within registered Historic 

Districts). 
 

c. Overall Compliance with Development Standards - The Design Review 
Committee or the Planning Staff of the government agency with jurisdiction over 
the said property, on a case-by-case basis, may make exceptions to the provisions 
of the following section entitled “Development Standards (Site Design)” due to 
unique characteristics of the site or economic hardship to the applicant. 

 
6. Development Standards (Site Design) 

 
a. Pedestrian and Vehicular  

i. Circulation patterns should be obvious and simple. All pedestrian routes 
should be considered in the design phase to eliminate “short cuts” that 
damage landscaped areas. 

ii. Circulation systems should limit conflicts between vehicular, bicycle and 
pedestrian traffic. 

iii. Where pedestrian routes cross vehicular traffic paths; a change in grade, 
materials, textures and/or colors should be provided.   

iv. Pedestrian routes/paths should be provided to the front entrance of a 
building from the public right of way. 

v. Bicycle parking facilities may be substituted for automobile parking 
spaces required at a ratio of five (5) bicycle spaces for one required 
vehicle parking space.  A maximum of five (5) % of the total required 
parking spaces may be reduced from the total number of parking spaces 
required under the established parking spaces related requirements in the 
government agency’s standards.  Bicycle parking facilities should 
include provisions for locking of the bicycle in a secure rack.  
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

b. Building Setbacks 
 



112 

i. Buildings should be placed as close to the front property line as 
reasonable with consideration for the safe passage of vehicular and 
pedestrian traffic. Where no side yard setback is provided, structural wall 
construction must be two-hour fire rated, and the roof must not drain 
directly onto adjoining property. 

ii. Rear yard setback is not required except when the adjoining property is 
residential.  Where this occurs, a case-by-case review will determine 
appropriate setbacks that are compatible with the adjoining properties. 

iii. Overhead structures such as porches and balconies may be placed on the 
front property line except where adjoining structures have larger front 
yards. 

 
c. Parking Facilities 

 
Parking should not be positioned between the public sidewalk and the front of the 
building, here feasible.  Parking at the side of the property must be landscaped 
and screened. 

 
d. Multiple Buildings 

 
Multiple buildings on the same property should be designed to create a cohesive 
visual relationship between buildings. 
 

e. Driveways  
i. Shared or common driveways are encouraged. 

ii. There should be a maximum of one driveway per lot or parcel except 
where the lot has more than one hundred (100) feet of frontage on the 
Highway Corridor.  Driveways should be separated by a minimum of one 
hundred (100) feet.  Approval of the Arizona Department of 
Transportation must be obtained in each case.  The State’s jurisdiction 
and decision shall always prevail if different than the recommendation of 
the Design Review Committee. 

 
f. Signage 

i. No roof sign should be permitted except where significant negative grade 
change exists from the roadway to the building site. 

ii. Portable free-standing signs must not exceed three (3) feet in height, six 
(6) square feet on each face, and must not obstruct pedestrian ways or 
cause line of sight problems.  

iii. Permanent free-standing signs should not exceed thirty-two (32) square 
feet on each face and must be low profile. 

iv. Marquee signs must not be installed in such a manner that the 
illumination from the sign causes distraction or hindrance to vehicles on 
the corridor nor occupants of nearby properties. 
 
 
 
 

v. Colors should be used from the approved color board. 
vi. Signs must be properly maintained. 



113 

vii. Signs should be architecturally integrated with their surroundings in 
terms of size, shape, color, texture and lighting. 

viii. Signs should not be in visual competition with each other. 
ix. In the event that these signage guidelines are found to be in conflict with 

the adopted sign ordinance provisions of the government agency with 
jurisdiction, the established governmental sign ordinance requirements 
shall have precedence. 

 
g. Lighting 

i. Colored lighting is allowed but should not: 
a) spill over onto adjacent properties;  
b) be the primary lighting theme; or 
c) contain moving or streaming lights or components. 

 
ii. Lighting fixtures should be historically appropriate to the area, and close 

in appearance to other installed historic lighting within the government 
jurisdiction.  

  
h. Utility Equipment 

i. Mechanical systems equipment should be screened, and sound 
attenuated, using approved building materials and positioned to maintain 
minimum intrusion on the public view. 

ii. Utility areas and equipment, such as trash receptacles, storage areas, 
service yards and loading/unloading areas should be screened from 
public view with approved building materials. 

iii. Permanently installed utility standards and communication equipment 
should blend into the surrounding environment.  The use of earth colors 
and/or the installation of faux foliage, and/or the installation of 
equipment constructed to replicate a living plant, such as a palm tree, 
cactus, or other tree as appropriate to blend the equipment into the 
environment should be considered. 

 
i. Landscaping 

i. Landscaping should soften the visual appearance of the site and provide 
a pedestrian friendly environment. 

ii. Any planting within the rights of way should not create a line of sight 
nuisance or be a nuisance to pedestrian and vehicular traffic in any way. 

iii. All undeveloped areas, within public view, should be landscaped or left 
with undisturbed natural vegetation. 

iv. Deciduous or evergreen shrubs and trees can be used. 
v. Planter boxes are encouraged for flowers. 



114 

j. Hardscape   
i. Colors, textures and materials selected for walkways, patios, and other 

ground plane enhancements must support the architectural character of 
the area. 

ii. Materials should not impede accessibility to those who are physically 
challenged. 

iii. The texture and color of hardscape should clearly differentiate between 
driveways, parking facilities, and those areas used by bicyclists or 
pedestrians. 

iv. Stone, brick, colored concrete, pavers, covered boardwalks, and concrete 
finishes are acceptable.   

v. Natural materials should be used to the maximum extent; Synthetic 
materials may be considered. 

 
k. Street Furniture 

i. Street furniture should be of design and character consistent with 
municipal streetscape elements. 

ii. Synthetic or plastic elements are not permitted. 
 

l. Fences and Walls 
 
When adding fences and walls, the building materials should comply with the 
approved building materials in this guideline. 

 
m. Overhead Protection Structures 

i. Overhead protection structures should be installed on the façade of the 
ground floor above any installed or planned pedestrian pathways. 

ii. A minimum of seven (7) foot vertical clearance is required for overhead 
structures above potential pedestrian pathways. 

 
7. Development Standards (Architectural and Structural Design) 

 
a. Architectural Features 

i. Architectural design should be compatible with the character of the area. 
Design compatibility should include complimentary building style, form, 
size, color and materials. 

ii. Diversity of architectural design is encouraged that portrays the historical 
and cultural influences of the area. 

iii. Detail is required at/around all doorways and windows that front on the 
street or are part of visible sidewalls. 

iv. Rough sawn wood reflecting “pioneer” look is encouraged. 
 
b. Building Materials 

i. The preferred building materials include wood, stone, brick, and adobe. 
Stucco and synthetic materials may be considered. 

ii. Metal buildings are permitted if the facade visible from the right-of way 
is composed of building materials specified in paragraph G.1.b above. 

 



115 

c. Building Colors 
i. Exterior colors should be selected from the recommended color board, 

Historic Colors of America.  
ii. Trim and body colors should be complimentary, and brilliant, bold colors 

should be avoided. 
 

d. Roof Design 
 
Acceptable roof materials include galvanized and colored metal, or dimensional 
asphalt shingles.  The use of composite material will be reviewed on a case-by-
case basis.  The use of natural wood shake roof material is highly discouraged. 
 

e. Facade Treatment 
i. The concealing of original facades as part of restoration/rehabilitation 

should be avoided. 
ii. Storefront restoration should return the façade to its original character as 

much as is reasonable and appropriate and meets design review 
requirements. 

iii. Reflective or mirrored glass should be avoided.  Tinted glass should 
comply with Arizona Standards of 30% maximum reduction of 
transparency. 

iv. A minimum of 35% of the front first floor of the building at the front 
property line should be windows or doors. 

v. No new construction or remodeling of an existing building will use mill 
finished aluminum windows, doors, or display devices. 

vi. In new construction glass block windows visible from public walkways 
should be avoided. 

 
8. Guideline Review 

 
This guideline is subject to continuous review by the Design Review Committee and the 
governmental agencies to which it applies.  Significant changes to this document will 
require full concordance of all affected agencies before those changes are implemented. 
 

SECTION 104.7 
USE DISTRICTS (SPECIAL) 
 

A. GU – GENERAL UNCLASSIFIED DISTRICT 
 
1. Intent and Purpose: To provide for all the unincorporated areas of Gila County not 

otherwise designated for some other specific zone to be included in the “General 
Unclassified District” by this Zoning Ordinance. 

 
2. District Stipulations and Provisions:  
 

a. No subdivision of land for sale, rent, or lease for residential, commercial, or 
industrial use shall be conducted or approved in the GU District without prior 
rezoning of the land so intended.   

 
b. Off-site signs (billboards) are not permitted in this District 
 



116 

c. Sexually oriented businesses are not permitted in this District. 
 
d. Minimum density requirements shall be the same as D10 Density District. 

 
3. Permitted Uses: 

 
Farm and non-farm residential uses; farms, ranches, recreational, and commercial 
uses.   

SECTION 104.8 
DENSITY DISTRICTS 
 
Density districts shall be established in order to maintain a desirable amount of open space and regulate 
the intensity of use within conventionally designed, detached single-family residential subdivisions or 
those unplatted areas primarily devoted to detached single-family residential use. 
 

A. GENERAL REGULATIONS 

Except as enumerated to the contrary under any particular density district or the section of this 
Zoning Ordinance entitled “General Stipulations & Provisions-All Districts,” the following, 
where applicable, shall apply to all density districts or to any residential use in use districts not 
combined with density districts: 
 

1. Lot Area and Dimensions: 
 

a. Any lot which is substandard for the district in which it is located, either as to 
dimensions or area, that was legally established as such when it came under the 
influence of the minimum regulations of such district, shall be considered a legal 
lot in that district. 
 

b. No lot shall be further divided in such a manner that any division of such lot shall 
contain more living units and/or percent of lot coverage than is permitted on that 
area by the minimum regulations of the district in which such lot is situated. 
 

2. Yard Dimensions/Space Between Buildings: Minimum yard requirements in all density 
districts shall be as follows: 
 

a. Front Yard - Twenty (20) feet. 
 

b. Rear Yard - Twenty (20) feet. 
 

c. Street Side of Corner Lot - Ten (10) feet. 
 

d. Interior Side Yard - Seven (7) feet; nine (9) feet on one interior side yard if 
vehicular access is needed per the following sections entitled “Yard Deviations” 
and Projection into yards is prohibited, except as herein enumerated.” 
 



117 

e. Distance Between Buildings - No dwelling shall be closer than six (6) feet to any 
other building on the same lot. 
 

f. Detached Accessory Buildings - Shall conform to front and side yard 
requirements for main buildings and shall be at least seven (7) feet from rear lot 
line.  (See the following sections entitled “Yard Deviations” and Projection into 
yards is prohibited, except as herein enumerated.” 

 
3. Yard Deviations (See yard definition for measure requirements): 

 
a. Side Yards -- On any lot where a garage or carport is not attached to the main 

building, one side yard must measure no less than nine (9) feet to provide 
vehicular access to rear parking. 

 
4. Projection into yards is prohibited, except as herein enumerated: 

 
a. All Yards: 

i. Cornices, eaves, coolers, open balconies, open fire escapes, stairways, or 
fire towers may project not more than five (5) feet into any minimum 
yard, provided such projection shall be no closer than two (2) feet from 
any property line. 

ii. Sills, leaders, belt courses and similar ornamental and chimneys may 
project not more than two (2) feet into any minimum yard or court. 

 
b. Front Yard: 

i. A bay window, oriel, entrance or vestibule, which is not more than ten 
(10) feet in width, may project not more than three (3) feet into any 
minimum front yard. 

ii. An attached open porch, carport, or balcony may project not more than 
six (6) feet into any minimum front yard. 

 
c. Rear Yard: 

i. A bay window, oriel, entrance or vestibule, which is not more than ten 
(10) feet in width, may project not more than three (3) feet into any 
minimum rear yard. 

ii. An attached open porch, carport, or balcony may project not more than 
(10) feet into any minimum rear yard, provided no such projection shall 
be less than eight (8) feet from any common rear property line. 

 
5. Building Height: Unless otherwise stipulated in the individual zoning district, a Use 

Permit shall be required for any building exceeding three (3) stories or thirty (30) feet in 
height. 
  



118 

6. Maximum Density: The maximum density within single-family detached residential 
subdivisions shall not exceed 6.6 dwelling units per gross acre, except as otherwise 
enumerated herein. 

B. DENSITY DISTRICT REQUIREMENTS 
 

1. D6 -- 6.6 Dwelling Units Per Acre 
 

a. Minimum Lot Area -- Six thousand (6,000) square feet. 
 

b. Minimum Lot Width at Front Setback Line -- Forty-four (44) feet. 
 

c. Minimum Lot Depth -- Sixty (60) feet. 
 

d. Maximum Building Coverage -- Fifty percent (50%) of gross lot area. 
 

e. Maximum Impervious Surface Coverage -- Sixty-five percent (65%) of gross lot 
area 

2. D8 -- Five Dwelling Units Per Acre 
 

a. Minimum Lot Area -- Eight thousand (8,000) square feet. 
 

b. Minimum Lot Width at Front Setback Line -- Forty-eight (48) feet. 
 

c. Minimum Lot Depth -- Eighty (80) feet. 
d. Maximum Building Coverage -- Forty-five percent (45%) of gross lot area. 

 
e. Maximum Impervious Surface Coverage -- Sixty percent (60%) of gross lot area. 

 
3. D10 -- Four Dwelling Units Per Acre 

 
a. Minimum Lot Area -- Ten thousand (10,000) square feet. 

 
b. Minimum Lot Width at Front Setback Line -- Fifty-two (52) feet. 

 
c. Minimum Lot Depth -- One hundred (100) feet 

 
d. Maximum Building Coverage -- Forty percent (40%) of gross lot area. 

 
e. Maximum Impervious Surface Coverage -- Fifty-five percent (55%) of gross lot 

area. 
 

4. D12 -- 3.3 Dwelling Units Per Acre 
 

a. Minimum Lot Area -- Twelve thousand (12,000) square feet. 



119 

b. Minimum Lot Width at Front Setback Line -- Fifty-six (56) feet. 
 

c. Minimum Lot Depth -- One hundred (100) feet 
 

d. Maximum Building Coverage -- Thirty-five percent (35%) of gross lot area. 
 

e. Maximum Impervious Surface Coverage -- Fifty percent (50%) of gross lot area. 
 

5. D18 -- 2.2 Dwelling Units Per Acre 
 

a. Minimum Lot Area -- Eighteen thousand (18,000) square feet. 
 

b. Minimum Lot Width at Front Setback Line -- Sixty-eight (68) feet. 
 

c. Minimum Lot Depth -- One hundred (100) feet. 
 

d. Maximum Building Coverage -- Thirty percent (30%) of gross lot are  
 

e. Maximum Impervious Surface Coverage -- Forty percent (40%) of gross lot area. 
 

6. D20 -- Two Dwelling Units Per Acre 
 

a. Minimum Lot Area -- Twenty thousand (20,000) square feet. 
 

b. Minimum Lot Width at Front Setback Line -- Seventy-two (72) feet. 
 

c. Minimum Lot Depth -- One hundred twenty (120) feet. 
 

d. Maximum Building Coverage -- Twenty-five percent (25%) of gross lot area. 
 

e. Maximum Impervious Surface Coverage -- Thirty-five percent (35%) of gross lot 
area. 

 
7. D40 -- One Dwelling unit Per Acre 

 
a. Minimum Lot Area -- Forty thousand (40,000) square feet. 

 
b. Minimum Lot Width at Front Setback Line -- Ninety-two (92) feet. 

 
c. Minimum Lot Depth -- One hundred eighty (180) feet. 
d. Maximum Building Coverage -- Twenty percent (20%) of gross lot area. 

 
e. Maximum Impervious Surface Coverage -- Twenty-five percent (25%) of gross 

lot area. 



120 

8. D70 -- .62 Dwelling Units Per Acre 
 

a. Minimum Lot Area -- Seventy thousand (70,000) square feet. 
 

b. Minimum Lot Width at Front Setback Line -- One hundred forty-five (145) feet. 
 

c. Minimum Lot Depth -- Two hundred forty-Two (242) feet. 
 

d. Maximum Building Coverage -- Fifteen percent (15%) of gross lot area. 
 

e. Maximum Impervious Surface Coverage -- Twenty percent (20%) of gross lot 
area. 

 
9. D175 -- .25 Dwelling Units/Acre 

 
a. Minimum Lot Area -- One hundred seventy-five thousand (175,000) square feet. 

 
b. Minimum Lot Width at Front Setback Line -- Two hundred thirty-four (234) feet. 

 
c. Minimum Lot Depth -- Three hundred ninety (390) feet. 

 
d. Maximum Building Coverage -- Eight and one-half percent (81/2%) of gross lot 

area. 
 

e. Maximum Impervious Surface Coverage -- Twelve percent (12%) of gross lot 
area. 
 

SECTION 105 
AMENDMENT PROCEDURES 
 
SECTION 105.1 
AUTHORITY 
 
The Board of Supervisors may, from time to time (after receiving a report thereupon by the Planning 
and Zoning Commission and after public hearings as prescribed herein), amend, supplement, or change 
the zoning map and/or Zoning Ordinance regulations. Any such proposed change may be initiated by 
the Planning and Zoning Commission or by the application of property owners or an authorized agent of 
a property owner. 
 
SECTION 105.2 
APPLICATION 
 
Application for amendment shall be filed with the Community Development Division on forms provided 
therefore and shall be accompanied by the appropriate non-refundable fees. Upon submittal of a rezoning 
or specific plan application and prior to a public hearing, notification will be sent to adjacent landowners 
and other potentially affected citizens of the substance of the application. The applicant is responsible for 



121 

written contact of all property owners within the notification area and of affected neighborhood 
associations, and shall offer to hold a meeting, with a specified date, for review of the proposed request. 
The applicant shall provide written proof of contact and offer of meeting to the Community Development 
Division at least thirty days prior to the date of the public hearing by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission. The request shall not be set for public hearing without such written proof. 
 

A. An application to establish or change a zoning classification shall be initiated by a property 
owner, an agent authorized by the owner.  Proof of ownership of the subject property or a 
notarized ‘authorized agent’ form shall be required. 
 

B. An application to change regulations of this Zoning Ordinance which are initiated by the Gila 
County Planning and Zoning Commission or Gila County staff shall not require the fee. 

 
C. A complete application form may require:  
 

1. A detailed narrative justifying the application. 
 

2. A legal description of the subject property. 
 

3. A map showing the particular property or properties for which the change of zone is 
requested and substantially the adjoining properties and the public streets and ways 
within a radius of three hundred (300) feet of the exterior boundaries. 
 

4. A true statement revealing any restrictions of record that would affect the requested uses 
of the property and the applicable dates of expiration. 
 

5. A preliminary site plan, depicting the proposed development or land use which is 
intended with the proposed amendment. 
 

6. The Zoning Inspector shall determine requirements and may request other property 
information as he deems necessary to evaluate the proposed changes in land uses.  Other 
information could include title reports, records of survey, easements establishing and 
depicting rights of use, existing topographic maps and similar. 

 
SECTION 105.3 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION ACTION 
 
Upon receipt of any proposed amendment, the same shall be submitted to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission for a report. Prior to reporting to the Board of Supervisors, the Planning and Zoning 
Commission shall hold at least one public hearing thereon, after giving at least fifteen (15) days’ notice 
thereof by publication at least once in a newspaper of general circulation in the County seat, by posting 
the area included in any proposed Zoning Map change and by noticing property owners according to 
state law requirements. It shall not be the responsibility of the Board of Supervisors to maintain such 
posting once erected. 
 

A. Prior to publishing and posting a petitioned Zoning Map change the Planning and Zoning 
Commission may, on its own motion, delimit the extent and boundaries of such area so as to 
constitute a reasonable zone. 

 
B. Should the Planning and Zoning Commission initiate a proposed zoning amendment at the request 



122 

of a person or persons, notice of such proposed change shall not be processed until the required 
filing fee has been paid. 

 
C. In the event an application is denied by the Planning and Zoning Commission and/or Board of 

Supervisors, the Planning and Zoning Commission shall reserve the right of refusal to consider a 
similar application within a year of the date of application. 

D. Failure of the Planning and Zoning Commission to report to the Board of Supervisors within sixty 
(60) days after date of application shall be deemed to be approval. 

 
SECTION 105.4 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ ACTION  

 
Upon receipt of the Planning and Zoning Commission’s recommendation, the Board of Supervisors may 
hold at least one public hearing within a reasonable time after first noticing in the same manner as is 
required of the Planning and Zoning Commission and may thereupon take appropriate action. 

 
A. If twenty percent (20%) or more of the owners of property by area and number within the zoning 

area file a protest to such change, the change shall not be made except by unanimous vote. 
 
SECTION 106 
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
 
SECTION 106.1 
BOARD STRUCTURE AND PROCEDURE 
 

A. There shall be one or more boards of adjustment in each county. The Board of Supervisors may 
establish one board of adjustment that has jurisdiction countywide and that is composed of one 
member who is a resident of each supervisorial district or one board of adjustment in each 
supervisorial district that has jurisdiction in that supervisorial district and that is composed of not 
less than three nor more than five members, each of whom is a resident of that supervisorial 
district.  

 
B.   The members of each Board of Adjustment shall be appointed for staggered terms of four years 

each. 
 
SECTION 106.2 
POWERS AND DUTIES 
 

A. The Board of Adjustment may: 
 

1. Interpret this Zoning Ordinance if the meaning of any word, phrase or section is in doubt, 
if there is dispute between the appellant and enforcing officer or if the location of a 
district boundary is in doubt. 
 

2. Allow a variance from the terms of the Zoning Ordinance if, owing to peculiar 
conditions, a strict interpretation would work an unnecessary hardship and if in granting 
the variance the general intent and purposes of this Zoning Ordinance will be preserved. 
  

3. Any decision of the Board of Adjustment may be appealed to the Board of Supervisors. 
Not applicable per ARS 11-816D, see Section 106.4C. 
 



123 

 
SECTION 106.3 
HEARING APPLICATIONS 
 
A hearing application shall be filed in the office of the Zoning Inspector on forms provided therefor, 
together with any fee and/or charge as provided herein, none of which is refundable.  Such application, 
together with any pertinent records, shall forthwith be transmitted to the Board of Adjustment, and shall 
be available for inspection during office hours. 
 
SECTION 106.4 
APPEALS 
 

A. Appeals to the Board of Adjustment may be taken by any person who feels that there is error or 
doubt in the interpretation of the Zoning Ordinance or that, due to unusual circumstances 
attaching to his property, an unnecessary hardship is being inflicted on him. 
 

B. The appeal shall state whether it is a plea for interpretation or for a variance, along with the 
grounds for the appeal. 
 

C. Any person aggrieved by a decision of the Board of Adjustment shall have the right, within thirty 
(30) days, to appeal to the Superior Court.  The appeal shall be based on the record before the 
Board of Adjustment. 

SECTION 106.5 
HEARING AND RULINGS 
 

A. A hearing shall be held by the Board of Adjustment within a reasonable time after filing of an 
application, after first causing notice to be given to parties of interest and the public, by posting 
the property of application, if a property is involved, and publishing once in a newspaper of 
general circulation in the County at least seven days prior to the hearing.  It shall not be the 
responsibility of the Board of Adjustment or its agents to maintain the posting once erected. 
 

B. Rulings shall be rendered by the Board on any application not later than thirty (30) days after 
initial hearing on same, unless an extension is concurred in by the applicant. 
 
1. In approving an application, in all or in part, the Board may designate such conditions in 

connection therewith as will, in its opinion, secure substantially the objectives of these 
Zoning Ordinance regulations, and may require guarantees in such a form as it deems proper 
under the circumstances to ensure that such conditions be complied with.  Where any such 
conditions are violated or not complied with, the approval shall cease to exist, and the 
Inspector shall act accordingly. 
 

2. The granting by the Board of permission to proceed on a specific development scheme or of a 
permit for a construction variance shall be contingent upon permits being obtained and work 
commencing within six months and being diligently pursued.  Failure of such shall void the 
ruling unless a longer time has been granted by the Board. 



124 

 

SECTION 107 
ENFORCEMENT 
 
SECTION 107.1 
ESTABLISHMENT OF THE POSITION OF COUNTY ZONING INSPECTORS 
 

A. For the purpose of the enforcement of this Zoning Ordinance within the zoned area of Gila 
County, the position of Zoning Inspector is hereby established. 
 

1. The Zoning Inspector of the Gila County Community Development Division is hereby 
designated Zoning Inspector. 

2. The Board of Supervisors may also designate such Deputy Zoning Inspectors as it deems 
necessary for the proper administration and enforcement of this Zoning Ordinance. 
 

3. From and after the establishment and filling of this position, it shall be unlawful to erect, 
construct, reconstruct, alter or use any building or other structure within a zoning district 
covered by this Zoning Ordinance without first obtaining a building permit.  Inspectors 
shall recognize the limitations placed on their authority and the exceptions to zoning and 
permitting regulations imposed by Arizona Revised Statutes Chapter 6, Article 2, § 11-
815. 

 
SECTION 107.2 
VIOLATIONS 
 
It is unlawful to erect, construct, reconstruct, alter, maintain, or use any structure or land in violation of 
any provision of this Zoning Ordinance, and any such violation constitutes a public nuisance. 
 

A. Criminal Penalties:  Any person, firm or corporation, whether as principal, owner, agent, tenant, 
employee or otherwise, who violates any provision of this Zoning Ordinance or violates or fails to 
comply with any order or regulation made hereunder is guilty of a Class 2 Misdemeanor pursuant 
to A.R.S. § 11-808.  Each and every day during which the illegal activity, use or violation 
continues is a separate offense. 
 

B. Civil Penalties:  Any person, firm or corporation, whether as principal, owner, agent, tenant, 
employee or otherwise, who violates any provisions of this Zoning Ordinance shall be subject to a 
civil penalty.  Each day of a continuing violation is a separate violation for the purpose of 
imposing a separate penalty.  The civil penalty for violations of this Zoning Ordinance shall be 
established by separate resolution of the Board of Supervisors, but shall not exceed the amount of 
the maximum fine for a Class 2 Misdemeanor.  An alleged violator shall be entitled to an 
administrative hearing on his liability, and a review by the Board of Supervisors as provided in 
A.R.S. §11-808.  Pursuant to that statutory Section, 107.2.A.B.C. the Board of Supervisors shall 
adopt written Rules of Procedures for such hearing and reviews. 
 

C. Remedies:  An alleged violator who is served with Notice of Violation subject to civil penalty 
shall not be subject to a criminal prosecution for the same factual situation.  However, all other 
remedies provided for herein shall be cumulative and not exclusive.  The conviction and 
punishment of any person hereunder shall not relieve such person from the responsibility to 
correct prohibited conditions or improvements nor prevent the enforcement, correction or 



125 

removal thereof.  In addition to the other remedies provided in this article, the Board of 
Supervisors, the County Attorney, the Zoning Inspector, or any adjacent or neighboring property 
owner who shall be damaged by the violation of any provision of this Zoning Ordinance, may 
institute, in addition to the other remedies provided by law, injunction, mandamus, abatement or 
any other appropriate action, proceeding or proceedings to prevent or abate or remove such 
unlawful erection, construction, reconstruction, alteration, maintenance or use. 

 
SECTION 107.3 
LEGAL PROCEDURE 
 

A. The Zoning Inspector shall enforce the provisions of this Zoning Ordinance by means of the 
following: 
 

1. Notification to the offending party of the nature and extent of the violation, together with 
a request for abatement of the violation within a stated period of time; 

 
2. The withholding of a building permit; and  
3. The initiation of criminal proceedings or the initiation of civil proceedings. 
 

B. It shall be the duty of the Sheriff and County Attorney to join with the Zoning Inspector and 
Board of Supervisors or their legal representative in the enforcement of this Zoning Ordinance 
and all of the provisions of same. 
 

C. Any use of property or erection, building, or maintenance of a building, structure, or 
improvement which is contrary to the provisions of this Zoning Ordinance shall be, and the same 
is hereby declared, unlawful and a public nuisance, and the County Attorney shall, upon request 
of the Zoning Inspector, order of the Board of Supervisors, or his or her own initiative, 
commence all necessary actions or proceedings for the abatement, enjoinment, and removal 
thereof in the manner provided by law. 

 
SECTION 107.4 
INSPECTION 
 
The Zoning Inspector or any Deputy Zoning Inspector, or any other enforcement officer may, in the 
discharge of his or her duties as stated herein, and for good or probable cause, enter any premises, 
building, or structure at any reasonable hour to inspect the same in connection with any application made 
under the terms of this Zoning Ordinance, or for any investigation or inspection as to whether or not any 
portion of such premise, building or structure is being used in violation of this Zoning Ordinance.   In all 
cases in which permission to inspect has been refused, the owner or occupant of any premises sought to 
be inspected shall be given written notice personally or by registered mail at least twenty-four (24) hours 
before such inspection takes place.  Every person who denies, prevents, or obstructs access to such 
premises after receipt of such written notice, or so attempts, shall be considered guilty of misdemeanor. 
 
SECTION 108 
BUILDING PERMITS 
 

A. Application for building permits shall be made in the office of Building Safety, Gila County 
Community Development Division.  See the Gila County Building Code Ordinance for specific 
regulations and procedures that apply. 
 



126 

1. A Building Permit shall not be issued unless the application for development approval 
complies with the provisions of this Zoning Ordinance and other applicable Gila County 
regulations 

2. No Building Permits shall be issued in a new subdivision until the Board of Supervisors 
has approved the Final Plat and accepted improvements. 

 
SECTION 109 
REPEAL OF INCONSISTENT PROVISIONS 
 
All zoning ordinances and portions of zoning ordinances of Gila County in conflict herewith are hereby 
expressly repealed. 
 
SECTION 110 
SEVERABILITY 
 
This Zoning Ordinance and the various parts hereof are hereby declared to be severable.  If any article, 
section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or word is for any reason held to be unconstitutional, such 
holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Zoning Ordinance. 

 



Resolution 14-01-02 Page 1 of 1 
 

 

 
FEE TYPE APPROVED FEE 

SUBDIVISION FEES:  

Preliminary Plat $650 + $20 Lot 

Small Subdivision  $550 + $20 Lot 

Final Plat $650 + $20 Lot 

Revisions/Amendments $175 

 

Site Plan Review:  

Mobile Home or RV Park $500 + $10 space 

Other Site Plans (except CUP’s) $100 

 

Zoning Services:  

Initiation of zoning request from unzoned areas $0 

Commission initiative for new subdivision in unzoned area $325 

  

Rezoning Application from property owner $365 

Corrective Zoning $0 

Planned Area Development (PAD) in addition to filing fee $500 

 

Conditional Use Permits:  

Conditional use site plan review $300 

Combined w/rezoning application $75 

 

Use Permit $50 

Temporary Use Permit $75 

Variance w/Board of Adjustments $300 

Administrative Variance $75 

Sign Permit $50 

Appeals to Board of Supervisors $100** 

Development Plan Review $100 

 

Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment:  

Major Amendment $525 

Minor Amendment $365 

 

Minor Land Divisions:  

Two Lots $500 

Three Lots $550 

Four Lots $600 

Five Lots $650 
** If the appellant wins the appeal the application fee is refunded 

Gila County Planning and Zoning Fees 
 

Effective February 20, 2014 

 



   
ARF-6021   Regular Agenda Item     3. C.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2020  
Submitted For: Adam Shepherd, Sheriff 
Submitted By: Mary Springer, Finance Director
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: FY20-21 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

05/05/2020 -
05/04/2021

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Award Contract in Response to Request for Proposals (RFP) No.
121619-Third Party Claims Administrator for Sheriff's Office Detention

Background Information
Currently reviewing medical claims and determining eligibility for cost
reduction is incredibly time-consuming and staff is not trained sufficiently
to know all of the medical claims adjustments and exclusions for inmate
claims. At the request of Sheriff Shepherd, the Board of Supervisors
authorized the advertisement of RFP No. 121619 on January 21, 2020.
There was one responsive and responsible proposal submitted by
CorrectCare- Integrated Health.

Evaluation
The Sheriff's Office has reviewed the proposal and supports issuing a
contract to CorrectCare Integrated Health for third-party claims
administrator services.

Conclusion
It is the intent of this contract to engage a third party claims
administrator, CorrectCare Integrated Health, for inmate medical claims
administration to reduce costs for claims.

Recommendation
Staff recommends proceeding with the contract award for third party



Staff recommends proceeding with the contract award for third party
claims administrator for adult detention inmate medical claims.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Professional Services Contract
No. 121619-Third Party Medical Claims Administrator for Sheriff's
Office Detention with CorrectCare-Integrated Health for a period of one
year with options to renew for up to three years at a cost of $14.00 per
claim. (Mary Springer)

Attachments
Request to Advertise RFP 121619
Request for RFP 121619
RFP No. 121619
Addendum 1 RFP 121619
Affidavit of Publication RFP 121619
Bid Opening RFP 121619
Bid Results RFP 121619
CorrectCare Proposal
Contract Request
Professional Services Contract No. 121619







RFP NO. 121619/THIRD PARTY MEDICAL CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR Page 0 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

GILA COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) NO. 121619 
 
 

THIRD PARTY MEDICAL CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR 
 
 
 
 
  

BIDDER’S INFORMATION 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

*BOARD OF SUPERVISORS* 
Woody Cline, Chairman 

Tommie C. Martin, Vice Chairman 
Tim R. Humphrey, Member 

 
 
 

*COUNTY MANAGER* 
James Menlove 

 
 

 

 
 
  



RFP NO. 121619/THIRD PARTY MEDICAL CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR Page 1 
 

                                                              GILA COUNTY 
NOTICE OF REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 121619 

THIRD PARTY MEDICAL CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR 

 

Notice is hereby given that Gila County is requesting proposals from qualified Contractors for a Third-Party 
Medical Claims Administrator.  
 
SUBMITTAL DUE DATE:      11:00 AM, MST, February 20, 2020 
 

RETURN PROPOSAL TO:      GILA COUNTY  
    FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

        1400 EAST ASH STREET 
        GLOBE, ARIZONA  85501 
 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that sealed competitive proposals for the material or services as specified will be 
received by the Gila County Finance Department, until the time and date cited. 
 
Proposals received by the correct time and date will be publicly opened and recorded thereafter in the finance 
department Copper Conference Room or other site, which may be designated.  Any proposals received later than 
the date and time specified above will be returned unopened.  Late proposals shall not be considered.  The 
prevailing clock shall be the atomic clock in the reception area of the Copper Building. 
 
All proposals shall be made on the request for sealed proposals forms included in this RFP No. 121619 package 
and shall include all applicable taxes. 
 
Interested bidders may obtain a copy of this solicitation by calling the Gila County Finance Department at 928-
402-4355 or by clicking on the link: 
http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/finance/procurement/current_bids.php and downloading the file.  
Bidders are strongly encouraged to carefully read the entire request for proposal. 
 
Any questions regarding this request for proposals shall be submitted in writing and directed to:  Betty Hurst, 
Contracts Administrator, at bhurst@gilacountyaz.gov, 928-402-4355. 
 
The Board of Supervisors reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, or to accept any proposal, or to waive 
any informality in any proposal, or to withhold the award if deemed in the best interest of Gila County.  All 
procurement activities conducted by Gila County are in conformance with the rules and regulations of the Gila 
County Procurement Code.  A copy of the code is available for review in the Clerk of the Board’s office, Globe, 
AZ. 
 
Dates advertised in the Arizona Silver Belt: January 29, 2020 and, February 05, 2020 
 
 
Signed: _____________________________________________  Date:  _____/_____/_____ 
 Woody Cline, Chairman of the Board  
 
 
Signed: _____________________________________________  Date:  _____/_____/_____ 
 The Gila County Attorney’s Office  
 
 
 

http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/finance/procurement/current_bids.php
mailto:jsgroi@gilacountyaz.gov


RFP NO. 121619/THIRD PARTY MEDICAL CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR Page 2 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

     CONTENT           PAGE 

 
 
Notice of Solicitation.................................................................................................................................. 1 

Table of Contents ....................................................................................................................................... 2 

Intent ......................................................................................................................................................... 3 

Scope of Work ........................................................................................................................................... 4 

Proposal Evaluation Requirements………………………………………………………………………………………………………….5 

Exhibit “A”; Instructions to Bidders ......................................................................................................... 6-8 

 Preparation of Sealed Bid .......................................................................................................................... 6 
 Amendments ............................................................................................................................................. 7 
 Inquiries ..................................................................................................................................................... 7 
 Late Proposals ........................................................................................................................................... 7 
 Submittal Bid Format ............................................................................................................................. 7-8 

General Terms and Conditions .............................................................................................................. 9-10 

 Award of Contract ..................................................................................................................................... 9 
 Protests ..................................................................................................................................................... 9 
 Laws & Ordinances .................................................................................................................................. 10 

Exhibit “B”; Contract Award Agreement ............................................................................................. 11-15 

 Overcharges by Antitrust Violations ........................................................................................................ 11 
 Authority to Contract .............................................................................................................................. 11 
 Contract Amendments ............................................................................................................................ 11 
 Contract Default ...................................................................................................................................... 11 
 Right to Assurance ................................................................................................................................... 12 
 Co-op Intergovernmental Purchasing Agreement .................................................................................. 12 
 Cancellation of County Contracts ............................................................................................................ 12 
 Termination of Contract .......................................................................................................................... 12 

Indemnification Clause ............................................................................................................................ 13 
Insurance Requirements .................................................................................................................... 14-15 

 Exhibit “C”; Minimum Specifications and Information ........................................................................ 16-17 

 Section 1.0; General Purpose .................................................................................................................. 16 
 Section 2.0; Bid Pricing & Term ............................................................................................................... 16 
 Section 3.0; Negotiations ........................................................................................................................ 17 
 

Qualification and Certification Forms .................................................................................................. 18-19 

Price Sheet ............................................................................................................................................... 20 

Reference List .......................................................................................................................................... 21 

No Collusion Form.................................................................................................................................... 22 

Certification Regarding Debarment……………………………………………………………………………………………………….23 

Intentions Concerning Subcontracting ..................................................................................................... 24 

Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance .................................................................................................... 25 

Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment ................................................................................................... 27 

Offer Page ................................................................................................................................................ 28 

Acceptance of Offer Page ......................................................................................................................... 29 



RFP NO. 121619/THIRD PARTY MEDICAL CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR Page 3 
 

 

INTENT 
                               

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR: Third Party Medical Claims Administrator 
 

INTENT: 
 
Gila County Detention Center seeks a provider to perform the duties of medical claims processing, 
including medical payment claims, and to answer the inquiries of Clients with respect to claims 
processing for each inmate in custody at the time of service.   
 

 
 

 
For the purposes of this Request for Proposal, “Contractor” is defined as an individual or an entity 
who submits a bid. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 121619/THIRD PARTY MEDICAL CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR Page 4 
 

 
 
SCOPE OF WORK:  
 

Third Party Medical Claims Administrator  

 

 

• Provider shall perform the duties of claims processing, including payment of medical claims, and to 

answer the inquiries of the Sheriff’s Department with respect to medical claims processing for each 

inmate in custody at the time of service. 

 

• Provider shall furnish claim schedules and other data in a format agreed upon by Gila County and 

Provider. 

 

 

• Providers shall submit properly coded medical claims on standard claim forms directly to the Gila 

County Sheriff’s Office.  

 

• Provider shall be ministerial in nature and shall be performed within the framework of policies, 

interpretations, rules, practices and procedures made or established by Gila County. 

 

 

• Upon receipt of complete information with respect to a claim, provider shall process that claim, supply 

documentation thereof, and return the adjudicated claim to Gila County for payment. 

 
 
 

 
SCOPE:  

 

It is the intent of Gila County to award a contract to a qualified Contractor for a Third-Party Claims Administrator 

 

See page 20 of Bid Packet for Price Proposal. 

 

INFORMATION REQUESTS 

All requests for additional information shall be put in writing and directed to: Betty Hurst, Contracts 

Administrator, (928) 402-4355,  bhurst@gilacountyaz.gov.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:jsgroi@gilacountyaz.gov


RFP NO. 121619/THIRD PARTY MEDICAL CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR Page 5 
 

PROPOSAL EVALUATION REQUIREMENTS 
 

I. PROPOSAL EVALUATION CRITERIA – (listed in relative order of importance): 

A. CORPORATE EXPERIENCE (25 POINTS): 

1. Contractor’s years in business performing services.  

2. Contractor’s experience in correctional third-party billing and review of health care services.  
Corporate experience (not individual) must be demonstrated which meets RFP qualifications for 
any points to be awarded.   

B. REFERENCES (10 POINTS):  

1. Reference has received demonstrated satisfactory service at their correctional facility for the term 
of their contract. 

2. Reference has renewed or extended their original contract with Contractor beyond the initial term 
and conditions of contract. 

C. QUALITY OF RESPONSE (30 POINTS): 

1. Contractor’s understanding of the project’s requirements. 

2. Contractor’s ability to clearly describe how the proposed program will meet the qualifications 
required as well as project objectives. 

D. CORPORATE CAPABILITY (15 POINTS): 

1. Start time to process claims and manage the proposed program once contract is awarded.  Provide 
typical turnaround time to process claims. 

E. PRICE (10 POINTS): 

1. Pricing proposal. 

        F.    EXHIBIT SAMPLE BILLING ADJUSTMENT (10 POINTS): 
 

1. Breakdown Sample Billing, Attachment “A”, by: 
 
a. Non-Covered Charges 
b. AHCCCS Fee Schedule 
c. Total Adjusted Charge 
d. Total Savings 
e. Cost to Process Clam 

  
 
  



RFP NO. 121619/THIRD PARTY MEDICAL CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR Page 6 
 

 
 
 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
 

IMPORTANT:  EXHIBIT “A”, INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS AND EXHIBIT “B”, BIDDERS AWARD AGREEMENT ARE 
BASIC CONTENT TO GILA COUNTY BID PACKAGES.  INDIVIDUAL BIDS MAY REQUIRE DIFFERENT LANGUAGE FOR 
INSTRUCTIONS AND AWARD AGREEMENTS.  WHERE APPLICABLE, SUCH CHANGES WILL APPEAR IN EXHIBIT 
“C”, MINIMUM PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS AND INFORMATION AND TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER THE LANGUAGE 
APPEARING IN EXHIBITS “A” & “B”. 
 

EXHIBIT “A” INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
 
Preparation of Sealed Proposal 

A. Sealed proposals will be received by the Gila County Finance Department, from individuals and 
Contractors to deliver the product(s), goods and services contained, to establish a contract for 
specified locations within Gila County.  The county seeks sealed proposals only from qualified, 
experienced Contractors able to provide services which are, in all respects, responsive to the 
specifications.  All proposals shall be on the forms provided in this request for sealed proposal 
package.  It is permissible to copy these forms if required but copies must have original signatures. 

 
B. Before submitting its proposal and qualification form each Contractor shall familiarize itself with the 

scope of work, laws, regulations and other factors affecting performance of work.  It shall carefully 
correlate its observations with requirements of the Contract and otherwise satisfy itself of the 
expense and difficulties attending the performance of the work.  The submission of a proposal will 
constitute a representation of compliance by the Contractor.  There will be no subsequent financial 
adjustment, other than that provided for by the Contract, for lack of such familiarization. 

 
C. Contractors must complete the proposal and qualifications forms provided in this request for proposal 

package in full, original signature in ink, by the person(s) authorized to sign the proposal and to be 
submitted at the time of bid and made a part of this contract.  The county will use the proposal and 
qualifications form in evaluating the capacity of Contractor(s) to perform the scope of services as set 
forth in the Contract.  Failure of any Contractor to complete and submit the price sheet and signature 
and offer page at time and place of opening shall be grounds for automatic disqualification of the 
Contractor(s) from further consideration. 

 
D. The names of all persons authorized to sign the proposal must also be legibly printed below the 

signature. Evidence of the authority of the person signing shall be furnished. 
 

E. The full name of each person or company interested in the request for proposal shall be listed on the 
proposal. 

 
F. No alterations in proposals, or in the printed forms therefor, by erasures, interpolations, or otherwise 

will be acceptable unless each such alteration is signed or initialed by the Contractor; if initialed, the 
county may require the Contractor to identify any alteration so initialed. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 121619/THIRD PARTY MEDICAL CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR Page 7 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Instructions to Bidders continued…. 

 
Addendum 

Any addendum issued as a result of any change in this request for sealed proposal must be acknowledged by all 
Contractors in the following manner: 
 

1. Completion of the bidder checklist & addenda acknowledgment form, page 27. 
2. Copies of all addenda must be attached to the submittal. 
 

Failure to indicate receipt of addenda in the above manner may result in a proposal being rejected as non-
responsive. 
 

Inquiries 

Any questions related to this request for proposal must be directed to those whose names appear on the notice.  
The Gila County Supervisors may require all questions be submitted in writing.  Any correspondence related to 
a request for proposals should refer to the appropriate request for proposals number, page, and paragraph 
number.  However, the Contractor(s) must not place the request for proposal number on the outside of an 
envelope containing questions since such an envelope may be identified as a sealed proposal and may not be 
opened until after the official request for proposal due date and time.  Questions received after 3:00 P.M., 
Wednesday, February 12 will not be answered.   Only questions answered by formal written addenda will be 
binding.  Oral and other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. 
 

 

Late Proposals 

Any proposal received later than the date and time specified on the notice for sealed proposal will be returned 
unopened.  Late proposals shall not be considered.  Any Contractor submitting a late proposal shall be so notified. 
 

 

Submittal Proposal Format: 

It is required that One (1) Original and Two (2) copies (3 TOTAL) with original signatures on all three (3) of the 
proposal and all forms shall be submitted.  The county will not be liable for any cost incident to the preparation 
of proposal, materials, reproductions, presentations, copy-right infringements, etc.  It is permissible to copy 
these forms if required.  Facsimiles or mailgrams shall not be considered.   Spiral bound proposals are not 
permitted. Failure to include all required documents, all with original signatures, may invalidate the bid. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 121619/THIRD PARTY MEDICAL CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR Page 8 
 

 
 
 

Instructions to Bidders continued… 

 
1. By signature in the offer section of the offer and acceptance page, Contractor certifies: 
 

A. The submission of the offer did not involve collusion or other anti-competitive practices. 
 

B. The Contractor has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any time hereafter, any 
economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor, or 
service to a public servant in connection with the submitted offer. 
 

C. In order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs, improve timely acquisition and cost of 
supplies and to improve efficiency and economy of procurement, any political subdivision, county, 
city, town, etc., of the State of Arizona, will be allowed by the Contractor awarded the contract to 
provide the same services, at the same prices stated in the proposal.  Delivery charges may 
differentiate depending on geographical location. 

 
2. Proposals submitted early may be modified or withdrawn by notice to the party receiving proposals at the 

place and prior to the time designated for receipts of proposals. 
 
3. The county is not responsible for any Contractor’s errors or omissions.  Negligence in preparing an offer 

confers no right to the Contractor unless the Contractor discovers and corrects such errors prior to the 
proposal deadline. 

 

 

The Proposal shall be submitted in a sealed envelope, a minimum of Three (3) copies with original signatures 
shall be provided by the Bidder.  The words “SEALED PROPOSAL” with Proposal Title “THIRD PARTY CLAIMS 
ADMINISTRATOR”, Proposal No., “121619”, Date “February 20, 2020”, and time “11:00 AM” of proposal 
opening shall be written on the envelope.  The Bidder(s) shall assume full responsibility for timely delivery at 
the location designated in the notice.  Spiral bound proposals are not permitted. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 121619/THIRD PARTY MEDICAL CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR Page 9 
 

 
 

 
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

Award of Contract   
 

1. The Gila County Board of Supervisors reserves the right to award any proposal by individual line item, 
by group of line items or as total, or any part thereof, whichever is deemed to be in the best interests 
of, and most advantageous to the County of Gila. 

 
a.   Notwithstanding any other provisions of the RFP, the county reserves the right to:  

1.   Waive any immaterial defects or informalities; or 
2.   Reject any or all proposals; or portions thereof; or 
3.   Reissue a request for proposal. 

 
2. It is the responsibility of the Gila County Board of Supervisors to let the county contracts to the lowest 

responsive and responsible Contractor(s).  To ensure that all Contractors are experienced, reasonably 
equipped and adequately financed to meet their contractual obligations, a determination of 
responsibility shall be made by the Gila County Board of Supervisors prior to contract award. 

 
3. Further, the County reserves the right to reject the proposal of any Contractor(s) who has previously 

failed to perform adequately after having once been awarded a prior proposal for furnishing and 
installing materials similar in nature or providing similar services. 

 
4. All submitted forms provided in this request for proposal will be reviewed by the Gila County attorney 

and Gila County Board of Supervisors. 
 

5. Those Contractor(s) who, in the opinion of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, are best qualified and 
whose proposals are most advantageous to the county may be invited to appear before the Board for 
an oral review. 

 
6. The apparent successful Contractor shall sign and file with the county, within ten (10) days after the 

date of the notice of intent to award, all documents necessary to successfully execute the contract. 
 

Protests 

Only other Contractors who have submitted a timely proposal have the right to protest.  A protest of an award 
must be filed within ten (10) days after the award by the Board of Supervisors.  A protest must be in writing and 
must include the following: 
 

A. Name, address and telephone number of the protester. 
B. Signature of the protester or its representative, and evidence of authority to sign. 
C. Identification of the contract and the solicitation or contract number. 
D. Detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds of protest including copies of relevant documents. 
E. The form of relief requested. 

 
All protests shall be sent to the attention of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, 1400 East Ash Street, Globe, 
Arizona 85501. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 121619/THIRD PARTY MEDICAL CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR Page 10 
 

 
 
 
 

General Terms & Conditions continued… 

 
 
Laws and Ordinances 

This agreement shall be governed and enforced under the laws of the State of Arizona and Gila County.  
Contractor shall maintain in current status all federal, state and local licenses and permits required for the 
operation of the business conducted by the Contractor.  The Contractor shall comply with the applicable 
provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213) and applicable 
federal regulations under the act. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 121619/THIRD PARTY MEDICAL CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR Page 11 
 

 
 
 
EXHIBIT “B” CONTRACT AWARD AGREEMENT 

This exhibit shall serve as an example of the contract agreement to any Contractor, its agents, subcontractors, 
or representatives, awarded this or any portion of this contract by the county, i.e. by submitting proposals to 
this solicitation requiring sealed proposals, it does hereby agree to the following provisions.  Proof of acceptance 
of these provisions will be the Contractor’s signature(s) appearing on all forms contained on pages 21 through 
30. 

 

Overcharges by Antitrust Violations 

The county maintains that, in actual practice, overcharges resulting from antitrust violations are borne by the 
purchaser.  Therefore, to the extent permitted by law, the Contractor hereby assigns to the county any and all 
claims for such overcharges as to the goods or services used to fulfill the contract. 
 

Authority to Contract 

This contract shall be based upon the request for proposal issued by the county and the offer submitted by the 
Contractor in response to the RFP.  The offer shall substantially conform to the terms, conditions, specifications 
and other requirements set forth within the text of the RFP.  The county reserves the right to clarify any 
contractual terms with the concurrence of the Contractor; however, any substantial non-conformity in the offer, 
as determined by the County Attorney, shall be deemed non-responsive and the offer rejected.  The contract 
shall contain the entire agreement between Gila County and the Contractor relating to these requirements and 
shall prevail over any and all previous agreements, contracts, proposals, negotiations, purchase orders, or master 
agreement in any form.  The contract activity is issued under the authority of the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors.  No alteration of any portion of the contract, any items or services awarded, or any other agreement 
that is based upon this contract may be made without express written approval of Gila County in the form of an 
official contract amendment.  Any attempt to alter any documents on the part of the Contractor or any agency 
is a violation of the county procurement code.  Any such action is subject to the legal and contractual remedies 
available to the county inclusive, but not limited to, contract cancellation, suspension and debarment of the 
Contractor. 

 

Contract Amendments 

The contract shall be modified only by a written contract amendment signed by the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors and persons duly authorized to enter into contracts on behalf of the Contractor. 
 
Contract Default 

A. The county, by written notice of default to the Contractor, may terminate the whole or any part of this 
contract in any one of the following circumstances: 

 
1. If the Contractor fails to make delivery of the supplies or deliverables, or to perform the services 

within the times specified; or 
 

2. If the Contractor fails to perform any of the other provisions of this contract; and fails to remedy 
the situation within a period of ten (10) days after receipt of notice. 

 
B. In the event the county terminates this contract in whole or part, the county may procure supplies or 

services similar to those terminated, and the Contractor shall be liable to the county for any excess costs 
for such similar supplies or services. 

 
 



RFP NO. 121619/THIRD PARTY MEDICAL CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR Page 12 
 

 
 
 
Right to Assurance 

Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other party’s intent to perform, 
the other party may demand that the other party give a written assurance of this intent to perform.  In the event 
that a demand is made, and no written assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party may treat 
this failure as an anticipatory repudiation of this contract. 
 

Co-op Use of Contract – Intergovernmental Purchasing 

Gila County has entered into an active purchasing agreement with other political subdivisions, cities, and towns 
of the State of Arizona in order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs and improve timely acquisition 
and cost of supplies, equipment and services.  The Contractor to whom this contract is awarded may be 
requested by other parties of said active purchasing agreements to extend to those parties the right to purchase 
supplies, equipment, and services provided by the Contractor under this contract, pursuant to the terms and 
conditions stated herein.  Any such usage by other entities must be in accord with the rules and regulations of 
the respective entity and the approval of the Contractor. 
 

Cancellation of County Contracts 

This contract is subject to the cancellation provisions of A.R.S. §38-511. 
 

Termination of Contract 

The county, with or without cause, may terminate this contract at any time by mutual written consent, or by 
giving thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor.  The county at its convenience, by written notice, may 
terminate this contract, in whole or in part.  If this contract is terminated, the county shall be liable only for 
payment under the payment provisions of this contract for the services rendered and accepted material received 
by the county before the effective date of termination. 
 
The county reserves the right to cancel the whole or any part of this contract due to failure of the Contractor to 
carry out any term, promise, or condition of the contract.  The county will issue a written ten (10) day notice of 
default to Contractor for acting or failing to act as in any of the following: 
 

1. In the opinion of the county, the Contractor fails to perform adequately the stipulations, conditions 
or services and specifications required in the contract. 

2. In the opinion of the county, the Contractor attempts to impose on the county material products, or 
workmanship, for services which are of unacceptable quality.  

3. Contractor fails to furnish the required service or product within the time stipulated in the contract. 
4. In the opinion of the county, the Contractor fails to make progress in the performance of the 

requirements of the contract or give the county a positive indication that Contractor will perform to 
the requirements of the contract. 

 
Each payment obligation of the county created hereby is conditioned upon the availability of county, state and 
federal funds, which are appropriated or allocated for the payment of such an obligation.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 121619/THIRD PARTY MEDICAL CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR Page 13 
 

 
 
 

Contract Award Agreement continued… 

 
If funds are not allocated by the county and available for the continuance of service herein contemplated, the 
contract period for the service may be terminated by the county at the end of the period for which funds are 
available.  The county shall notify the Contractor at the earliest possible time which service may be affected by 
a shortage of funds.  No penalty shall accrue to the county in the event this provision is exercised, and the county 
shall not be obligated or liable for any future payments due or for any damages as a result of termination under 
this paragraph. 
 
 
Indemnification Clause 

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the County of Gila and its officers, officials, agents, 
and employees (hereinafter referred to as “Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, 
damages, losses, or expenses (including court costs, attorneys’ fees, and costs of claim processing, investigation 
and litigation) (hereinafter referred to as “Claims”) for bodily injury or personal injury (including death), or loss 
or damage to tangible or intangible property caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent 
or willful acts or omissions of Contractor or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, employees or 
subcontractors.  This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered under the Workers’ 
Compensation Law or arising out of the failure of such Contractor to conform to any federal, state or local law, 
statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree.  It is the specific intention of the parties that the Indemnitee 
shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the 
Indemnitee, be indemnified by Contractor from and against any and all claims.  It is agreed that the Contractor 
will be responsible for primary loss investigation, defense and judgment costs. 
 
General 

After receipt of all proposals, each submittal shall be screened to determine if any shall be deemed non-
responsive.  Unsigned proposals, unacknowledged addenda, incomplete proposals, non-conformance with 
mandatory requirements, etc., may result in the determination of non-responsive. 
 
Subsequent to the initial review, all remaining proposals shall be reviewed by the Gila County Finance 
Department to evaluate the information submitted, perform tests when necessary and make comparisons in 
order to approve or reject the request.  If rejected, the purchasing department shall give written notice to the 
bidder submitting this request. 

 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  Contractor and subcontractors shall procure and maintain until all of their 
obligations have been discharged, including any warranty periods under this Contract are satisfied, insurance 
against claims for injury to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in connection with the 
performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or 
subcontractors.   
 
The insurance requirements herein are minimum requirements for this contract and do not limit the indemnity 
covenants contained in this contract.  The county does not warrant that the minimum limits contained herein 
are sufficient to protect the Contractor from liabilities that might arise out of the performance of the work under 
this contract by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors and Contractor may 
purchase additional insurance as may be determined necessary. 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 121619/THIRD PARTY MEDICAL CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR Page 14 
 

 
 
 

Contract Award Agreement continued… 

 
A. MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMITS OF INSURANCE:  Contractor shall provide coverage with limits of liability 

not less than those stated below. 
 

1. Commercial General Liability – Occurrence Form 
Policy shall include bodily injury, property damage and broad form contractual liability coverage. 

• General Aggregate $2,000,000 

• Products – Completed Operations Aggregate $1,000,000 

• Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000 

• Each Occurrence $1,000,000 

a. The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: "The County of 
Gila shall be named as an additional insured with respect to liability arising out of the activities 
performed by, or on behalf of the Contractor". 

 
2. Worker's Compensation and Employers' Liability 

 Workers' Compensation Statutory 
 Employers' Liability  

 Each Accident $100,000 
 Disease – Each Employee $100,000 
 Disease – Policy Limit $500,000 

a. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the County of Gila. 
 

3. Automobile Liability 
Bodily injury and property damage for any owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles used 
in the performance of this Contract. 
 Combined Single Limit (CSL) $1,000,000 

 
4. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions Liability) 

 Each Claim $1,000,000 
 Annual Aggregate $2,000,000 

a. In the event that the professional liability insurance required by this Contract is written on a 
claims-made basis, Contractor warrants that any retroactive date under the policy shall precede 
the effective date of this Contract; and that either continuous coverage will be maintained or an 
extended discovery period will be exercised for a period of two (2) years beginning at the time 
work under this Contract is completed. 

 

B. ADDITIONAL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  The policies shall include, or be endorsed to include, the 
following provisions: 

1. On insurance policies where the County of Gila is named as an additional insured, the County of Gila 
shall be an additional insured to the full limits of liability purchased by the Contractor even if those 
limits of liability are in excess of those required by this Contract. 

2 The Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance and non-contributory with respect to 
all other available sources. 

3. Coverage provided by the Contractor shall not be limited to the liability assumed under the 
indemnification provisions of this Contract. 

 



RFP NO. 121619/THIRD PARTY MEDICAL CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR Page 15 
 

 
 
 

 
Contract Award Agreement continued… 

 
C. NOTICE OF CANCELLATION: Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this Contract 

shall provide the required coverage and shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or 
endorsed to lower limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to the County.  
Such notice shall be sent directly to Gila County Purchasing Department, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ, 85501 
or and shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested. 

 
D. ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS:  Insurance is to be placed with insurers duly licensed or approved 

unlicensed companies in the state of Arizona and with an “A.M. Best” rating of not less than B+ VI.  The 
county does not warrant that the above-required minimum insurer rating is sufficient to protect the 
Contractor from potential insurer insolvency. 

 
E. VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:  Contractor shall furnish the county with certificates of insurance (ACORD 

form or equivalent approved by the county) as required by this contract.  The certificates for each 
insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. 

 
 All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the County before work 

commences.  Each insurance policy required by this contract must be in effect at or prior to 
commencement of work under this contract and remain in effect for the duration of the project.  Failure 
to maintain the insurance policies as required by this contract or to provide evidence of renewal is a 
material breach of contract.   

 
 All certificates required by this Contract shall be sent directly to Gila County Purchasing Department, 1400 

E. Ash St., Globe, AZ, 85501 or email to bhurst@gilacountyaz.gov. The county project and contract number 
and project description shall be noted on the certificate of insurance.  The county reserves the right to 
require complete, certified copies of all insurance policies required by this contract at any time.   

 
F. SUBCONTRACTORS:  Contractors’ certificate(s) shall include all subcontractors as additional insured’s 

under its policies or Contractor shall furnish to the county separate certificates and endorsements for each 
subcontractor.  All coverage’s for subcontractors shall be subject to the minimum requirements identified 
above. 

 
G. APPROVAL:  Any modification or variation from the insurance requirements in this contract shall be made 

by the County Attorney, whose decision shall be final.  Such action will not require a formal contract 
amendment but may be made by administrative action. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 121619/THIRD PARTY MEDICAL CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR Page 16 
 

 
 
 

 

MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS 
 
 

EXHIBIT “C” MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS – PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS 
 
Purpose 
It is the intent of this invitation for proposals to enter into a contract with a qualified Contractor to provide THIRD 
PARTY ADMINISTRATION for Gila County.  
 

This specification is intended to describe the type, size, and quality, which will best meet the demands of the 
using department.  It is NOT intended to favor any one brand or make.  The mention of brand names or 
components merely serves to specify the quality or general type required. 

 
 
SECTION 1.0 
 
General Purpose 

 
1.1 All proposals must represent the entire package.  Partial awards will not be made unless otherwise 

stated in the proposal specifications. 
 
1.2 The parties specifically understand and agree that the quantities used for bidding purposes are 

estimates of county needs and in no event shall the county be obligated to purchase the exact 
quantities of any item set forth in the proposal.  The county does not guarantee any maximum or 
minimum amounts of purchase. 

 
1.3 Contractor shall review its proposal submission to assure the following requirements are met. 

 
1.3.1 One (1) original and two (2) copies, total of three (3), all with original signatures, shall be 

submitted at time of bid opening. 
1.3.2 Qualification and Certification Form (page 18-19) 
1.3.3 Price Sheet (page 20) 
1.3.4 References List (page 21) 
1.3.5 No Collusion Certification (page 22) 
1.3.6 Certification of Debarment (page 23) 
1.3.7 Intentions Concerning Subcontracting (page 24) 
1.3.8 Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance (page 25) 
1.3.9 Israel Boycott Certification (page 26) 
1.3.10 Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment (page 27) 
1.3.11 Offer Page (page 28) 
1.3.12 Acceptance of Offer (page 29) 

 
SECTION 2.0 

Proposal Pricing & Term 

2.1 Prices shall be in effect for the duration of the contract period.  Contractor shall incorporate all profit 
and discount into their price.  The exception will be any price reduction, which will be applied  

 



RFP NO. 121619/THIRD PARTY MEDICAL CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR Page 17 
 

 

Minimum Specifications continued…. 

 

to the contract immediately upon the Contractor’s or Gila County’s discovery of any such price reduction. 
 

2.2 Attachment “A” on page 21 is a sample of a hospital invoice claim.  Please submit an adjusted billing 
for Attachment “A”. 
 

2.3 The term of the contract shall commence upon award and shall remain in effect for one year from the 
date of award.  The county shall have the option to renew the contract for three (3) additional one (1) 
year periods upon agreement of both parties. 

 

SECTION 3.0 

3.1       Evaluation of Proposal and Negotiations 

The finance director may appoint a selection committee to evaluate the proposals and make a 
recommendation based on the criteria set forth in the request for proposals.  The board of supervisors 
shall not act in capacity of the selection committee.  Proposals shall be evaluated on the factors set forth 
in the request for proposals. 

 
For the purpose of conducting negotiations, the county shall determine what proposals are susceptible 
for being selected for award.  A determination that a proposal is unacceptable shall be in writing, state 
the basis of the determination and be retained in the county files.  If it is determined a proposal is not 
reasonably susceptible of being selected for award, the Contractor shall be notified and shall not be 
afforded an opportunity to modify its proposal. 
 

3.2 Negotiations with Individual Contractors 
▪ Gila County may establish procedures and schedules for conducting negotiations.  Disclosure of a 

contractors’ price or any information derived from competing proposal prices or any information 
derived from competing proposals is prohibited.   

▪  
a.    Any response to a request for clarification of a proposal shall be in writing.   
b.    Gila County shall keep a record of all negotiations. 

 
▪ For the purposes of conducting negotiations with Contractors, Gila County may use any of the 

following methods that, in their judgment, best meets the unique requirements. 
 

a. Concurrent Negotiations:  Negotiations may be conducted concurrently with responsible 
Contractors for the purpose of determining source selection and or contract award.  

b. Exclusive Negotiations:  A determination may be made by the director to enter into exclusive 
negotiations with the responsible Contractor whose proposal is determined in the selection 
process to be most advantageous to the county. 

 
▪ Exclusive negotiations may be conducted subsequent to concurrent negotiations or may be 

conducted without requiring previous concurrent negotiations.  
 

a. A determination to conduct exclusive negotiations shall not constitute a contract award nor 
shall it confer any property rights to the successful Contractor.   

b. If exclusive negotiations are conducted and an agreement is not reached, the county may 
enter into exclusive negotiations with the next highest rank Contractor without the need to 
repeat the formal Solicitation process. 

 



RFP NO. 121619/THIRD PARTY MEDICAL CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR Page 18 
 

 

 

 

QUALIFICATION AND CERTIFICATION FORM 

 
EXHIBIT “D” Bidder Qualifications and Certification 
 
Purpose 
 
This exhibit shall serve as a requirement to enable the evaluation team to assess the qualifications of Contractors 
under consideration for final award. 
 
The information may or may not be a determining factor in award. 
 
 
Contract Number 121619 THIRD PARTY CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR 
 
The applicant submitting this proposal warrants the following: 
 
1. Name, Address, and Telephone Number of Principal Contractor: 

   _____________________________________________________________________ 

   _____________________________________________________________________ 

   _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
2. Has Contractor (under its present or any previous name) ever failed to complete a contract? 

________Yes    ________No.   If “Yes, give details, including the date, the contracting agency, and the 
reasons Contractor failed to perform in the narrative part of this contract. 

 
3. Has Contractor (under its present or any previous name) ever been disbarred or prohibited from 

competing for a contract?  ________Yes   ________No.   If “Yes”, give details, including the date, the 
contracting agency, the reasons for the Contractor’s disqualification, and whether this disqualification 
remains in effect in the narrative part of this contract. 

 
4. Has Contractor ever terminated a contract for cause with any individual or entity, government or 

otherwise, (under Contractor’s present or any previous name)?  ________Yes   ________No.   If “Yes”, 
give details including the date, the contracting agency, and the reasons Contractor was terminated in the 
narrative part of this contract. 

 
5. Contractor must also provide at least the following information:   

a. A brief history of the Contractor. 
b. A cost proposal shall be submitted on the price sheet, attached hereon and made a full part of 

this contract by this reference. 
c. A list of previous and current customers, which are considered identical or similar to the scope 

of services described herein; shall be submitted on the reference list, attached hereon and 
made a full part of this contract by this reference. 

d. List the specific qualifications the Contractor has in supplying the specified services. 
e. Gila County reserves the right to request additional information. 

6. Contractor Experience Modifier (e-mod) Rating in Arizona:  _____________________________ 
                                     (If Applicable) 

A method the National Council on Compensation Insurance (NCCI) uses to measure a business’ 
computed loss ratio and determine a factor, which when multiplied by premium, can reward 
policyholders with lower losses.  E-mod rate may be a determining factor in bid award. 



RFP NO. 121619/THIRD PARTY MEDICAL CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR Page 19 
 

 

7. Current Contractor Business Arizona License Number:  __________________________________ 
(If Applicable) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

________________________________________ 
       Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Title 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



RFP NO. 121619/THIRD PARTY MEDICAL CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR Page 20 
 

PRICE SHEET 

Please complete price sheet in its entirety for the services provided in RFP 121619 THIRD PARTY CLAIMS 
ADMINISTRATOR.   

 

 

Contractor Name:  _____________________________________            Phone No.:  __________________ 
 

 

    
 

 

 
 

COSTS 

 

Annual Rate 
 
(Contractor shall be paid per 
monthly expenditure report.  
Monthly expenditure report shall be 
submitted to Gila County by the 15th 
of the following month) 
 
 

 

$ _________________ 
 
 

  

 

TOTAL COST 

 

$ _________________ 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
**All applicable taxes shall be included in proposed amount. 
 
 

      
 ________________________________________ 

       Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Title 
 
 

 

 

 



Attachment "A"



RFP NO. 121619/THIRD PARTY MEDICAL CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR Page 21 
 

REFERENCE LIST 

These references are required to enable the evaluation team to assess the qualifications of the Contractor under 
consideration for final award.       
 
References 

Please list a minimum of three (3) references for contracts, entered into or completed, of similar size and scope, 
as this request for proposals during the past twenty-four (24) months.  Bidder may attach further reference 
information as necessary. 
 

1. Company:  ________________________________________________ 

Contact:   ________________________________________________ 

Phone:    ________________________________________________ 

Address:   ________________________________________________ 

Email Address: _____________________________________________  

 

2. Company:  ________________________________________________ 

Contact:   ________________________________________________ 

Phone:    ________________________________________________ 

Address:   ________________________________________________ 

Email Address: ____________________________________________ 

 

3. Company:  ________________________________________________ 

Contact:   ________________________________________________ 

Phone:    ________________________________________________ 

Address:   ________________________________________________ 

Email Address: ____________________________________________ 

 
 
            _______________________________________ 

           Name of Business 

________________________________________ 
           Signature of Authorized Representative 

                                                                                                            ________________________________________ 
           Title 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 



RFP NO. 121619/THIRD PARTY MEDICAL CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR Page 22 
 

AFFIDAVIT BY BIDDER  
CERTIFYING THAT THERE WAS NO COLLUSION 

IN BIDDING FOR CONTRACT 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA  ) 
    )ss 
COUNTY OF GILA  ) 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
(Name of Individual) 
 

being first duly sworn, deposes and says: 
 
That he or she is ___________________________________________________________________________ 

(Title) 
 
Of _____________________________________________________________________________ and 

(Name of Business) 
 

 That he or she is submitting a proposal on THIRD PARTY CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR, RFP NO. 121619 
and, 
 
 That pursuant to Section 112 (C) of Title 23 USC, he or she certifies as follows: 
 
 That neither he or she nor anyone associated with the said ___________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 

(Name of Business) 
 

has, directly, or indirectly, entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion, or otherwise taken any 
action in restraint of free-competitive bidding in connection with the above-mentioned service. 
   
      ____________________________________________ 
      Name of Business 
 
      ____________________________________________ 
      By 
 
      ____________________________________________ 
      Title 
 
       
Subscribed and sworn to before me this _________ day of ____________________________, 2019. 
 
__________________________________ My Commission expires:  ______________________ 
Notary Public 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 121619/THIRD PARTY MEDICAL CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR Page 23 
 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER 
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS 

 
The prospective participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals: 
 

(a) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency; 
 

(b) Have not within a three year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a 
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or 
local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State 
antitrust statutes or commission or embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

 
 

(c) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a government 
entity (Federal, State, or local with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in 
paragraph (1)(b) of this certification; and 
 

(d) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more 
public transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default 

 
I understand that a false statement on this certification may be grounds for rejection of this proposal 
or termination of the award.  IN addition, under 18 USC Sec. 1001, a false statement may result in a 
fine of up to $10,000 or imprisonment for up to 5 years, or both. 
 
 
 

Typed Name and Title of Authorized Representative 
 
 
 
 

Signature of Authorized Representative 
 

 .................................................... I am unable to certify the above statements.  My explanation is attached 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 121619/THIRD PARTY MEDICAL CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR Page 24 
 

 
CERTIFICATION:  INTENTIONS CONCERNING SUBCONTRACTING 

 
 
 At the time of the submission of bids on Bid No. 121619 THIRD PARTY CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR, my 
intention concerning subcontracting a portion of the work is as indicated below. 
 
 A list of any subcontractors (if applicable) to be used in performing the service must accompany the 
proposal.  The list must include the subcontractors name, address, phone number, and Arizona Registrar of 
Contractors License Number.  List must be provided in a sealed envelope marked “List of Subcontractors”. 

 
 
 
 
 

     YES, it is my intention to subcontract a portion of the work. 
 

     NO, it is not my intention to subcontract a portion of the work. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________ 
      Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Printed Name 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Title 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 121619/THIRD PARTY MEDICAL CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR Page 25 
 

 
 
 

LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE 
 

Contractor hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all federal 
immigration laws applicable to Contractor’s employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. 
§ 23-214 (A) (together the “State and Federal Immigration Laws”).  Contractor shall further ensure that each 
subcontractor who performs any work for Contractor under this contract likewise complies with the state and 
federal immigration laws. 
  
County shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records of Contractor and any subcontractor in 
order to verify such party’s compliance with the state and federal immigration laws.   
 
 Any breach of Contractor’s or any subcontractor’s warranty of compliance with the state and federal 
immigration laws, or of any other provision of this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this 
contract subjecting Contractor to penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this contract. If the 
breach is by a subcontractor, and the subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result, Contractor shall be 
required to take such steps as may be necessary to either self-perform the services that would have been 
provided under the subcontract or retain a replacement subcontractor, as soon as possible so as not to delay 
delivery of services.   
 
Contractor shall advise each subcontractor of county’s rights, and the subcontractor’s obligations, under this 
Article by including a provision in each subcontract substantially in the following form:  “Subcontractor hereby 
warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all federal immigration laws 
applicable to subcontractor’s employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A). Subcontractor further 
agrees that county may inspect the subcontractor’s books and records to insure that subcontractor is in 
compliance with these requirements.  Any breach of this paragraph by subcontractor will be deemed to be a 
material breach of this contract subjecting subcontractor to penalties up to and including suspension or 
termination of this contract.”  
  
Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action under this Article shall be the 
responsibility of Contractor. 
 

 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 

      Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Printed Name 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Title 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 121619/THIRD PARTY MEDICAL CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR Page 26 
 

 
 

ISRAEL BOYCOTT CERTIFICATION 
 
 

Contractor hereby certifies that it is not currently engaged in and will not, for the duration of this 
agreement, engage in a boycott of Israel as defined by A.R.S. § 35-393.01. Violation of this certification by 
Contractor may result in action by County up to and including termination of this agreement. 
 

 

 

       
Date:  __________________________  

 
 

_____________________________________________ 

      Signature of Authorized Representative 

 

 

      _____________________________________________ 

      Printed Name 

 

 

      _____________________________________________ 

      Title 

       

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Unless and until the District Court's injunction in Jordahl is stayed or lifted, the Anti-Israel Boycott Provision 
(A.R.S. §35-393.01 (A)) is unenforceable and the State will take no action to enforce it. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 121619/THIRD PARTY MEDICAL CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR Page 27 
 

 
BIDDER CHECKLIST & ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that all bid documents shall be completed and executed and submitted with this RFP.  
If Contractor fails to complete and execute any portion of the bid documents, all with original signatures, the 
RFP may be determined to be non-responsive and rejected. 
 
CHECKLIST: 
 

REQUIRED DOCUMENT      COMPLETED AND EXECUTED 
 
QUALIFICATION & CERTIFICATION FORM              ______________ 

PRICE SHEET              ______________ 

REFERENCE LIST             ______________ 

NO COLLUSION FORM            ______________ 

INTENTIONS IN SUBCONTRACTING           ______________ 

LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE          ______________ 

ISRAEL BOYCOT CERTIFICATION           ______________ 

CHECKLIST & ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENT          ______________ 

OFFER PAGE              ______________ 

      
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF ADDENDA: 

 

    #1  #2             #3             #4           #5 

Initials         ________        ________          ________           ________          ________ 

Date         ________           ________          ________            ________          ________  
 

 

Signed and dated this _________ day of ______________________, 2019 
 
           ______________________________________ 
                                   Contractor: 

           ______________________________________ 
                                       By:   
 
 
Each proposal shall be sealed in an envelope addressed to the Finance Department, Gila County and bearing the following 
statement on the outside of the envelope:  Request for Sealed Proposals:  Bid No. 121619 THIRD PARTY MEDICAL CLAIMS 
ADMINISTRATOR.  All proposals shall be filed with the Gila County Finance Department Division in the Copper Building at 
1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ on or before, December 18, 2019, by 3:00 PM. 

 
 
 

 

 

 



RFP NO. 121619/THIRD PARTY MEDICAL CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR Page 28 
 

 

OFFER PAGE  

TO GILA COUNTY: 

The undersigned hereby offers and agrees to furnish the material or service in compliance with all terms and 
conditions, instruction, specifications, and any amendments contained in this request for proposal document. 
 
Signature also certifies the Contractors bid proposal is genuine, and is not in any way collusive or a sham; that 
the bid proposal is not made with the intent to restrict or prohibit competition; that the Contractor submitting 
the proposal has not revealed the contents of the proposal to, or in any way colluded with, any other Contractor 
which may compete for the contract; and that no other Contractor which may compete for the contract has 
revealed the contents of a proposal to, or in any way colluded with, the Contractor submitting this proposal. 
 

CONTRACT NUMBER:  121619 THIRD PARTY CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR 
 
 
 
Contractor Submitting Proposal:    For clarification of this offer, contact: 

 
 
________________________________________  Name:  __________________________________ 
Company Name 
 
________________________________________  Phone No.:  ______________________________ 
Address   
       Fax   ____________________________________ 
_________________________________________ 
City                                State                                Zip  Email:  __________________________________ 
       
 
 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Signature of Authorized Person to Sign 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Title 
 
 
Proposal must be signed by a duly authorized officer(s) eligible to sign contract documents for the Contractor. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 121619/THIRD PARTY MEDICAL CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR Page 29 
 

 
 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER 
(For Gila County use only) 

 
 
 
 

The Offer is hereby Accepted: 
 

The Contractor                  is now bound to provide the materials or services listed 

in RFP No.: 121619, including all terms and conditions, specifications, and amendments, and the contractor’s 

offer as accepted by Gila County. 

 

The contract shall henceforth be referenced to as    Contract No. 121619. The Contractor has been cautioned 

not to commence any billable work or to provide any material or service under this contract until Contractor 

receives written notice to proceed from Gila County. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, three (3) identical counterparts of this contract, each of which shall include original 
signatures, and for all purposes shall be deemed an original thereof, have been duly executed by the parties 
hereinabove named, on this __________________ day of _________________________________,                    . 
 
GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:    CONTRACTOR: 
 
 
              
Woody Cline, Chairman, Board of Supervisors          Authorized Signature 
 
 
ATTEST:              
        Print Name 
 
         
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
The Gila County Attorney’s Office 

 

 



INVITATION FOR BID NO. 121619 
ADDENDUM #1 

 
 

GILA COUNTY 

THIRD PARTY MEDICAL CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR 

INVITATION FOR BID NO. 121619 
 

ADDENDUM #1:   

DATE: 02/11/2020 

 

CLARIFICATIONS: 

 

1. QUESTION:  Who currently provides these services for the County? 

ANSWER:  Gila County does not currently have a provider for these services. 

 

2. QUESTION:  What reimbursement methodology is being used for reducing billed charges? 

ANSWER:  Applying Arizona AHCCCS rate structure and removing “creative” coding used by medical 

facilities. 

 

3. QUESTION:  How many bills have been processed annually each year for the last three years? 

ANSWER:  We do not currently have a vendor that processes medical claims. 

 

4. QUESTION:  Please provide a cost savings report indicating number of bills, billed charges, bill 

reductions, etc., for each of the last three years. 

ANSWER:  See Attachment “A” below. 

 

5. QUESTION:  The RFP asks for a flat annual fee vs. a fee per bill.  Will the County consider different 

pricing structure(s)? 

ANSWER:  Gila County would prefer a flat annual fee. 

 

6. QUESTION:  What is the current annual contract value? 

ANSWER:  There is no current contract in place. 

 

 

 



INVITATION FOR BID NO. 121619 
ADDENDUM #1 

7. QUESTION:  There is a short turnaround period for submission for this particular proposal.  Will the 

County allow a minimum of 10 business days after answers to questions are released for submission? 

ANSWER:  No. The due date has been established on the RFP and cannot be changed; bids are due by 

February 20, 2020 at 11:00 A.M. 

 

8. QUESTION:  Will the County send answers to all questions submitted by all potential vendors or any 

addenda issued by the County to me directly, please? 

ANSWERS:  Yes, all answers to questions will be sent via an addendum to all vendors who received the 

request for proposal. In addition, the Addendum will be posted on the County website. 

 

 

 



Before After Before After Before After Charged Ahcccs Before After Before

$102.00 $13.39 $67.00 $30.75 $1,783.00 $860.37 $36.00 $20.47 $31,714.66 $3,657.83 $4,689.00

$102.00 $13.39 $112.00 $54.54 $1,190.00 $574.95 $36.00 $20.47 $959.00 $353.29 $5,790.00

$1,058.00 $256.02 $252.00 $87.92 $775.00 $345.60 $240.00 $197.42 $160.00 $54.54 $1,421.40

$2,135.75 $285.31 $490.00 $151.95 $1,718.00 $831.00 $124.00 $77.99 $400.00 $54.54

$192.00 $50.68 $706.00 $277.09 $775.00 $346.60 $36.00 $20.47 $116.00 $58.05

$2,193.88 $623.38 $175.00 $54.54 $1,211.00 $560.32 $36.00 $20.47 $364.00 $114.66

$1,485.05 $744.91 175.00 $54.54 $1,761.00 $838.37 $28.00 $28.00 $4,332.00 $1,000.48

$184.00 $20.47 $775.00 $345.60 $467.00 $187.52

$6,216.63 $1,201.25 $1,506.00 $443.81 $205.00 $93.76

$192.00 $50.68 $605.00 $98.21 $42.00 $42.00

$191.00 $50.68 $1,783.00 $860.37 $36.00 $36.00

$1,743.20 $735.46 $518.00 $88.87 $350.00 $279.31

$2,804.35 $538.88 $1,190.00 $243.18 $42.00 $26.59

$183.00 $109.08 $775.00 $48.87 $36.00 $20.47

$1,431.75 $814.62 $1,718.00 $137.00 $240.00 $197.42

$434.52 $273.74 $1,168.00 $93.19 $36.00 $20.47

$2,055.33 $955.44 $43.00 $7.37 $36.00 $20.47

$2,345.36 $1,091.02 $1,249.00 $116.19 $36.00 $20.47

$1,158.94 $633.68 $814.00 $48.87 $335.00 $160.01

$220.00 $31.05 $1,582.00 $147.08 $36.00 $20.47

$191.00 $50.68 $1,718.00 $332.40 $36.00 $20.47

$192.00 $50.68 $1,894.00 $339.82 $163.00 $93.76

$1,354.53 $519.83 $1,849.00 $339.82 $220.00 $93.76

$102.00 $13.39 $1,872.00 $357.03 $36.00 $21.39 11,900.40

$102.00 $13.39 $1,226.00 $221.18 $163.00 $93.76

$1,058.00 256.02 $1,804.00 $332.40 $163.00 $93.76

$2,135.75 $285.31 $1,804.00 $137.00 $42.00 $26.59

$192.00 $50.68 $1,226.00 $221.18 $34.00 $28.71 $38,045.66 $5,293.39

$2,193.88 $623.38 $837.00 $60.24 $36.00 $20.47

$1,485.05 $744.91 $814.00 $138.24 $42.00 $26.59

Started 2/16/17  Medical billing
Maricopa Health SystemCobre Valley Med CR Cobre valley Surgical Banner medical PaysonAffilion of Cobre Valley Medical Diagnost & Imaging

schaidez
Typewritten Text

schaidez
Typewritten Text

schaidez
Typewritten Text
Attachment "A"



$184.00 $20.47 $1,271.00 $100.56 $33.00 $24.43

$6,216.63 $1,201.25 $1,827.00 $160.00 $335.00 $160.01

$67.00 $30.75 $36.00 $20.47

$666.94 $381.09 $163.00 $93.76

$192.00 $50.68 $36.00 $20.47

$192.00 $50.68 $383.00 $144.44

$1,460.20 $588.88 $42.00 $25.59

$104.00 $13.85 $34.00 $28.71

$184.00 $20.47 $36.00 $20.47

$184.00 $20.47 $163.00 $93.76

$3,371.67 $900.90 $156.00 $107.61

$4,426.00 $1,354.39 $163.00 $93.76

$924.13 $552.47 $42.00 $24.16

$4,335.51 $1,163.08 $95.00 $31.53

$184.00 $20.47 $192.00 $127.11

$192.00 $50.68 $42.00 $24.16

$1,605.65 $861.14 $42.00 $24.16

$191.00 $26.59 $36.00 $19.50

$68.00 $9.02 $336.00 $197.42

$1,857.38 $933.87 $36.00 $19.50

$2,865.00 $187.52 $36.00 $20.47

$192.00 $50.68 $33.00 $27.49

$1,419.86 $682.52 $617.00 $472.44

$1,842.03 $890.97 $36.00 $20.47

$17,696.51 $3,919.22 $33.00 $27.49

$2,357.36 $646.71 $335.00 $160.01

$1,608.00 $431.05 $36.00 $20.47

$1,516.00 $93.76 $34.00 $50.68

$3,399.85 $1,107.71 $36.00 $21.39

$500.72 $215.55 $87.00 $87.00

$775.00 $249.78 $350.00 $271.41

$135.50 $90.56 $34.00 $24.78

$102.00 $13.39 $34.00 $26.64

$2,859.26 $606.86 $134.00 $107.30



$1,516.00 $93.76 $205.00 $93.76

$529.00 $107.61 $34.00 $29.32

$2,057.00 $724.61 $220.00 $93.76

$2,691.27 $1,373.39 $36.00 $20.47

$2,344.12 $1,193.50 $36.00 $20.47

$2,411.69 $971.39 $279.00 $228.00

$190.00 $24.16 $28.00 $28.00

$332.00 $45.97 $34.00 $32.98

$102.00 $13.39 $34.00 $32.98

$973.81 $529.33 $368.00 $187.52

$2,227.00 $197.42 $48.00 $37.85

$68.00 $68.00 $475.00 $475.00

$2,898.96 $1,063.96 $34.00 $32.98

$190.00 $50.68 $87.00 $87.00

$190.00 $50.68 $350.00 $219.70

$100.00 $14.37 $36.00 $24.47

$190.00 $50.68 $299.00 $299.00

$190.00 $50.68 $36.00 $20.47

$104.00 $13.85 $124.00 $93.45

$10,712.20 $3,410.35 $588.00 $280.35

$1,449.15 $519.72 $34.00 $34.00

$1,792.95 $750.53 $36.00 $20.47

$7,750.79 $1,383.84 $163.00 $93.45

$788.00 $128.01

$682.00 $358.33

$102.00 $13.39

$40.00 $5.35

$1,565.00 $160.01

$190.00 $50.68

$218.50 $94.51

$190.00 $27.49

$190.00 $32.98

$3,173.23 $1,228.81

$190.00 $26.64



$369.52 $182.05

$3,654.94 $941.90

$560.00 $203.60

$131.00 $18.44

$7,137.56 $936.04

$529.00 $76.74

$529.00 $128.01

$1,829.75 $587.98

$401.00 $180.47

$1,042.00 $446.57

$4,445.45 $880.02

$150.00 $19.83

$529.00 $128.01

$2,227.00 $197.42

$3,102.83 $1,536.22

$7,614.02 $1,318.62

$4,629.06 $1,228.56

$190.00 $50.68

$31,047.28 $2,558.71

$7,614.02 $1,238.63

$150.00 $150.00

$2,227.00 $197.42

$3,102.83 $2,238.90

$529.00 $128.01

$104.00 $104.00

$190.00 $29.00

$310.00 $37.85

$2,675.78 $567.58

$190.00 $32.98

$1,185.35 $465.77

$190.00 $29.32

$190.00 $20.47

$190.00 $20.47

$8,732.85 $982.06



$1,406.94 $517.29

$4,023.00 $1,512.54

$3,845.78 $1,309.75

$25,336.68 $5,069.38

$3,412.48 $1,263.87

$4,083.39 $918.50

$2,934.00 $918.50

$1,405.81 $938.08

$163.00 $22.58

$1,516.00 $93.45

$420.00 $286.10

$1,698.00 $608.44

$1,516.00 $93.45

$8,251.67 $1,178.67

$5,502.00 $836.03

$1,299.67 $524.32

$1,451.87 $625.06

$969.28 $354.59

$190.00 $49.62

$8,376.87 $2,129.42

$48,767.84 $16,495.52

$192.00 $49.62

$985.82 $449.19

$1,889.07 $866.50

$10,120.32 $2,378.97

385105.57 100718.72 $1,977.00 $711.33 $41,081.00 $9,775.69 $4,430.00 $2,547.39



After Before After Before After Before After Before After Before

93.76 $38,367.55 $3,402.24 $118.00 $31.06 $135.00 $14.83 $118.00 $54.54 $1,365.40

$228.00 $610.00 $160.89 $479.00 $172.98 $274.00 $54.54 $2,518.79

$37.24 $135.00 $14.83 $182.00 $54.54 $2,390.00

$688.00 $214.39 $1,373.99

$1,373.99

$1,375.42

$1,384.01

$2,304.14

$1,359.68

$1,381.15

$1,375.42

$1,373.99

$3,210.66

$1,376.85

$1,373.99

$1,375.42

$359.00 $728.00 $191.95 $1,437.00 $417.03 $574.00 $163.62 $26,912.90

Banner medical Payson Scottsdale Healthcare Hospital Scottsdale Healthcare Surgical Tricity Fire DistrictLaboratory Corporation of America Ironwood Physicians PC











After Before After Before After Before After Before After Before After

$486.29 $188,282.50 $27,891.78 $135.00 $93.76 $11,930.30 $1,219.26 $10,080.00 $9,382.11 $81,202.00 $7,371.66

$1,265.69 $333.00 $187.52

$1,178.66 $206.00 $200.97

$492.09 $252.00 $195.34

$492.09 $135.00 $93.76

$493.05

$498.85

$1,120.64

$932.61

$947.33

$943.40

$942.42

$944.38

$942.41

$943.40

12,623.31 $1,061.00 $771.35

HavenPromise HospitalTricity Fire District Banner University med Chandler Regional/diginty Health Southwest neuro imaging











Before After

$9,573.50 $3,657.71

Banner Desert



Before After Before After Before After Charged Ahcccs Charged Ahcccs

$190.00 $49.62 $266.00 $54.54 $1,804.00 $137.00 $37.00 $32.98

$2,797.89 $1,436.40 $2,205.00 $661.02 $1,804.00 $136.78 $182.00 $182.00

$190.00 $49.62 $118.00 $70.23 $1,249.00 $104.06 $261.00 $143.08

$190.00 $49.62 $112.00 $54.54 $1,804.00 $136.78 $342.00 $187.28

$184.00 $49.62 $1,166.00 $405.11 $2,572.00 $234.55 $39.00 $25.02

$192.00 $49.62 $1,872.00 $155.50 $342.00 $187.28

$202.00 $25.51 $2,617.00 $271.23 $245.00 $93.45

$3,007.85 $693.47 $1,226.00 $92.85 $42.00 $17.34

$10,047.02 $3,377.69 $1,804.00 $136.78 $42.00 $17.34

$323.50 $132.03 $814.00 $48.94 $39.00 $24.41

$4,047.00 $912.70 $1,804.00 $137.00 $50.00 $49.62

$570.00 $99.24 $1,804.00 $137.00 $44.00 $49.62

$190.00 $49.62 $1,827.00 $148.50 $42.00 $17.34

$6,752.74 $2,303.80 $1,804.00 $115.30 $245.00 $93.45

$4,370.56 $1,079.29 $1,804.00 $36.37 $42.00 $17.34

$5,374.97 $1,982.13 $814.00 $48.98 $229.00 $109.09

$16,914.81 $3,662.07 $1,226.00 $92.85 $342.00 $187.28

$185.34 $59.85 $1,804.00 $137.00 $42.00 $17.34

$123.00 $15.41 $1,893.00 $181.50 $197.00 $93.45

$1,108.00 $322.95 $814.00 $48.98 $42.00 $42.00

$391.00 $172.91 $1,804.00 $29.47 $1,031.00 $728.15

$1,565.00 $160.01 $1,804.00 $137.00 $384.00 $208.84

$480.00 $93.45 $814.00 $48.94 $342.00 $187.28

$4,754.41 $2,059.22 $44.00 $26.32

$2,091.00 $633.38 $42.00 $21.56

$4,412.95 977.67 $42.00 $21.56

$2,859.15 $807.56 $42.00 $21.56

$2,491.06 $947.25 $80.00 $57.71

$1,320.00 $500.59 $342.00 $187.28

$987.63 $232.15 $342.00 $187.28

Started 1/1/2019  Medical billing
District Medical GroupCobre Valley Med CR Cobre valley Surgical Affilion of Cobre Valley Medical Diagnost & Imaging



$3,018.00 $473.71 $327.00 $192.49

$2,035.00 $669.72 $418.00 $219.70

$2,544.00 $715.35 $40.00 $28.86

$408.00 $180.16 $342.00 $187.28

$3,225.75 $908.54 $392.00 $143.07

$1,519.46 $391.44 $52.00 $31.71

$772.00 $105.31

$191.00 $49.62

$788.00 $93.45

$4,010.50 $834.79

$27,421.44 $10,320.62

$408.00 $180.16

$150.00 $66.08

$7,981.88 $1,494.07

$3,199.00 $961.05

$591.00 $220.91

$261.00 $34.24

$150.00 $66.08

$109.00 $13.38

$788.00 $93.45

$3,381.30 $861.80

$14,479.50 $5,049.17

$480.00 $180.16

$170.00 $25.61

$190.00 $49.62

$529.00 $93.45

$619.00 $80.96

$340.00 $146.10

$190.00 $49.62

$5,109.00 $628.68

$1,290.05 $546.54

$1,893.00 $640.76

$5,297.00 $787.19

$3,473.00 $688.03



$4,111.80 $917.66

$836.84 $184.04

$2,462.80 $699.25

$190.00 $49.62

$415.25 $187.72

$718.00 $273.92

$4,447.40 $1,322.61

$4,993.00 $789.50

$598.50 $230.59

$4,007.50 $884.65

$1,824.00 $568.75

$408.00 $180.47

$413.00 $185.47

$703.00 $351.27

$96.00 $11.99

$190.00 $49.62

$20,981.18 $13,543.53

$30,679.94 $13,543.53

$1,496.75 $46,790.00

$190.00 $49.62

$2,857.00 $946.94

$2,792.95 $1,002.28

$190.00 $49.62

$123.00 $15.23

$1,394.25 $527.97

$190.00 $49.62

$2,952.90 $804.98

$85.00 $9.08

$1,929.50 $311.19

$120.34 $77.98

$238.00 $74.05

$102.00 $12.47

$120.34 $77.98

$368.00 $48.66



$102.00 $12.47

$208.00 $24.13

$196.00 $22.53

$40.00 $4.37

$12,229.00 $1,566.95

$7,249.75 $2,669.61

$190.00 $25.05

$191.00 $27.59

$190.00 $28.86

$408.50 $212.74

$159.00 $20.37

$261.00 $30.23

$10,777.88 $3,748.60

$176.00 $18.80

$190.00 $28.86

$88.00 $9.40

$190.00 $28.86

$3,544.00 $535.23

$120.34 $77.98

$723.00 $217.18

$191.00 $27.59

$144.00 $18.05

$102.00 $8.11

$261.00 $28.48

$600.00 $205.21

$2,379.00 $463.34

$1,012.00 $187.28

$190.00 $26.32

$190.00 $32.35

$1,349.00 $93.45

$380.00 $56.45

$5,119.00 $638.68

$613.00 $221.79

$1,368.00 $466.12



$208.00 $24.13

$190.00 $28.86

$191.00 $27.59

$192.00 $30.44

$529.00 $121.93

$100.00 $11.74

$208.00 $24.13

$978.00 $143.07

$159.00 $20.37

$6,126.00 $1,175.08

$9,409.19 $1,309.58

337972.66 150206.08 3867 1245.44 37582 2753.36 7108 4037.36 0 0



Before After Before After Before After Before After Before After

$45.00 $19.02

Scottsdale Osborn NeurosurgicalMercy Gilbert Med Ctr Maricopa Health System St Joseph Hospital St Joe's Neurosurgical 











Before After Before After Before After Before After Before After

Mountain Vista Hosp Valley View Surgical Mtn Vista Hand Internal Med Mtn Vista Cardio Mtn Vista Anesthesia Mtn Vista











Before After Before After Before After Before After Before After

$462.00 51.48 $13,872.40 $2,624.95

Anesthesia Mercy Gilbert EV Intensivist Mercy Gilbert Banner medical Payson Banner Baywood HospMountain Imaging Banner Payson











Before After Before After Before After Before After

Scottsdale Healthcare Hospital Scottsdale Healthcare SurgicalABC Anesthesia Banner Baywood Southwest Imaging Banner Baywood











Before After Before After Before After Before After Before

$1,373.99 $942.41

$1,910.49 $1,310.41

$1,923.91 $1,319.60

$1,921.67 $1,318.07

$1,913.84 $1,312.70

$1,923.91 $1,319.60

$1,921.67 $1,318.07

$1,916.08 $1,314.23

$1,922.79 $1,318.84

$1,921.67 $1,318.07

$1,921.67 $1,318.07

$1,921.67 $1,318.07

$1,921.67 $1,318.07

$1,921.67 $121.50

Promise HospitalTricity Fire DistrictLaboratory Corporation of America Ironwood Physicians PC Southwest neuro imaging











After Before After Before After Before After Before After

$50,880.10 $5,264.61 $49,597.00 $5,365.91

Banner DesertAir Evac ServicesBanner University med Chandler Regional/diginty Health Southwest neuro imaging



Before After Before After Before After Before After Before After Before After

$1,827.00 $797.20 $175.00 $54.54 $1,226.00 $93.19 $335.00 $160.01

$2,562.81 $1,005.11 $67.00 $30.75 $1,266.00 $93.19 $146.00 $109.90

$7,282.40 $1,427.29 $118.00 $70.27 $814.00 $48.91 $719.00 $439.40

$3,891.00 $1,011.01 $1,271.00 $100.24 $36.00 $36.00

$190.00 $49.62 $1,804.00 $136.91 $33.00 $25.35

$414.81 $355.54 $1,994.00 $219.72 $36.00 $36.00

$190.00 $49.62 $2,156.00 $555.34 $33.00 $27.49

$24,669.13 $4,330.89 $1,849.00 $144.37 $40.00 $40.00

$788.00 $93.45 $1,804.00 $136.91 $36.00 $24.43

$571.00 $206.10 $1,804.00 $136.91 $257.00 $143.07

$190.00 $49.62 $1,872.00 $167.28 $40.00 $40.00

$956.94 $465.88 $1,804.00 $136.91 $96.00 $93.45

$2,839.38 $691.82 $1,697.00 $192.50 $36.00 $25.38

$190.00 $49.62 $814.00 $48.91 $33.00 $25.59

$184.00 $51.48 $1,249.00 $103.99 $47.00 $26.19

$184.00 $51.48 $814.00 $48.91 $40.00 $40.00

$1,496.39 $937.36 $1,849.00 $144.37 $40.00 $40.00

$538.00 $198.65 $1,421.00 $140.91 $37.00 $32.98

$191.00 $51.48 $1,804.00 $137.00 $40.00 $40.00

$1,083.02 $473.81 $1,849.00 $144.29 $40.00 $40.00

$35,841.28 $15,726.49 $1,226.00 $93.19 $51.00 $49.62

$13,842.91 $3,656.68 $1,804.00 $33.95 $47.00 $26.19

$50.00 $6.46 $163.00 $93.45

$986.28 $484.51 $40.00 $17.04

$2,132.39 $1,083.40 $47.00 $47.00

$190.00 49.62 $31.00 $29.00

$1,737.52 $661.73 $37.00 $28.71

$3,631.53 $1,107.57 $473.00 $372.12

$2,169.48 $698.16 $37.00 $32.98

$5,124.75 $1,541.93 $37.00 $28.71

$191.00 $51.48 $371.00 $186.90

$2,491.06 $1,051.27 $369.00 $160.01

$8,319.11 $2,475.69 $67.00 $42.79

$190.00 $23.10 $41.00 $25.33

$190.00 $27.53 $409.00 $211.49

$1,290.38 $704.00 $179.00 $93.45

$190.00 $49.62 $40.00 $40.00

$191.00 $47.00 $47.00 $47.00

$309.32 $72.72 $421.00 $186.90

Started 1/1/2018  Medical billing
Mercy Gilbert Med CtrDistrict Medical GroupCobre Valley Med CR Cobre valley Surgical Affilion of Cobre Valley Medical Diagnost & Imaging



$190.00 $49.62 $40.00 40..00

$2,464.00 $910.27 $37.00 $28.71

$1,565.00 $160.01 $37.00 $28.71

$310.00 $93.45 $405.00 $186.90

$1,695.67 $930.87 $37.00 $29.32

$191.00 $51.48 $369.00 $160.01

$1,080.95 $472.96 $40.00 $40.00

$5,317.82 $1,800.70 $194.00 $144.09

$1,839.00 $620.14 $884.00 $532.85

$2,890.81 $617.02 $615.00 $280.35

$184.00 $51.48 $446.00 $259.70

$4,383.67 $843.11 $40.00 $40.00

$4,340.33 $1,344.81 $40.00 $40.00

$1,539.58 $620.92 $40.00 $40.00

$1,783.13 $747.93 $161.00 $87.76

$190.00 $49.62 $44.00 $27.16

$190.00 $49.62 $37.00 $27.23

$184.00 $40.00 $145.00 $93.45

$184.00 $40.00 $136.00 $74.99

$3,753.00 $535.23 $213.00 $93.45

$120.34 $54.58 $47.00 $47.00

$184.00 $40.00 $615.00 $280.35

$17,785.04 $5,389.23 $356.00 $242.31

$59.00 $7.57 $293.00 $187.28

$8,277.88 $2,562.82 $52.00 $31.44

$735.68 $515.15 $74.00 $61.69

$824.05 $361.31 $37.00 $28.71

$3,192.35 $1,197.24 $179.00 $93.45

$2,652.08 $877.26 $40.00 $40.00

$590.30 $369.77 $44.00 $25.66

$190.00 $49.62 $54.00 $33.92

$445.92 $225.39 $37.00 $28.71

$2,252.20 $612.80 $445.00 $236.52

$1,919.00 $555.12 $369.00 $160.01

$560.00 $105.12 $111.00 $148.86

$146.00 $19.11 $40.00 $40.00

$760.33 $304.44 $143.00 $49.62

$887.34 $242.24 $59.00 $59.00

$601.00 $240.11 $425.00 $269.32

$541.83 $99.26 $145.00 $93.45

$1,445.00 $93.45 $213.00 $93.45

$131.00 $18.68 $128.00 $128.00

$14,302.19 $4,578.32 $40.00 $40.00



$4,339.38 $2,049.64 $369.00 $160.01

$5,323.00 $633.68

$380.00 $99.24

$3,894.00 $1,648.07

$2,359.00 $187.28

$2,034.23 $891.70

$1,534.00 $602.08

$408.00 $180.47

$3,339.00 $729.35

$1,457.00 $610.27

$190.00 $28.71

$13,290.00 $500.25

$190.00 $49.62

$206.01 $59.29

$190.00 $49.62

$570.00 $148.86

$6,959.11 $1,500.65

$1,682.39 $633.40

$872.67 $401.62

$184.00 $49.62

$192.00 $93.45

$138.00 $49.62

$1,467.86 $556.45

$1,445.00 $93.45

$480.00 $93.45

$9,952.60 $8,093.59

$2,827.64 $1,049.08

$1,565.00 $160.01

$1,159.68 $224.63

$190.00 $49.62

291004.95 91930.59 360 155.56 34191 3057.9 4606 2977.03 0 0



Before After Before After Before After Before After Before After Before After

$45.00 $19.02

Scottsdale Osborn Neurosurgical Mountain Vista Hosp Valley View Surgical Mtn VistaMaricopa Health System St Joseph Hospital St Joe's Neurosurgical 







Before After Before After Before After Before After Before After Before After

$462.00 51.48

Hand Internal Med Mtn Vista Cardio Mtn Vista Anesthesia Mtn Vista Anesthesia Mercy Gilbert EV Intensivist Mercy Gilbert Banner medical Payson







Before After Before After Before After Before After Before After

$13,872.40 $2,624.95 $227.00 $187.28

Scottsdale Healthcare HospitalBanner Baywood Hosp ABC Anesthesia Banner Baywood Southwest Imaging Banner BaywoodMountain Imaging Banner Payson







Before After Before After Before After Before After Before After

$485.00 $173.06 $1,373.99 $942.41

$1,373.99 $942.41

$1,359.68 $932.60

$1,388.30 $952.23

$1,368.27 $938.49

$1,375.42 $943.40

$1,362.54 $934.56

$1,375.42 $119.29

$1,359.68 $932.60

$1,373.99 $942.41

$13,711.28 $8,580.40

Promise HospitalScottsdale Healthcare Surgical Tricity Fire DistrictLaboratory Corporation of America Ironwood Physicians PC







Before After Before After Before After Before After Before After

$69,894.06 $11,445.02

48,470.00$                         $14,742.69

$118,364.06 $26,187.71

Banner DesertHavenBanner University med Chandler Regional/diginty Health Southwest neuro imaging



























































 

GILA  
     COUNTY                                  CONTRACT REQUEST 

For departments requesting that a contract be prepared by the Gila County Procurement Group, please complete this form in its 
entirety.  Form may be emailed or sent interoffice to Procurement.  Please be sure to attach any backup documentation. 
 

 
 Contract No.:  
                   (For Procurement Use Only) 
 
 Requesting Department:  Date:  
 
Contract Title:  
 
Contract Start Date:  Contract End Date:  
 
Company Title or Vendor Name:  
 
Contact Name:  E-mail:  
 
Address   – Street:  Phone:  

City:    
State, Zip    

 
Contract Amount $   Project No.:  
        (If there are multiple fees & projects involved please provide) 
 

 
Fund:  Dept:  Program:  Location:  Account:  
(If there are multiple funds please include all) 

 
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE AND NEED 
  
 
 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICE/WORK 
Please provide a DETAILED DESCRIPTION of the scope of work/service to be included in the body of the contract.  Including special 
terms/conditions.  It is the responsibility of the requesting department to verify all specific information needed in the contract scope of 
service and specifications are provided below or attached to this form. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Individual Requesting: 

  
Extension: 

 

 



















   
ARF-6017   Regular Agenda Item     3. D.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2020  
Submitted For: Mary Springer, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Mary Springer, Finance Director
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: FY20-21 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

7/1/2020-6/30/21 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Request to Advertise Request for Sealed Proposals (RFSP) No.
041520-Annual Newspaper Contract

Background Information
On October 23, 2019, the bid specifications for this contract were sent by
certified mail to two newspapers; Arizona Silver Belt and Payson
Roundup, which are qualified by statute to provide these services in Gila
County. The Arizona Silver Belt newspaper was the only qualified
newspaper that submitted a bid for the 2020 contract year. The bid
received did not conform to the pricing request and it was determined to
be in the best interest of the County to reject the bid and rebid the
printing and publishing service. In order to adjust this contract to a fiscal
calendar year a new RFSP was advertised for a six-month contract to
begin on January 1, 2020, through June 30, 2020. The Arizona Silver
Belt was awarded that six-month contract.

A.R.S. § 11-255 (A) states, "The board shall contract annually for all
advertising, publications, and printing required to be done or made by all
departments of county government."

The formal Request for Sealed Proposals (RFSP) No. 041520 is calling for
written bids for the advertising, publications, and printing required by all
county departments during the ensuing year (July 1, 2020 through June
30, 2021) and stating on what day the bids received will be opened.



Evaluation
The Board of Supervisors needs to authorize the advertisement of RFSP
No. 041520 so that a newspaper may be selected to provide all
advertising, publications, and printing required to be done or made by all
departments of county government for the period July 1, 2020 through
June 30, 2021.

Conclusion
A.R.S. § 11-255 requires that the Board of Supervisors award an annual
newspaper contract; therefore, the Board needs to authorize RSP No.
041520 in order to select the most qualified newspaper and award the
annual contract. The contract will begin on July 1, 2020 through June
30, 2021.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors authorize the
advertisement of RFSP No. 041520.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of Request
for Sealed Proposals No. 041520-Annual Newspaper Contract to solicit
bids for an annual contract for all advertising, publications, and printing
required to be done or made by all departments of county government for
the period July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021. (Mary Springer)

Attachments
Exhibit H - Request to Advertise RFP No. 041520
Request to Advertise Request for Sealed Proposals No. 041520
Notice of Request for Sealed Proposals No. 041520







 

                                                              GILA COUNTY 
NOTICE OF REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 041520 

ANNUAL CONTRACT WITH GILA COUNTY FOR A NEWSPAPER TO PROVIDE FOR ALL ADVERTISING, 
PUBLICATIONS AND PRINTING 

 

Notice is hereby given that Gila County is requesting proposals from qualified Contractors for an Annual 
Contract with Gila County for a Newspaper to Provide for all Advertising, Publications and Printing.  
 
SUBMITTAL DUE DATE:      10:00 AM, MST, May 27, 2020 
 

RETURN PROPOSAL TO:      GILA COUNTY  
    FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

        1400 EAST ASH STREET 
        GLOBE, ARIZONA  85501 
 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that sealed competitive proposals for the material or services as specified will be 
received by the Gila County Finance Department, until the time and date cited. 
 
Proposals received by the correct time and date will be publicly opened and recorded thereafter in the 
finance department Copper Conference Room or other site, which may be designated.  Any proposals 
received later than the date and time specified above will be returned unopened.  Late proposals shall not 
be considered.  The prevailing clock shall be the atomic clock in the reception area of the Copper Building. 
 
All proposals shall be made on the request for sealed proposals forms included in this RFP No. 041520 
package and shall include all applicable taxes. 
 
Interested bidders may obtain a copy of this solicitation by calling the Gila County Finance Department at 
928-402-4355 or by clicking on the link: 
http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/finance/procurement/current_bids.php and downloading the 
file.  Bidders are strongly encouraged to carefully read the entire request for proposal. 
 
Any questions regarding this request for proposals shall be submitted in writing and directed to:  Betty 
Hurst, Contracts Administrator, at bhurst@gilacountyaz.gov, 928-402-4355. 
 
The Board of Supervisors reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, or to accept any proposal, or to 
waive any informality in any proposal, or to withhold the award if deemed in the best interest of Gila 
County.  All procurement activities conducted by Gila County are in conformance with the rules and 
regulations of the Gila County Procurement Code.  A copy of the code is available for review in the Clerk of 
the Board’s office, Globe, AZ. 
 
Dates advertised in the Arizona Silver Belt: May 13, 2020 
 
 
Signed: _____________________________________________  Date:  _____/_____/_____ 
 Woody Cline, Chairman of the Board  
 
 
Signed: _____________________________________________  Date:  _____/_____/_____ 
 The Gila County Attorney’s Office  

http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/finance/procurement/current_bids.php
mailto:jsgroi@gilacountyaz.gov


 
BID 041520 

NEWSPAPER ADVERTISING 

 

 
NOTICE OF CALL FOR BIDS FOR AN ANNUAL CONTRACT WITH GILA COUNTY FOR A 

NEWSPAPER TO PROVIDE FOR ALL ADVERTISING, PUBLICATIONS AND PRINTING. 
 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §11-255, the Gila County Board of Supervisors has called for bids and will 
let an annual contract for all advertising, publications and printing required to be done or 
made by all departments of County government.  All qualified newspapers within the County 
are invited to submit a bid for the Fiscal Year July 1, 2020, through June 30, 2021. 
 
This Bid Call becomes a Contract when award by the Gila County Board of Supervisors is 
confirmed to the Bidder in writing. 
 
Specifications: 
 

1. For publishing of all official or legal notices, publications, and classified advertisements 
required or authorized to be completed by Gila County in the conduct of the County’s 
business, and all other matters deemed necessary by the County to be published. 
 

2. Pursuant to A.R.S. §11-255(C), the successful bidder has been admitted for at least one 
(1) year to the United States mail as second-class matter. 
 

3. Pursuant to A.R.S. §39-202(A), all bids for public printing by a newspaper shall be 
accompanied by an affidavit of the publisher that the newspaper complies with the 
provisions of section 39-201. 
 

4. All materials and documents to be published shall be made available to the successful 
bidder at the office of the department submitting the item for publication.  
Alternatively, the successful bidder must be able to receive the documents 
electronically from Gila County via the Internet. 
 

5. Attachment “A” is a sample of a publication item.  In order to ensure there will be no 
changes made to the sample publication item, it will also be e-mailed to you for your 
use.  Submit how this sample would appear in your publication as a legal notice with 
the following specifications:  font=Helvetica; type size=6 pt.; and leading=6. 
Quote the total price to publish this ad one (1) time in your newspaper using your 
newspaper’s usual legal notice column width.  Also, indicate the per column inch rate 
that this quote reflects.   
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors will accept the lowest bid based on the total cost 
of the above ad published (1) time in your newspaper and not the lowest per column 
inch rate indicated as column widths vary by newspaper. 
 
 
 



BID 041520 
NEWSPAPER ADVERTISING 

 

 
6. The successful bidder will ensure that each invoice and affidavit of publication will be 

mailed to the Gila County Finance Department.  The successful bidder will also provide 
a separate invoice with an assigned invoice number for each publication order. Each 
invoice needs to clearly identify: 
 a. Invoice Number 
 b. Name of person and department that submitted the order 
 c. Ad Type, i.e. Legal, Display, Classified, etc. 
 d. Publication dates 
 e. Calculation Format: Number of column inches x price per column inch 
  equals SUBTOTAL x number of publications equals TOTAL INVOICE 
  AMOUNT (example: 2 column inches x $3.00 per column inch = $6.00 x 
  1 publications = $6.00) 
 

7. All publications must be published on the date specified by the requesting 
department, and no alternative date shall be used unless provided by the requesting 
party.   The successful bidder will be responsible for proofreading, except for camera-
ready items. 
 

The contract shall be made with the lowest and responsive and responsible bidder.  In 
determining who is the lowest “responsible bidder” for the county advertising, publications 
and printing, the Board may consider, in addition to pecuniary ability, bidder’s facilities, skill, 
capacity, experience, and integrity.   
 
Bids will be opened and read publicly at 10:00 AM, on Wednesday, May 27, 2020, at the 
offices of the Finance Department located at the Copper Building, 1350 E. Monroe Street, 
Globe, Arizona.  Bidders are invited to be present at the bid opening.  The Board reserves the 
right to accept or reject part or all of any bid, or to waive any informality in any bid. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



BID 041520 
NEWSPAPER ADVERTISING 

 

By signing offer, offeror agrees to the following: 
 

LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE:  Contractor hereby warrants that it will 
at all times during the term of this Contract comply with all federal immigration laws 
applicable to Contractor’s employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. 
§ 23-214 (A) (together the “State and Federal Immigration Laws”).  Contractor shall further 
ensure that each subcontractor who performs any work for Contractor under this contract 
likewise complies with the State and Federal Immigration Laws.  County shall have the right at 
any time to inspect the books and records of Contractor and any subcontractor in order to 
verify such party’s compliance with the State and Federal Immigration Laws.   
 Any breach of Contractor’s or any subcontractor’s warranty of compliance with the State and 
Federal Immigration Laws, or of any other provision of this section, shall be deemed to be a 
material breach of this Contract subjecting Contractor to penalties up to and including 
suspension or termination of this Contract. If the breach is by a subcontractor, and the 
subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result, Contractor shall be required to take such 
steps as may be necessary to either self-perform the services that would have been provided 
under the subcontract or retain a replacement subcontractor as soon as possible so as not to 
delay project completion.   
 
 Contractor shall advise each subcontractor of County’s rights, and the subcontractor’s 
obligations, under this Article by including a provision in each subcontract substantially in the 
following form: “Subcontractor hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this 
contract comply with all federal immigration laws applicable to Subcontractor’s employees, 
and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A). Subcontractor further agrees that County 
may inspect the Subcontractor’s books and records to insure that Subcontractor is in 
compliance with these requirements.  Any breach of this paragraph by Subcontractor will be 
deemed to be a material breach of this contract subjecting Subcontractor to penalties up to 
and including suspension or termination of this contract.”    
 
Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action under this Article 
shall be the responsibility of Contractor. In the event that remedial action under this Article 
results in delay to one or more tasks on the critical path of Contractor’s approved construction 
or critical milestones schedule, such period of delay shall be deemed excusable delay for 
which Contractor shall be entitled to an extension of time, but not costs. 
 

CANCELLATION:  This agreement is subject to cancellation pursuant to A.R.S. §38-511.  
If the Agreement is terminated, the county shall be liable only for payment for services 
rendered and accepted material received by the County before the effective date of 
termination.  
 
 



 
BID 041520 

NEWSPAPER ADVERTISING 

 

OFFER PAGE  

 
TO GILA COUNTY: 

The undersigned hereby offers and agrees to furnish the service in compliance with all terms 
and conditions, instruction, specifications, and any amendments contained in this Bid 
document. 
 
Signature also certifies the submitters bid proposal is genuine, and is not in any way collusive 
or a sham; that the bid proposal is not made with the intent to restrict or prohibit 
competition; that the bidder submitting the bid has not revealed the contents of the bid to, or 
in any way colluded with, any other bidder which may compete for the contract; and that no 
other bidder which may compete for the contract has revealed the contents of a bid to, or in 
any way colluded with, the bidder submitting this bid. 
 

CONTRACT NUMBER:  041520 Newspaper Advertising 

 
Bidder Submitting Proposal:   For clarification of this offer, contact: 

 
 
__________________________________ Name:  __________________________________ 
Company Name 
 
__________________________________ Phone No.:  ______________________________ 
Address   
      Fax   ____________________________________ 
__________________________________ 
City                         State                                Zip Email:  ___________________________________ 
       
 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Signature of Authorized Person to Sign 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Title 
 
 
Bid must be signed by a duly authorized officer(s) eligible to sign contract documents. 
 

 



BID 041520 
NEWSPAPER ADVERTISING 

 

ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER 
(For Gila County use only) 

 
 
 

The Offer is hereby Accepted: 
 

The Bidder ___________________________ is now bound to provide the services listed in Bid Call No.: 

041520 including all terms and conditions, specifications, amendments, etc. and the Bidders Offer as 

accepted by Gila County/public entity. 

 

The contract shall henceforth be referenced to as Contract No. 041520. The Bidder has been cautioned 

not to commence any billable work or to provide any service under this Contract until it receives 

written notice to proceed from Gila County. 

 
 
GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS: 

 

 Awarded this _________ day of ___________________ 2020 

 
 
 ______________________________________________ 
 Woody Cline, Chairman of the Board 
 

 

ATTEST: 
 
 ______________________________________________ 
 Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 ______________________________________________ 
 The Gila County Attorney’s Office 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



ATTACHMENT “A” 

Sample Publication Item:  
INVITATION FOR BIDS 
BID CALL NO.  041520 

 
Sealed bids will be received by Gila County Engineering Services, Copper Building, 1400 East Ash St., 
Globe, AZ  85501, until THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 25, 2020, 3:00 PM/MST, for the RUSSELL 
ROAD/HOSPITAL DRIVE EXTENSION, GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA, BID NO. 070108-1, in strict accordance 
with the rules and regulations of the Gila County Procurement Policy on file in the office of the Gila 
County Clerk of the Board, Globe, Arizona.  No bids will be accepted after 3:00 PM/MST.  The Bids will 
be publicly opened and read aloud at 3:00 PM at the location and date listed above. 

   
All Bids shall be made on the Invitation of Bid forms included in the Contract Documents and shall 
include all applicable taxes. 
 
Plans, Specifications and Contract documents are available and may be obtained from the office of 
Engineering Services Department, Gila County Public Works, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ., 928-402-4355. 
 
Contractors are invited to attend an optional walk through held September 18, 2020 at 10:00 am.  
Questions will be accepted until 5:00 pm, September 22, 2020 and will be answered within 24 hours. 
 
Each Bid submitted, either by hand, United States Postal Service, or other carrier, shall be sealed and 

plainly marked "RUSSELL ROAD/HOSPITAL DRIVE EXTENSION, GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA BID CALL NO. 

070108-1”.  All Bids shall be mailed or delivered to the Gila County Engineering Services, Copper 
Building, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, Arizona 85501. The Gila County Engineering Services Department and 
Board of Supervisors of Gila County will not be responsible for those bids submitted that are not 
marked appropriately and/or sent to the wrong address.  The atomic clock in the reception area of the 
Copper Building is the official time clock. 
 
Contractors are invited to be present at the opening of bids, but absence will not be considered cause 
for disqualification. 
 
Contractors shall be responsible for any licenses or permits required by the regulatory agency of the 
State of Arizona that apply to the performance of this contract. 
 
After the Contractor who is determined to be most Advantageous to the county has been selected 
through the source selection process, negotiations may be conducted for the purpose of developing a 
recommended Contract for Award. 
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors reserves the right to reject any or all bids, or to accept any bids, 
or to waive any informality in any bid, or to withhold the award if deemed in the best interest of Gila 
County. 
 
Dates advertised in Arizona Silver Belt and Payson Roundup:  September 10, 2020 

Signed: ______________________________________________  Date:  _____/_____/_____ 
 The Gila County Attorney’s Office 
  
Signed: ______________________________________________  Date:  _____/_____/_____ 
 James Menlove, County Manager 



   
ARF-6019   Regular Agenda Item     3. E.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2020  
Submitted For: Mary Springer, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Mary Springer, Finance Director
Department: Finance

Information
Request/Subject
Request the Board adopt Resolution No. 20-05-01 designating Mary Jane
Springer, Finance Director, as the Chief Fiscal Officer (CFO) for Gila
County.

Background Information
As required by Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.) § 41-1279.07(E),
annually by July 31 each county, city, town, and community college
district must provide the Auditor General the name of the chief fiscal
officer (CFO) the governing board designates to submit the current fiscal
year’s Annual Expenditure Limitation Report (AELR) and certify to the
accuracy of the report.

Evaluation
As required by A.R.S. § 41-1279.07(E), annually by July 31 each county,
city, town, and community college district must provide the Auditor
General the name of the chief fiscal officer (CFO) the governing board
designates to submit the current fiscal year’s Annual Expenditure
Limitation Report (AELR) and certify to the accuracy of the report.

Conclusion
As required by Arizona Revised Statutes §41-1279.07(E), annually by July
31 each county, city, town, and community college district must provide
the Auditor General the name of the chief fiscal officer (CFO) the governing
board designates to submit the current fiscal year's Annual Expenditure
Limitation Report (AELR) and certify to the accuracy of the report.

Recommendation
Staff recommends adopting Resolution No. 20-05-01 designating Mary
Jane Springer as CFO for Gila County.

Suggested Motion



Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 20-05-01
appointing Mary Jane Springer, Finance Director, as the Chief Fiscal
Officer for Gila County as required by Arizona Revised Statutes §
41-1279.07(E). (James Menlove)

Attachments
Resolution No. 20-05-01
A.R.S. 1279.07



 

When recorded please send to: 

Marian Sheppard 

Clerk of the Board 

 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 20-05-01 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS DESIGNATING MARY JANE SPRINGER, GILA 

COUNTY FINANCE DIRECTOR, AS THE CHIEF FISCAL 

OFFICER OF GILA COUNTY FOR THE PURPOSE OF 

SUBMITTING THE ANNUAL EXPENDITURE LIMITATION 

REPORT TO THE ARIZONA AUDITOR GENERAL’S OFFICE. 

WHEREAS, Arizona Revised Statute (A.R.S.) § 41-1279.07 (E) requires each county, 

city, town, or community college district to annually provide to the Auditor General by July 31 the 

name of the Chief Fiscal Officer the governing body has designated to officially submit the current 

year’s annual expenditure limit report on the governing body’s behalf; and,  

 

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors believes the appointment of the Gila 

County Finance Director is the most prudent choice for this appointment;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Gila County Board of Supervisors that 

Mary Jane Springer, Gila County Finance Director, is hereby designated as the Chief Fiscal Officer 

for Gila County for the purpose of submitting the annual expenditure limitation report to the 

Arizona Auditor General’s Office. 

 

PASSED and ADOPTED this 5th day of May 2020. 

Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

______________________________ ___________________________ 

Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board  Woody Cline, Chairman 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

______________________________ 

The Gila County Attorney’s Office 



41-1279.07. Uniform expenditure reporting system; reports by counties, community college districts, 

cities and towns; certification and attestation; assistance by auditor general; attorney general 

investigation; violation; classification 

A. The auditor general shall prescribe a uniform expenditure reporting system for all political 

subdivisions subject to the constitutional expenditure limitations prescribed by article IX, sections 20 

and 21, Constitution of Arizona. The system shall include: 

1. For counties: 

(a) An annual expenditure limitation report that includes at least the following information: 

(i) The expenditure limitation established for the reporting fiscal year by the economic estimates 

commission. 

(ii) Total expenditures, by fund, for the reporting fiscal year. 

(iii) Total exclusions from local revenues, as defined by article IX, section 20, Constitution of Arizona, by 

fund, for the reporting fiscal year. 

(iv) Total amounts, by fund, of expenditures subject to the expenditure limitation for the reporting fiscal 

year. 

(b) Annual financial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

(c) A reconciliation of the total expenditures reported within the financial statements to the total 

expenditures stated within the expenditure limitation report. 

2. For community college districts: 

(a) An annual budgeted expenditure limitation report that includes at least the following information: 

(i) The expenditure limitation established for the reporting fiscal year by the economic estimates 

commission. 

(ii) Total budgeted expenditures, by fund, for the reporting fiscal year. 

(iii) Total exclusions from local revenues, as defined by article IX, section 21, Constitution of Arizona, by 

fund, for the reporting fiscal year. 

(iv) Total amounts, by fund, of budgeted expenditures subject to the expenditure limitation for the 

reporting fiscal year. 

(b) Annual financial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

(c) A reconciliation of the total expenditures reported within the financial statements to the total 

expenditures reported within the expenditure limitation report. 

3. For cities and towns: 

(a) An annual expenditure limitation report that includes at least the following information: 



(i) The expenditure limitation established for the reporting fiscal year by the economic estimates 

commission and, if applicable, the voter approved alternative expenditure limitation. 

(ii) Total expenditures, by fund, for the reporting fiscal year. 

(iii) Total exclusions from local revenues, as defined by article IX, section 20, Constitution of Arizona, by 

fund, for the reporting fiscal year or, if applicable, the total exclusions from the voter approved 

alternative expenditure limitation. 

(iv) Total amounts, by fund, of expenditures subject to the expenditure limitation for the reporting fiscal 

year. 

(b) Financial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

(c) A reconciliation of the total expenditures reported within the financial statements to the total 

expenditures reported within the expenditure limitation report. 

B. The auditor general shall provide detailed instructions for completion and submission of the reports 

described in subsection A of this section. The auditor general shall prescribe definitions for terms used in 

and the form of the reports described in subsection A of this section. The reports described in 

subsection A of this section are required of counties and community college districts beginning with 

fiscal year 1981-1982. The reports described in subsection A of this section are required of cities and 

towns beginning with the fiscal year the political subdivision is subject to the expenditure limitation. The 

annual reporting requirements also apply to political subdivisions subject to an alternative expenditure 

limitation enacted pursuant to article IX, section 20, subsection (9), Constitution of Arizona. 

C. The reports described in subsection A of this section must be filed with the auditor general within 

nine months after the close of each fiscal year.   

D. The auditor general or a certified public accountant performing the annual audit required pursuant to 

sections 41-1279.21 and 9-481 shall attest to the expenditure limitation reports and financial 

statements for counties, community college districts and cities. The certified public accountant 

performing the annual or biennial audit required pursuant to section 9-481 shall attest to the 

expenditure limitation reports and financial statements for towns. 

E. The governing body of each political subdivision shall provide to the auditor general by July 31 each 

year the name of the chief fiscal officer designated by the governing body of the political subdivision to 

officially submit the current fiscal year's expenditure limitation report on behalf of the governing body. 

The governing body of the political subdivision shall notify the auditor general of any changes of 

individuals designated to file the required reports. The designated chief fiscal officer shall certify to the 

accuracy of the annual expenditure limitation report. 

F. The auditor general shall prescribe forms for the uniform reporting system and may provide 

assistance to individuals, certified public accountants or public accountants responsible for attesting to 

the expenditure limitation reports and financial statements. 

G. Each political subdivision, subject to the expenditure limitations prescribed by article IX, sections 20 

and 21, Constitution of Arizona, shall comply with the uniform expenditure reporting system, 

instructions and forms prescribed by the auditor general. The auditor general may notify the committee 



and the attorney general if any political subdivision does not comply with the uniform expenditure 

reporting system, instructions or forms prescribed by the auditor general. The attorney general may file 

a petition for special action in any court of competent jurisdiction to compel any political subdivision to 

comply with this section. The attorney general may apply for injunctive relief in any court of competent 

jurisdiction to enjoin any political subdivision from violating this section. Injunctive and special action 

proceedings are in addition to all other penalties and other remedies prescribed by law.  

H. A chief fiscal officer, designated pursuant to subsection E of this section, who subsequent to July 1, 

1983 refuses to file the reports required by this section within the prescribed time periods or who 

intentionally files erroneous reports is guilty of a class 1 misdemeanor.  A city or town exceeding the 

expenditure limitation prescribed or authorized pursuant to article IX, section 20, Constitution of 

Arizona, for any fiscal year, without authorization pursuant to such section, shall have the amount 

specified in subsection I of this section of its allocations of the state income tax, distributed pursuant to 

section 43-206, withheld and redistributed to other cities and towns in the same manner as determined 

pursuant to that section, except that the population of the city or town exceeding the expenditure 

limitation shall not be included in the computation, and the city or town exceeding the expenditure 

limitation shall not be entitled to share in the redistribution.  A community college district exceeding the 

expenditure limitation prescribed pursuant to article IX, section 21, Constitution of Arizona, for any fiscal 

year, without authorization pursuant to such section or section 15-1471, shall have the amount specified 

in subsection I of this section of its allocations of state aid, distributed pursuant to section 15-1466, 

withheld. 

I. The auditor general shall hold a hearing to determine if any political subdivision has exceeded the 

expenditure limitations prescribed pursuant to article IX, sections 20 and 21, Constitution of Arizona. If a 

county has exceeded the expenditure limitations prescribed pursuant to article IX, section 20, 

Constitution of Arizona, without authorization pursuant to that section, the auditor general shall notify 

the board of supervisors of the county to reduce the allowable levy of primary property taxes of the 

county pursuant to section 42-17051, subsection C. If any political subdivision other than a county has 

exceeded the expenditure limitations prescribed pursuant to article IX, sections 20 and 21, Constitution 

of Arizona, without authorization, the auditor general shall notify the state treasurer to withhold a 

portion of the political subdivision's allocations of the revenues described in subsection H of this section 

for the fiscal year subsequent to the auditor general's hearing as follows: 

1. If the excess expenditures are less than five percent of the limitation, an amount equal to the excess 

expenditures. 

2. If the excess expenditures are equal to or greater than five percent but less than ten percent of the 

limitation, or are less than five percent of the limitation but it is at least the second consecutive instance 

of excess expenditures, an amount equal to triple the excess expenditures. 

3. If the excess expenditures are equal to or greater than ten percent of the limitation, an amount equal 

to five times the excess expenditures or one-third of the allocation of the revenues described in 

subsection H of this section, whichever is less.  

J. A county, city or town is not deemed to have exceeded the expenditure limitation if the county, city or 

town makes expenditures for capital improvements from utility revenues pursuant to title 9, chapter 5, 

article 3 or from excise taxes levied by the county, city or town for a specific purpose and the county, 



city or town repays the expenditure from the proceeds of bonds or other lawful long-term obligations 

before the hearing required by subsection I of this section.  

 



   
ARF-6012   Consent Agenda Item     4. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2020  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Shannon Boyer, Executive Administrative Asst.
Department: Public Works

Information
Request/Subject
Public Works Department Policy No. PWS-012 – “Commercial Driver
License (CDL) Random Drug/Alcohol Testing” which replaces Policy No.
DPW 09-05.

Background Information
Public Works Department Policy No. DPW 09-05 – “Commercial Driver
License (CDL) Random Drug/Alcohol Testing” was originally approved by
the Board of Supervisors on November 3, 2009, with a revision being
approved on April 19, 2011.

Evaluation
Verbiage changes and additions were made along with the format of the
policy has been updated to the format used for all Countywide policies
adopted by the Board of Supervisors. The policy number is being changed
according to the table of contents for the Countywide policies as adopted
by the Board of Supervisors.

Conclusion
The proposed revisions address the changes and additions to the
verbiage, the policy number and document format.

Recommendation
The Gila County Public Works Department recommends approval of the
proposed revisions to the Public Works Department Policy “Commercial
Driver License (CDL) Random Drug/Alcohol Testing” and the policy
format and number change from DPW 09-05 to PWS-012.

Suggested Motion
Approval of revised Public Works Department Policy “Commercial Driver



Approval of revised Public Works Department Policy “Commercial Driver
License (CDL) Random Drug/Alcohol Testing” to make changes and
additions to the verbiage; to change the format of the policy; and change
the policy number from DPW 09-05 to PWS-012.

Attachments
Proposed Policy No. PWS-012 Revised DPW09-05
CDL Random Drug/Alcohol Testing with Changes in Red



Gila County Policy  
COMMERCIAL DRIVER LICENSE 
(CDL) RANDOM DRUG/ALCOHOL 
TESTING 

Policy Number: PWS-012 
Replaces:  DPW09-05 

Page 

Adopted by BOS 5-5-20 
Revised: 00-00-0000 

1 of 3 

 
 

I. PURPOSE: 
 
To comply with Federal Regulations regarding random drug and/or alcohol testing for individuals 
operating commercial class vehicles. 
 

II. POLICY: 
 
Employees are required to hold current Commercial Driver License (CDL) as stated in the job 
classifications and be tested according to County random drug/alcohol testing process.  This policy 
is intended to supplement Rule 10 – Drugs and Alcohol of the Gila County Merit System Rules 
and Policies Manual.  The Gila County Merit System Rules and Policies take precedence in the 
event of any conflict between the policies. 
 
Federal Regulations require that random drug and/or alcohol testing be administered to persons 
who are required to have a CDL in order to perform their job.  County policy indicates that persons 
holding safety sensitive positions have a current CDL and be included in the random drug and/or 
alcohol testing process. 
 

III. RESPONSIBILITIES: 
 
Supervisors will uphold the requirement for a Class A and B CDL with endorsements and will 
prohibit any employee from operating equipment requiring a CDL without endorsements, 
physicals, renewals, and refreshers, except for training and/or testing purposes. This responsibility 
is set in 49 CFR (Code of Federal Regulations) Part 172.704 Training Requirements, (c) (ii)(4) 
Compliance and Part 391 Qualifications of Driver. Any employee performing a safety sensitive 
function on a commercial class vehicle must have a current CDL. 
 
It is the supervisor’s responsibility to be sure their employees comply with the requirements of 
obtaining and maintaining a CDL and the associated endorsements. 
 
It is the employee’s responsibility to obtain and maintain the CDL and the endorsements as a 
condition of employment.  In the event a CDL is suspended or a citation is received, the CDL and  
 
 



Gila County Policy  
COMMERCIAL DRIVER LICENSE 
(CDL) RANDOM DRUG/ALCOHOL 
TESTING 

Policy Number: PWS-012 
Replaces:  DPW09-05 

Page 

Adopted by BOS 5-5-20 
Revised: 00-00-0000 

2 of 3 

 
endorsement must be renewed at the employee’s expenses using personal time for testing and 
physicals.  If loss of CDL privileges occurs, the employee must immediately (within 24 hours) 
notify their supervisor upon receipt of the suspension, revocation or loss of CDL privileges.   
 
Waivers, for employees who can’t renew the CDL privileges due to health issues or driving 
record issues, will not be granted. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SIGNATURE: 

_____________________________________  ____________________________ 
CHAIRMAN, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  DATE 



Gila County Policy  
COMMERCIAL DRIVER LICENSE 
(CDL) RANDOM DRUG/ALCOHOL 
TESTING 

Policy Number: PWS-012 
Replaces:  DPW09-05 

Page 

Adopted by BOS 5-5-20 
Revised: 00-00-0000 

3 of 3 

 
GILA COUNTY 

PROCEDURES FOR CDL RANDOM DRUG/ALCOHOL TESTING 
 

1. Each month employee names are randomly selected for drug and/or alcohol testing by an 
independent consultant.  The Human Resources Assistant Sr. is sent the list of employees selected.  
 

2. The Human Resources Assistant Sr. notifies the Public Works Executive Administrative Assistant 
that there are randoms to be picked up in Human Resources.  
 

3. The Public Works Executive Administrative Assistant gives the testing paperwork to the 
appropriate Supervisor/Manager. 

 
4.   The Supervisor/Manager takes the employee to the testing facility as soon as possible after   

 receiving the paperwork: 
   
  Payson 
  Diversified Solutions hours of operation are 8:00 am – 12:00 pm, Monday through Friday. 

If not able to get to Diversified Solutions in time, go to Statclinix/Urgentcare. Their hours 
of operation are 8:00 am – 8:00 pm, seven days a week. 

 
 
  Globe 

 Diversified Solutions hours of operation are 8:30 am – 12:15 pm and 1:00 pm to 2:30 pm, 
Monday through Friday. 
If not able to get to Diversified Solutions in time, go to Cobre Valley Community 
Hospital. Their hours of operation are 9:00 am – 3:00 pm, Monday through Friday. 

 
 
The employee does not leave the sight of the Supervisor/Manager until the testing has been 
completed and the employee is back at the worksite. 

 
5.   Testing results are sent to the Human Resources Assistant Sr.  Should a test return with a positive 

result, the Gia County Merit System Rules and Policies will be followed.  All other results are sent 
to the Public Works Executive Administrative Assistant.  The results are distributed to the 
appropriate area to be included in the employee’s CDL file. 

 
 

    



Policy #DPW 09-05 

 
 
Public Works Policy & Procedures Manual                                                                   4/19/2011 

 

   GILA COUNTY 
DEPARTMENTIVISION OF PUBLIC WORKS 

 

DEPARTMENTIVISION POLICY or 
PROCEDURE 

 

Title: 
Commercial Driver License (CDL) 

Random Drug/Alcohol Testing  
 

 

Effective Date: 
11/3/2009 
Revised: 
4/19/2011 
Revised: 
4/21/2020 

 

Department: 
 
 All Divisions 
 

Purpose: 
 
To comply with Federal Regulations 
regarding random drug and/or 
alcohol testing for individuals 
operating commercial class vehicles. 
 

Authorized Signature: 
 
 
   ____________________________ 

Steve Stratton, 
Director of Public Works 

 
____________________________ 

Bryan Chambers 
Chief Deputy County Attorney 

 
 

 
Policy Statement: 
 
Employees are required to hold current Commercial Driver License (CDL) as stated in 
their job classifications and be tested according to County random drug/alcohol testing 
process.  This policy is intended to supplement Rule 10 – Drugs and Alcohol of the Gila 
County Merit System Rules and Policies Manual.  The Gila County Merit System Rules 
and Policies take precedence in the event of any conflict between the policies. 
 
 



Policy #DPW 09-05 

 
 
Public Works Policy & Procedures Manual                                                                   4/19/2011 

 

 
 
 
 
1. Background: 

Federal Regulations require that random drug and/or alcohol testing be 
administered to persons who are required to have a CDL in order to perform 
their job. County policy indicates that persons holding safety sensitive positions 
have a current CDL and be included in the random drug and/or alcohol testing 
process. 
 

2. Responsibilities: 
  Supervisors will uphold the requirement for a Class A and B CDL with 

endorsements and will prohibit any employee from operating equipment 
requiring a CDL without endorsements, physicals, renewals, and refreshers, 
except for training and/or testing purposes. This responsibility is set in 49 CFR 
(Code of Federal Regulations) Part 172.704 Training Requirements, (c) (ii)(4) 
Compliance and Part 391 Qualifications of Driver. Any employee performing a 
safety sensitive function on a commercial class vehicle must have a current CDL. 

 
A. It is the supervisor’s responsibility to be sure their employees comply 

with the requirements of obtaining and maintaining a CDL and the 
associated endorsements. 

B. It is the employee’s responsibility to obtain and maintain the CDL and 
the endorsements as a condition of employment.  In the event a CDL 
is suspended or a citation is received, the CDL and endorsement must 
be renewed at the employee’s expense using personal time for testing 
and physicals.  If loss of CDL privileges occurs, the employee must 
immediately (within 24 hours) notify their supervisor upon receipt of 
the suspension, revocation or loss of CDL privileges. 

 
Waivers, for employees who can’t renew the CDL privileges due to health issues 
or driving record issues, will not be granted. 

 
3. Procedures: 

• Each month employee’s names are randomly selected for drug and/or alcohol 
testing by an independent consultant.  The Deputy Human Resources 
Assistant Sr. Director is sent the list of employees selected. 
 

• The Deputy Human Resources Assistant Sr. Director notifiescontacts the 
Public Works Executive Administrative Assistant that there are randoms to be 
picked up in Human Resources. with the list of names selected so that testing 
dates and times may be scheduled. 

 



Policy #DPW 09-05 

 
 
Public Works Policy & Procedures Manual                                                                   4/19/2011 

 

• The Public Works Executive Administrative Assistant gives testing paperwork 
to the appropriate Supervisor/Managerlist of names selected to the Materials 
Tester/Safety Representative. 
 

• The Supervisor/Manager takes the employee to the testing facility as soon as 
possible after receiving the paperwork: Materials Tester/Safety 
Representative informs the Deputy Human Resources Director when testing 
will occur.  

 
 

• The Materials Tester/Safety Representative informs the foreman/manager 
immediately prior to picking up selected employees from their worksite.  If 
the employee is a Payson area employee, the Material Tester/Safety 
Representative will have called the Deputy Human Resources Director at least 
the day before.  The Deputy Human Resources Director will call Diversified 
Solutions or Stat Clinix letting them know who is on their way for testing. 

 
Payson 
Diversified Solutions hours of operation are 8:00 am – 12:00 pm, Monday 
throorugh Friday. 
Stat Clinix hours of operation are 8:00 am – 8:00 pm, 7 days per week. 
 
Globe 
Diversified Solutions hours of operation are 8:30 am – 12:15 pm and 1:00 
pm to 2:30 pm, Monday through Friday. 

Cobre Valley Community Hospital hours of operation are 9:00 am – 3:00 pm, 
Monday through Friday 

 
        

If the employee is a Globe area employee, he/she is taken to Deputy Human 
Resources Director in Globe for the required paperwork and then taken to the 
testing site.  The employee does not leave the sight of the 
Supervisor/Manager Materials Tester/Safety Representative until the testing 
has been completed and the employee is back at the worksite. 

 
• Testing results are sent to the Human Resources Assistant Sr. Deputy 

Personnel Director.  Should a test return with a positive result, the Gila 
County Merit System Rules and Policies will be followed.  All other results are 
ultimately sent to the Public Works Executive Administrative Assistant.  The 
results are eventually distributed to the appropriate area to be included in the 
employee’s CDL file. 

 
 
  
 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Tahoma, 12 pt



   
ARF-6025   Consent Agenda Item     4. B.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2020  
Reporting
Period:

BOS April 21, 2020 BOS Meeting Minutes

Submitted For: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
Submitted By: Melissa Henderson, Deputy Clerk

Information
Subject
Board of Supervisors' April 21, 2020, Meeting Minutes.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the Board of Supervisors' April 21, 2020 meeting minutes.

Attachments
04-21-20 Meeting Minutes



Page 1 of 12 

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  April 21, 2020 

 
WOODY CLINE       MARIAN SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 

 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN          By: Marian Sheppard 
Vice-Chairman                                                             

 
TIM R. HUMPHREY      Gila County Courthouse 

Member         Globe, Arizona                        
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

PRESENT:  Woody Cline, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman (via 
phone); and Tim R. Humphrey, Member. 

 
STAFF PRESENT:  Jacque Sanders, Deputy County Manager, District 
Librarian; Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau 

Chief; Charles Shire, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau (via ITV); and 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board. 
 

Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – INVOCATION 
 

Chairman Cline called the Regular Meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. this date in 
the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Tim Humphrey led the Pledge of 
Allegiance and Jefferson Dalton delivered the invocation. 

 
Item 2 – PRESENTATIONS: 
 

A.  Presentation regarding Gila County financial data as of 2/29/2020 as 
it compares to the fiscal year 2020 Gila County Budget and fiscal year 

2019 year-to-date performance.  
 
Maryn Belling, Budget Manager, provided the following information:  General 

Fund Revenue fiscal year-to-date at 2/29/2020 is at 57% of the budget and a 
year-to-date decrease of $201,135.71 compared to 2/28/2019 because 2020 

February's transactions for Excise and VLT were posted in March. General 
Fund Revenue fiscal-year-to-date on 3/31/2020 is at 61% of the budget and 
$2,369,593.97 over 3/31/2019.  
 
General Fund Expenditures fiscal year to date at 2/29/2020 are at 62% of the 
budget and show an increase of $543,341.96 over 2/28/2019.  

 
Each Board member thanked Ms. Belling for the information. 



Page 2 of 12 

 

Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Humphrey, 
the Board unanimously voted to adjourn as the Gila County Board of 

Supervisors and convene as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors 
to address the following 3 agenda items. 

 
Item 3 - REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS: 
 

A.  (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Supervisors, and 
convene as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors.) 
Information/Discussion/Action to approve renewal and acceptance of 

Grantee Agreement No. GRA-RC004-19-0919-01-Y3 between the Gila 
Regional Partnership Council, Arizona Early Childhood Development and 

Health Board (First Things First) and the Gila County Library District in 
the amount of $60,000 for fiscal year July 1, 2020, through June 30, 
2021.  

 
Jacque Sanders, Deputy County Manager, District Librarian, advised that this 

Grantee Agreement shall become effective for the period July 1, 2020, 
through June 30, 2021. Total funds available are $60,000 for this period. This 
agreement continues the Early Literacy strategy begun by the previous First 

Things First Parent Education Community-Based Training Grants that began 
in fiscal year 2011.  At this time, 1,202 children ages birth to five years are 
enrolled in this program and receive books each month to foster the 

importance of reading and the six pre-reading skills, as well as proving parents 
with material to read each month. In addition, since 2011, 3,286 children have 

'graduated' from the program by turning five.  Upon motion by Supervisor 
Humphrey, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously 
approved Grantee Agreement No. GRA-RC004-19-0919-01-Y3. 

 
B.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve renewal and acceptance of 
Grantee Agreement No. GRA-RC029-19-0935-01-Y3 between the San 

Carlos Apache Regional Partnership Council, Arizona Early Childhood 
Development and Health Board (First Things First) and the Gila County 

Library District in the amount of $70,000 for fiscal year July 1, 2020, 
through June 30, 2021.  
 

Ms. Sanders advised that Grantee Agreement shall become effective on July 1, 
2020, and shall terminate on June 30, 2021. Total funds available are $70,000 

for this period. This agreement continues the Parenting Outreach 
and Awareness- Early Literacy strategy that began in this region in the fiscal 
year 2013.  At this time, 514 children ages birth to five years are enrolled in 

this program and receive books each month to foster the importance of reading 
and the six pre-reading skills, as well as proving parents with material to read 
each month. In addition, 1,253 children have 'graduated' from the program by 

turning five. The number of children turning five and graduating along with the 
number of children moving within and out of the area has been greater than 



Page 3 of 12 

 

the number of new enrollees during the current fiscal year.  Upon motion by 
Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Humphrey, the Board 

unanimously approved Grantee Agreement No. GRA-RC029-19-0935-01-Y3. 
 

C.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve modifications to the 
distribution of funding for FY 2020 for the Young Public Library to 
suspend the second half funding in the amount of $29,375.00 because of 

the misuse of operating funds for a capital building project in FY2019 in 
the amount of $30,069.21 with the remainder of $694.21 to be withheld 
from the first half funding distribution for FY2021. (Motion to adjourn as 

the Gila County Library District Board of Directors and reconvene as the 
Gila County Board of Supervisors.)  

 
Ms. Sanders advised that the Gila County Library District annually distributes 
funds to 8 libraries within the County.  To receive the funds, each library is 

required to enter into a Library Services Agreement each year with the County 
agreeing to abide by the terms of the Agreement.  She further advised that 3 of 

the 8 libraries are private, non-profit organizations.  A summary of the 
information provided by Ms. Sanders is as follows.  The Library Service 
Agreement (LSA) specifically outlines the allowable uses of funding, which 

states, “The Board shall use the District funds to insure the payments of 
salaries, routine maintenance and upkeep and other necessary expenses of the 
Board library, pursuant to ARS 48 - 3901 et seq.  Funds will not be used for 
capital improvement projects or major building repairs without prior approval 
from the Board of Directors of the Gila County Library District. The Board shall 
submit the annual FY__ Library budget to the District at the time of submission of 
this agreement. The Library will provide a year-to-date expenditure report to the 
District prior to the second payment by the District to the Board. An annual 
written accounting shall be made to the District describing the manner and use of 
funds are required by the District within the first quarter of the following fiscal 

year.” 
 
Because the Board receives public monies from the District, the Board shall 
conduct all business meetings in accordance with Arizona Open Meeting Laws, 

A.R.S. 38-431. While following the process outlined in the LSA during this 
fiscal year, the Library Board provided a document that outlined their expenses 

for FY2019, at approximately the time that the County Library District was 
distributing the first installment of funds for FY2020. In reviewing the 
documentation provided by the Pleasant Valley Community Library Board 

(PVCLB), operating funds in the amount of $31,069.21 were improperly used 
for major building repair/maintenance in violation of the terms and conditions 
of the LSA. The actual budgeted amount under Maintenance and Repairs – line 

item Building, was $1,000.00, which would be an allowable expense under the 
terms of the LSA, for a net disallowable amount of $30,069.21. 
 



Page 4 of 12 

 

The Library Board has ample reserves that could have been used for the 
building repair/remodel without using the operating budget for FY2019 and 

without limiting the services to the residents. At the January 2020 Library 
Board meeting the December 2019 Treasurer’s Report shows that the Library 

Board had a total of $43,099.77 in available funds, before the November 2019 
distribution of funds in the amount of $29,375.00 from the Library District for 
the first half funding for 2020.   

 
Ms. Sanders stated that there were other areas whereby the governing board of 
the PVCLB has conflicted with the LSA.  She added that should the Board 

choose to accept her recommendation (as stated in the agenda item), the 
PVCLB has ample reserves that will carry them through to the time when the 

FY2021 Library Services Agreement is executed.   
 
Supervisors Martin and Humphrey agreed with Ms. Sanders’ 

recommendations.  Chairman Cline stated, “I agree with this.  We are 
responsible for taxpayer dollars as much as them; we are first in line.”  

 
Upon motion by Supervisor Humphrey, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, 
the Board unanimously approved modifications to the distribution of funding 

for FY 2020 for the Young Public Library to suspend the second half funding in 
the amount of $29,375.00 because of the misuse of operating funds for a 
capital building project in FY2019 in the amount of $30,069.21 with the 

remainder of $694.21 to be withheld from the first half funding distribution for 
FY2021. 

 
Upon motion by Supervisor Humphrey, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, 
the Board unanimously agreed to adjourn as the Gila County Library District 

Board of Directors, and reconvene as the Gila County Board of Supervisors to 
address the remaining agenda items. 
 

D.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No. 7 to an 
Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS17-133182) between the 

Arizona Department of Health Services and the Gila County Health and 
Emergency Management Department in the amount of $226,242 in order 
to provide public health emergency preparedness - COVID-19 response 

services from March 5, 2020, through March 15, 2021.  
 

Michael O’Driscoll, Health and Emergency Management Department Director, 
explained that this funding is not related to the CARES (Coronavirus Aid, 
Relief, and Economic Security) Act.  This funding will allow the Gila County 

Health and Emergency Management Department, Division of Public Health 
Emergency Preparedness, to implement strategies to respond to the COVID-19 
crisis in Arizona and Gila County. The strategies will strengthen incident 

management, jurisdictional recovery, bio-surveillance, information 
management, countermeasures, mitigation, and surge management. The 



Page 5 of 12 

 

Division of Public Health Emergency Preparedness will work to scale-up 
laboratory testing and data collection to enable identification and tracking of 

COVID-19 cases in the County. Gila County Public Health and Emergency 
Preparedness will develop a brief COVID-19 community intervention 

implementation plan that will address the following: slow the transmission of 
disease, minimize morbidity and mortality, and preserve healthcare, workforce, 
infrastructure functions, and minimize social and economic impacts.   

 
Mr. O’Driscoll stated, “If COVID-19 comes around again, we will be prepared to 
manage this without having to shut down the economy.”  Each Board member 

thanked Mr. O’Driscoll and his staff for their efforts and work during this 
COVID-19 crisis.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by 

Supervisor Humphrey, the Board unanimously approved Amendment No. 7 to 
the Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS17-133182) with the 
Arizona Department of Health Services. 

 
E.  Information/Discussion/Action to declare a portion of New Street not 

necessary for public use and accept a Citizens' Petition to begin the 
process to abandon a portion of New Street as shown on Miami Map No. 2 
GCR Map 23.  

 
Steve Sanders, Public Works Department Director, advised that New Street is 
the main access to Freeport McMoRan Copper and Gold, Inc.'s (FMI) copper 

mine. The portion of New Street being considered for abandonment is not used 
by the general public. It is used by FMI employees and guests for access to the 

mine.  Upon motion by Supervisor Humphrey, seconded by Vice-Chairman 
Martin, the Board declared a portion of New Street not necessary for public use 
and accepted a Citizens' Petition to begin the process to abandon a portion of 

New Street as shown on Miami Map No. 2 GCR Map 23.  
 
F.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental 

Agreement between Gila County and Pinal County whereby Pinal County 
will provide medical examiner services for the period beginning July 1, 

2020 through June 30, 2021 in the amount of $375,000.   
 
Mary Springer, Finance Director, presented this agenda item.  Gila County 

uses a contract medical examiner who performs autopsy services and related 
medical services.  In addition to paying a contract medical examiner, additional 

costs include separate medical supplies, pathology testing, facility costs, 
equipment, and so on.  Gila County also uses the Pima County medical 
examiner when the contract medical examiner is not available or there is a 

complicated case that requires more services than the contract medical 
examiner can perform.  Gila County was notified by Pima County they would 
no longer take cases on a piecemeal basis.  Since being notified by Pima 

County, the Finance Department has been researching medical examiner 
service providers with an all-inclusive cost model. Pinal County has a full-



Page 6 of 12 

 

service medical examiner department that has provided competitive pricing, 
inclusive of all costs and logistically closer to Gila County.   

 
This Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) will be for the period beginning July 1, 

2020, through June 30, 2021, with an annual payment of $375,000 whereby 
Pinal County will perform up to 190 medical examiner cases within the 
applicable one-year contractual term.  For any cases in excess of 190 during 

any one-year term of the agreement shall be paid for by Gila County at the per-
case rates as listed in the 2020 Services Cost Schedule, referenced as Exhibit A 
to the IGA.  Ms. Springer advised that the County will save approximately 

$70,000 per year with this arrangement and have better coverage all-inclusive 
in one bill.  Each Board member thanked Ms. Springer for her involvement in 

getting this agreement to the Board.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, 
seconded by Supervisor Humphrey, the Board unanimously approved this IGA 
with Pinal County as specified in the agenda item. 

 
G.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of 

Invitation for Bids No. 040320 for the provision of autopsy transport 
services.  
 

Ms. Springer stated that funeral homes are used to transport deceased persons 
from their location to the location where the autopsy will be performed.  There 
are no current contracts in place identifying pricing and availability.  In order 

to secure the service when needed, it is the desire of the County to enter into 
service contracts that provide specific costs, and are deemed in the best 

interest of the County.  Upon motion by Supervisor Humphrey, seconded by 
Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously authorized the advertisement of 
Invitation for Bids No. 040320. 

 
H.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the electronic submission 
of the FY2020 Gila River Indian Community Gaming Grant Application for 

Hellsgate Fire District in the amount of $49,507 to purchase new 
breathing air compressor equipment.  

 
Ms. Springer stated that the Hellsgate Fire District has been aggressive in 
finding new sources of funding.  In the recent past, the District has been 

awarded grants from the Gila River Indian Community.  She added that if a 
grant is awarded, the Gila River Indian Community requires the County to 

agree to be the pass-through agency to receive the funds and the Board must 
also adopt a resolution.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by 
Supervisor Humphrey, the Board unanimously approved the electronic 

submission of the FY2020 Gila River Indian Community Gaming Grant 
Application for Hellsgate Fire District in the amount of $49,507 whereby the 
County agrees to be the pass-through agency if grant funds are awarded. 

 



Page 7 of 12 

 

I.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the electronic submission of 
the FY2020 Gila River Indian Community Gaming Grant Application for 

the National Alliance on Mental Illness in the amount of $28,350 to 
provide mental illness awareness, training and peer support programs for 

northern Gila County.  
 
Ms. Springer advised that the Payson chapter of the National Alliance on 

Mental Illness (NAMI) approached her to request that the County act as the 
pass-through agency should this grant application be approved.  NAMI is a 
non-profit organization serving northern Arizona including Pine, Strawberry, 

Payson, Star Valley, Tonto Apache Indian Community, and surrounding 
communities.  Ms. Springer stated that she is impressed with the services 

provided by this organization and is pleased that there is a local chapter.  Upon 
motion by Supervisor Humphrey, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously approved the electronic submission of the FY2020 Gila 

River Indian Community Gaming Grant Application for NAMI in the amount of 
$28,350 whereby the County agrees to be the pass-through agency if grant 

funds are awarded. 
 
J.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Agreement No. 

37071900317-001 between the Gila County Sheriff's Office and Freeport-
McMoRan Miami Inc. for the Sheriff's Office to provide police-related 
services and security as requested by Freeport-McMoRan Miami Inc. for a 

period of two years commencing on April 28, 2020.  
 

Ms. Springer advised that periodically the Sheriff’s Office provides deputies to 

Freeport-McMoRan Miami Inc. (FMI) for police-related services and 
security services; however, until now there has not been a written agreement 

in place.  The Sheriff’s Office and FMI wish to formalize this arrangement and 
compensation in the form of a written agreement. Supervisor inquired if the 

services will be provided by Sheriff’s Office reserve officers to which Ms. 
Springer replied that it is her understanding that sworn officers, who are 

permitted to carry weapons, will be utilized.  J. Adam Shepherd, Gila County 
Sheriff, added that the Sheriff’s Office occasionally has volunteers who are 
certified to carry weapons.  They could be used to provide these services when 

needed or an off-duty Sheriff’s officer would be used.  Upon motion by 
Supervisor Humphrey, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board 

unanimously approved Agreement No. 37071900317-001. 
 
Item 4 – CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS: (Any matter on the Consent 

Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 
upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 
Board of Supervisors.)  

 



Page 8 of 12 

 

A.  Approval of Amendment No. 3 to Professional Services Contract No. 
051418 with the Law Offices of Samantha Sue Elledge, PLLC to increase 

the contract by $27,400 for a new total contract amount of $86,800 for 
the contract term July 1, 2019, to June 30, 2020.  

 
B.  Approval of the Board of Supervisors' April 7, 2020 meeting minutes.  
 

C.  Approval of the Human Resources Department monthly activity 
reports for March 2020.  
 

MARCH 3, 2020 
 

DEPARTURES: 
1. Donald Riggins - Facilities and Land Management - Building Maintenance 
Technician Senior - 02/27/20 - Facilities Management Fund - DOH 10/17/16 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 

2. Shaunae Casillas - Health and Emergency Services - PHEP Assistant - 
03/16/20 - PHEP Fund 
3. Jeffrey Nafziger - Health and Emergency Services - Environmental Health 

Specialist - 03/16/20 - Health Service(.35)/Prop 201 Smoke-Free AZ Act(.65) 
Funds 
4. Jessica Scibelli - County Attorney's Office - Deputy County Attorney - 

01/22/20 - Drug Prosecution Grant Fund 
5. David Hill - County Attorney's Office - Deputy County Attorney Senior - 

02/05/20 - General Fund 
 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 

6. Ashley Boyse - Public Works - From Road Maintenance and Equipment 
Operator - To Road Maintenance and Equipment Operator Senior - 03/16/20 - 
Public Works Fund - Replacing Thomas Zienka 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 

7. Jeffrey Nafziger - Health and Emergency Services - Environmental Health 
Specialist - 02/03/20 - Health Service(.35)/Prop 201 Smoke-Free AZ Act(.65) 
Funds - Reclassification 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 

8. Clerk of Superior Court - Court Clerk - Vacated by Yolanda Spurgeon 
9. Facilities and Land Management - Building Maintenance Technician Senior - 
Vacated by Donald Riggins 

 
MARCH 10, 2020 
 

NEW HIRES: 



Page 9 of 12 

 

1. Robert Cizek - Public Works - Vehicle and Equipment Mechanic - 03/16/20 
- Public Works Fund - Replacing Jonathan Nock 

2. Jeffery Brown - Public Works - Automotive Mechanic - 03/16/20 - Public 
Works Fund - Replacing Terrance Wilson 

3. Sasa Kuzmanovic - Sheriff's Office - Deputy Sheriff - 03/23/20 - General 
Fund - Replacing Robert Chagolla 
 

DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
4. Phillip Smith - Sheriff's Office - From Deputy Sheriff - To Deputy Sheriff 
Detective - 03/16/20 - General Fund - Replacing Keith Charles 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 

5. Kyle Parker - Sheriff's Office - Deputy Sheriff - 04/08/20 - General Fund - 
Extending probationary period an additional six months 
 

REQUEST TO POST: 
6. Administrative Services - Administrative Clerk - Vacated by Ashlyn Earven 

 
MARCH 17, 2020 
 

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
1. Brad Hicks - Public Works - Recycling and Landfill Equipment Operator - 
03/29/20 - Recycling and Landfill Management Fund 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 

2. Rebecca Guadiana - Superior Court - Judicial Assistant - 04/06/20 - 
General Fund - Replacing Celia Kenyon 
3. Yolanda Spurgeon - From Clerk of Superior Court - To Superior Court - 

From Court Clerk - To Court Case Management System Trainer - 03/16/20 - 
From General(.50)/IV-D Child Support(.50) Funds - To Field Trainer Fund - 
Replacing Danny McKeen 

 
MARCH 24, 2020 

 
DEPARTURES: 
1. Gary Scales - Superior Court - Judge Pro Tempore - 06/30/20 - General 

Fund - DOH 07/01/07 
2. Johnny Sanchez - Sheriff's Office - Chief Deputy Sheriff - 03/13/20 - 

General Fund - DOH 05/28/07 
3. Eric Dawson - Probation - Deputy Probation Officer I - 03/12/20 - Adult 
Probation Service Fees Fund- DOH 11/23/15 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
4. Jennifer Harter - School Superintendent's Office - Accounting Clerk - 

03/16/20 - General Fund  



Page 10 of 12 

 

5. Stephen Armstrong - Sheriff's Office - Deputy Sheriff - 04/08/20 - General 
Fund 

6. Felicia Ihrig - Health and Emergency Services - Animal Control Officer - 
03/23/20 - Rabies Control Fund 

7. Savannah Barajas - Health and Emergency Services - Administrative Clerk 
Senior - 02/19/20 - Immunization(.50)/Private Stock Vaccines(.50) Funds 
 

DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
8. Taylor Conway - Probation - Deputy Probation Officer II - 03/23/20 - From 
Adult Intensive Probation Supervision Fund - To Adult Probation Service Fees 

Fund - Replacing Eric Dawson 
9. Ashlyn Earven - From Administrative Services - To Health and Emergency 

Services - From Administrative Clerk - To Community Health Specialist - 
03/30/20 - From General Fund - To Tobacco-Free Environment Fund - 
Replacing Shaunae Casillas 

10. Michael Johnson - Sheriff's Office - From Undersheriff - To Acting Chief 
Deputy Sheriff - 03/16/20 - General Fund - Replacing Johnny Sanchez 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
11. Superior Court - Judge Pro Tempore - Vacated by Gary Scales 

 
MARCH 31, 2020 
 

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
1. Nancy Kridler - Payson Justice Court - Justice Court Clerk - 01/22/20 - 

General Fund 
2. Timothy Moore - Sheriff's Office - Detention Officer - 03/18/20 - General 
Fund 

3. Kristina Hernandez - Sheriff's Office - 911 Dispatcher - 04/01/20 - General 
Fund 
4. Stella Gore - Health and Emergency Services - Community Health Specialist 

- 02/11/20 - Prescription Drug OD Prevention Fund 
 

DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
5. Gaylynn Quintana - From Clerk of Superior Court - To Superior Court - 
From Associate Jury Commissioner - To Judicial Assistant - 04/13/20 - 

General Fund - Replacing Rebecca Guadiana 
 

REQUEST TO POST: 
6. Computer Services - IT Security Administrator - New position  
 

D.  Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the reporting 
period of March 2020.  
 



Page 11 of 12 

 

Approve demands and budget amendments for operating transfers.  Warrant 

numbers 301740 through 301789, 301791 through 302076, 302078 through 

302173, and 302175 through 302416 totaling $3,744,584.38 for the period 03-

01-20 through 03-31-20.  

 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §11-217(C), the published minutes shall include all 

demands and warrants approved by the Board in excess of one thousand 

dollars except that multiple demands and warrants from a single supplier or 

individual under one thousand dollars whose cumulative total exceeds one 

thousand dollars in a single reporting period shall also be published.  (A 

listing of issued warrants and voided warrants is permanently attached to 

these minutes.) 

 
E.  Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been 

approved by the County Manager for the month of March 2020.  
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Humphrey, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, 

the Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda items 4A-4E. 
 

Item 5 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 
issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 

may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 

of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 

matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date. 
 

There weren’t any public comments. 
 

Item 6 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 
may present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken 

on the information presented. 
 
Each Supervisor and the Deputy County Manager, District Librarian presented 

a summary of current events.   
 

There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Cline adjourned the meeting at 10:58 a.m. 
 

 



Page 12 of 12 

 

APPROVED: 
 

_____________________________________ 
Woody Cline, Chairman 

 
ATTEST: 
 

_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 



   
ARF-6001   Consent Agenda Item     4. C.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2020  
Reporting
Period:

March 2020

Submitted For: Esther Canez, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Superior Court 
Submitted By: Esther Canez, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Superior Court

Information
Subject
Clerk of the Superior Court's Office Monthly Report for March 2020.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the March 2020 monthly activity report submitted by
the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.

Attachments
Clerks Report March 2020



















   
ARF-6011   Consent Agenda Item     4. D.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2020  
Reporting
Period:

Recorder's Office Monthly Report for March 2020

Submitted For: Sadie Bingham, Recorder 
Submitted By: Charlotte Williams, Chief Deputy Recorder

Information
Subject
Recorder's Office Monthly Report for March 2020

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the March 2020 monthly activity report submitted by
the Recorder's Office. 

Attachments
Recorder's March 2020 Monthly Report





















   
ARF-6014   Consent Agenda Item     4. E.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2020  
Reporting
Period:

Globe Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for
March 2020

Submitted For: Ruben Mancha, Globe Regional Constable 
Submitted By: Michael Sellars, Constable Clerk

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for March 2020

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the March 2020 monthly activity report submitted by
the Globe Regional Constable's Office.

Attachments
March2020





























   
ARF-6013   Consent Agenda Item     4. F.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2020  
Reporting
Period:

Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for
March 2020

Submitted For: Tony McDaniel, Payson Regional Constable 
Submitted By: Kimberly Rust, Constable Clerk

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for March 2020

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the March 2020 monthly activity report submitted by
the Payson Regional Constable's Office.

Attachments
March 2020



























   
ARF-6023   Consent Agenda Item     4. G.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2020  
Reporting
Period:

Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office Monthly
Report for March 2020

Submitted For: Mary Navarro, Justice Court Operations Mgr. 
Submitted By: Mary Navarro, Justice Court Operations Mgr.

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office Monthly Report for March
2020

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the March 2020 monthly activity report submitted by
the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
Monthly Report for March 2020









   
ARF-6024   Consent Agenda Item     4. H.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2020  
Reporting
Period:

March 2020

Submitted For: Dorothy Little, Justice of the Peace-Payson Region 
Submitted By: Dorothy Little, Justice of the Peace-Payson Region

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Justice of  Peace's Office Monthly Report for March 2020

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the March 2020 monthly activity report submitted by
the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
March 2020 binder





Limited Jurisdiction Courts
Civil Caseload Manner Of Disposition Summary Report

PAYSON REGIONAL JUSTICE COURT - 404
START DATE : 3/1/2020          END DATE : 3/31/2020

Column ID 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

LINE 
ID CASE TYPE Non-Trial Dispositions Trial Dispositions

Jury Trail Bench Trail

Dismissal
Default

Judgment
Summary
Judgment

Settled/ 
Withdrawn

Transfer to 
Another
Court

Total
Non-Trial

Dispositions

Verdict
Reached

Disposed
After Start

Total Jury 
Trials

Judgment
Reached

Disposed
After Start

Total Bench 

Section - 1 Civil

A Small Claims 2 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0

B Forcible Detainer / Eviction Action 4 3 3 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 0

C Tort 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

D Contract 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

E Debt-Seller Plaintiff 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

F Other Civil 15 14 2 4 0 35 0 0 0 0 0

G Total Civil Complaints 21 17 5 4 0 47 0 0 0 0 0

Section - 2 Domestic Violence & 
Harassment Petitions

A Civil Emergency Order of Protection 0 0 0 0 0 0

B Civil Order of Protection 0 0 9 0 0 9

C Injunction Against Harassment 0 0 5 0 0 5

D Injunction Against Workplace 
Harassment

0 0 0 0 0 0

Section - 3 Special Case 
Characteristics

A Self Represented Litigants 20 17 18 4 0 59 0 0 0 0 0

B Interpreter Provided 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

4/22/2020 11:01:08 AM



12 13 14 15

Total Bench 
Trials

Total
Trial

Dispositions

Other Civil
Dispositions

Grand
Total

Dispositions

0 0 0 2

0 0 0 10

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 35

0 0 0 47

0 0

0 9

3 8

0 0

0 0 3 62

0 0 0 0

4/22/2020 11:01:08 AM



Limited Jurisdiction Courts
Misdemeanor, Criminal And Civil Traffic Caseload Summary By Charge

PAYSON REGIONAL JUSTICE COURT - 404

START DATE : 3/1/2020          END DATE :3/31/2020

Misdemeanor Criminal and 
Civil Traffic
Caseload Summary by 
Charge

INCOMING OUTGOING

Column ID 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

LIN
E ID

CASE TYPE New Filing
& Transfers In

Reopened Reactivated
Total Charges 

Incoming
Entry of 

Judgment
Default 

Judgment
Reopened

Terminations
Placed on 
Inactive 
Status

Total Charges 
Outgoing 

Section - 1 Misdemeanor

Person

A Person-Sex Offenses 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

B Person-Kidnapping 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

C Person-Aggravated Assaults 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

D Person-Other Assaults 4 0 0 4 3 0 0 0 3

Property

E Property-Burglary 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

F Property-Auto Theft 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

G Property-Other 12 0 2 14 6 0 0 2 8

Other

H Drug Possession/Paraphernalia 10 0 4 14 11 0 0 0 11

I Weapons 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

J Public Order 10 0 2 12 9 0 0 2 11

K Interfering With Judicial 
Proceedings

2 1 0 3 4 0 1 0 5

L Failure to 
Appear/Misd&CrimTraffic

0 0 1 1 5 0 0 1 6

4/22/2020 11:13:28 AM Page 1 of 3



M Petty Offenses 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

N Other 13 0 1 14 6 0 0 1 7

Section - 2 Criminal Traffic

DUI

A Motor Vehicle 7 0 0 7 8 0 0 0 8

B Extreme Motor Vehicle 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0

C Boating/Flying 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Serious Violations

D Leaving the Scene 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

E Reckless Driving 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1

F Racing on Highway 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

G All Other 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1

Other Violations

H Criminal Speed 9 0 0 9 6 0 0 1 7

I All Other 11 1 6 18 15 0 1 1 17

Section - 3 CivilTraffic

A Driver License 10 0 0 10 5 3 0 0 8

B Registration 10 3 0 13 7 5 3 0 15

C Insurance 18 4 0 22 12 3 4 0 19

D Speeding 110 20 0 130 86 22 20 0 128

E Excessive Speeding 130 5 0 135 136 20 5 0 161

F Red Light 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

G Seat Belt 24 2 0 26 22 13 2 0 37

H State DPS Photo Enforcement 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

I Other Civil Traffic 16 2 0 18 11 5 2 0 18

Section - 4 Local - Non 
Criminal Ordinances

4/22/2020 11:13:28 AM Page 2 of 3



A Parking 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

B Non-Parking 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0

Section - 5 Felony

A Total Felony 37 0 0 37 53 0 0 2 55

 GRAND TOTAL 437 38 16 491 406 71 38 11 526

Section - 6 Domestic Violence

A Felony-Domestic Violence 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1

B Misdemeanor-Domestic 
Violence

10 0 2 12 9 0 0 0 9

Section - 7 Special Case 
Characteristics

A Self Represented Litigants 375 37 9 421 331 71 37 9 448

B Interpreter Services Provided 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

4/22/2020 11:13:28 AM Page 3 of 3


	Agenda
	University of Arizona Cooperative Extension Programs
	Att1_4-H Presentation 5-5-20
	Appointment of Justice of the Peace Pro Tempore for Globe Justice Court
	Att1_Memo to Board of Supervisors
	Att2_Board of Supervisors Approval
	Att3_Administrative Order Appointing Mary Navarro
	Request to Waive Zoning Application Fee for Conditional Use Permit  Application No. P2004-024
	Att1_CUP Application
	Att2_Zoning Ordinance
	ACRE, NET:   An area comprising forty-three thousand, five hundred sixty (43,560) square feet of land excluding rights-of-way, roadway easements and ingress and egress easements.
	A. PAD – Planned Area Development
	1. Definition:  The PAD District is an alternative to conventional land use regulations, substituting procedural protections for the requirements in the Zoning Ordinance. The PAD District is an overlay district that shall be used only in conjunction w...
	2. Intent and Purpose:  Gila County recognizes that in certain instances the objectives of the Zoning Ordinance may be best achieved by development of planned areas which may not conform in all respects to the underlying zoning district.  Gila County ...
	3. Location:   A PAD may be established in any zoning district upon a finding that such a development would comply with the intent of this section of the Zoning Ordinance and that the PAD substantially complies with any previously approved area plans,...
	4. Application Requirements:   Each application for approval of a PAD District shall be filed in accordance with the provisions of Section 105 of this Zoning Ordinance.  In addition to the filing fee established for amendments, an additional fee of $5...
	5. Development Plan:  The rezoning application shall be accompanied by a Development Plan which shall consist of:
	a. The proposed development shall be drawn at sufficient scale so as to not exceed a print size greater than 24” x 36.”  Lettering shall be of sufficient size to be reasonably legible when reduced to an 8 ½” x 11” clear print.
	b. Title of the project, such as “Planned Area Development for_________” in bold faced letters.
	c. Name of the landowner, developer, applicant and the firm or person who prepared the plan.
	1. Purpose and Intent
	2. Applicability
	i. Maintenance of the exterior of existing structures such as repainting, re-roofing, residing, where similar materials and colors, are used.
	ii. Interior remodeling.
	iii. Existing nonconforming aspects of a building or site not addressed in an application for a design review permit.
	iv. Short-term/temporary preventative maintenance as a result of an emergency situation. i.e., fire, flood, natural disaster.

	4. Application Procedures
	i. Each packet must contain:
	ii. Site Plan that provides the following:
	a) Pedestrian & vehicular circulation.
	b) Building floor plans showing orientation of windows & doors on the exterior walls of the proposed structure.
	c) Location and description of exterior signage.
	d) Landscape plan, including plants type and placement, and hardscape details.
	e) Exterior Lighting; location, type, and orientation.
	f) Fences and walls, (material and surface textures).
	a) Façade Treatment.
	b) Architectural Design.
	c) Building Height.
	d) Building Materials.
	e) Design Detail for windows and doors.


	5. Review Procedures
	a. Site Layout.
	i. Orientation and location of buildings, hardscape, natural features and landscaped areas in relation to physical characteristics of the site, neighborhood character, and the appearance and harmony of adjacent buildings. For the purpose of these guid...
	ii. The appearance and safety of the proposed pedestrian system.
	iii. Landscaping:
	a) The location, height and species of hedges, trees, and xeriscaping to ensure harmony with the ambiance of the area and the intent of these guidelines.
	b) The planting of groundcover to prevent dust and erosion.
	c) The preservation of existing healthy tree
	iv. Hardscaping: the location, height and material of walls, fences, and other artificial embellishments to ensure harmony with the ambience of the area and the intent of these guidelines
	v. Outdoor Signage:  The number, location color, size, lighting, and landscaping of outdoor advertising devices as they relate to pedestrian and vehicular traffic, their appearance and harmony with the existing adjacent structures, and the intent of t...

	b. Architectural Character
	i. The consistency of the applications of the proposed design with approved design guidelines.
	ii. The compatibility of the character of the proposed design with adjacent structures and the intent of these regulations.
	iii. Preservation of historical structures (if within registered Historic Districts).

	c. Overall Compliance with Development Standards - The Design Review Committee or the Planning Staff of the government agency with jurisdiction over the said property, on a case-by-case basis, may make exceptions to the provisions of the following sec...
	i. Buildings should be placed as close to the front property line as reasonable with consideration for the safe passage of vehicular and pedestrian traffic. Where no side yard setback is provided, structural wall construction must be two-hour fire rat...
	ii. Rear yard setback is not required except when the adjoining property is residential.  Where this occurs, a case-by-case review will determine appropriate setbacks that are compatible with the adjoining properties.
	iii. Overhead structures such as porches and balconies may be placed on the front property line except where adjoining structures have larger front yards.

	c. Parking Facilities
	d. Multiple Buildings
	e. Driveways
	i. Shared or common driveways are encouraged.
	ii. There should be a maximum of one driveway per lot or parcel except where the lot has more than one hundred (100) feet of frontage on the Highway Corridor.  Driveways should be separated by a minimum of one hundred (100) feet.  Approval of the Ariz...

	f. Signage
	i. No roof sign should be permitted except where significant negative grade change exists from the roadway to the building site.
	ii. Portable free-standing signs must not exceed three (3) feet in height, six (6) square feet on each face, and must not obstruct pedestrian ways or cause line of sight problems.
	iii. Permanent free-standing signs should not exceed thirty-two (32) square feet on each face and must be low profile.
	iv. Marquee signs must not be installed in such a manner that the illumination from the sign causes distraction or hindrance to vehicles on the corridor nor occupants of nearby properties.
	v. Colors should be used from the approved color board.
	vi. Signs must be properly maintained.
	vii. Signs should be architecturally integrated with their surroundings in terms of size, shape, color, texture and lighting.
	viii. Signs should not be in visual competition with each other.
	ix. In the event that these signage guidelines are found to be in conflict with the adopted sign ordinance provisions of the government agency with jurisdiction, the established governmental sign ordinance requirements shall have precedence.

	g. Lighting
	i. Colored lighting is allowed but should not:
	a) spill over onto adjacent properties;
	b) be the primary lighting theme; or
	c) contain moving or streaming lights or components.
	ii. Lighting fixtures should be historically appropriate to the area, and close in appearance to other installed historic lighting within the government jurisdiction.


	h. Utility Equipment
	i. Mechanical systems equipment should be screened, and sound attenuated, using approved building materials and positioned to maintain minimum intrusion on the public view.
	ii. Utility areas and equipment, such as trash receptacles, storage areas, service yards and loading/unloading areas should be screened from public view with approved building materials.
	iii. Permanently installed utility standards and communication equipment should blend into the surrounding environment.  The use of earth colors and/or the installation of faux foliage, and/or the installation of equipment constructed to replicate a l...

	i. Landscaping
	i. Landscaping should soften the visual appearance of the site and provide a pedestrian friendly environment.
	ii. Any planting within the rights of way should not create a line of sight nuisance or be a nuisance to pedestrian and vehicular traffic in any way.
	iii. All undeveloped areas, within public view, should be landscaped or left with undisturbed natural vegetation.
	iv. Deciduous or evergreen shrubs and trees can be used.
	v. Planter boxes are encouraged for flowers.


	j. Hardscape
	i. Colors, textures and materials selected for walkways, patios, and other ground plane enhancements must support the architectural character of the area.
	ii. Materials should not impede accessibility to those who are physically challenged.
	iii. The texture and color of hardscape should clearly differentiate between driveways, parking facilities, and those areas used by bicyclists or pedestrians.
	iv. Stone, brick, colored concrete, pavers, covered boardwalks, and concrete finishes are acceptable.
	v. Natural materials should be used to the maximum extent; Synthetic materials may be considered.

	k. Street Furniture
	i. Street furniture should be of design and character consistent with municipal streetscape elements.
	ii. Synthetic or plastic elements are not permitted.

	l. Fences and Walls
	m. Overhead Protection Structures
	i. Overhead protection structures should be installed on the façade of the ground floor above any installed or planned pedestrian pathways.
	ii. A minimum of seven (7) foot vertical clearance is required for overhead structures above potential pedestrian pathways.


	7. Development Standards (Architectural and Structural Design)
	a. Architectural Features
	i. Architectural design should be compatible with the character of the area. Design compatibility should include complimentary building style, form, size, color and materials.
	ii. Diversity of architectural design is encouraged that portrays the historical and cultural influences of the area.
	iii. Detail is required at/around all doorways and windows that front on the street or are part of visible sidewalls.
	iv. Rough sawn wood reflecting “pioneer” look is encouraged.

	b. Building Materials
	i. The preferred building materials include wood, stone, brick, and adobe. Stucco and synthetic materials may be considered.
	ii. Metal buildings are permitted if the facade visible from the right-of way is composed of building materials specified in paragraph G.1.b above.

	c. Building Colors
	i. Exterior colors should be selected from the recommended color board, Historic Colors of America.
	ii. Trim and body colors should be complimentary, and brilliant, bold colors should be avoided.

	d. Roof Design
	e. Facade Treatment
	i. The concealing of original facades as part of restoration/rehabilitation should be avoided.
	ii. Storefront restoration should return the façade to its original character as much as is reasonable and appropriate and meets design review requirements.
	iii. Reflective or mirrored glass should be avoided.  Tinted glass should comply with Arizona Standards of 30% maximum reduction of transparency.
	iv. A minimum of 35% of the front first floor of the building at the front property line should be windows or doors.
	v. No new construction or remodeling of an existing building will use mill finished aluminum windows, doors, or display devices.
	vi. In new construction glass block windows visible from public walkways should be avoided.


	8. Guideline Review
	SECTION 105
	AMENDMENT PROCEDURES
	Section 105.2
	Section 105.3
	Planning and Zoning Commission Action

	Section 105.4
	Board of Supervisors’ Action



	Att3_Fee  Schedule
	Award Contract in Response to Request for Proposals No. 121619-Third Party Claims Administrator
	Att1_Request to Advertise RFP 121619
	Att2_Request for RFP 121619
	Att3_RFP No. 121619
	Att4_Addendum 1 RFP 121619
	Att5_Affidavit of Publication RFP 121619
	Att6_Bid Opening RFP 121619
	Att7_Bid Results RFP 121619
	Att8_CorrectCare Proposal
	Att9_Contract Request
	Att10_Professional Services Contract No. 121619
	Request to Advertise Request for Sealed Proposals No. 041520 - Annual Newspaper Contract
	Att1_Exhibit H - Request to Advertise RFP No. 041520
	Att2_Request to Advertise Request for Sealed Proposals No. 041520
	Att3_Notice of Request for Sealed Proposals No. 041520
	Adopt Resolution No. 20-05-01 Annual Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Designation
	Att1_Resolution No. 20-05-01
	Att2_A.R.S. 1279.07
	Public Works Department Policy No. PWS-012 _ _Commercial Driver License (CDL) Random Drug_Alcohol Testing_ which replaces Policy No. DPW 09-05.
	Att1_Proposed Policy No. PWS-012 Revised DPW09-05
	GILA COUNTY

	Att2_CDL Random Drug_Alcohol Testing with Changes in Red
	DEPARTMENTIVISION OF PUBLIC WORKS

	BOS April 21, 2020 BOS Meeting Minutes
	Att1_04-21-20 Meeting Minutes
	March 2020
	Att1_Clerks Report March 2020
	Recorder's Office Monthly Report for March 2020
	Att1_Recorder's March 2020 Monthly Report
	Globe Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for March 2020
	Att1_March2020
	Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for March 2020
	Att1_March 2020
	Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office Monthly Report for March 2020
	Att1_Monthly Report for March 2020
	March 2020
	Att1_March 2020 binder
	END OF MONTH MARCH
	jp0404 marcy civil summary
	0404 march 2020 criminal traffic.pdf


